AMENDED - JANUARY 25, 2021
A\ | /4

CORINTH

TEXAS

****PUBLIC NOTICE ****

NOTICE OF A CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL SESSION
OF THE CITY OF CORINTH
Thursday, January 28, 2021, 5:45 P.M.
CITY HALL - 3300 CORINTH PARKWAY

Pursuant to Section 551.127, Texas Government Code, one or more Council Members or employees may
attend this meeting remotely using videoconferencing technology. The videoconferencing technology can be
accessed at www.cityofcorinth.com/RemoteSession. The video and audio feed of the videoconferencing
equipment can be viewed and heard by the public at the address posted above as the location of the meeting.
The City of Corinth is following the Center for Disease Control Guidelines for public meetings.

CALL TO ORDER:

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA

1.

Receive a presentation and hold a discussion on policy governance.

Receive a presentation, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on amending the Master Fee
Schedule to incorporate changes to the City’s Credit Card Processing Fees.

Receive a report, hold a discussion and provide staft direction on a policy for Elected Officials and
Appointed Boards, Commissions and Committees Using Personal or Professional Social Media
Platforms, and providing an effective date.

Receive a presentation, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on the Communication Strategic
Plan.

Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed
session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.

ADJOURN WORKSHOP SESSION

*NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Special Session of the Corinth City Council to be held at Corinth City
Hall located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The agenda is as follows:


http://www.cityofcorinth.com/RemoteSession

CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE:
"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".

CONSENT AGENDA

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.
Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

1. Consider and act on a resolution approving the policy for Elected Officials and Appointed Boards,
Commissions and Committees Using Personal or Professional Social Media Platforms, and providing
an effective date.

2. Consider and act on a resolution reviewing and approving the Investment Policy for funds for the City
of Corinth; and providing an effective date.

3. Consider and act on a resolution reviewing and approving the Investment Policy for funds for the
Crime Control & Prevention District; and providing an effective date.

4, Consider and act on a resolution reviewing and approving the Investment Policy for funds for the
Economic Development Corporation; and providing an effective date.

5. Consider and act on a resolution reviewing and approving the Investment Policy for funds for the Fire
Control, Prevention & Emergency Services District; and providing an effective date.

6. Authorize the acquisition of an ambulance to replace the existing reserve unit.

CITIZENS COMMENTS

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will be
limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and
may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if
you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed
to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of
the City of Corinth.

BUSINESS AGENDA

7. Consider authorizing the engagement of Kimley-Horn and Associates to prepare the Risk Assessment
and Emergency Response Plan on the water infrastructure and authorize the City Manager to sign the
contract with an amount not to exceed $56,000.

8. Consider and act upon the Alternative Compliance Application for tree preservation on +.42 acres
located at 3900 Serendipity Hills Court, The Bluffs at Pinnell Pointe, Block B, Lot 1. (AC20-0003)



3

9. Consider and act upon the Alternative Compliance Application for Tree Preservation on +4.93 acres
located at 5150 S I-35 E. (Enterprise AC20-0001)

10. Consider authorizing the city manager to execute a contract with Jones | Carter for the detailed
engineering design of floodplain reclamation for the land encompassing the City’s Transit-Oriented
Development (TOD) and Agora District, in an amount not to exceed $150,000.00.

11. Consider approval of granting Oncor Electric an underground utility easement within the Lake Sharon
Pump Station site for the purpose of providing underground electric service to Lake Sharon Phase 3 and
authorizing the City Manager to sign any necessary documents.

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in
accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that
an item be added as a business item to any future agenda.

CLOSED SESSION

The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of
the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government
Code.

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body
under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter
551.

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third
person.

a. Right-of-way consisting of 1.56 acres located at 6881 South I-35E and along Dobbs Road within the H.
Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. (M/B)

b. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs Road
within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. (F)

c. Being approximately 7 acres of land, more or less, located in the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract No. 1389,
City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. (H)

d. Being approximately 13 acres of land, more or less, in the North Central Texas College Addition No. 2,
Block A, Lot 1R. (N)

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in
or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.




a. Project Agora

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney
on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION
ITEMS.

ADJOURN

Posted this 25th day of January 2021, at 6:00 p.m. on the bulletin board at Corinth City Hall.

Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas



WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM 1.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021
Title: Policy Governance
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary

City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement &
Proactive Government
Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a presentation and hold a discussion on policy governance.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

A component of the city manager's goals for 2021 is the introduction and practice of governance. The workshop is
intended to introduce policy governance to the city council (and by extension staff). The primary focus will be
based on the work of John Carver with the acknowledgment of Peter Drucker and George Cuff. There is not
sufficient time to cover the topic in its entirety but includes sample policies, ends discussion, and an overview of
concepts.

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

Attachments
Policy Governance Overview

Sample Governance Policies




yaumn

POLICY GOVERNANCE
OVERVIEW

Focus

* Focus on governance, including orientation, board involvement, and
policy development
* Build strong council/manager relationship
* Ensure the council decision making system works
* City priorities are established annually
* Ensure council is consulted on what needs to be done
* Rethink council meetings, procedures, and focus on leadership




AGENDA

* Challenges of Municipal Governance and Elected Service
* Overview of Policy Governance (Carver Model)
* Benefits of Policy Governance for Cities
* Questions and Answers
A Comprehensive Leadership Framework
STRATEGIC
LEADERSHIP - Global/Regional
National/Societal
NS 5 State/Area Perspectives
Uncertainty and Va\II:::" _Pred ly Improving/Building in nature
Complexity MAYOR AND COUNCIL m'::"i“”

- Organizational/Systems and Processes
CITY MANAGER Perspectives
- Predominantly Operating/Maintaining

DEPARTMENT HEADS in nature

Organizational
Leadership

MANAGERS
Greater

Certainty

- Individual/Small Group
Task Oriented Perspective

SUPERVISORS

Less Complexity

- Predominantly Influencing
and Interpersonal in nature

Direct Leadership

- Work Procedures, Standards
- Group Cohesion, Norms

- Individual Motivation

CREW LEADERS
Trust, Dignity, and Respect for Others

1 BE
City Values and Ethics

1 KNOW

Leader Attributes Leader Skills Leader Actions

yaumn

- Mental
- Physical
- Emotional, Spiritual

~Trust
- Quality of Life

-Teamwork

- Conceptual
- Interpersonal
~Technical

- Tactical

- Influencing
- Operating
- Improving




yaumn

CHALLENGES OF ELECTED OFFICIALS

* High expectations

e Critical and difficult role

* Roles & responsibilities are poorly defined

* Little or no training or preparation

* Few measurements to define success

* Elected officials want to “do” and make a difference

TYPICAL “GOVERNANCE” PROBLEMS

* Lack of proper focus and forward (future) direction

* Lack of role clarity

* Council loses control of its agenda and its distinct role
 City Manager loses control of management responsibilities
* Reactive, backward looking, “fix-it” orientation




yaumn

THE “WORK"” OF THE CITY COUNCIL

* Work for the Owners (residents)
* Determine the desired ends/results for the City
* Ensure adherence to City Charter and/or other established policies

* Establish/revise policies to guide and direct the governance of the
City

THE “WORK"” OF THE CITY COUNCIL

* Link with Owners to represent their interests

* Hire and supervise its one employee: City Manager

* Monitor effective management of City and assure CM performance
* Act as the “trustee” of City’s money and resources

* Evaluate resources consumed vs. benefits gained




10

yaumn

CITY GOVERNANCE
EE— o

Residents Meet needs of
The “owners” of the City customers &
stakeholders within
the parameters set
by Council for

Owner of the City City Manager

Hire the City Council Hires & directs

through elections City staff; directs
operations

City Council
Hire and direct the City

Manager

EXISTING GOVERNANCE POLICIES-RULES

* Texas and U.S. Constitution

e City Charter

* Strategic Plan

* Comprehensive Land Use Plan
* Annual Budget

* Adopted Ordinance

10



11

yaumn

POLICY GOVERNANCE: A MODEL

* Created by John Carver
* Used by hundreds of elected bodies, non-profits, and organizations

* Police based governance model that more clearly defines the role of
the elected officials and CEO

* Separates organizational purpose (ENDS) from organizational
administration (MEANS)

[Peter Drucker, George Cuff]

11

CITY COUNCIL'S ROLE IN POLICY
GOVERNANCE

* Linkage with Owners

* Define explicit policies about:
* Ends (results)
* Executive Limitations
* Council-Staff Relationships
* Governance

* Assures executive performance
e Evaluates costs vs. benefits

12



12

yaumn

POLICIES FALL INTO 4 QUADRANTS

13

POLICIES FALL INTO 2 WORK AREAS

City Manager City Council
Activities Activities

14



13

yaumn

BENEFITS OF CLEAR ENDS POLICIES

* Allows City Council to provide vision and strategic leadership
* Council focuses on “what and why” of City operations
* Manager and staff focus on “who, how, when, & at what cost”

15

ENDS POLICIES = DESIRED RESULTS

* Desired results/outcomes of City services for the “owners”
* Owners = Residents

* Provide clear and tangible results that are measurable to assure
performance of city manager and staff

* Should be written as if you have already succeeded

* Should define:
* What benefits?
* For whom?
* At what cost?

16



14

yaumn

END POLICIES CONT.

* Determining desired ends, results, and organizational goals of Corinth

is the most importance job of the City Council

* City Manager determines the “Means” to the “Ends”

17

GLOBAL OR “OVERARCHING” END POLICY

Global Ends

Corinth is a growing community that is conveniently located, delivers outstanding services, engages its
residents, and provides a good mix of high-quality retail, restaurant, and entertainment.

1
2
3
4.
5
6

Sub-Ends
Growing Community
Conveniently located
Delivers outstanding services
High-quality retail
High-quality restaurants

High-quality entertainment

High-quality entertainment

18



15

yaumn

OVERARCHING ORGANIZATIONAL RESULT
CITY OF CORINTH

Corinth is a growing community that is conveniently located, delivers
outstanding services, engages its residents, and provides a good mix of
high-quality retail, restaurant, and entertainment.

19

END POLICIES TO BE DEVELOPED

* Community growth

* Qutstanding service delivery

* Resident engagement

* Mix of high-quality retail, restaurants, and entertainment

20



16

yaumn

SETTING ENDS (RESULTS)

* Must be observable & measurable
* Start broadly & become more specific
* Help to define priorities: core, important, and discretionary

21

BENEFITS AND PRINCIPLES
OF POLICY GOVERNANCE

22



17

yaumn

MONITORING PROCESS

Every policy monitored by pre-determined process on pre-determined
schedules

* Internal or external reports
* Direct inspections
* City Council self-assessment

23

MONITORING MEASURES WHAT THE CITY
HOPES TO ACCOMPLISH IN SUCCESSFULLY
SERVING COMMUNITY

24



18

yaumn

EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS POLICY:

* Explicit policy statements of what the City Manager is NOT permitted
to do

* Anything not prohibited in the Executive Limitations Policies may be
done by CM in pursuit of Council Ends

25

EXAMPLE OF EXECUTIVE LIMITATION
POLICY: COMMUNICATION

With respect to providing information and counsel to the City Council, the
City Manager may not permit the Council to be uninformed. According, the
City Manager may not:

1. Letthe Council be unaware of relevant trends, anticipated adverse media
coverage, material external and internal changes, particular changes in
assumptions upon which any council policy has previously been
established.

2. Fail to submit the required monitoring data.

3. Fail to marshal as many staff and external points of view, issues, and
options as needed for fully informed Council choices, particularly with
respect to staff opinions on matters of material importance.

26



19

yaumn

EXAMPLE OF EXECUTIVE LIMITATION
POLICY: COMMUNICATION

4. Present information in unnecessarily complex or lengthy form.

5. Fail to provide a mechanism for official Council, officer, or
committee communication.

6. Except for fulfilling individual requests for information, fail to deal
with the Council as a whole.

7. Fail to report actual or anticipated noncompliance with any policy
of the Council.

8. Fail to provide Council with sufficient information to gain an
understanding of the local condition (such as tax base trends, etc.).

27

COUNCIL - STAFF RELATIONS POLICY

* Delegation of authority to City Manager and through CM to staff

* Defines how City Council and City Manager will operate with each
other

* City Manager reports ONLY to full City Council
* City Council directs City Manager ONLY

 City Manager evaluated on ONLY two criteria:
1. Achievement of (City Council Prescribed) Ends
2. Avoidance of Violations of Executive Limitations

28



20

yaumn

EXAMPLE OF COUNCIL STAFF RELATIONS
POLICY - “UNITY OF CONTROL"

Only decisions of the City Council acting as a body are binding on the City Manager and
City Attorney

* Decisions, instructions, or directives of individual Councilmembers are not binding on the
City Manager or City Attorney except when the City Council has specifically authorized
such exercise of authority

* In seeking clarification on informational items, Councilmembers may directly approach
professional staff members to obtain information needed to supplement, ulograde, or
enhance their knowledge to improve Council devisions-making. Any Councilmember
requests that terquree substantive work should come before the Council for direction

* If the Councilmember request information or assistance without Council authorization,
the City Manager or City Attorney may decline such requests that require a material
amount of staff time or funds, or are disruptive and refer the requests to the full Council
for authorization to proceed. The City Manager and the City Attorney have the right to
decline and refer such requests to the Council so long as all members of Council are
treated the same in this respect.

29

GOVERNANCE PROCESS POLICIES

* Establishes how the Council will operate as one entity

* Establishes standards of behavior, roles, and commitments and code
of ethical behaviors

* Defines City Council’s job descriptions and ground rules

30



21

yaumn

GOVERNANCE PROCESS POLICY:
GOVERNANCE STYLE

The Council will approach its task with a style which emphasizes
outward vision rather than an internal preoccupation, strategic
leadership more than administrative detail, clear distinction of Council
and staff roles, further rather than past or present, and proactively
rather than reactively. In this spirit, the Council will:

1.

Direct, control, and inspire the organization through the careful
establishment of the broadest organizational values and
perspectives (policies)

Focus chiefly on impacts on the city outside the organization (ends),
not on the administrative or programmatic means of attaining those
effects.

31

GOVERNANCE PROCESS POLICY:
GOVERNANCE STYLE

3.

Enforce upon itself and its members discipline to govern with excellence, in
such matters as policymaking, role clarification, speaking with one voice and
sellf-policing of any tendency to stray from governance adopted in Council
policies

Be accountable to the general public for competent conscientious and effective
accomplishment of its obligations as a body. It will allow no officer, individual,
or committee of the Council to usurp this role or hinder this commitment.

Monitor and regularly discuss the Council’s own process and performance.
Ensure the continuity of its governance capability by retraining and
redevelopment.

Be an initiator of policy, not merely a reactor to staff initiatives. The Council, no
the staff, will be responsible for Council performance.

Ensure that the agenda process is driven by Council directions and initiatives.

32



22

yaumn

COUNCIL'S ROLE IN CREATING & MONITORING
CITY GOVERNANCE POLICIES

Council determines:

* Policy content & changes to established policies

* Method of monitoring (internal, external, direct inspection)
* Frequency of monitoring

* Evaluates City Manager performance on policies

33

BENEFITS OF POLICY GOVERNANCE

* Allows City Council to provide vision and strategic leadership

* Council focuses on “what and why” of City operations through ends
policies that define success

* Manager & staff focus on “who, how, when, & at what cost”

34



23

yaumn

BENEFITS OF POLICY GOVERNANCE

* Council controls Manager and staff by creating monitoring policies
* Provides clarity of roles and expectations
* Reduces City Council/City Manager conflict

* Aligns City resources of operation priorities (core, important,
discretionary)

* Improves relationships and accountability with residents by defining
expectations for performance of both Council and staff

35

SUMMARY

36



24

yaumn

10 PRINCIPLES OF POLICY GOVERNANCE

1. The City Council establishes its own rules & culture by policy

2. The City Council is trustee for the “owners” (residents)

3. Central duties of the City Council: determine desired ends/results

link with Owners

All important City Council expectations & decisions should be
embedded in formal policy

Policy should be formulated by determining the broadest values

37

10 PRINCIPLES OF POLICY GOVERNANCE

6.
7.
8.

o

The Council should define and delegate, not react and ratify
The Council speaks with one voice

The City Council seeks to create a relationship with management
that is empowering and safe

The City Council’s role in managing operations is through
boundaries established through Executive Limitations &
Council/Staff relations policies

10. City Manager performance must be monitored rigorously, against

established policy criteria

38



25

yaumn

THREE DIRECT PRODUCTS OF A BOARD
MEMBER

1.

The board’s first direct product is the organization’s linkage to the
ownership.

The board’s second direct product is explicit governing policies.

. The board'’s third direct product is assurance of executive

performance.

39

RESPONSIBILITIES OF A BOARD MEMBER

©ONDU AW R

Be prepared to participate responsibly

Remember your identity is with the ownership, not the staff
Represent the ownership, not a single constituency

Be responsible for group behavior and productivity

Be a proactive board member

Honor divergent opinions without being intimidated by them
Support the board’s final choice

Don’t expect agendas to be built on your interests

The organization is not there for you

10 Support the chair in board discipline

40



26

yaumn

DUTIES OF BOARD MEMBERS

* Provide a valuable link to the community and to the various interests
that make up the community

* Assist in the development of policy recommendations to the City
Council

* Provide leadership and support to City staff
* Promote the City and its programs
* Provide expertise in specialized areas

41

BOARD SELF-ASSESSMENT

* The primary purpose of evaluation is not to reward or punish, but to
achieve continual improvement in performance.

* Self-evaluation is most meaningful when related to established
expectations.

* Board self-evaluation is an inseparable part of governing, not an
extraneous or optional task.

* Self-evaluation is continual rather than sporadic activity.
* Board self-evaluation is the responsibility of the board —not the staff.

42



27

yaumn

BOARD AND COMMISSION PURPOSE

Principle-
Advisory boards are an extension of the City Council to advise on
the Ends issues.

43



A\ | /4

CORINTH

SAMPLE

GOVERNANCE
POLICIES

Last Update: January 2021

City of Corinth: Governance Policies



29

Table of Contents

SECTION I: EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS

Page Policy Title

A DD OWOWWONDNREFPRFPPE

(A) Global Executive Constraint

(B) Treatment of Customers of City Services

(C) Treatment of Staff

(D) Financial Planning/Budgeting

(E) Financial Condition and Activities

(F) Asset Protection

(G) Emergency City Manager Succession

(H) Compensation and Benefits

(I) Communication and Support to the City Council

SECTION Il: GOVERNANCE PROCESS

Page Policy Title

=
EBoowovw~vwo o

(A) Global Governance Process

(B) Governing Style

(C) Council Job Description

(D) Council Members’ Code of Conduct
(G) City Council Engagement

(E) Annual Planning

(F) Mayor’s Role

(H) Council Committee Principles

() Cost of Governance

SECTION I11: COUNCIL-MANAGEMENT DELEGATION

Page Policy Title

12 (A) Global Board-Management Delegation

12 (B) Unity of Control

12 (C) Accountability of the City Manager

12 (D) Delegation to the City Manager

13 (E) Monitoring Executive Performance & Reporting Schedule
ATTACHMENTS

Page Attachment Title

15

Diagram (A): Categorized City Council Policies

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 2 of 18



30

SECTION I: EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS

(I-A) GLOBAL EXECUTIVE CONSTRAINT

The City Manager shall not cause or allow any organizational practice, activity, decision, or circumstance
that is either unlawful, imprudent, or in violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics.

(I-B) TREATMENT OF CUSTOMERS OF CITY SERVICES

With respect to interactions with customers, the City Manager shall not cause or allow conditions,
procedures, or decisions that are unsafe, untimely, undignified, or unnecessarily intrusive.

The City Manager will not
1. Elicit information for which there is no clear necessity.

2. Use methods of collecting, reviewing, transmitting, or storing customer information that fail to
protect against improper access to the material.

3. Operate facilities without appropriate accessibility and privacy.

4. Operate without establishing with customers a clear understanding of what may be expected and
what may not be expected from the service offered.

5. Operate without informing customers of this policy or providing a way to be heard for persons who
believe that they have not beenaccordeda reasonable interpretation of their rights under this policy.

(I-C) TREATMENT OF STAFF

With respect to the treatment of paid and volunteer staff, the City Manager shall not cause or allow
conditions that are unfair, undignified, disorganized, or unclear.

The City Manager will not

1. Operate without written personnel rules that (a) clarify rules for staff, (b) provide for effective
handling of grievances, and (c) protect against wrongful conditions, such as nepotism and grossly
preferential treatment for personal reasons.

2. Retaliate against any staff member for nondisruptive expression of dissent.

3. Allow staff to be unaware of City Manager’s interpretations of their protections under this policy.

4. Allow staff to be unprepared to deal with emergency situations.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 3 0f 18




31

SECTION I: EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS

(1-D)

FINANCIAL PLANNING/BUDGETING

The City Manager shall not cause or allow financial planning for any fiscal year or the remaining part of
any fiscal year that deviates materially from Council Ends priorities, risks financial jeopardy, or is not
derived froma multiyear plan.

The City Manager will not allow budgeting which:

1. Risks incurring those situations or conditions described as unacceptable in the Executive
Limitations policy entitled “Financial Condition and Activities.”
2. Omit credible projection of revenues and expenses, separation of capital and operational items,
cash flow analysis, and disclosure of planning assumptions.
3. Provide less than the amount determined annually by the Council for the Council’s direct use during
the year.
(I-E) FINANCIAL CONDITION AND ACTIVITIES

With respect to the actual, ongoing financial condition and activities, the City Manager may not cause or
allow the development of fiscal jeopardy or a material deviation of actual expenditures from Council
priorities established in Ends policies.

The City Manager will not

1.

Expend more funds than have been received in the fiscal year to date unless the Council’s debt
guideline is met.

Incur debt in an amount greater than can be repaid by certain and otherwise unencumbered revenue
with 60 days.

Use any long-term reserves.

Conduct inter-fund shifting in amounts greater than can be restored to a condition of discrete fund
balance within 30 days.

Allow payables or receivables not to be settled within a reasonable time frame.

Allow tax payments or other government-ordered payments or filings to be overdue or inaccurately
filed.

Make a single purchase or commitment of greater than $50,000. Splitting orders to avoid this limit
is not acceptable.

Acquire, encumber or dispose of real estate.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 4 of 18




32

b | - 1L ) W ) - o M | L - .

SECTION I: EXECUTIVE LIMITATION

(I-F) ASSET PROTECTION

The City Manager may not allow the Cizy’s assets to be unprotected, inadequately maintained, or
unnecessarily risked.

The City Manager will not

1. Insure the organization’s assets for less than one hundred percent of replacement value against
theft, fire and casualty losses or insure against liability losses to Council members, staff, volunteers
and the organization itself for less than the average for comparable organizations.

2. Allow personnel access to material amounts of funds.

3. Subject facilities and equipment to improper wear and tear or insufficient maintenance.

4. Unnecessarily expose the organization, its Council, or staff to claims of liability.

5. Receive, process or disburse funds under controls that are insufficient to meet the Council-
appointed auditor’s standards.

6. Make any purchase: (a) wherein normally prudent protection has not been given against conflict of
interest; (b) of more than $3,000 without having obtained comparative process and quality; (c) of
more than $7,500 without a stringent method of assuring the balance of long-term quality and cost
Orders shall not be split to avoid these criteria.

7. Allow property, information and files to be unprotected from loss or significant damage.

8. Allow information and files to be unprotected from cyber threats or threat

9. Investor hold operating capital in insecure instruments, including uninsured checking accountsand
bonds of less than an acceptable rating, or in non-interest bearing accounts except where necessary
to facilitate ease in operational transactions.

(I-G) EMERGENCY CITY MANAGER SUCCESSION

In order to protect the Council from sudden loss of the City Manager Services, the City Manager shall not
permit there to be less than one other person familiar enough with Council and City Manager issues and
procedures to be able to maintain organization services.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 5 of 18




33

SECTION I: EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS

(I-H) COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

With respect to employment, compensation, and benefits to employees, consultants, contract workers and
volunteers, the City Manager shall not cause or allow jeopardy to fiscal integrity or public image.

The City Manager will not

1.

Change the City Manager’s own compensation and benefits, except as those benefits are consistent
with a package for all other employees.

Promise or imply permanent or guaranteed employment.

Establish current compensation and benefits that deviate materially from the geographic or
professional market for the skills employed.

Create obligations over a longer term than revenues can be safely projected.

Establish or change pension benefits so as to cause unpredictable or inequitable situations,
including those that:

a) Incur unfunded liabilities,

b) Provides less than some basic level of benefits to all full-time employees, though differential
benefits to encourage longevity are not prohibited,

c) Allow any employee to lose benefits already accrued from any foregoing plan, and

d) Treatthe City Manager differently from other key employees.

(I-) COMMUNICATION AND SUPPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

The City Manager shall not cause or allowthe city council to be uniformed or unsupported in its work.

The City Manager will not

1. Neglect to submit monitoring data required by the Council according to its policy “Monitoring CM

Performance” in a timely, accurate, and understandable fashion, directly addressing provisions of
Council policies being monitored, and including City Manager interpretations consistent with the
“Delegations to the City Manager” policy, as well as relevant data.

Let the Council be unaware of any significant incidental information it requires including
anticipated adverse media coverage, threatened or pending lawsuits, and material internal and
external changes.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 6 of 18




34

SECTION I: EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS

3. Allow the Council to be unaware that, in the City Manager’s opinion, the Council is not in
compliance with its own policies on Governance Process and Council-Management Delegation,
particularly in the case of Council behavior which is detrimental to the work relationship between
the Council and the City Manager.

4. Allow the Council to be without decision information required periodically by the council or let
the council be unaware of relevant trends.

5. Present information in unnecessarily complex or lengthy form or in a form that fails to differentiate
among information of three types: monitoring, decision preparation, and other.

6. Allow the Council to be without a workable mechanism for Council, officer, or committee
communications.

7. Deal with the Council in a way that favors or privileges certain Council members over others,
except when (a) fulfilling individual requests for information or (b) responding to officers or
committees duly charged by the board.

8. Allow the Council to be unaware of any actual or anticipated noncompliance with any Ends or
Executive Limitations policy of the Council regardless of the Council’s monitoring schedule.

10. Endanger the city’s public image, credibility, or its ability to accomplish Ends.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 7 of 18




35

SECTION II: THE GOVERNANCE PROCESS

(II-A) GLOBAL GOVERNANCE PROCESS

The purpose of the City Council, on behalf of the residents of Corinth, is to see to it that the City of Corinth
(a) achieves appropriate results for appropriate persons at an appropriate cost (as specified in council
Ends policies), and (b) avoids unacceptable actions and situations as prohibited in Council Executive
Limitations policies.

(11-B) GOVERNINGSTYLE

The City Council will govern lawfully, observing the principles of the Policy Governance model, with an
emphasis on (a) outward vision rather than an internal preoccupation, (b) encouragement of diversity in
viewpoints, (c) strategic leadership more than administrative detail, (d) clear distinction of Council and
city manager roles, (e) collective rather than individual decisions, (f) future rather than past or present,
and (g) proactivity rather than reactivity.

Accordingly,

1. The Council will cultivate a sense of group responsibility. The council, not the staff, will be
responsible for excellence in governing. The Council will normally be the initiator of policy, rather
than reacting to staff’s proposals. The Council will not use the expertise of individual members to
substitute for the judgment of the Council, although the expertise of individual members may be
used to enhance the understanding of the Council as a body.

2. The Council will direct, control, and inspire the organization through the careful establishment of
broadly written policies reflecting the Council’s values and perspectives. The Council’s major
policy focus will be on the intended long-term external impacts of the organization.

3. The Council will enforce upon itself whatever discipline is needed to govern with excellence.
Discipline will apply to matters such as attendance, preparation for meetings, policy-making
principles, respectof roles, and ensuring the continuance of governance capability. Although the
council can change its governance process policies at any time, it will scrupulously observe those
currently in force.

4. Continual Council development will include orientation of new members in the Council’s
governance process and periodic Council discussion of process improvement. The Council will
provide mechanisms for educating others about their governance process.

5. The Council will monitor and discuss the Council’s strategic (rather than administrative) process
and performance at each meeting. Self-monitoring will include comparison of Council activity and
discipline to policies in the Governance Process and Council-Management Delegation categories.

6. The Council will allow no officer, individual or committee of the Council to hinder or be an excuse
for not fulfilling group obligations.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 8 of 18




36

SECTION II: THE GOVERNANCE PROCESS

(I1-C) COUNCIL JOB DESCRIPTION

Specific job outputs of the City Council, as an informed agent of the ownership, are those that ensure
appropriate organizational performance.

Accordingly, the Council will provide

1. The linkage between the ownership and the operational organization.

2. Written governing policies that realistically address the broadest levels of organizational decisions
and situations.

Ends: Organizational impacts, benefits, outcomes, recipients, beneficiaries, impacted groups,
and their relative cost or priority.

Executive Limitations: Constraints on executive authority that establish the prudence and
ethical boundaries within which all executive activity and decisions must take place.
Governance Process: Specification of how the Council conceives, carries out, and monitors
its own tasks.

Council-Management Delegation: How power is delegated and its proper use monitored; the
City Manager’s role, authority, and accountability.

3. Assurance of successful organizational performance on Ends and Executive Limitations.

(11-D) COUNCIL MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

The Council commits itself and its members to ethical, businesslike and lawful conduct, including proper
use of authority and appropriate decorum when acting as Council members.

1.

Members must have loyalty to the resident’s ownership, un-conflicted by loyalties to staff, other
organizations, and any personal interest as a consumer.

Members must avoid appearance of impropriety conflict of interest with respect to their fiduciary
responsibility.

a.

There must be no self-dealing or business by a member with the organization. Members will
annually disclose their involvements with other organizations, with vendors, or any
associations that might be or might reasonably be seen as being a conflict.

When the Council is to decide upon an issue about which Council member has an unavoidable
conflict of interest, that member shall withdraw without comment not only from the vote, but
also from the deliberation.

Council members will not use their positions to obtain employment in the organization for
themselves, family members or close associates. A Council member who applies for
employment must wait two years following their service on the Council.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 9 of 18




37

SECTION II: THE GOVERNANCE PROCESS

Council members may not attempt to exercise individual authority over the organization.

a. Members’ interaction with the City Manager or with staff must recognize the lack of authority
vested in individuals except when explicitly Council authorized.

b. Members’ interaction with public, press or other entitiecs must recognize the same limitation
and the inability of any Council member to speak for the Council except explicitly stated
Council decisions.

c. Except for participation in Council deliberation about whether the City Manager has achieved
any reasonable interpretation of Council policy, members will not express individual
judgments of performance of employees of the City Manager.

Members will respect the confidentiality appropriate to issues of a sensitive nature.

Members will be properly prepared for Council deliberation.

Members will support the legitimacy and authority of the final determination of the Council on any
matter, irrespective of the members’ personal position on the issue.

(II-E) CITY COUNCIL ENGAGEMENT

Based upon the necessity of regional, statewide and national involvement the council shall
engage/participate in external organizations and activities which promote the ends of the City.

Accordingly,

1.

The Mayor shall at minimum, participate in the following activities: , NLC policy
committee or council, etc.

The Mayor Pro-Temshall at a minimum, participate in the following activities in place of Mayor
when not available: , NLC policy committee or council, etc.

Councilmember’s based upon availability shall participate in regional and national activities such
as NLC, TML Regional meetings, TML legislative policies, State legislative activities, NCTCOG,
Lake Cities Chamber Luncheon, North Texas Commission, DCTA.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 10 of 18




38

SECTION II: THE GOVERNANCE PROCESS

(11-F) ANNUAL PLANNING

To accomplish its job with a governance style consistent with Council policies, the Council will follow an
annual agenda that (a) Completes a re-exploration of Ends policies annually (b) Continually improves
Council performance through Council education and enriched input and deliberation.

1. The cycle will conclude each year no later than the last day of May so that administrative planning
and budgeting can be based on accomplishing a one-year segment of the most recent statement of
long-term Ends.

2. The cycle will start with the Council’s development of its agenda for the next full year.

a. Consultations with selected groups in the ownership or other methods of gaining ownership
input will be determined and arranged in the first quarter, to be held during the balance of the
year.

b. Governance education and education related to Ends determination (e.g. presentations by
industry experts, advocacy groups, staff and so on) will be arranged in the third quarter, to be
held during the balance of the year.

c. Upon the request of two Council members, a request for an item for Council discussion may
be submitted to the Mayor no later than ten days before the council meeting.

3. Throughout the year, the Council will attend to consent agenda items as expeditiously as possible.

4. City Manager compensation and evaluation will be decided during the month of March after a
review of monitoring reports received in the previous year.

5. City Manager monitoring will be on the agenda based upon reports received since the previous

meeting, or if plans must be made for direct inspection monitoring, or if arrangements for third-
party monitoring must be prepared.

(11-G) MAYOR’SROLE

The Mayor, a specially empowered member of the City Council, assures the integrity of the Council’s
process and, secondarily, represents the Council to outside parties.

1. The assigned result of the Mayor’s job is that the Council behaves consistently with its own rules
and those legitimately imposed upon it from outside the organization.

a. Meeting discussion content will be only those issues which, according to board policy, clearly
belong to the Council to decide or to monitor.

b. Deliberation will be fair, open, and thorough, but also timely, orderly, and kept to the point.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 11 of 18




39

SECTION II: THE GOVERNANCE PROCESS

c. Information that is for neither monitoring performance nor Council decisions will be avoided
or minimized and always noted as such.

2. The authority of the Mayor consists of making decisions that fall within the topics covered by
Council policies on Governance Process and Council-Management Delegation with the exception
of (a) Employment or termination of the City Manager (b)Where the Council specifically delegates
portions of this authority to others. The Mayor is authorized to use any reasonable interpretation of
the provisions in these policies. The Mayor is authorized to use any reasonable interpretation of the
provisions in these policies.

a. The Mayor is empowered to chair Council meetings with all the commonly accepted power of
that position (e.g. ruling, recognizing).

3. The Mayor has no authority to make decisions about policies created by the Council within Ends
and Executive Limitations policy areas. Therefore, the Mayor has no authority to supervise or
unilaterally direct the City Manager.

a. The Mayor may representthe Council to outside parties in announcing Council-stated positions
and in stating Mayoral decisions and interpretations within the areas delegated to him or her. It
is expected that this latter authority would be exercised sparingly and only in such times as the
Council cannot timely deliberate the issue and is subject ultimately to Council review.

b. The Mayor may delegate this authority, but will remain accountable for its use.

(11-H) COUNCIL COMMITTEE PRINCIPLES

Council committees, when used, will be assigned to help the Council do its job, to reinforce the wholeness
of the Council’s job and so as never to interfere with delegation from Council to City Manager.

1. Council committees are to help the Council do its job, not to help or advise the staff. Committees
ordinarily will assist the Council by preparing policy alternatives and implications for Council
deliberation. In keeping with the Council’s broader focus, Council committees will normally not
have direct dealings with current staff operations.

2. Council committees may not speak or act for the Council except when formally given such

authority for specific and time-limited purposes. Expectations and authority will be carefully stated
in order not to conflict with authority delegated to the City Manager.

3. Council committees cannot exercise authority over staff. The City Manager works for the full
Council, and will therefore not be required to obtain approval of a Council committee before an
executive action.

4. Committees will be used sparingly and ordinarily in anad-hoc capacity.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 12 of 18




40

SECTION II: THE GOVERNANCE PROCESS

5. This policy applies to any group that is formed by Council action whether or not it is called a
committee and regardless of whether the group includes Council members. It does not apply to
committees formed under the authority of the City Manager.

(11-1) COST OF GOVERNANCE

The Council will invest in its governance capacity.
1. Council skills, methods, and supports will be sufficient to ensure governing with excellence.

a. Training and retraining will be used liberally to orient new Council members and candidates
for Council membership, as well as to maintain and increase existing Council member skills
and understandings.

b. Outside monitoring assistance will be arranged so that the Council can exercise confident
control over organizational performance. This includes, but is not limited to, financial audit.

c.  Outreach mechanisms will be used as needed to ensure the Council’s ability to listen to owner
viewpoints and values.

2. Costs will be prudently incurred, though not at the expense of endangering the development and
maintenance of superior capability.

3. The Council will establish its cost of governance budget or the next fiscal year during the month of
August.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 13 of 18




41

SECTION IIl: COUNCIL-MANAGEMENT DELEGATION

(111-A) GLOBAL COUNCIL-MANAGEMENT DELEGATION

The Council’s sole official connection to the operational organization, its achievements, and conduct will
be through a chief executive officer, titled the City Manager.

(111-B) UNITY OF CONTROL

Only officially passed motions of the Council are binding on the City Manager.

1. Decisions or instructions of individual Council members, officers, or committees are not binding
on the City Manager except in rare instances when the Council has specifically authorized such
exercise of authority.

2. Inthe case of Council members or committees requesting information or assistance without Council

authorization, the City Manager can refuse such requests that require, in the City Manager’s
opinion, a material amount of staff time or funds, or are disruptive.

(111-C) ACCOUNTABILITYOFTHE CITY MANAGER

The City Manager is the Council’s only link to operational achievements and conduct, so that all authority
and accountability of staff, as far as the Council is concerned, is considered the authority and
accountability of the City Manager.

1. The board will never give instructions to persons who report directly or indirectly to the City
Manager.

2. The Council will not evaluate, either formally or informally, any staff other than the City Manager
or other direct Council Appointees.

3. The Council will view City Manager performance as identical to organizational performance, so
that organizational accomplishment of Council-stated Ends and avoidance of Council-proscribed
means will be viewed as successful City Manager performance.

(111-D) DELEGATION TOTHE CITY MANAGER

The Council will instruct the City Manager through written policies that prescribe the organizational Ends
to be achieved, and describe organizational situations and actions to be avoided, allowing the City
Manager to use any reasonable interpretation of these policies.

1. The Council will develop policies instructing the City Manager to achieve specified results, for
specified recipients, at a specified cost. These policies will be developed systematically from the
broadest, most general level to more defined levels, and will be called Ends policies. All issues that
are not ends issues as defined here are means issues.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 14 of 18




42

SECTION IlI: COUNCIL-MANAGEMENT DELEGATION

2.

The Council will develop policies that limit the latitude the City Manager may exercise in choosing
the organizational means. These limiting policies will describe those practices, activities, decisions,
and circumstances that would be unacceptable to the board even if they were to be effective.
Policies will be developed systematically from the broadest, most general level to more defined
levels, and they will be called Executive Limitations policies. The Council will never prescribe
organizational means delegated to the City Manager.

As long as the City Manager uses any reasonable interpretation of the Council’s Ends and
Executive Limitations policies, the City Manager is authorized to establish all further policies,
make all decisions, take all actions, establish all practices, and develop all activities. Such decisions
of the City Manager shall have full force and authority as if decided by the Council.

The Council may change its Ends and Executive Limitations policies, thereby shifting the boundary
between Council and City Manager domains. By doing so, the Council changes the latitude of
choice given to the City Manager. But so long as any particular delegation policy is in place, the
Council and its members will respect and support the City Manager’s choices.

(111-E) MONITORING EXECUTIVE PERFORMANCE

Systematic and rigorous monitoring of City Manager job performance will be solely against the only
expected City Manager job products: organizational accomplishment of Council policies on Ends and
organizational operation within the boundaries established in Council policies on Executive Limitations.

1.

Monitoring is simply to determine the degree to which Council policies are being met. Information
that does not do this will not be considered to be monitoring data.

The Council will acquire monitoring information by one or more of three methods:

a. By INTERNAL REPORT: in which the City Manager discloses interpretations and
compliance information to the Council.

b. By EXTERNAL REPORT: in which an external, disinterested third party selected by the
council assess compliance with Council policies.

c. ByDIRECT COUNCIL INSPECTION: in which a designated Council member or members
of the Council assess compliance with the City Manager’s interpretation of the appropriate
policy criteria.

In every case, the Council will judge (a) the reasonableness of the City Manager’s interpretation
and (b) whether data demonstrate accomplishment of the interpretation.

The standard for compliance shall be any reasonable City Manager interpretation of the Council
policy being monitored. The Council is final arbiter of reasonableness, but will always judge with
a “reasonable person” test rather than with interpretations favored by Council members or by the
Council as awhole.

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 15 of 18




43

SECTION Ill: COUNCIL-MANAGEMENT DELEGATION

5. All policies that instruct the City Manager will be monitored ata frequency and by a method chosen
by the Council. The Council can monitor any policy atany time by any method, but will ordinarily

Policy Method Frequency Month
Global Executive Constraint Internal Annually March
Emergency City Manager
Succession Internal Annually March
Treatment of Customers Internal Annually May
Treatment of Staff Internal Annually May
Internal
Ends Balanced Scorecard Quarterly & Annually May
reporting
Communication and Support Direct Annually June
Inspection
Financial Planning/ Budgeting Internal Quarterly June - August
. . Internal
Compensation and Benefits External Annually June - August
Asset Protection Internal Annually August
Financial Condition and Internal (Budget) Annually August
Activities .
External (Audit) Annually March
depend on a routine schedule as follows:
City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 16 of 18




44

ATTACHMENT (A): CATEGORIZED BOARD POLICIES

Council Policies Completed in All Four Categories

Governance Ends
Process Issues
Issues
City Manager’s
Governance | Ends
Decisions Decisions
Mayor’s | City Manager’s
Council | Means
Management | Decisions
Delegation
Council Decisions : Staff
Management Means
Delegation Issues Issues

City of Corinth: Governance Policies Page 17 of 18




45

ATTACHMENT (B): DOCUMENT UPDATE HISTORY

Date of Last Pages —
Update Updated EEHAlIE
Al Document restructure, policy numbers added, table of contents

added, page numbers added

City of Corinth: Governance Policies

Page 18 of 18




46

WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM 2.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021

Title: Credit Card Fee Ordinance

Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director

Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director

Finance Review: Legal Review:
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive Government
AGENDA ITEM

Receive a presentation, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on amending the Master Fee Schedule to
incorporate changes to the City’s Credit Card Processing Fees.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

The Master Fee Schedule includes a current credit card fee structure for Planning & Permitting of 2% for all
transactions (face-to-face, phone and on-line). All other transactions for court, utility billing, police and fire
currently charge $3.95 per on-line and phone transaction.

Staff has been reviewing the credit card processing contract and available options, particularly to Utility Billing.
Several options will be presented for consideration and possible adoption on February 4, 2021.

RECOMMENDATION
N/A




47

WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM 3.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021
Title: Director of Finance, Communication & Strategic Services
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government
AGENDA ITEM

Receive a report, hold a discussion and provide staff direction on a policy for Elected Officials and Appointed
Boards, Commissions and Committees Using Personal or Professional Social Media Platforms, and providing an
effective date.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

While elected officials and City Council-appointed boards, commissions and committee members may maintain
and use personal web pages and websites, blogs, and social networking sites, their status as elected/appointed
officials requires that the content of any postings on those sites not be in violation of existing City by-laws, policies,
directives, rules or regulations.

The proposed policy provides best practices and guidelines recommended to ensure that the personal and
professional use of social media by elected and appointed officials is done so in a responsible manner.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the policy for Elected Officials and Appointed Boards, Commissions and
Committees Using Personal or Professional Social Media Platforms, effective February 1, 2021.

Attachments

Presentation




e "f '

Social Media Policy for
Public Officials

JANUARY 2021




Section I: Purpose

= City-related communications are considered a public record subject to the Texas Public
Information Act.

= Officials that use social media accounts to carry out their official duties are bound by the First
Amendment.

» The five freedoms the First Amendment protects: speech, religion, press, assembly, and the
right to petition the government

= The proposed policy provides guidance to help City Council and Boards/Commissions the
better utilize social media and navigate some of the challenges associated with social media,
within the First Amendment.



Section lI: Professional and Personal Conduct

Standards

Conduct should be consistent with the City’s policies and standards of conduct.

Privileged or confidential information under Texas State Law is considered an

exception to the public records law and may have specific penalties for inappropriate
disclosure.

Be honest and accurate when posting information or news, and should quickly correct
any mistakes, misstatements and/or factual errors in content upon discovery.

Officials should never represent themselves as a spokesperson for the City Council, a
City board or committee, the City Administration, or any City department.

Officials are prohibited from using social media to engage in any activity that
constitutes a conflict of interest with their elected or appointed duties to the City.



Standards :

Officials are prohibited from using personal or professional social media to engage in
any activity or conduct that violates federal, state, or local law.

Officials are also prohibited from using professional social media accounts to
circumvent election or campaign requirements, to campaign for re-election or endorse
other candidates for public office.

Social media content created by elected and appointed officials may be subject to the
standards and requirements of the Texas Public Information Act and the City’s records
retention policy. Specific inquiries should be directed to the City Clerk or the City
Attorney.

Officials are subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act. As an example, Officials should
be mindful that posting content regarding City-related matters could inadvertently result
In the violation of the Open Meetings Law if other public officials engage on the post,
resulting in a quorum.




Section lll: Best Practices and Guidelines for

Elected and Appointed Officials

Public officials are strongly encouraged to separate personal social media accounts from professional
social media accounts so that City-related matters and all public records generated from those posts are
easily archived and not intermingled with personal posts not related to City matters.

Officials should refrain from using social media accounts to communicate with City employees about
City-related matters as this creates a public record on employees’ personal accounts that must be
retained per the Texas Public Information Act.

If elected officials want the City’s official pages to respond to a social media inquiry, the following
responses are suggested:

“Tagging @CityofCorinth on your inquiry so the Administration may respond to you directly.”



If you want
your social
media account
to remain

“personal”,
don’t use it for
official
purposes.

53

¢ Public officials don’t surrender their First Amendment rights by
entering public service.

= You can maintain a social media account for personal use

= You can block followers from a personal account for any reason you
want to

*»If you use your social media account for official purposes,
though, the First Amendment restricts you from doing some of
the things you could do with a purely personal account.

**If you don’t want to be bound by the First Amendment, don’t use
your social media account as an extension of your office.

= Don’t use it to make announcements about your official
responsibilities or actions.

= Don’t use it to solicit the public’s views about what legislation you
should introduce or support, or whom you should appoint to an
official government post

= Don’t use it to carry out your duties—to call official meetings, for
example, or to issue orders that you have the authority to issue only
because of your government position



Do you use your account to
communicate information about
your official duties and to solicit
information from constituents
and the general public related to
those duties?

If you want to maintain both a
personal account and an official

one, you should maintain a clear
separation between the two.

Does city staff help you with
your account by, for example,
drafting, reviewing, or posting
social media messages, or
otherwise managing the
account?

Do you use government
equipment or other government
resources in operating your
account?

Do you use your account while
carrying out your official
responsibilities—for example,
while attending events in your
official capacity?

54

Do you associate the account
with your official position by, for
example, including your official
title in your account description,
or using a profile picture that
shows you acting in your official
capacity?

Do you refer to the account as
“official,” or direct constituents
or others to it in a way that
suggests that the account is an
extension of your office?




55

4
Don’t block users o ) |
= Social media accounts used for official purposes are “public forums”
Or delete within the meaning of the First Amendment.

comments just " hembers of the publi to speal in a space that the government
because they
criticize you.

owns or controls.

= Courts have held that the interactive features of social media accounts
used for official purposes make those accounts public forums for First
Amendment purposes because they enable members of the public to
speak by, for example, replying to tweets or posting comments.

If you use your account as an = The government may not stop people from speaking on public forums
extension of your office, the First on the basis of their viewpoints. The rule against viewpoint
Amendment prohibits you from discrimination ensures that people aren’t excluded from public
blocking people from the account— discourse simply because their views are controversial or disagreeable
or suppressing or deleting their to others.

comments, or otherwise penalizing

them—because of their viewpoints.




If you use your social media account for official purposes, you

should adopt policies for the account and post those policies
publicly.

Posting your policies publicly will let your followers (and others)

Have a SOCiaI know how you intend to use the account, and how you hope

others will use the forum established by the account.

m Ed ia pOI icy, Your policies should explain:

» The general purposes you hope the account will serve;

[ (]
m a ke It p u bl IC, * Any limitations on what users may post in the comment

threads: and

a n d fOI IOW lt. * How you will address violations of those limitations.

The First Amendment prohibits you from adopting a policy that
discriminates on the basis of viewpoint, but it also prohibits you
from enforcing a non-discriminatory policy in a way that
discriminates on the basis of viewpoint.

56



Section IV: Procedures for Requesting and

Maintaining Social Media Accounts

Boards must adherence to laws and policies regarding copyright, use of
photographs, public records retention, personnel privacy, First Amendment,
HIPAA privacy, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and information security
policies established by the City of Corinth

Board consideration of time, responsibility when establishing a social media
account

Required user guidelines

Establishing a process for removing or re-assigning social media management
duties.

Procedures if the account is hacked



Procedures for creating a Board social media account  *

All board/committee/commission social media accounts must be approved by the Director of
Finance, Communication & Strategic Services.

Board must submit a formal request for account creation.

The following guidelines will always remain in place on the page:

The City will create the account and maintain administrative control.

Members of the board/commission will be provided editing privileges.

Social Media Sites must contain a link to the city website, and the board website.
Profile Photos will be determined by the City and must remain the same.

Cover Photos are at the discretion of the board.

If the account is inactive for 30 days, it will be deactivated by the Director of Finance,
Communication & Strategic Services.




59

WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM 4.

City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021

Title: Communication Strategic Plan

Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director

Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director

City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government

Regional Cooperation
Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a presentation, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on the Communication Strategic Plan.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

The Communication Strategic Plan was adopted in January 2019, to enhance transparency and communication
methods with residents. The Plan outlined an overall communications' philosophy, structure, audience and
platforms. Through consistent and engaged communication, Corinth has the ability to grow informed
participation and enhance community pride.

The priorities identified serve as an overarching goals of the communication plan. Each Priority is followed by
strategies and actionable tactics that can create a more engaged and informed community.

o Priority 1: Transparency & Accountability - Citizens perceive the city as an open, credible, and
responsible Organization

o Priority 2: Timely & Accurate Information - Accurate, non-biased information is provided to residents in
a timely manner

o Priority 3: Public Engagement - Communication between residents and the City is two-way; residents
understand their input is valued and used in decisions

o Priority 4: Tell Our Story - Define and develop a community identity, and promote the community’s
unique characteristics

As communications technology and platforms for citizen engagement continue to advance, the plan is
expected to change to meet the emerging needs. The Plan as it was adopted was a snapshot of the
City’s communication goals and objectives to achieve the goals to better serve, inform, and engage the
residents of Corinth.

Staff will provide an overview of the communication efforts implemented in 2020 and seek council feedback to
develop the expectations for 2021.

RECOMMENDATION

N/A

Attachments



Presentation

60




f' ,.‘. ™

COMMUNICATIONS
# ANNUAL REVIEW




Miranda Meitabarger Longoria
5 R— . g My little mask wearer actually loves
Nancy Baier 4 | her masks - newest fashion

Thank you for caring about accessonyt
protecting and caring about health — .
safety of Corinth residents. Where my essentials at??

O

Like - Reply - 16w

- bl
\ J o Rick Augat
Laure Ann Krajca Lo ’ i Thank you fpr taAking some strong
It's good to see Corinth making " - leader ship in this. We can all see
: Sel . around the counties around us in
responsible decisions to help i the cities around us that the virus is
control the spread of this virus. N getting more intense and more B

Great job Corinth!! - ' cases are coming out and itis much B
o . X RN 5 better to be prepared than to have ~
el ' . to be responsive backpedaling.
Thank you again for your leader
ship
T O

TELL OUR STORY

EMPHASIS ON TRANSPARENCY & ACCOUNTABILITY,
TIMELY & ACCURATE INFORMATION
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT




63

Community Engagement

YOLICE
CORINTH
Ve

SOC Ial City of Corinth——— Fire Police @———

Media 6,133 4,491 44.4K

15% 4 Followers 5%% Followers 1% 4 Followers

Description ——— ——  Description —— S DT-Te{ ] o] {[e] o J—

25% 4%

1,546 Corinth Corinth 1,687

Corinth
75%

. Non-Resi o
Non-Residents on-Residents Non-Residents

@ 575 Followers 8,716 Followers , 743 Followers
’ 33 Posts 72,500 Total Impressions

1,500 Average Impressions

INSTAGRAM NEXT DOOR TWITTER



Communitx Engagement

Top 5 Pages:

Utility Billing, Police,
Permits, Municipal Court, &

City Website Trash & Recycling Services

Cityofcorinth.com

Top 5 Categories:

Mobile App Inappropriately Parked Vehicles,
MvCorinth Public Streets/Sidewalks, Code
y Enforcement, Water Breaks,
Non-Emergency Police

Top 5 Projects:

Bang the Table Covid-19, Golf Cart Survey,

Mycorinth.com Halloween in Corinth,
Envision Corinth 2040, Let’s
Talk Corinth

64

Growth 20% or 81,071

Total Visits 403,071

Avg Time Spent on Site: 2 min 19 seconds
Largest User Audience: 26-34 year-old male

Growth 42% or 535

Total Downloads 1,235

Avg Monthly Visits: 508
Avg Monthly Report a Concern: 93

Growth 561 or 58%

Total Registrations 959

Avg Monthly Contributors: 79



65

Marketing Cam aigns

= 2020 Campaigns

e

LAKE SHARON DRIVE EXTENSION

COVi d- | 9 GRAND OPENING

CORINTH, TX, December 4, 2020 — We are excited
10 share that late this aftemoon, the Lake Sharon Drive
Extension will officially be open to the public. The

Lake Sharon Drive Project is the result of a successful
collaboration berween the City of Corinth, Denton
e n s u s County Judge Andy Eads, Commissioner Hugh

Coleman, and the Commissioners Court with work

completed by Wildstone Construction
The project began in 2017 and includes approximately 3000 linear feet of four-l:
M M M M M divided concrete roadway with associated drainage and water line improvements. T,
Ire Istrlct Pecla ectlon B I PN PR  The self-response deadline has been
new route serves as a direct path for travelers from FM 2499 10 I-35 East.
¥ exiended to September 30 2020!

We appreciate everyone's patience over the last few years as we completed ‘” ’s EASIER THAN H’fﬂ 10 RESPDMN

project,” said City Engincer George Marshall. “We want to give thanks to

leadership team and the City Council for their flexibility throughout the wh
roadoan — L
Other city projects include working with TxDOT and creating an interchange for L: So C I al M e d I a ol inavirus (COVID-19) pr—

Sharon Drive o extend under I-35E, as well as a realignment and widening of Dobbs s m—
Road from [-35E to Quail Run. The Interchange is being run by TxDOT and has just | %M
begun the initial project scoping and Preliminary Engincering phase. The Dobbs Road
realig| be.

“ News Release

STAY SAFE.
STAY INFORMED.

T

gl

ity ot om Demarsd

OND A“

&
4

= 2021 Campaigns
= Agora District

= Agora Park and Event Space

= ShortTerm Vehicle Tax Election S CUR SP MG AT S anal

.ope elle The Lake Cities have partnered with Connected Nation to search
= Util It)' Billi ng Platforms for a solution for better broadband internet in our communities!
We need YOUR help! Visit the URL below or scan the QR Code to
take the survey, and help gauge the needs of our area! We
encourage you to take the survey at home for a more accurate
representation! Thank you for your feedback!

Utility Bill Buck Slip




66

Tell Our Story!

20% Average Open Rate
15% Click Through Rate

Corinth

Corinth 49.8% Average Open Rate

Connection 20.2% Click Through Rate
Monthly Newsletter

CITY HALL CALENDAR

v
(1]

CORINTH

20% Average Open Rate

N R
ews Releases 45% Average Open Rate
250 New Subscribers

2 Feature Articles 3 Feature Articles
1 Advertisement per month 1 Advertisement per month

BEST g :
(]IfVI:IA\][:.S“ X Advertlsements
. Lake Cities Living




67

Internal Communications

WORKVIVO-INTRANET
LAUNCHED DECEMBER 2020

.y o
Corinth Chats w & @ s VACCINE

i * Values Based Intranet
CITY OF 05_,‘,._‘,,,,..,_1,., phshed n art ‘ Pfizer Vaccine Sign Up
weosire AP ] j « Created an Employee Ambassador Group
T OVID-19
PFIZER « Daily Content, News Articles and Information
‘ AAfhancR
VACC|NE * Engagement Projects
SIGN UP NOW!
- 0 Ambassador Meeting * Encourages interaction among departments.

......

mAR  State of the City




- _—
4 /r /; »

COMMUNITY EVENTS




69

— 1‘

2020 Community Events

S Ty )

Drive — In Movie
130 Cars

/00 Burgers

3 Vendors

2 Elves

Trunk or Treat
Sponsored Special

y

Edition Band 1 Santa



555

%P
NV « K| * # =

X, ‘“:f'/
= i
==t P 5

& STATE OF THE CITY
Saturday, March 13

@ EASTER
EGG-STRAVAGANZA

March - Virtual

@ FISH N'FUN
May - Virtual

@ PUMPKIN PALOOZA
Saturday, October 16

e LA
=" g = ‘
§AERER gl =

@ FIRE OPEN HOUSE
Saturday, October 23

& CHRISTMAS IN CORINTH
Monday, December 6

10



71

PumEkin Palooza 2021

= New Website Design will “Go-Live”

February 2021 RIPAIRIO0A
= Two stages

= Main Stage (bands)

T semvmes 1 mauuoow cumw = vooms ) e \ﬂt?
= Festival Stage (community) o qp l
= Corn Hole Tournament . I U m

DENTON

COUNTY
A < BREWING

= Event Sponsor

= Denton County Brewing Co.

= Band Line Up

® |dol Job (Reggae band)
= Lost Shaker of Salt
(Jimmy Buffet tribute band)




What’s Next — Goals for 2021

Community Engagement Plén
Strong Social Media Presence
Ambassador Program
Video Communication and PSAs
Revitalize Monthly Newsletter
Develop Communication Policies

Marketing Campaigns

platforr

72

New Projects
Citibot

= Multi-channel communication
platform— web chat, interactive text
alerts and text chat

Digital Ready Community Program

Create a Digital Asset Group (DAG)
Inventory Digital Assets

Develop a Community-wide and
Internal digital engagement plan

Co1T 11

Text "HELLO" to BIZ.A09.4110

1
[ = i




73

CONSENT ITEM 1.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021
Title: Director of Finance, Communication & Strategic Services
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government
AGENDA ITEM

Consider and act on a resolution approving the policy for Elected Officials and Appointed Boards, Commissions
and Committees Using Personal or Professional Social Media Platforms, and providing an effective date.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

While elected officials and City Council-appointed boards, commissions and committee members may maintain
and use personal web pages and websites, blogs, and social networking sites, their status as elected/appointed
officials requires that the content of any postings on those sites not be in violation of existing City by-laws, policies,
directives, rules or regulations.

The proposed policy provides best practices and guidelines recommended to ensure that the personal and
professional use of social media by elected and appointed officials is done so in a responsible manner.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the policy for Elected Officials and Appointed Boards, Commissions and
Committees Using Personal or Professional Social Media Platforms, effective January 28, 2021.

Attachments
Resolution
Social Media Policy




74

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH,
TEXAS, APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE CITY OF CORINTH POLICY
FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS AND APPOINTED BOARDS,
COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES USING PERSONAL OR
PROFESSIONAL SOCIAL MEDIA PLATFORMS; PROVIDING FOR THE
INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Corinth desires to provide for a social
media policy for the City of Corinth’s elected officials and appointed board, commission,
and committee members; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the City to
implement such a policy.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF CORINTH, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1. The above and foregoing premises are true and correct and are
incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes.

SECTION 2. The City Council does hereby approve and adopt the City of Corinth
Policy for Elected Officials and Appointed Boards, Commissions, and Committees Using
Personal or Professional Social Media Platforms, attached hereto and incorporated
herein as Exhibit “A” for all purposes.

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage
and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 28 day of January, 2021.

BILL HEIDEMANN
MAYOR
ATTEST:

LANA WYLIE
CITY SECRETARY

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

PATRICIA ADAMS
CITY ATTORNEY

Page 1 of 2



75

EXHIBIT A

Page 2 of 2



76

CITY OF CORINTH

POLICY/ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE/ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTIVE

SECTION: FINANCE/COMMUNICATIONS REFERENCE NUMBER:
SUBJECT: SOCIAL MEDIA USE BY ELECTED OFFICIALS INITIAL EFFECTIVE DATE:
01-28-20
TITLE: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND APPOINTED BOARDS, COMMISSIONS LAST REVISION DATE:
AND COMMITTEES USING PERSONAL OR PROFESSIONAL 01-28-20
SOCIAL MEDIA PLATFORMS

PURPOSE

While elected officials and City Council-appointed board, committee and commission members may maintainand use
personal web pages and websites, blogs, and social networking sites, elected/appointed officials should keep their
statusin mind with regard to the content of any postings onthose sites.

The City’simage as a professional organization is critical to maintaining the respect of its constituents. Although the
City recognizes that elected and appointed officials may choose to express themselves by posting personal
information upon social media platforms or by making comments on sites hosted by other persons, groups or
organizations, by accepting the responsibilities of publicservice, elected and appointed officials likewise have a duty
to the City of Corinth and its operations.

If an elected or appointed official conducts any City business or communication as an official from a personal
account, professional account, or an account created for a board/committee/commission, officials should assume
that City- related communications will be considered a publicrecord subject to the Texas PublicInformation Act.

If an elected/appointed official isfound in violation of the Professional and Personal Conduct Standards #1-#8 below,
they may be subject to censure as noted in the City Council Rules of Procedure, 2.14 Censuring Members.

PROFESSIONAL AND PERSONAL CONDUCT STANDARDS

1. All officials are expected to conduct themselves inamanner consistent with the City’s policies and standards
of conduct.

2. Itis anticipated that from time to time, officials will have access to information that is considered privileged or
confidential under Texas State Law. Such information is typically considered an exception to the public records
law and may have specific penalties for inappropriate disclosure. By way of example, such information may
include butis not limited to certain personnel information, non-publicinformation from criminal investigations,
and business trade secrets. Officials must not reveal any confidential or privileged information about the City, its
constituents, its employees, or its contractors. Officials must be particularly careful to protect against the
inadvertentdisclosure of confidential or privileged information.

3. Officials are encouraged to be honestand accurate when postinginformation or news, and should quickly correct
any mistakes, misstatements and/or factual errors in content upon discovery. Officials should not post or share
information known to be false about the City, its employees, constituents, other public officials, suppliers, vendors,
or contractors.

4. Unlessthe officialhas beendesignated to serve as aspokesperson, officials should neverrepresent themselves as
a spokesperson forthe City Council, a City board orcommittee, the City Administration, orany City department.

January 28, 2021 Page 1 of 4



7

5. Officials are expressly prohibited from using personal or professional social mediato engage in any activity or

conduct that violates federal, state, or local law on behalf of the City of Corinth. Officials are also prohibited
from using professional social media accounts to circumvent election or campaign requirements, to campaign
for re-election orendorse other candidates for public office.

Social mediacontent created by elected and appointed officials may be subject to the standards and requirements
of the Texas Public Information Act and the City’s records retention policy. Specific inquiries should be directed to
the City Clerk or the City Attorney.

Officials are subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act. As an example, Officials shouldbe mindful that posting content
regarding City-related matters could inadvertently resultin the violation of the Open Meetings Law if enough other
publicofficials engage on the post, resultinginaquorum. If this occurs, the online conversation should immediately
cease with nofurther posts by the officials and the City Clerk should be notified accordingly.

. Officials are prohibited from using social media to engage in any activity that constitutes a conflict of interest with

theirelected orappointed duties to the City.

BEST PRACTICES AND GUIDELINES FOR ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS

The following best practices and guidelines are strongly recommended to ensure that the personal and professional
use of social media by elected and appointed officialsis done soin a responsible manner.

. Public officials are strongly encouraged to separate personal social media accounts from professional social

mediaaccounts so that City-related matters and all publicrecords generatedfrom those posts are easily archived
and notintermingled with personal posts not related to City matters.

a. If a professional social media account is created, thenit becomes a Conduct Standard and the account must
be archived. Officials are required to contact the City Secretary to connect the professional account to the
archiving service contract.

. Officials are encouragedto exercise caution withrespect to comments they post, particularlythose concerning the

City and the business of the City.

. Officials are strongly encouraged to considerthe potential impact of social media statements prior to posting. The

City strives to be professional inits operations and processes. Poststhat express favoritism and/or bias for or against
any individual or group of individuals (e.g., based upon race, gender, national origin, sexual orientation, political
affiliation, etc.), reflect poorly on the public official, as well as the City and its residents. Further, comments
suggesting such treatment can expose the City to liability and legal costs.

. Officials should be mindful that members of the publicwho may appear before the City Council as well as boards,

commissions or committeescome from all walks of life. Publiccomments, in any forum —including on personal and
professional social media accounts —that contain racial slurs, profane language or acronyms for profane language,
express bigotry toward agroup based on race, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity
or any otherlegally protected classification may be considered conduct unbecoming..

. Officials should consider whether liking, sharing, retweeting, orcommenting on any social media posts could

be perceived as an endorsement of or about the City, its employees, constituents, other public officials,
suppliers, vendors, or contractors.

. Officials should refrain from using social media accounts to communicate with City employees about City-

related matters as this creates a public record on employees’ personal accounts that must be retained per the
Texas Public Information Act. If elected officials want the City’s official pages to respond to a social media
inquiry, the following responses are suggested:

January 28, 2021 Page2 of 4



78
Twitter: “Tagging @CityofCorinth on yourinquiry so the Administration may respond to you directly.”

b. Facebook: “Tagging @City of Corinth, TX Government on yourinquiry so the Administrationmay respond to
youdirectly.”
c. Instagram: “Tagging @cityofCorinth onyourinquirysothe Administration may respondto you directly.”

Other platforms, such as Nextdoor: “Please contact the City of Corinth directly so the Administration may
respondtoyou.”

Q

7. Publicofficials should be cautious inusing official City-provided photographson personal social media sites. Elected
and appointed officials choosing to use official City-provided photographs and identifying themselves as elected
officials on personal social mediasites should tailor communications on those sites accordingly.

PROCEDURE FOR REQUESTING AND MAINTAINING SOCIAL MEDIA ACCOUNTS
FOR BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS

Boards/Committees/Commissions that use social media are responsible for complying with applicable federal, state,
and local laws, regulations and policies. This includes adherence to laws and policies regarding copyright, use of
photographs, public records retention, personnel privacy, First Amendment, HIPAA privacy, the Americans with
Disabilities Act, and information security policies established by the City of Corinth.

1. When creating a social media presence, the board/committee/commission should consider thefollowing:
a. Why isthissocial mediaplatform the appropriate outreach tool forthe target audience?
b. Which appointed officials on the board will be responsible for developing the content and design of the
platform?
¢. Which appointed officials will be granted administrator access to the site and be responsible for the content
management strategy and ongoing updates?
. What will be the account’s official name?
. What type of information andimages will be included on the site?
What is an estimate of the number of hours per week time willbe dedicated to the site?
How will time be scheduled to maintain the site?
. How will the site be monitored after hours, during weekends, over holidays, and during crisis events?
How often posts are anticipated?
How will a link back to the board/committee/commission official website be provided when
appropriate?

TS oo

2. All board/committee/commission social media accounts must be approved by the Director of Finance,
Communication & StrategicServices. You must submit aformal request foraccount creation. The following
guidelines will always remainin place on the page:

The City will create the account and maintain administrative control.

. Members of the board/commission will be provided editing privileges.

Social MediaSites must containa link to the city website, and the board website.

Profile Photos will be determined by the City and must remain the same.

CoverPhotos are at the discretion of the board.

If the account is inactive for 30 days, it will be deactivated by the Director of Finance, Communication
& StrategicServices.

-~ D Qoo oW

3. The sites must allow others, such as members of the public, to post comments or other visitor-generated
contentdirectly to thesite.However, user guidelinesshould clearly be posted on thesite. Posted guidelines must
include:

a. No commentswill be allowed that use inappropriate or offensive language.
b. No comments will be allowed that discriminate or are derogatory based on race, color, national origin,
religion, gender, age, disability, sexual orientation, orveteran's status.

January 28,2021 Page 3 of 4



79
¢. Any user who harasses another user, or who is in violation of the comment guidelines will be reported to the

host site for violations of the host site’s policies, rules, and regulations (i.e. the Terms of Service (“T0OS")),
without notice tothe user.

d. Any profile thatappearstoviolate any terms of the hosting site will be reported to host siteadministrators.

a. Any comments that appear to be spam or advertising solicitations not germane to the original post will be
reported tothe host site for violations of the host site’s TOS, without notice to the user.

b. City of Corinth social mediasites are subject to applicable Texas Public Records Law and can be disclosed to
third parties.

4, Boards/Committees/Commissions should have a process for removing and re-assigning social media
management dutieswhen an appointed official ceases theirservice. Administrator privileges should be revoked
on the official’s last day of service and immediately re-assigned to anew administrator.

5. Visitors to board/committee/commission sites cannot be permanently banned or blocked. If visitor-generated
contentis in violation of the posted guidelines, each comment or post should be reviewed and reported to the
host site for violations of the host site’s TOS. Appointed officials administering social media platforms should be
aware of the Terms of Service (TOS) of each social media site. Each hasits ownunique TOS that regulates how users
interact using that form of media.

6. If a board/committee/commission social media account has unauthorized activity, i.e. is hacked, the
authorized administrators should:

Immediately notify the Director of Finance, Communication & Strategic Services.

Immediately try to regain access to the account.

Once access to the account is obtained, change the password.

Delete messages posted by hackers.

Let followers know that the account was hacked and whatis beingdone tofix the issue.

Review third-party apps. These could be used by hackers to gain access to accounts.

i I o N o T <

7. Communication on social media platforms is considered a public record. Posts by the account administrators and
any feedback by members of the public will become part of the public record. Always provide links to the
board/committee/commission official website for more information, forms, documents, or online services
necessary to conduct business with the Board. It is strongly recommended that new or unique information or
updates be contained on both the board/committee/commission official website and the social mediasite.

January 28, 2021 Page 4 of 4



80

CONSENT ITEM 2.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021

Title: Corinth Investment Policy

Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director

Submitted By: Chris Rodriguez, Financial Services Manager

Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: N/A

City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM

Consider and act on a resolution reviewing and approving the Investment Policy for funds for the City of Corinth;
and providing an effective date.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

In accordance with Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code, the city is required
to annually adopt a formal written Investment Policy for the investment of public funds. The policy establishes
investment parameters and guidelines for the investment program in order to achieve the goals of safety, liquidity,
diversification, rate-of-return, and public trust, and designates the authorized investment officer responsible for the
daily investment activity by the City.

As part of the annual process, staff reviews the policy and may recommend revisions to the existing policy, if
needed. recommended revision to the Investment policy is below.

1. Section VIII Diversification, (C) Diversification by Investment Instrument - recommend increasing the maximum
percent (%) of the portfolio from 50% to 75% for the Authorized Local Government Investment Pool.

RECOMMENDATION

The Finance Audit Committee reviewed the Investment Policy on Thursday, December 17, 2020 and recommends
approval.

Attachments
Corinth Investment Policy
Resolution - Corinth Investment Policy




CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

PREFACE

It is the policy of the City of Corinth (the "City") that after allowing for the anticipated cash flow
requirements and giving due consideration to the safety and risks of investments, all available
funds shall be invested in conformance with these legal and administrative guidelines to obtain a
market rate-of-return.

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management. An active
cash management and investment policy will be pursued to take advantage of investment interest
as a viable and material source of revenue for City funds. The City’s portfolio shall be designed
and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and shall be invested in conformance
with State and Federal Regulations, applicable Bond Resolution requirements, and adopted
investment policy. The City will invest public funds in a manner which will provide the maximum
security and a market rate-of-return while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the City.

The City is required under the Public Funds Investment Act (Chapter 2256 of the Texas
Government Code) to adopt a formal written investment policy for the investment of public funds.
These policies serve to satisfy the statutory requirement (specifically the Public Funds Investment
Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code [the Act]) to define, adopt and review a formal
investment strategy and policy.

81



PURPOSE

The purpose of this investment policy (the “policy”) is to set forth specific investment policy
and strategy guidelines for the City in order to achieve the goals of safety, liquidity, rate-
of-return, and public trust for all investment activities.

SCOPE

The investment policy shall govern the investment of all financial assets considered to be
part of the City and includes the following separately invested funds or fund types:
Operating, Reserve, Bond, Special and Capital Project Funds and any other funds which
have been contractually delegated to the City for management purposes. The City may
add or delete funds as may be required by law, or for proper accounting procedures. This
policy does not include funds governed by approved trust agreements, or assets
administered for the benefit of the City by outside agencies under retirement or deferred
compensation programs. In addition to this policy, bond funds (including debt service and
reserve funds) are governed by bond ordinances and are subject to the provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code and applicable federal regulations governing the investment of
bond proceeds. The City shall and will maintain responsibility for these funds to the extent
required by: Federal and State law; the City Charter; and donor stipulations.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

Funds of the City shall be invested in accordance with all applicable Texas statutes, this
policy and any other approved, written administrative procedures. The five objectives of
the City’s investment activities shall be as follows (in the order of priority):

A. Safety - Preservation and safety of Principal. Safety of principal invested is the
foremost objective in the investment decisions of the City. Each investment transaction
shall seek to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The risk of loss
shall be controlled by investing only in authorized securities as defined in this policy,
by qualifying the financial institutions with which the City will transact, and by portfolio
diversification. Safety is defined as the undiminished return of the principal on the
City’s investments.

B. Liguidity - The investment portfolio shall be managed to maintain liquidity to ensure
that funds will be available to meet the City’s cash flow requirements and by investing
in securities with active secondary markets. Investments shall be structured in such a
manner as to provide liquidity necessary to pay obligations as they become due. A
security may be liquidated prior to its stated maturity to meet unanticipated cash
requirements or to otherwise favorably adjust the City’s portfolio.

C. Diversification - Investment maturities shall be staggered throughout the budget cycle
to provide cash flow based on the anticipated needs of the City. Diversifying the
appropriate maturity structure will reduce market cycle risk.

D. Market Rate-of-Return (Yield) - The City’s investment portfolio shall be designed to
optimize a market rate-of-return on investments consistent with risk constraints and
cash flow requirements of the portfolio. The investment portfolio shall be managed in
a manner which seeks to attain a market rate-of-return throughout budgetary and
economic cycles. The City will not attempt to consistently attain an unrealistic above

82



market rate-of-return, as this objective will subject the overall portfolio to greater risk.
Therefore, the City's rate-of-return objective is secondary to those of safety and
liquidity. Rate-of-return (yield) is defined as the annual income returned on an
investment, expressed as a percentage.

E. Public Trust - The Investment Officer(s) shall avoid any transactions that might impair
public confidence in the City’s ability to govern effectively. The governing body
recognizes that in diversifying the portfolio, occasional measured losses due to market
volatility are inevitable, and must be considered within the context of the overall
portfolio’s investment return, provided that adequate diversification has been
implemented. The prudence of the investment decision shall be measured in
accordance with the tests set forth in Section 2256.006(b) of the Act.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The City maintains a comprehensive and proactive cash management program which is
designed to monitor and control all City funds to ensure maximum utilization and yield a
market rate-of-return. The basic and underlying strategy of this program is that all of the
City’s funds are earning interest. It is the responsibility and obligation of the City to
maintain a flexible approach and be prepared to modify the investment strategy as market
conditions dictate. The investment strategy described is predicated on conditions as they
now exist and are subject to change. The investment strategy emphasizes low credit risk,
diversification, and the management of maturities. The strategy also considers the
expertise and time constraints of the Investment Officers. The allowable investments as
defined in Section VI of this policy reflect the avoidance of credit risk. Diversification refers
to dividing investments among a variety of securities offering independent returns. This
strategy uses local government investment pools to achieve diversification. The active
management of maturities refers to structuring the maturity dates of the direct investments
so that, while funds are initially invested for a longer period of time, some investments
mature as cash needs require. The strategies for the City’s investment activities shall be
as follows:

Strategy No. 1
Diversifying the City’s investment opportunities through the use of local government

investment pools and money market mutual funds as authorized by the City Council. An
investment pool is a professionally managed portfolio of shared assets created to invest
public funds jointly on behalf of the governmental entities that participate in the pool and
whose investment objectives in order of priority match those objectives of the City. Fund
withdrawals are usually available from investment pools on a same-day basis, meaning
the pools have a high degree of liquidity. Because of the size and expertise of their staff,
investment pools are able to prudently invest in a variety of the investment types allowed
by state law. In this manner, investment pools achieve desired diversification. The strategy
of the City calls for the use of investment pools as a primary source of diversification and
a supplemental source of liquidity. Funds that may be needed on a short-term basis but
are in excess of the amount maintained at the depository bank are available for deposit in
investment pools.

83



Strategy No. 2
Building a ladder of authorized securities with staggered maturities for all or part of the

longer-term investable funds. The benefits of this ladder approach include the following:
A. ltis straight-forward and easily understood;
B. It will assure the City that it will capture a reasonable portion of the yield curve; and,

C. It provides predictable cash flow with scheduled maturities and reinvestment
opportunities.

Strategy No. 3
Utilizing the services of a Professional Investment Advisor in order to maximize investment

earnings and realize market opportunities when they become available. Other
responsibilities of the Investment Advisor include, but are not limited to broker compliance,
security selection, competitive bidding, investment reporting, and security documentation.
The Investment Advisor must be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) under the Investment Advisor's Act of 1940, as well as, with the Texas State
Securities Board and shall adhere to the spirit and philosophy of this policy and avoid
recommending or suggesting transactions outside the "Standard of Care" under this

policy.

Strategy No. 4
The City will utilize five general investment strategies designed to address the unique

characteristics of specific fund-types (detailed strategies are presented in Attachment A):

A. Investment strategies for operating funds and pooled funds containing operating funds
have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with
adequate investment liquidity. The secondary objective is to create a portfolio which
will experience minimal volatility during economic cycles.

B. Investment strategies for debt service funds shall have as the primary objective the
assurance of investment liquidity adequate to cover the debt service obligation on the
required payment date(s).

C. Investment strategies for debt service reserve funds shall have as the primary
objective the ability to generate a dependable revenue stream to the appropriate debt
service fund.

D. Investment strategies for special projects and capital projects funds will have as their
primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with adequate
investment liquidity.

E. The investment maturity of bond proceeds (excluding reserve and debt service funds)
shall generally be limited to the anticipated cash flow requirement or the "temporary
period," as defined by Federal tax law. During the temporary period, bond proceeds
may be invested at an unrestricted yield. After the expiration of the temporary period,
bond proceeds subject to yield restriction shall be invested considering the anticipated
cash flow requirements of the funds and market conditions to achieve compliance with
the applicable regulations.

84



Strategy No. 5
The City generally intends to hold all of its securities until they mature and will accomplish

this by maintaining sufficient liquidity in its portfolio so that it does not need to sell a security
early. Should it become necessary to sell a security prior to maturity, where the sale
proceeds are less than the current book value, the prior written consent of the City
Manager must be obtained. Securities may be sold prior to maturity by the Director of
Finance at or above their book value at any time, without the consent of the City Manager.

Strateqy No. 6
All demand deposits of the City will be concentrated with one central depository. The

City’s depository procedure will maximize the City's ability to pool cash for investment
purposes and provide more manageable banking relationships. In addition, depositories
not holding demand deposits of the City may be eligible to bid on City investments.

Strategy No. 7
This policy shall further seek to maintain good depository bank relationships while

minimizing the cost of banking services. The City will seek to maintain a depository
contract which will be managed to a level that minimizes the cost of the banking
relationship to the City, while allowing the City to earn an appropriate return on idle
demand deposits.

Strateqy No. 8
A single pooled fund group, as defined in this policy, may be utilized at the discretion of

the Investment Officer(s). However, earnings from investments will be allocated on a pro-
rata cash basis to the individual funds and used in a manner that will best service the
interests of the City.

Strategy No. 9
Procedures shall be established and implemented in order to maximize investable cash

by decreasing the time between the actual collection and the deposit of receipts, and by
the controlling of disbursements.

FINANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE

A. Members - There is hereby created a Finance Audit Committee consisting of the
Mayor, two members of the City Council and two citizens appointed_by the City
Council. The Mayor will be a permanent member of the Committee. The other four
members of the Committee will be appointed by the City Council to serve a two-year
term and shall not exceed two successive terms. The Mayor and the two members of
the City Council shall be voting members of the Committee. The Community
Representative members shall be non-voting members of the Committee.

B. Scope - The Finance Audit Committee shall meet at least once per calendar quarter
to determine general strategies and to monitor results. Included in its deliberations
will be such topics as: economic outlook, portfolio diversification, maturity structure,
potential risk to the City’s funds, authorized brokers and dealers, and the target rate-
of-return on the investment portfolio.

C. Procedures - The Finance Audit Committee shall provide minutes of its meetings. Any
two members of the Finance Audit Committee may request a special meeting, and a
majority of the voting members shall constitute a quorum. The Finance Audit

85



Committee shall abide by the Rules of Procedure and Policies as set forth in
Resolution 09-05-01-11, as amended, and the Charter of the City of Corinth.

VL. RESPONSIBILITY AND STANDARD OF CARE

A. The responsibility for the daily operation and management of the City’s investments
shall be outlined within this section.

1.

Delegation of Authority - Management responsibility for the investment program is
hereby delegated to the Director of Finance, who shall be authorized to deposit,
withdraw, invest, transfer or manage the funds of the City and shall establish
written procedures for the operation of the investment program, consistent with this
policy. Such procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to other
persons responsible for investment transactions. All persons involved in
investment activities will be referred to in this policy as “Investment Officers.” No
persons may engage in investment transactions, except as provided under the
terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Director of Finance.

The Director of Finance shall assume responsibility for all transactions undertaken
and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate
Investment Officers. The system of controls shall be designed to provide
reasonable assurance that ensures the assets of the City are protected from loss,
theft or misuse. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:

a. The cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and,

b. The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

The Director of Finance shall be designated as the primary Investment Officer for
the City and shall be responsible for investment decisions and activities under the
direction of the City Manager. The Director of Finance may delegate any phase of
the investment program to a secondary Investment Officer. Both the Director of
Finance and the designated secondary Investment Officer are responsible for daily
investment decisions and activities.  However, ultimate responsibility for
investment decisions will rest with the Director of Finance.

B. Prudence - The standard of prudence to be applied by the Investment Officer shall be
the “prudent investor” rule, which states, “investments shall be made with judgment
and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person of prudence, discretion and
intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital and the
probable income to be derived.” In determining whether the Investment Officer has
exercised prudence with respect to an investment decision, the determination shall be
made taking into consideration the following:

1.

The investment of all funds over which the Investment Officer had responsibility
rather than a consideration as to the prudence of a single investment; and

The investment decision was consistent with the written investment policy and
procedures of the City.

86



C. Due Diligence - The Director of Finance, designated secondary Investment Officer,
Mayor, City Council, City Manager, other Finance employees and citizen committee
members acting in accordance with written policies and procedures and exercising
due diligence, shall not be held personally responsible for a specific security’s credit
risk or market price changes, provided that these deviations are reported in a timely
manner and that appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

D. Ethical Standards and Conflicts of Interest

1. All City Investment Officials having a direct or indirect role in the investment of City
funds shall act as custodians of the public trust avoiding any transaction which
might involve a conflict of interest, the appearance of a conflict of interest, or any
activity which might otherwise discourage public confidence. Officers and
employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business
activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or
which could impair the ability to make impartial investment decisions.

2. An Investment Officer who has a personal business relationship with the
depository bank or with any entity seeking to sell an investment to the City shall
file a statement disclosing that personal business interest.

3. An Investment Officer has a personal business relationship with a business
organization if;

a. The Investment Officer or one related to the Investment Officer within the
second degree of affinity or consanguinity owns 10% or more of the voting
stock or shares of the business organization or owns $5,000 or more of the fair
market value of the business organization;

b. Funds received by the Investment Officer or one related to the Investment
Officer within the second degree of affinity or consanguinity from the business
organization exceed 10% of the Investment Officers gross income for the prior
year; or

c. The Investment Officer or one related to the Investment Officer within the
second degree of affinity or consanguinity has acquired from the business
organization during the prior year investments with a book value of $2,500 or
more for the personal account of the Investment Officer.

d. An Investment Officer who is related within the second degree of affinity or
consanguinity to an individual seeking to sell an investment to the City shall file
a statement disclosing that relationship. A statement required under this
subsection must be filed with the Texas Ethics Commission and the City
Council.

E. Training - The City shall provide periodic training in investments for the investment
personnel through courses and seminars offered by professional organizations and
associations in order to ensure the quality and capability of the City's investment
personnel making investment decisions in compliance with the Public Funds
Investment Act (PFIA). The Investment Officers and the Finance Audit Committee
members shall attend at least one training session containing at least 10 hours of

87



instruction relating to the officer's responsibility under the PFIA within 12 months after
assuming duties, and thereafter shall attend at least 8 hours of additional investment
training in subsequent two-year periods which begin on the first day of the fiscal year
and consist of the two consecutive fiscal years after that date. The Government
Finance Officers Association of Texas, the Government Treasurers Organization of
Texas, the Texas Municipal League, or the North Central Texas Council of
Governments are approved as independent training sources by the City Council.

VIl.  AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

A.

B.

Generally - Safety of principal is the primary objective in investing public funds and
can be accomplished by limiting credit risk and interest rate risk. Credit risk is the risk
associated with the failure of a security issuer or backer to pay back principal and
interest on a timely basis. Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a portfolio will
decline due to an increase in the general level of interest rates. In order to provide for
safety of principal as the City's primary objective, only certain investments are
authorized as acceptable investments for the City. The following list of authorized
investments for the City intentionally excludes some investments authorized by state
law. These restrictions are intended to limit possible risk and provide the maximum
measure of safety to City funds. In the event an authorized investment loses its
required minimum credit rating, all prudent measures will be taken to liquidate said
investment. Additionally, the City is not required to liquidate investments that were
authorized at the time of purchase.

Authorized and Acceptable Investments - The authorized list of investment
instruments is as follows:

1. Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities or any
obligation fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), excluding mortgage-backed securities.

2. Direct obligations of the State of Texas, or its agencies and instrumentalities, other
obligations, the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed
or insured by, or backed by the full faith and credit of, the State of Texas or the
United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities, excluding
mortgage-related securities.

Cetrtificates of Deposit - A certificate of deposit issued by a depository institution that
has its main office or branch office in this state and is secured in accordance with the
specific collateralization requirements contained in section XI.B of this policy. In
addition, an investment in "bundled" or "shared" CDs made in accordance with the
following conditions is permitted:

1. The funds are invested through a broker that has its main office or a branch office
in this state selected from a list adopted by the City as required by Section
2256.025; or through a depository institution that has its main office or a branch
office in this state and that is selected by the City;

2. The selected broker or depository institution arranges for the deposit of the funds
in certificates of deposit in one or more federally insured depository institutions,
wherever located, for the account of the City.

88



3. The full amount of the principal and accrued interest of each of the CD is insured
by the United States or an instrumentality of the United States; and

4. The City appoints the depository institution, a clearing broker-dealer registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission and operating pursuant to SEC
Rule 15¢3-3, or an entity described in the Public Funds Collateral Act, Section
2257.041(d), as custodian for the City with respect to those CDs issued for the
City's account.

. Eligible Local Government Investment Pools - AAA-rated public funds investment
pools, with a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less, individually approved by
formal Council resolution, which invest in instruments and follow practices allowed by
the current law as defined in Section 2256.016 of the Texas Government Code. The
pool must be continuously rated no lower than AAA or AAA-m or at an equivalent rating
by at least one nationally recognized rating service. A public funds investment pool
created to function as a money market mutual fund must mark to market daily and,
stabilize at a $1 net asset value.

. Repurchase Agreements - Fully collateralized repurchase agreements having a
defined termination date, placed through a primary government securities dealer or a
financial institution doing business in the State of Texas, and fully secured by cash
and obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities. This
collateral must be pledged to the City and held in safekeeping with a third-party
custodian approved by the City of Corinth. All collateral must be maintained at a market
value of no less than the principal amount of the outstanding funds disbursed. All
transactions shall be governed by signed Security Industry and Financial Markets
Association, (SIFMA) Master Repurchase Agreement. Repurchase agreements must
also be collateralized in accordance with State law as described in Section Xl of this
policy. Authorization under this section includes flexible repurchase agreements
which may be used for specific investment of bond proceeds but shall not include
reverse repurchase agreements.

Bankers’ Acceptances, and Commercial Paper (LIMITED USE) - These investments
are authorized for the City to the extent that they are contained in the portfolios of
approved public funds investment pools or money market funds in which the City
invests.

. AAA-rated SEC-Reqgulated 2a7 No-Load Money Market Mutual Funds - An SEC-
registered, no load money market mutual fund which has a dollar weighted average
stated maturity of 60 days or less whose assets consist exclusively of the assets
described in section VII.A. and whose investment objectives includes the maintenance
of a stable net asset value of $1 for each share: furthermore, it provides the City with
a prospectus and other information required by the SEC Act of 1934 or the Investment
Advisor Act of 1940 and which provides the City with a prospectus and other
information required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 USC Section 78a et.
Seq.) or the Investment Company Act of 1990 (15 USC Section 80a-1 et. Seq.).

. Unauthorized Securities - State law specifically prohibits investment in the following
securities:

1. Anobligation whose payment represents the coupon payments on the outstanding

89



principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed security and pays no
principal.

2. An obligation whose payment represents the principal stream of cash flow from the
underlying mortgage-backed security and bears no interest.

3. Collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated final maturity date of greater
than 10 years.

4. Collateralized mortgage obligations, the interest rate of which is determined by an
index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index.

VIlIl.  DIVERSIFICATION

A. Generally - Diversification of investment instruments shall be utilized to avoid incurring
unreasonable risks resulting from over-concentration of investments in a specific
maturity, a specific issue, or a specific class of securities. With the exception of U.S.
Government securities (debt obligations issued by the U. S. Government, its agencies,
or instrumentalities) as authorized in this policy, and authorized local government
investment pools, no more than forty percent (40%) of the total investment portfolio
will be invested in any one security type or with a single financial institution.
Diversification of the portfolio considers diversification by maturity dates and
diversification by investment instrument.

B. Diversification by Maturities - The longer the maturity of investments, the greater their
price volatility. Therefore, it is the City’s policy to concentrate its investment portfolio
in shorter-term securities in order to limit principal risks caused by change in interest
rates. The City will attempt to match its investments with anticipated cash flow
requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow (including the anticipated cash
flow requirements of bond proceeds within the temporary period), the City will not
directly invest in securities maturing more than three (3) years from the date of
purchase. However, the above described obligations, certificates, or agreements may
be collateralized using longer date instruments. The City shall diversify the use of
investment instruments to avoid incurring unreasonable risks inherent in over-
investing in specific instruments, individual financial institutions or maturities. Maturity
scheduling shall be managed by the Investment Officer so that maturities of
investments shall be timed to coincide with projected cash flow needs.

The entire City portfolio, or single pooled fund group if utilized, shall maintain a
maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated maturity date, of less
than three hundred sixty-five (365) days. Investment maturities for debt service
interest and sinking funds and/or other types of reserve funds, whose use is never
anticipated, shall maintain a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the
stated maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days.



C. Diversification by Investment Instrument - Diversification by investment instrument
shall not exceed the following guidelines for each type of instrument:

Maximum %

of Portfolio
U.S. Treasury Obligations 100%
U.S. Government Agency Securities and Instrumentalities 100%
Authorized Local Government Investment Pool 50%-75%
Local Government Obligations 10%
Fully Collateralized Certificates of Deposit 50%
Fully Collateralized Repurchase Agreements 25%
SEC-Regulated No-Load Money Market Mutual Fund 50%
U.S. Treasury & Agency Callables 30%

SECURITY SWAPS

Security swaps may be considered as an investment option for the City. A swap out of
one instrument into another is acceptable to increase yield, realign for disbursement dates,
extend or shorten maturity dates and to improve market sector diversification. Swaps may
be initiated by brokers/dealers who are on the City’s approved list. A horizon analysis is
required for each swap proving benefit to the City before the trade decision is made, which
will accompany the investment file for record keeping.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS

A. The Director of Finance will maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to provide
investment services to the City. In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved
broker/dealers authorized to provide investment services in the State of Texas. These
will include financial institutions that qualify under Securities & Exchange Commission
Rule 15-C3-1 (uniform net capital rule). No public deposit shall be made except in a
qualified public depository as established by state laws.

B. All financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified bidders for
investment transactions must supply the Director of Finance with the following, as
appropriate: audited financial statements, proof of Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority certification trading resolution, proof of State registration, completed
broker/dealer questionnaire and certification of having read the City’s investment

policy.

C. The Finance Audit Committee shall be responsible for adopting the list of brokers and
dealers of government securities. Their selection shall be among only primary
government securities dealers that report directly to the New York Federal Reserve
Bank, unless a comprehensive credit and capitalization analysis reveals that other
firms are adequately financed to conduct public business. The Finance Audit
Committee shall base its evaluation of security dealers and financial institutions upon:

1. Financial conditions, strength and capability to fulfill commitments;

2. Overall reputation with other dealers or investors;

91



3. Regulatory status of the dealer;
4. Background and expertise of the individual representatives.

. Investment Officers shall only conduct business with securities dealers approved by
the Finance Audit Committee and will not purchase investments from any financial
organization until the organization’s registered principal has executed a written
instrument stating that he or she has thoroughly reviewed the City’s investment policy
and acknowledges that reasonable procedures and controls have been implemented
to preclude imprudent investment activities arising out of transactions between the
organization and the City, except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on
an analysis of the makeup of the City’s entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of
subjective investment standards.

. To guard against default possibilities under these conditions, and to assure
diversification of bidders, business with any one issuer, or investment broker, should
be limited to forty percent (40%) of the total portfolio at any point in time. In this way,
bankruptcy, receivership or legal action would not immobilize the City’s ability to meet
payroll or other expenses.

All investments (governments or bank C.D.’s) will be solicited on a competitive basis
with at least three (3) institutions. The Finance Audit Committee can approve
exceptions on a case by case basis or on a general basis in the form of guidelines.
These guidelines shall take into consideration the investment type maturity date,
amount, and potential disruptiveness to the City’'s investment strategy. The
investment will be made with the broker/dealer offering the best yield/quality to the
City. The quotes may be accepted orally, in writing, electronically, or any combination
of these methods.

. An annual review of the financial condition and registrations of qualified financial
organizations will be conducted by the Director of Finance.

. A current audited financial statement is required to be on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the City invests.

If the City has contracted with a Registered Investment Advisor for the management
of its funds, the advisor shall be responsible for performing due diligence on and
maintaining a list of broker/dealers with which it shall transact business on behalf of
the City. The advisor shall determine selection criteria and shall annually present a list
of its authorized broker/dealers to the City for review and likewise shall execute the
aforementioned written instrument stating that the advisor has reviewed the City's
investment policy and has implemented reasonable procedures and controls in an
effort to preclude imprudent investment activities with the City. The advisor shall obtain
and document competitive bids and offers on all transactions and present these to the
City as part of its standard trade documentation.

92



J.

It is the policy of the City that all security transactions entered into with the City shall
be conducted on a “Delivery-versus-Payment” basis through the Federal Reserve
System. By doing this, City funds are not released until the City has received, through
the Federal Reserve wire, the securities purchased. The City shall authorize the
release of funds only after receiving notification from the safekeeping bank that a
purchased security has been received in the safekeeping account of the City. The
notification may be oral but shall be confirmed in writing.

SAFEKEEPING AND COLLATERALIZATION

A.

Safekeeping - All securities owned by the City shall be held by a third-party
safekeeping agent selected by the City. The collateral for bank deposits will be held in
the City’s name in the bank’s trust department, in a Federal Reserve Bank account in
the City’'s name, or third-party financial institutions doing business in the state of
Texas, in accordance with state law. Original safekeeping receipts shall be obtained
and held by the City. The City shall contract with a bank or banks for the safekeeping
of securities either owned by the City as part of its investment portfolio or held as
collateral to secure time deposits.

Collateralization - Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral Act,
it is the policy of the City to require full collateralization of all City funds on deposit with
a depository bank. The market value of the investments securing the deposit of funds
shall be at least equal to 102% of the amount of the deposits of funds reduced to the
extent that the deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC). Securities pledged as collateral shall be held by an independent third party
with whom the City has a current custodial agreement. The agreement is to specify
the acceptable investment securities as collateral, including provisions relating to
possession of the collateral, the substitution or release of investment securities,
ownership of securities, and the method of valuation of securities. The safekeeping
agreement must clearly state that the safekeeping bank is instructed to release
purchased and collateral securities to the City in the event the City has determined
that the depository bank has failed to pay on any matured investments in certificates
of deposit, or has determined that the funds of the City are in jeopardy for whatever
reason, including involuntary closure or change of ownership. A clearly marked
evidence of ownership, e.g., safekeeping receipt, must be supplied to the City and
retained by the City.

1. The City may accept the following to insure or collateralize bank deposits:

a. Guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its
successor or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund or its successor;

b. United States Treasuries & Agencies
c. Other securities as approved by the Finance Audit Committee

2. For certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit, collateral shall be at
102% of market value. The market value of collateral will always equal or exceed
102% of the principal plus accrued interest of deposits at financial institutions.

3. Financial institutions with which the City invests or maintains other deposits shall
provide monthly, and as requested by the Investment Officer, a listing of the

93



XIl.

XL,

XIV.

collateral pledged to the City, marked to current market prices. The listing shall
include total pledged securities itemized by name, type, description, par value,
current market value, maturity date, and Moody's or Standard & Poor's rating, if
applicable. The City and the financial institution shall jointly assume the
responsibility for ensuring that the collateral is sufficient.

C. Collateralized Deposits - Consistent with the requirements of State law, the City
requires all bank deposits to be federally insured or collateralized with eligible
securities. Financial institutions serving as City depositories will be required to sign a
"Depository Agreement" with the City and the City's safekeeping agent. The
collateralized deposit portion of the Agreement shall define the City's rights to the
collateral in the event of default, bankruptcy, or closing and shall establish a perfected
security interest in compliance with Federal and State regulations, including:

1. Agreement must be in writing;

2. Agreement has to be executed by the Depository and the City contemporaneously
with the acquisition of the asset;

3. Agreement must be approved by the Board of Directors or designated committee
of the Depository and a copy of the meeting minutes must be delivered to the City;
and

4. Agreement must be part of the Depository's "official record" continuously since its
execution.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Investment Officer shall establish a system of written internal controls, which shall be
reviewed annually by independent auditors. The controls shall be designed to prevent
loss of public funds due to fraud, error, misrepresentation, unanticipated market changes,
or imprudent actions. The internal controls are to be reviewed annually in conjunction with
an external independent audit. This review will provide assurance of compliance with
policies and procedures as specified by this policy. The City, in conjunction with its annual
financial audit, shall perform a compliance audit of management controls and adherence
to the City’s established investment policy.

PERFORMANCE

The City’s investment portfolio shall be designed to obtain a market rate-of-return on
investments consistent with risk constraints and cash flow requirements of the City. This
investment policy establishes “weighted average yield to maturity” as the standard
portfolio performance measurement.

REPORTING

A. Quarterly - The Director of Finance shall prepare and submit a signed quarterly
investment report to the Finance Audit Committee that summarizes current market
conditions, economic developments, and anticipated investment conditions. The
report shall summarize investment strategies employed in the most recent quarter and
describe the portfolio in terms of investment securities, maturities, risk characteristics,

94



and shall explain the total investment return for the quarter. The City shall also monitor
the credit ratings on securities that require minimum ratings. This may be
accomplished through staff research, or with the assistance of broker-dealers,
investment advisors, banks or safekeeping agents.

. Annual Report - Within 180 days of the end of the fiscal year, the Director of Finance
shall present an annual report on the investment program and investment activity. This
report may be presented as a component of the fourth quarter report to the City
Manager and City Council. The quarterly reports prepared by the Director of Finance
shall be formally reviewed at least annually by an independent auditor, and the result
of the review shall be reported to the City Council by that auditor.

. Methods - The quarterly and annual investment reports shall include a succinct
management summary that provides a clear picture of the status of the current
investment portfolio and transactions made over the past quarter. This management
summary will be prepared in a manner which will allow the City to ascertain whether
investment activities during the reporting period have conformed to the investment
policy. The report will be prepared in compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The report will be provided to the City Council. The report will include the
following:

1. Alisting of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period. This list will
include the name of the fund or pooled group fund for which each individual
investment was acquired;

2. Unrealized gains or losses resulting from appreciation or depreciation by listing the
beginning and ending book and market value of securities for the period. Market
values shall be obtained from financial institutions or portfolio reporting services
independent from the broker/dealer from which the security was purchased;

3. Additions and changes to the market value during the period;

4. Fully accrued interest for the reporting period,;

5. Average weighted yield to maturity of portfolio on entity investments as compared
to applicable benchmarks;

6. Listing of investments by maturity date;

7. The percentage of the total portfolio which each type of investment represents;
and

8. Statement of compliance of the City's investment portfolio with State Law and the
investment strategy and policy approved by the City Council.

9. Market yield benchmark comparison of the average 90-day U. S. Treasury Bill
auction yield during the reporting period.

10. The guidelines of retaining records for seven years as recommended in the Texas
State Library Municipal Records Manual should be followed. The Director of
Finance shall oversee the filing and/or storing of investment records.

95



XV.

INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT

The City’s investment policy shall be adopted and amended by resolution of the City
Council only. The City’s written policies and procedures for investments are subject to
review not less than annually to stay current with changing laws, regulations and needs of
the City. The City Council, not less than annually, shall adopt a written instrument stating
that it has reviewed the investment policy and investment strategies and that the written
instrument so adopted shall record any changes made to either the policy or strategies.

96



Attachment A

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS
Investment Strategy Statement

Operating Funds

1.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Operating
Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments shall be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, by managing the weighted
average days to maturity for the Operating Fund’s portfolio to less than 270 days and
restricting the maximum allowable maturity to three years, the price volatility of the
overall portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - Securities with active and efficient secondary markets are necessary in
the event of an unanticipated cash flow requirement. Historical market “spreads”
between the bid and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of
a percentage point will define an efficient secondary market.

Liquidity - The Operating Fund requires the greatest short-term liquidity of any of the
Fund types. Short-term investment pools and money market mutual funds will provide
daily liquidity and may be utilized as a competitive yield alternative to fixed maturity
investments.

Diversification - Investment maturities should be staggered throughout the budget
cycle to provide cash flow based on the anticipated operating needs of the City.
Market cycle risk will be reduced by diversifying the appropriate maturity structure out
through two years.

Yield - Attaining a competitive market yield for comparable security-types and portfolio
restrictions is the desired objective. The yield of an equally weighted, rolling three-
month treasury-bill portfolio will be the minimum yield objective.

Reserve Funds

1.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Debt Service
Reserve Funds. Bond resolution and loan documentation constraints and insurance
company restrictions may create specific considerations in addition to the investment

policy.

Safety of Principal - All investments shall be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, managing Debt Service
Reserve Fund maturities to not exceed the call provisions of the borrowing reduces
the investment's market risk if the City’s debt is redeemed and the Reserve Fund
liquidated. The fund shall maintain a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity,
based on the stated maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days. No
stated final investment maturity shall exceed the shorter of the final maturity of the
borrowing or three years. Annual mark-to-market requirements or specific maturity
and average life limitations within the borrowing’s documentation will influence the

97



attractiveness of market risk and reduce the opportunity for maturity extension.

Marketability - Securities with less active and efficient secondary markets are
acceptable for Debt Service Reserve Funds.

Liquidity - Debt Service Reserve Funds have no anticipated expenditures. The Funds
are deposited to provide annual debt service payment protection to the City’s debt
holders. The funds are “returned” to the City at the final debt service payment. Market
conditions and arbitrage regulation compliance determine the advantage of security
diversification and liquidity. Generally, if investment rates exceed the cost of
borrowing, the City is best served by locking in investment maturities and reducing
liquidity. If the borrowing cost cannot be exceeded, then concurrent market conditions
will determine the attractiveness of locking in maturities or investing shorter and
anticipating future increased yields.

Diversification - Market conditions and the arbitrage regulations influence the
attractiveness of staggering the maturity of fixed rate investments for Debt Service
Reserve Funds. At no time shall the final debt service payment date of the bond issue
be exceeded in an attempt to bolster yield.

Yield - Achieving a positive spread to the applicable borrowing cost is the desired
objective. Debt Service Reserve Fund portfolio management shall at all times operate
within the limits of the investment policy’s risk constraints.

Special Project and Capital Project Funds

1.

3.

4.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Special
Project and Capital Project Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments will be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market fluctuations will however occur, by restricting the maximum
maturity to three years, managing the weighted average days to less than 270 days,
restricting the maximum allowable maturity to two years, and by managing Special
Project and Capital Project Funds to balance the short term and long term anticipated
cash flow requirements of the plant or equipment being depreciated, replaced or
repaired, the market risk of the Fund portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - The balancing of short-term and long-term cash flow needs requires the
short-term portion of the Special Project and Capital Project Funds portfolio to have
securities with active and efficient secondary markets. Historical market “spreads”
between the bid and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of
a percentage point will define an efficient secondary market. Securities with less active
and efficient secondary markets are acceptable for the long-term portion of the
portfolio.

Liquidity - Special Project and Capital Project Funds used as part of a CIP plan or
scheduled repair and replacement program are reasonably predictable. However
unanticipated needs or emergencies may arise. Selecting Investment maturities that
provide greater cash flow than the anticipated needs will reduce the liquidity risk of
unanticipated expenditures.

98



5.

Diversification - Investment maturities should blend the short-term and long-term cash
flow needs to provide adequate liquidity and yield enhancement and stability. A
“barbell” maturity ladder may be appropriate.

Yield - Attaining a competitive market yield for comparable security-types and portfolio
structures is the desired objective. The yield of an equally weighted, rolling six-month
treasury-bill portfolio will be the minimum yield objective.

Bond Funds

1.

2.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Bond Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments will be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, by managing Bond Funds
to not exceed the shorter of three years or the anticipated expenditure schedule and
maintaining a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated
maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days the market risk of the
overall portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - Securities with active and efficient secondary markets are necessary in
the event of an unanticipated cash flow requirement. Historical market “spreads”
between the bid and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of
a percentage point will define an efficient secondary market.

Liquidity - Bond Funds used for capital improvements programs have reasonably
predictable draw down schedules. Therefore investment maturities should generally
follow the anticipated cash flow requirements. Investment pools and money market
mutual funds will provide readily available funds generally equal to one month’'s
anticipated cash flow needs, or a competitive yield alternative for short term fixed
maturity investments. A singular repurchase agreement may be utilized if
disbursements are allowed in the amount necessary to satisfy any expenditure
request. This investment structure is commonly referred to as a flexible repurchase
agreement.

Diversification - Market conditions and arbitrage regulations influence the
attractiveness of staggering the maturity of fixed rate investments for construction,
loan and bond proceeds. Generally, when investment rates exceed the applicable
cost of borrowing, the City is best served by locking in most investments. If the cost
of borrowing cannot be exceeded, then concurrent market conditions will determine
the attractiveness of diversifying maturities or investing in shorter and larger amounts.
At no time shall the anticipated expenditure schedule be exceeded in an attempt to
bolster yield.

Yield - Achieving a positive spread to the cost of borrowing is the desired objective,
within the limits of the investment policy’s risk constraints. The yield of an equally
weighted, rolling six-month treasury-bill portfolio will be the minimum yield objective
for non-borrowed funds.

99



100

Attachment B

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS
Investment Policy

[SAMPLE]
TEXAS PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT ACT
CERTIFICATION BY BUSINESS ORGANIZATION

This certification is executed on behalf of the City of Corinth, Texas (the "City") and
(the Business Organization), pursuant to the Public
Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code (the “Act”) in connection with
investment transactions conducted between the City and the Business Organization.

The undersigned Qualified Representative of the Business Organization hereby certifies on behalf
of the Business Organization that:

1. The undersigned is a Qualified Representative of the Business Organization offering to
enter an investment transaction with the Investor as such terms are used in the Public
Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code; and

2. The Qualified Representative of the Business Organization has received and reviewed the
investment policy furnished by the City; and

3. The Qualified Representative of the Business Organization has implemented reasonable
procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions conducted
between the Business Organization and the City that are not authorized by the City's
investment policy, except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on an analysis
of the makeup of the City's entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective
investment standards.

Qualified Representative of Business Organization

Firm:

Signature

Name:

Title:

Date:




101

RESOLUTION NO._21-01-28-

A RESOLUTION REVIEWING AND APPROVING INVESTMENT
POLICY FOR FUNDSFOR THE CITY OF CORINTH; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2256.005(e) of Chapter 2256 of the Texas
Government Code, the City Council has reviewed and approved the Investment Policy attached
hereto as Exhibit A, which contain proposed changes, for compliance with the Public Funds
Investment Act, TEX. GOV’T CODE ch. 2256, (“ Chapter 2256") and

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH HEREBY
RESOLVES:

SECTION 1. That the City Council has reviewed the attached Investment Policy, which contain
the investment strategies and policies, and hereby approves the Investment Policy.

SECTION 2. That the Director of Finance is hereby designated as the City’s primary investment
officer and is hereby authorized to perform the functionsrequired of the primary investment officer
under the Investment Policy and Chapter 2256.

SECTION 3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in force when the provisions of this
resolution became effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms or provisions
contained in this resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict only.

SECTION 4. That thisresolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED thisthe 28th day of January 2021.

Bill Hetidemann, Mayor

ATTEST:

LanaWylie, City Secretary

APPROVED ASTO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Patricia Adams, City Attorney



102
EXHIBIT A- INVESTMENT POLICY

Pages 1 through 20



103

CONSENT ITEM 3.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021

Title: CCD Investment Policy

Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director

Submitted By: Chris Rodriguez, Financial Services Manager

Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: N/A

City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM

Consider and act on a resolution reviewing and approving the Investment Policy for funds for the Crime Control &
Prevention District; and providing an effective date.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

In accordance with Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code, the city is required
to annually adopt a formal written Investment Policy for the investment of public funds. The policy establishes
investment parameters and guidelines for the investment program in order to achieve the goals of safety, liquidity,
diversification, rate-of-return, and public trust, and designates the authorized investment officer responsible for the
daily investment activity by the City.

As part of the annual process, staff reviews the policy and may recommend revisions to the existing policy, if
needed. Recommended revision to the Investment policy is listed below.

1. Section VIII Diversification, (C) Diversification by Investment Instrument - recommend increasing the maximum
percent (%) of portfolio from 50% to 75% for the Authorized Local Government Investment Pool.

RECOMMENDATION

The Finance Audit Committee reviewed the Investment Policy on Thursday, December 17, 2020 and recommends
approval.

Attachments
Resolution - CCD Investment Policy
Investment Policy




104

RESOLUTION NO._21-01-28-

A RESOLUTION REVIEWING AND ADOPTING THE INVESTMENT
POLICY FOR FUNDS FOR THE CORINTH CRIME CONTROL AND
PREVENTION DISTRICT.

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2256.005€ of Chapter 2256 of the Texas
Government Code, the Board of Directors of the Corinth Crime Control and Prevention District
have reviewed and approved the Investment Policy attached hereto as Exhibit A, which contain
proposed changes, for compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, TEX. GOV’ T CODE
ch. 2256, (“ Chapter 2256"); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Investment Policy and proposed changes
for compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, TEX. GOV’ T CODE ch. 2256;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH HEREBY
RESOLVES:

SECTION 1. That the City Council has reviewed the attached Corinth Crime Control and
Prevention District Investment Policy, which contain the investment strategies and policies and
hereby approves the Investment Policy.

SECTION 2. That the Director of Finance is hereby designated as the City’s and the Corinth
Crime Control and Prevention Digtrict’s primary investment officer and is hereby authorized to
perform the functions required of the primary investment officer under the Investment Policy and
Chapter 2256.

SECTION 3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in force when the provisions of this
resolution became effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms or provisons
contained in this resolution are hereby repeal ed to the extent of any such conflict only.

SECTION 4. That thisresolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED thisthe 28th day of January, 2021.

Bill Heidemann, Mayor

ATTEST:

LanaWylie, City Secretary

APPROVED ASTO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Patricia Adams, City Attorney



105

EXHIBIT A- INVESTMENT POLICY
Pages 1 through 20



106

CORINTH, TEXAS
CORINTH CRIME CONTROL AND PREVENTION DISTRICT
INVESTMENT POLICY

PREFACE

It is the policy of the City of Corinth (the “City”) and the Corinth Crime Control and Prevention
District (the "DISTRICT") that after allowing for the anticipated cash flow requirements and giving
due consideration to the safety and risks of investments, all available funds shall be invested in
conformance with these legal and administrative guidelines to obtain a market rate-of-return.

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management. An active
cash management and investment policy will be pursued to take advantage of investment interest
as a viable and material source of revenue for DISTRICT funds. The DISTRICT's portfolio shall
be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and shall be invested in
conformance with State and Federal Regulations, applicable Bond Resolution requirements, and
adopted investment policy. The DISTRICT will invest public funds in a manner which will provide
the maximum security and a market rate-of-return while meeting the daily cash flow demands of
the DISTRICT.

Pursuant to Subchapter E of Chapter 363 of the Local Government Code, the DISTRICT
designates the City of Corinth to invest it's funds in accordance with the provisions and
requirements of this policy and 8§ 363.206(c) of the Texas Local Gov't Code.



107

PURPOSE

The purpose of this investment policy (the “policy”) is to set forth specific investment policy
and strategy guidelines for the DISTRICT in order to achieve the goals of safety, liquidity,
rate-of-return, and public trust for all investment activities.

SCOPE

The investment policy shall govern the investment of all financial assets considered to be
part of the DISTRICT and includes the following separately invested funds or fund types:
Operating, Reserve, and Bond Funds, although the DISTRICT has only operating funds.
This policy does not include funds governed by approved trust agreements, or assets
administered for the benefit of the DISTRICT by outside agencies under retirement or
deferred compensation programs. The City shall and will maintain responsibility for these
funds to the extent required by: Federal and State law; the City Charter; and donor
stipulations.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

Funds of the DISTRICT shall be invested in accordance with all applicable Texas statutes,
this policy and any other approved, written administrative procedures. The five objectives
of the DISTRICT’s investment activities shall be as follows (in the order of priority):

A. Safety — Preservation and safety of Principal. Safety of principal invested is the
foremost objective in the investment decisions of the DISTRICT. Each investment
transaction shall seek to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The
risk of loss shall be controlled by investing only in authorized securities as defined in
this policy, by qualifying the financial institutions with which the DISTRICT will transact,
and by portfolio diversification. Safety is defined as the undiminished return of the
principal on the DISTRICT's investments

B. Liquidity -The investment portfolio shall be managed to maintain liquidity to ensure that
funds will be available to meet the DISTRICT's cash flow requirements and by
investing in securities with active secondary markets. Investments shall be structured
in such a manner as to provide liquidity necessary to pay obligations as they become
due. A security may be liquidated prior to its stated maturity to meet unanticipated
cash requirements or to otherwise favorably adjust the DISTRICT's portfolio.

C. Diversification - Investment maturities shall be staggered throughout the budget cycle
to provide cash flow based on the anticipated needs of the DISTRICT. Diversifying
the appropriate maturity structure will reduce market cycle risk.

D. Market Rate-of-Return (Yield) - The DISTRICT’s investment portfolio shall be
designed to optimize a market rate-of-return on investments consistent with risk
constraints and cash flow requirements of the portfolio. The investment portfolio shall
be managed in a manner which seeks to attain a market rate-of-return throughout
budgetary and economic cycles. The DISTRICT will not attempt to consistently attain
an unrealistic above market rate-of-return as this objective will subject the overall
portfolio to greater risk. Therefore, the DISTRICT's rate-of-return objective is
secondary to those of safety and liquidity. Rate-of-return (yield) is defined as the
annual income returned on an investment, expressed as a percentage.




108

E. Public Trust - The Investment Officer(s) shall avoid any transactions that might impair
public confidence in the DISTRICT's ability to govern effectively. The governing body
recognizes that in diversifying the portfolio, occasional measured losses due to market
volatility are inevitable, and must be considered within the context of the overall
portfolio’'s investment return, provided that adequate diversification has been
implemented. The prudence of the investment decision shall be measured in
accordance with the tests set forth in Section 2256.006(b) of the Act.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The City maintains a comprehensive and proactive cash management program which is
designed to monitor and control all DISTRICT funds to ensure maximum utilization and
yield a market rate-of-return. The basic and underlying strategy of this program is that all
of the DISTRICT's funds are earning interest. It is the responsibility and obligation of the
City to maintain a flexible approach and be prepared to modify the investment strategy as
market conditions dictate. The investment strategy described is predicated on conditions
as they now exist and are subject to change. The investment strategy emphasizes low
credit risk, diversification, and the management of maturities. The strategy also considers
the expertise and time constraints of the Investment Officers. The allowable investments
as defined in Section VII of this policy reflect the avoidance of credit risk. Diversification
refers to dividing investments among a variety of securities offering independent returns.
This strategy uses local government investment pools to achieve diversification. The
active management of maturities refers to structuring the maturity dates of the direct
investments so that, while funds are initially invested for a longer period of time, some
investments mature as cash needs require. The strategies for the DISTRICT’s investment
activities shall be as follows:

Strategy No. 1

Diversifying the DISTRICT's investment opportunities through the use of local government
investment pools and money market mutual funds as authorized by the City Council. An
investment pool is a professionally managed portfolio of shared assets created to invest
public funds jointly on behalf of the governmental entities that participate in the pool and
whose investment objectives in order of priority match those objectives of the DISTRICT.
Fund withdrawals are usually available from investment pools on a same-day basis,
meaning the pools have a high degree of liquidity. Because of the size and expertise of
their staff, investment pools are able to prudently invest in a variety of the investment types
allowed by state law. In this manner, investment pools achieve desired diversification. The
strategy of the DISTRICT calls for the use of investment pools as a primary source of
diversification and a supplemental source of liquidity. Funds that may be needed on a
short-term basis but are in excess of the amount maintained at the depository bank are
available for deposit in investment pools.

Strategy No. 2
Building a ladder of authorized securities with staggered maturities for all or part of the
longer-term investable funds. The benefits of this ladder approach include the following:




109

A. ltis straight-forward and easily understood;

B. It will assure the DISTRICT that it will capture a reasonable portion of the yield curve;
and,

C. It provides predictable cash flow with scheduled maturities and reinvestment
opportunities.

Strategy No. 3

Utilizing the services of a Professional Investment Advisor in order to maximize investment
earnings and realize market opportunities when they become available. Other
responsibilities of the Investment Advisor include, but are not limited to broker compliance,
security selection, competitive bidding, investment reporting, and security documentation.
The Investment Advisor must be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) under the Investment Advisor's Act of 1940 as well as with the Texas State
Securities Board and shall adhere to the spirit and philosophy of this policy and avoid
recommending or suggesting transactions outside the "Standard of Care" under this

policy.

Strategy No. 4
The DISTRICT will utilize a general investment strategy designed to address the unique
characteristics of specific fund-types (detailed strategies are presented in Attachment A):

A. Investment strategies for operating funds and pooled funds containing operating funds
have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with
adequate investment liquidity. The secondary objective is to create a portfolio which
will experience minimal volatility during economic cycles.

B. Investment strategies for reserve funds shall have as the primary objective the ability
to generate a dependable revenue stream to the appropriate reserve fund.

C. Investment strategies for special projects and capital projects funds will have as their
primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with adequate
investment liquidity.

D. The investment maturity of bond proceeds (excluding reserve and debt service funds)
shall generally be limited to the anticipated cash flow requirement or the "temporary
period,” as defined by Federal tax law. During the temporary period, bond proceeds
may be invested at an unrestricted yield. After the expiration of the temporary period,
bond proceeds subject to yield restriction shall be invested considering the anticipated
cash flow requirements of the funds and market conditions to achieve compliance with
the applicable regulations.

Strategy No. 5

The DISTRICT generally intends to hold all of its securities until they mature and will
accomplish this by maintaining sufficient liquidity in its portfolio so that it does not need to
sell a security early. Should it become necessary to sell a security prior to maturity, where
the sale proceeds are less than the current book value, the prior written consent of the
City Manager must be obtained. Securities may be sold prior to maturity by the Director of
Finance at or above their book value at any time, without the consent of the City Manager.




VI.

110

Strategy No. 6

All demand deposits of the DISTRICT will be concentrated with one central depository.
The City's depository procedure will maximize the DISTRICT's ability to pool cash for
investment purposes and provide more manageable banking relationships. In addition,
depositories not holding demand deposits of the DISTRICT may be eligible to bid on
DISTRICT investments.

Strategy No. 7

This policy shall further seek to maintain good depository bank relationships while
minimizing the cost of banking services. The City will seek to maintain a depository
contract which will be managed to a level that minimizes the cost of the banking
relationship to the DISTRICT, while allowing the DISTRICT to earn an appropriate return
on idle demand deposits.

Strategy No. 8

A single pooled fund group, as defined in this policy, may be utilized at the discretion of
the Investment Officer. However, earnings from investments will be allocated on a pro-
rata cash basis to the individual funds and used in a manner that will best service the
interests of the DISTRICT.

Strategy No. 9

Procedures shall be established and implemented in order to maximize investable cash
by decreasing the time between the actual collection and the deposit of receipts, and by
the controlling of disbursements.

FINANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE

A. Members - There is hereby created a Finance Audit Committee consisting of the
Mayor, two members of the City Council and two citizens appointed by the City
Council. The Mayor will be a permanent member of the Committee. The other four
members of the Committee will be appointed by the City Council to serve a two-year
term and shall not exceed two successive terms. The Mayor and the two members
of the City Council shall be voting members of the committee. The Community
Representative members shall be non-voting members of the Committee,

B. Scope - The Finance Audit Committee shall meet at least once per calendar quarter
to determine general strategies and to monitor results. Included in its deliberations
will be such topics as: economic outlook, portfolio diversification, maturity structure,
potential risk to the DISTRICT’s funds, authorized brokers and dealers, and the target
rate-of-return on the investment portfolio.

C. Procedures - The Finance Audit Committee shall provide minutes of its meetings. Any
two members of the Finance Audit Committee may request a special meeting, and a
majority of the voting members shall constitute a quorum. The Finance Audit
Committee shall abide by the Rules of Procedure and Policies as set forth in
Resolution 09-05-01-11, as amended, and the Charter of the City of Corinth.

RESPONSIBILITY AND STANDARD OF CARE

A. The responsibility for the daily operation and management of the DISTRICT's



B.

C.

111

investments shall be outlined within this section.

1. Delegation of Authority - Management responsibility for the investment program is
hereby delegated to the Director of Finance, who shall be authorized to deposit,
withdraw, invest, transfer or manage the funds of the DISTRICT and shall establish
written procedures for the operation of the investment program, consistent with this
policy. Such procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to other
persons responsible for investment transactions. All persons involved in
investment activities will be referred to in this policy as “Investment Officers.” No
persons may engage in investment transactions, except as provided under the
terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Director of Finance.

2. The Director of Finance shall assume responsibility for all transactions undertaken
and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate
Investment Officers. The system of controls shall be designed to provide
reasonable assurance that ensures the assets of the DISTRICT are protected from
loss, theft or misuse. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:

a. The cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and,

b. The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

3. The Director of Finance shall be designated as the primary Investment Officer for
the DISTRICT and shall be responsible for investment decisions and activities
under the direction of the City Manager. The Director of Finance may delegate any
phase of the investment program to a secondary Investment Officer. Both the
Director of Finance and the designated secondary Investment Officer are
responsible for daily investment decisions and activities. However, ultimate
responsibility for investment decisions will rest with the Director of Finance.

Prudence - The standard of prudence to be applied by the Investment Official shall be
the "prudent investor" rule, which states, "investments shall be made with judgment
and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person of prudence, discretion and
intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital and the
probable income to be derived.” In determining whether the Investment Officer has
exercised prudence with respect to an investment decision, the determination shall be
made taking into consideration the following:

1. The investment of all funds over which the Investment Officer had responsibility
rather than a consideration as to the prudence of a single investment; and

2. The investment decision was consistent with the written investment policy and
procedures of the DISTRICT.

Due Diligence - The Director of Finance, designated secondary Investment Officer,
Mayor, City Council, City Manager, other Finance employees and citizen committee
members acting in accordance with written policies and procedures and exercising
due diligence, shall not be held personally responsible for a specific security’s credit
risk or market price changes, provided that these deviations are reported in a timely



112

manner and that appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

D. Ethical Standards and Conflicts of Interest

1. Al DISTRICT Investment Officers having a direct or indirect role in the investment
of DISTRICT funds shall act as custodians of the public trust avoiding any
transaction which might involve a conflict of interest, the appearance of a conflict
of interest, or any activity which might otherwise discourage public confidence.
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from
personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the
investment program, or which could impair the ability to make impartial investment
decisions.

2. An Investment Officer who has a personal business relationship with the
depository bank or with any entity seeking to sell an investment to the DISTRICT
shall file a statement disclosing that personal business interest.

3. An Investment Officer has a personal business relationship with a business
organization if:

a. The Investment Officer or one related to the Investment Officer within the
second degree of affinity or consanguinity owns 10% or more of the voting
stock or shares of the business organization or owns $5,000 or more of the fair
market value of the business organization;

b. Funds received by the Investment Officer or one related to the Investment
Officer within the second degree of affinity or consanguinity from the business
organization exceed 10% of the Investment Official’s gross income for the prior
year; or

c. The Investment Officer or one related to the Investment Officer within the
second degree of affinity or consanguinity has acquired from the business
organization during the prior year investments with a book value of $2,500 or
more for the personal account of the Investment Officer.

d. An Investment Officer who is related within the second degree of affinity or
consanguinity to an individual seeking to sell an investment to the DISTRICT
shall file a statement disclosing that relationship. A statement required under
this subsection must be filed with the Texas Ethics Commission and the City
Council.

E. Training - The City shall provide periodic training in investments for the investment
personnel through courses and seminars offered by professional organizations and
associations in order to ensure the quality and capability of the DISTRICT'S
investment personnel making investment decisions in compliance with the Public
Funds Investment Act (PFIA). The Investment Officials and the Finance Audit
Committee members shall attend at least one training session containing at least 10
hours of instruction relating to the officer's responsibility under the PFIA within 12
months after assuming duties, and thereafter shall attend at least 8 hours of additional
investment training in subsequent two-year periods which begin on the first day of the
fiscal year and consist of the two consecutive fiscal years after that date. The



113

Government Finance Officers Association of Texas, the Government Treasurers
Organization of Texas, the Texas Municipal League, or the North Central Texas
Council of Governments are approved as independent training sources by the City
Council.

VIl.  AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

A. Generally - Safety of principal is the primary objective in investing public funds and
can be accomplished by limiting credit risk and interest rate risk. Credit risk is the risk
associated with the failure of a security issuer or backer to pay back principal and
interest on a timely basis. Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a portfolio will
decline due to an increase in the general level of interest rates. In order to provide for
safety of principal as the DISTRICT’s primary objective, only certain investments are
authorized as acceptable investments for the DISTRICT. The following list of
authorized investments for the DISTRICT intentionally excludes some investments
authorized by state law. These restrictions are intended to limit possible risk and
provide the maximum measure of safety to DISTRICT funds. In the event an
authorized investment loses its required minimum credit rating, all prudent measures
will be taken to liquidate said investment. Additionally, the DISTRICT is not required
to liquidate investments that were authorized at the time of purchase.

B. Authorized and Acceptable Investments - The authorized list of investment
instruments is as follows:

1. Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities or any
obligation fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), excluding mortgage-backed securities.

2. Direct obligations of the State of Texas, or its agencies and instrumentalities
Other obligations, the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally
guaranteed or insured by, or backed by the full faith and credit of, the State of
Texas or the United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities,
excluding mortgage-related securities.

C. Certificates of Deposit — A certificate of deposit issued by a depository institution that
has its main office or branch office in this state and is secured in accordance with the
specific collateralization requirements contained in section XI.B of this policy. In
addition, an investment in “bundled” or “shared” CDs made in accordance with the
following conditions is permitted:

1. The funds are invested through a broker that has its main office or a branch office
in this state selected from a list adopted by the City as required by Section
2256.025; or through a depository institution that has its main office or a branch
office in this state and that is selected by the City;

2. The selected broker or depository institution arranges for the deposit of the funds
in certificates of deposit in one or more federally insured depository institutions,
wherever located, for the account of the City.

3. The full amount of the principal and accrued interest of each of the CD is insured
by the United States or an instrumentality of the United States; and



114

4. The City appoints the depository institution, a clearing broker-dealer registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission and operating pursuant to SEC
Rule 15c3-3, or an entity described in the Public Funds Collateral Act, Section
2257.041(d), as custodian for the City with respect to those CDs issued for the
City's account.

. Eligible Local Government Investment Pools — AAA-rated public funds investment
pools, with a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less, individually approved by
formal Council resolution, which invest in instruments and follow practices allowed by
the current law as defined by Section 2256.016 of the Texas Government Code. The
pool must be continuously rated no lower than AAA or AAA-m or at an equivalent rating
by at least one nationally recognized rating service. A public funds investment pool
created to functions as a money market mutual fund must mark to market daily and,
stabilize at a $1 net asset value.

. Repurchase Agreements — Fully collateralized repurchase agreements having a
defined termination date, placed through a primary government securities dealer or a
financial institution doing business in the State of Texas, and fully secured by cash
and obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities. This
collateral must be pledged to the DISTRICT and held in safekeeping with a third-party
custodian approved by the City. All collateral must be maintained at a market value of
no less than the principal amount of the outstanding funds disbursed. All transactions
shall be governed by signed Security Industry and Financial Markets Association,
(SIFMA) Master Repurchase Agreement. Repurchase agreements must also be
collateralized in accordance with State law as described in Section XI of this policy.
Authorization under this section includes flexible repurchase agreements which may
be used for specific investment of bond proceeds but shall not include reverse
repurchase agreements.

Bankers’ Acceptances and Commercial Paper (LIMITED USE) — These investments
are authorized for the DISTRICT to the extent that they are contained in the portfolios
of approved public funds investment pools or money market funds in which the
DISTRICT invests.

. AAA-rated SEC-Requlated 2a7 No-Load Money Market Mutual Funds — An SEC-
registered, no load money market mutual fund which has a dollar weighted average
stated maturity of 60 days or less whose assets consist exclusively of the assets
described in section VII.A and whose investment objectives includes the maintenance
of a stable net asset value of $1 for each share: furthermore, it provides the DISTRICT
with a prospectus and other information required by the SEC act of 1934 or the
Investment Advisor Act of 1940 and which provides the DISTRICT with a prospectus
and other information required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 USC
Section 78a et. Seq.) of the Investment Company Act of 1990 (15 USC Section 80a-1
et. Seq.).

. Unauthorized Securities — State law specifically prohibits investment in the following
securities:

1. An obligation whose payment represents the coupon payments on the outstanding
principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed security and pays no
principal.



115

2. Anobligation whose payment represents the principal stream of cash flow from the
underlying mortgage-backed security and bears no interest.

3. Collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated final maturity date of greater
than 10 years.

4. Collateralized mortgage obligations, the interest rate of which is determined by an
index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index.

VIll.  DIVERSIFICATION

A. Generally - Diversification of investment instruments shall be utilized to avoid incurring
unreasonable risks resulting from over-concentration of investments in a specific
maturity, a specific issue, or a specific class of securities. With the exception of U.S.
Government securities (debt obligations issued by the U. S. Government, its agencies,
or instrumentalities) as authorized in this policy, and authorized local government
investment pools, no more than forty percent (40%) of the total investment portfolio
will be invested in any one security type or with a single financial institution.
Diversification of the portfolio considers diversification by maturity dates and
diversification by investment instrument.

B. Diversification by Maturities - The longer the maturity of investments, the greater their
price volatility. Therefore, it is the DISTRICT’s policy to concentrate its investment
portfolio in shorter-term securities in order to limit principal risks caused by change in
interest rates. The DISTRICT will attempt to match its investments with anticipated
cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow (including the
anticipated cash flow requirements of bond proceeds within the temporary period), the
DISTRICT will not directly invest in securities maturing more than two (2) years from
the date of purchase. However, the above described obligations, certificates, or
agreements may be collateralized using longer date instruments. The DISTRICT shall
diversify the use of investment instruments to avoid incurring unreasonable risks
inherent in over-investing in specific instruments, individual financial institutions or
maturities. Maturity scheduling shall be managed by the Investment Officer so that
maturities of investments shall be timed to coincide with projected cash flow needs.

The entire DISTRICT portfolio, or single pooled fund group if utilized, shall maintain a
maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated maturity date, of less
than two hundred seventy (270) days. Investment maturities for debt service interest
and sinking funds and/or other types of reserve funds, whose use is never anticipated,
shall maintain a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated
maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days.

C. Diversification by Investment Instrument - Diversification by investment instrument
shall not exceed the following guidelines for each type of instrument:

Maximum %

of Portfolio
U.S. Treasury Obligations 100%
U.S. Government Agency Securities and Instrumentalities 100%

Authorized Local Government Investment Pool 75%100%



116

Local Government Obligations 10%

Fully Collateralized Certificates of Deposit 75%

Fully Collateralized Repurchase Agreements 25%

SEC-Regulated No-Load Money Market Mutual Fund 100%

U.S. Treasury & Agency Callables 30%
SECURITY SWAPS

Security swaps may be considered as an investment option for the DISTRICT. A swap
out of one instrument into another is acceptable to increase yield, realign for disbursement
dates, extend or shorten maturity dates and improve market sector diversification. Swaps
may be initiated by brokers/dealers who are on the City’s approved list. A horizon analysis
is required for each swap proving benefit to the DISTRICT before the trade decision is
made, which will accompany the investment file for record keeping.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS.

A. The Director of Finance will maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to provide
investment services to the City. In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved
broker/dealers authorized to provide investment services in the State of Texas. These
will include financial institutions that qualify under Securities & Exchange Commission
Rule 15-C3-1 (uniform net capital rule). No public deposit shall be made except in a
qualified public depository as established by state laws.

B. Allfinancial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified bidders for
investment transactions must supply the Director of Finance with the following, as
appropriate: audited financial statements, proof of Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority certification, trading resolution, proof of State registration, completed
broker/dealer questionnaire and certification of having read the DISTRICT's
investment policy.

C. The Finance Audit Committee shall be responsible for adopting the list of brokers and
dealers of government securities. Their selection shall be among only primary
government securities dealers that report directly to the New York Federal Reserve
Bank, unless a comprehensive credit and capitalization analysis reveals that other
firms are adequately financed to conduct public business. The Finance Audit
Committee shall base its evaluation of security dealers and financial institutions upon:

1. Financial conditions, strength and capability to fulfill commitments;
2. Overall reputation with other dealers or investors;
3. Regulatory status of the dealer;
4. Background and expertise of the individual representatives.

D. Investment Officers shall only conduct business with securities dealers approved by
the Finance Audit Committee and will not purchase investments from any financial
organization until the organization’s registered principal has executed a written

instrument stating that he or she has thoroughly reviewed the DISTRICT’s investment
policy and acknowledges that reasonable procedures and controls have been



117

implemented to preclude imprudent investment activities arising out of transactions
between the organization and the DISTRICT, except to the extent that this
authorization is dependent on an analysis of the makeup of the DISTRICT’s entire
portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective investment standards.

. To guard against default possibilities under these conditions, and to assure
diversification of bidders, business with any one issuer, or investment broker, should
be limited to forty percent (40%) of the total portfolio at any point in time. In this way,
bankruptcy, receivership or legal action would not immobilize the DISTRICT’s ability
to meet payroll or other expenses.

All investment (governments or bank C.D.’s) will be solicited on a competitive basis
with at least three (3) institutions. The Finance Audit Committee can approve
exceptions on a case by case basis or on a general basis in the form of guidelines.
These guidelines shall take into consideration the investment type maturity date,
amount, and potential disruptiveness to the DISTRICT'’s investment strategy. The
investment will be made with the broker/dealer offering the best yield/quality to the
DISTRICT. The quotes may be accepted orally, in writing, electronically, or any
combination of these methods.

. An annual review of the financial condition and registration of qualified financial
organizations will be conducted by the Director of Finance.

. A current audited financial statement is required to be on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the DISTRICT invests.

If the City has contracted with a Registered Investment Advisor for the management
of its funds, the advisor shall be responsible for performing due diligence on and
maintaining a list of broker/dealers with which it shall transact business on behalf of
the DISTRICT. The advisor shall determine selection criteria and shall annually
present a list of its authorized broker/dealers to the CITY for review and likewise shall
execute the aforementioned written instrument stating that the advisor has reviewed
the DISTRICT's investment policy and has implemented reasonable procedures and
controls in an effort to preclude imprudent investment activities with the DISTRICT.
The advisor shall obtain and document competitive bids and offers on all transactions
and present these to the City as part of its standard trade documentation.

It is the policy of the City that all security transactions entered into with the DISTRICT
shall be conducted on a “Delivery-versus-Payment basis through the Federal Reserve
System. By doing this, DISTRICT funds are not released until the City has received,
through the Federal Reserve wire, the securities purchased. The City shall authorize
the release of funds only after receiving notification from the safekeeping bank that a
purchased security has been received in the safekeeping account of the DISTRICT.
The notification may be oral, but shall be confirmed in writing.

1. Financial conditions, strength and capability to fulfill commitments;

2. Overall reputation with other dealers or investors;
3. Regulatory status of the dealer;

4. Background and expertise of the individual representatives.



XI.

118

SAFEKEEPING AND COLLATERALIZATION

A. Safekeeping - All securities owned by the DISTRICT shall be held by a third-party

safekeeping agent selected by the City. The collateral for bank deposits will be held
in the City’s name in the bank’s trust department, in a Federal Reserve Bank account
in the City’s name, or third-party financial institutions doing business in the state of
Texas, in accordance with state law. Original safekeeping receipts shall be obtained
and held by the City. The City shall contract with a bank or banks for the safekeeping
of securities either owned by the City as part of its investment portfolio or held as
collateral to secure time deposits.

. Collateralization - Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral

Act, it is the policy of the City to require full collateralization of all City funds on deposit
with a depository bank. The market value of the investments securing the deposit of
funds shall be at least equal to 102% of the amount of the deposits of funds reduced
to the extent that the deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC). Securities pledged as collateral shall be held by an independent
third party with whom the City has a current custodial agreement. The agreement is
to specify the acceptable investment securities as collateral, including provisions
relating to possession of the collateral, the substitution or release of investment
securities, ownership of securities, and the method of valuation of securities. The
safekeeping agreement must clearly state that the safekeeping bank is instructed to
release purchased and collateral securities to the City in the event the City has
determined that the depository bank has failed to pay on any matured investments in
certificates of deposit, or has determined that the funds of the City are in jeopardy for
whatever reason, including involuntary closure or change of ownership. A clearly
marked evidence of ownership, e.g., safekeeping receipt, must be supplied to the City
and retained by the City.

1. The City may accept the following to insure or collateralize bank deposits:

a. Guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its
successor or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund or its successor;

b. United States Treasuries & Agencies
c. Other securities as approved by the Finance Audit Committee

2. For certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit, collateral shall be at
102% of market value. The market value of collateral will always equal or exceed
102% of the principal plus accrued interest of deposits at financial institutions.

3. Financial institutions with which the City invests or maintains other deposits shall
provide monthly, and as requested by the Investment Officer, a listing of the
collateral pledged to the City, marked to current market prices. The listing shall
include total pledged securities itemized by name, type, description, par value,
current market value, maturity date, and Moody's or Standard & Poor’s rating, if
applicable. The City and the financial institution shall jointly assume the
responsibility for ensuring that the collateral is sufficient.



XII.

XIIl.

XIV.

119

C. Collateralized Deposits - Consistent with the requirements of State law, the City
requires all bank deposits to be federally insured or collateralized with eligible
securities. Financial institutions serving as City depositories will be required to sign a
"Depository Agreement” with the City and the City’s safekeeping agent. The
collateralized deposit portion of the Agreement shall define the City’'s rights to the
collateral in the event of default, bankruptcy, or closing and shall establish a perfected
security interest in compliance with Federal and State regulations, including:

1. Agreement must be in writing;

2. Agreement has to be executed by the Depository and the City contemporaneously
with the acquisition of the asset;

3. Agreement must be approved by the Board of Directors or designated committee
of the Depository and a copy of the meeting minutes must be delivered to the City;
and

4. Agreement must be part of the Depository's "official record” continuously since its
execution.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Investment Officer shall establish a system of written internal controls, which shall be
reviewed annually by independent auditors. The controls shall be designed to prevent
loss of public funds due to fraud, error, misrepresentation, unanticipated market changes,
or imprudent actions. The internal controls are to be reviewed annually in conjunction with
an external independent audit. This review will provide assurance of compliance with
policies and procedures as specified by this policy. The City, in conjunction with its annual
financial audit, shall perform a compliance audit of management controls and adherence
to the DISTRICT's established investment policy.

PERFORMANCE

The DISTRICT's investment portfolio shall be designed to obtain a market rate-of-return
on investments consistent with risk constraints and cash flow requirements of the
DISTRICT. This investment policy establishes “weighted average yield to maturity” as the
standard portfolio performance measurement.

REPORTING

A. Quarterly - The Director of Finance shall prepare and submit a signed quarterly
investment report to the Corinth Crime Control and Prevention District Board and the
Finance Audit Committee that summarizes current market conditions, economic
developments, and anticipated investment conditions. The report shall summarize
investment strategies employed in the most recent quarter and describe the portfolio
in terms of investment securities, maturities, risk characteristics, and shall explain the
total investment return for the quarter. The City shall also monitor the credit ratings
on securities that require minimum ratings. This may be accomplished through staff
research, or with the assistance of broker-dealers, investment advisors, banks or
safekeeping agents.



120

B. Annual Report - Within 180 days of the end of the fiscal year, the Director of Finance
shall present an annual report on the investment program and investment activity. This
report may be presented as a component of the fourth quarter report to the Corinth
Crime Control and Prevention District Board, City Manager and the City Council. The
quarterly reports prepared by the Director of Finance shall be formally reviewed at
least annually by an independent auditor, and the result of the review shall be reported
to the City Council by that auditor.

C. Methods - The quarterly and annual investment reports shall include a succinct
management summary that provides a clear picture of the status of the current
investment portfolio and transactions made over the past quarter. This management
summary will be prepared in a manner which will allow the DISTRICT to ascertain
whether investment activities during the reporting period have conformed to the
investment policy. The report will be prepared in compliance with generally accepted
accounting principles. The report will include the following:

1. Alisting of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period. This list will
include the name of the fund or pooled group fund for which each individual
investment was acquired;

2. Unrealized gains or losses resulting from appreciation or depreciation by listing the
beginning and ending book and market value of securities for the period. Market
values shall be obtained from financial institutions or portfolio reporting services
independent from the broker/dealer from which the security was purchased;

3. Additions and changes to the market value during the period;

4. Fully accrued interest for the reporting period;

5. Average weighted yield to maturity of portfolio on entity investments as compared
to applicable benchmarks;

6. Listing of investments by maturity date;

7. The percentage of the total portfolio which each type of investment represents;
and

8. Statement of compliance of the DISTRICT’s investment portfolio with State Law
and the investment strategy and policy approved by the City Council.

9. Market yield benchmark comparison of the average 90-day U. S. Treasury Bill
auction yield during the reporting period.

10. The guidelines of retaining records for seven years as recommended in the Texas
State Library Municipal Records Manual should be followed. The Director of
Finance shall oversee the filing and/or storing of investment records.

XV. INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT

The DISTRICT's investment policy shall be reviewed by the Corinth Crime Control and



121

Prevention District and formally adopted and amended by resolution by the City Council.
The CITY’s written policies and procedures for investments are subject to review not less
than annually to stay current with changing laws, regulations and needs of the CITY. The
City Council, not less than annually, shall adopt a written instrument stating that it has
reviewed the investment policy and investment strategies and that the written instrument
so adopted shall record any changes made to either the policy or strategies.



122

Attachment A

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS
Corinth Crime Control and Prevention District
Investment Strategy Statement

Operating Funds

1.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Operating
Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments shall be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, by managing the weighted
average days to maturity for the Operating Fund'’s portfolio to less than 270 days and
restricting the maximum allowable maturity to two years, the price volatility of the
overall portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - Securities with active and efficient secondary markets are necessary in
the event of an unanticipated cash flow requirement. Historical market “spreads”
between the bid and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of
a percentage point will define an efficient secondary market.

Liquidity - The Operating Fund requires the greatest short-term liquidity of any of the
Fund types. Short-term investment pools and money market mutual funds will provide
daily liquidity and may be utilized as a competitive yield alternative to fixed maturity
investments.

Diversification - Investment maturities should be staggered throughout the budget
cycle to provide cash flow based on the anticipated operating needs of the DISTRICT.
Market cycle risk will be reduced by diversifying the appropriate maturity structure out
through two years.

Yield - Attaining a competitive market yield for comparable security-types and portfolio
restrictions is the desired objective. The yield of an equally weighted, rolling three-
month treasury-bill portfolio will be the minimum yield objective.

Reserve Funds

1.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Debt Service
Reserve Funds. Bond resolution and loan documentation constraints and insurance
company restrictions may create specific considerations in addition to the investment

policy.

Safety of Principal - All investments shall be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, managing Debt Service
Reserve Fund maturities to not exceed the call provisions of the borrowing reduces
the investment’s market risk if the DISTRICT debt is redeemed and the Reserve Fund
liquidated. The fund shall maintain a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity,
based on the stated maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days. No
stated final investment maturity shall exceed the shorter of the final maturity of the



123

borrowing or two years. Annual mark-to-market requirements or specific maturity and
average life limitations within the borrowing’s documentation will influence the
attractiveness of market risk and reduce the opportunity for maturity extension.

Marketability - Securities with less active and efficient secondary markets are
acceptable for Debt Service Reserve Funds.

Liquidity — Debt Service Reserve Funds have no anticipated expenditures. The Funds
are deposited to provide annual debt service payment protection to the DISTRICT'’s
debt holders. The funds are “returned” to the DISTRICT at the final debt service
payment. Market conditions and arbitrage regulation compliance determine the
advantage of security diversification and liquidity. Generally, if investment rates
exceed the cost of borrowing, the DISTRICT is best served by locking in investment
maturities and reducing liquidity. If the borrowing cost cannot be exceeded, then
concurrent market conditions will determine the attractiveness of locking in maturities
or investing shorter and anticipating future increased yields.

Diversification - Market conditions and the arbitrage regulations influence the
attractiveness of staggering the maturity of fixed rate investments for Debt Service
Reserve Funds. At no time shall the final debt service payment date of the bond issue
be exceeded in an attempt to bolster yield.

Yield - Achieving a positive spread to the applicable borrowing cost is the desired
objective. Debt Service Reserve Fund portfolio management shall at all times operate
within the limits of the investment policy’s risk constraints.

Bond Funds

1.

2.

3.

4.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Bond Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments will be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, by managing Bond Funds
to not exceed the shorter of two years or the anticipated expenditure schedule and
maintaining a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated
maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days the market risk of the
overall portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - Securities with active and efficient secondary markets are necessary in
the event of an unanticipated cash flow requirement. Historical market “spreads”
between the bid and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of
a percentage point will define an efficient secondary market.

Liquidity — Bond Funds used for capital improvements programs have reasonably
predictable draw down schedules. Therefore investment maturities should generally
follow the anticipated cash flow requirements. Investment pools and money market
mutual funds will provide readily available funds generally equal to one month’s
anticipated cash flow needs, or a competitive yield alternative for short term fixed
maturity investments. A singular repurchase agreement may be utilized if
disbursements are allowed in the amount necessary to satisfy any expenditure
request. This investment structure is commonly referred to as a flexible repurchase
agreement.



124

5. Diversification - Market conditions and arbitrage regulations influence the
attractiveness of staggering the maturity of fixed rate investments for construction,
loan and bond proceeds. Generally, when investment rates exceed the applicable
cost of borrowing, the DISTRICT is best served by locking in most investments. If the
cost of borrowing cannot be exceeded, then concurrent market conditions will
determine the attractiveness of diversifying maturities or investing in shorter and larger
amounts. At no time shall the anticipated expenditure schedule be exceeded in an
attempt to bolster yield.

6. Yield - Achieving a positive spread to the cost of borrowing is the desired objective,
within the limits of the investment policy’s risk constraints. The yield of an equally
weighted, rolling six-month treasury-bill portfolio will be the minimum yield objective
for non-borrowed funds.



125

Attachment B

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS
Investment Policy

[SAMPLE]
TEXAS PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT ACT
CERTIFICATION BY BUSINESS ORGANIZATION

This certification is executed on behalf of the CITY of Corinth, Texas (the "CITY") and
(the Business Organization), pursuant to the Public
Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code (the "Act”) in connection with
investment transactions conducted between the CITY and the Business Organization.

The undersigned Qualified Representative of the Business Organization hereby certifies on behalf
of the Business Organization that:

1. The undersigned is a Qualified Representative of the Business Organization offering to
enter an investment transaction with the Investor as such terms are used in the Public
Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code; and

2. The Qualified Representative of the Business Organization has received and reviewed the
investment policy furnished by the CITY; and

3. The Qualified Representative of the Business Organization has implemented reasonable
procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions conducted
between the Business Organization and the CITY that are not authorized by the CITY's
investment policy, except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on an analysis
of the makeup of the CITY's entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective
investment standards.

Qualified Representative of Business Organization

Firm:

Signature

Name:

Title:

Date:




126

CONSENT ITEM 4.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021

Title: EDC Investment Policy

Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director

Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director

Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: N/A

City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM

Consider and act on a resolution reviewing and approving the Investment Policy for funds for the Economic
Development Corporation; and providing an effective date.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

In accordance with Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code, the city is required
to annually adopt a formal written Investment Policy for the investment of public funds. The policy establishes
investment parameters and guidelines for the investment program in order to achieve the goals of safety, liquidity,
diversification, rate-of-return, and public trust, and designates the authorized investment officer responsible for the
daily investment activity by the City.

As part of the annual process, staff reviews the policy and may recommend revisions to the existing policy, if
needed. Recommended revision to the Investment policies is listed below.

1. Section VIII Diversification, (C) Diversification by Investment Instrument - recommend increasing the
maximum percentage (%) of portfolio from 50% to 75% for the Authorized Local Government Investment Pool.

RECOMMENDATION

The Finance Audit Committee reviewed the Investment Policy on Thursday, December 17, 2020 and recommends
approval.

Attachments
Resolution - EDC Investment Policy

Investment Policy




127

RESOLUTION NO._21-01-28-

A RESOLUTION REVIEWING AND APPROVING THE INVESTMENT
POLICY FOR FUNDS FOR THE CORINTH ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION.

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2256.005(e) of Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government
Code, the Board of Directors of the Corinth Economic Development Corporation has reviewed and
approved the Investment Policy attached hereto as Exhibit A, which contain proposed changes, for
compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, TEX. GOV’ T CODE Ch. 2256, (“chapter 2256"); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Investment Policy and proposed changes for
compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, TEX. GOV'T CODE Ch. 2256;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH HEREBY RESOLVES:
SECTION 1. That the City Council has reviewed the attached Corinth Economic Devel opment
Corporation Investment Policy, which contain the investment strategies and policies, and hereby
approves the Investment Policy.

SECTION 2. That the Director of Finance is hereby designated as the City’ s and the Corinth Economic
Development Corporation’ s primary investment officer and i s hereby authorized to perform the functions
required of the primary investment officer under the Investment Policy and Chapter 2256.

SECTION 3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in force when the provisions of this resolution
became effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms or provisons contained in this
resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict only.

SECTION 4. That thisresolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED thisthe 28" day of January 2021.

Bill Heidemann, Mayor
ATTEST:

LanaWylie, City Secretary

APPROVED ASTO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Patricia Adams, City Attorney



128

EXHIBIT A- INVESTMENT POLICY
Pages 1 through 18



129

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
INVESTMENT POLICY

PREFACE

Itis the policy of the City of Corinth the “City” and the Corinth Economic Development Corporation
(the "EDC") that after allowing for the anticipated cash flow requirements and giving due
consideration to the safety and risks of investments, all available funds shall be invested in
conformance with these legal and administrative guidelines to obtain a market rate of return.

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management. An active
cash management and investment policy will be pursued to take advantage of investment interest
as a viable and material source of revenue for EDC funds. The EDC'’s portfolio shall be designed
and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and shall be invested in conformance
with State and Federal Regulations, applicable Bond Resolution requirements, and adopted
investment policy. The EDC will invest public funds in a manner which will provide the maximum
security and a market rate of return while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the EDC.

The EDC is required under the Public Funds Investment Act (Chapter 2256 of the Texas
Government Code) to adopt a formal written investment policy for the investment of public funds.
These policies serve to satisfy the statutory requirement (specifically the Public Funds Investment
Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code [the Act]) to define, adopt and review a formal
investment strategy and policy.



130

PURPOSE

The purpose of this investment policy (the “policy”) is to set forth specific investment policy
and strategy guidelines for the EDC in order to achieve the goals of safety, liquidity, rate-
of-return, and public trust for all investment activities.

SCOPE

The investment policy shall govern the investment of all financial assets considered to be
part of the EDC and includes the following separately invested funds or fund types:
Operating, Reserve, and Bond Funds, although the EDC has only operating funds. This
policy does not include funds governed by approved trust agreements, or assets
administered for the benefit of the EDC by outside agencies under retirement or deferred
compensation programs. The City shall and will maintain responsibility for these funds to
the extent required by: Federal and State law; the City Charter; and donor stipulations.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

Funds of the EDC shall be invested in accordance with all applicable Texas statutes, this
policy and any other approved, written administrative procedures. The five objectives of
the EDC'’s investment activities shall be as follows (in the order of priority):

A. Safety — Preservation and safety of Principal. Safety of principal invested is the
foremost objective in the investment decisions of the EDC. Each investment
transaction shall seek to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The
risk of loss shall be controlled by investing only in authorized securities as defined in
this policy, by qualifying the financial institutions with which the EDC will transact, and
by portfolio diversification. Safety is defined as the undiminished return of the principal
on the EDC's investments.

B. Liquidity - The investment portfolio shall be managed to maintain liquidity to ensure
that funds will be available to meet the EDC’s cash flow requirements and by investing
in securities with active secondary markets. Investments shall be structured in such a
manner as to provide liquidity necessary to pay obligations as they become due. A
security may be liquidated prior to its stated maturity to meet unanticipated cash
requirements or to otherwise favorably adjust the EDC’s portfolio.

C. Diversification - Investment maturities shall be staggered throughout the budget cycle
to provide cash flow based on the anticipated needs of the EDC. Diversifying the
appropriate maturity structure will reduce market cycle risk.

D. Market Rate-of-Return (Yield) - The EDC’s investment portfolio shall be designed to
optimize a market rate-of-return on investments consistent with risk constraints and
cash flow requirements of the portfolio. The investment portfolio shall be managed in
a manner which seeks to attain a market rate-of-return throughout budgetary and
economic cycles. The EDC will not attempt to consistently attain an unrealistic above
market rate-of-return, as this objective will subject the overall portfolio to greater risk.
Therefore, the EDC’s rate-of-return objective is secondary to those of safety and
liquidity. Rate-of-return (yield) is defined as the annual income returned on an
investment, expressed as a percentage.

E. Public Trust - The Investment Officer(s) shall avoid any transactions that might impair
public confidence in the EDC’s ability to govern effectively. The governing body
recognizes that in diversifying the portfolio, occasional measured losses due to market



131

volatility are inevitable, and must be considered within the context of the overall
portfolio’'s investment return, provided that adequate diversification has been
implemented. The prudence of the investment decision shall be measured in
accordance with the tests set forth in Section 2256.006(b) of the Act.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The City maintains a comprehensive and proactive cash management program which is
designed to monitor and control all EDC funds to ensure maximum utilization and yield a
market rate of return. The basic and underlying strategy of this program is that all of the
EDC's funds are earning interest. It is the responsibility and obligation of the City to
maintain a flexible approach and be prepared to modify the investment strategy as market
conditions dictate. The investment strategy described is predicated on conditions as they
now exist and are subject to change. The investment strategy emphasizes low credit risk,
diversification, and the management of maturities. The strategy also considers the
expertise and time constraints of the Investment Officers. The allowable investments as
defined in Section VII of this policy reflect the avoidance of credit risk. Diversification refers
to dividing investments among a variety of securities offering independent returns. This
strategy uses local government investment pools to achieve diversification. The active
management of maturities refers to structuring the maturity dates of the direct investments
so that, while funds are initially invested for a longer period of time, some investments
mature as cash needs require. The strategies for the EDC'’s investment activities shall be
as follows:

Strategy No. 1

Diversifying the EDC’s investment opportunities through the use of local government
investment pools and money market mutual funds as authorized by the EDC Board, and
the City Council. An investment pool is a professionally managed portfolio of shared
assets created to invest public funds jointly on behalf of the governmental entities that
participate in the pool and whose investment objectives in order of priority match those
objectives of the EDC. Fund withdrawals are usually available from investment pools on
a same-day basis, meaning the pools have a high degree of liquidity. Because of the size
and expertise of their staff, investment pools are able to prudently invest in a variety of the
investment types allowed by state law. In this manner, investment pools achieve desired
diversification. The strategy of the EDC calls for the use of investment pools as a primary
source of diversification and a supplemental source of liquidity. Funds that may be needed
on a short-term basis but are in excess of the amount maintained at the depository bank
are available for deposit in investment pools.

Strategy No. 2
Building a ladder of authorized securities with staggered maturities for all or part of the
longer-term investable funds. The benefits of this ladder approach include the following:

A. ltis straight-forward and easily understood;
B. It will assure the EDC that it will capture a reasonable portion of the yield curve; and,

C. It provides predictable cash flow with scheduled maturities and reinvestment
opportunities.

Strategy No. 3

Utilizing the services of a Professional Investment Advisor in order to maximize investment
earnings and realize market opportunities when they become available. Other
responsibilities of the Investment Advisor include, but are not limited to broker compliance,




132

security selection, competitive bidding, investment reporting, and security documentation.
The Investment Advisor must be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) under the Investment Advisor's Act of 1940 as well as with the Texas State
Securities Board and shall adhere to the spirit and philosophy of this policy and avoid
recommending or suggesting transactions outside the "Standard of Care" under this

policy.

Strategy No. 4
The EDC will utilize a general investment strategy designed to address the unique
characteristics of specific fund-types (detailed strategies are presented in Attachment A):

A. Investment strategies for operating funds and pooled funds containing operating funds
have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with
adequate investment liquidity. The secondary objective is to create a portfolio which
will experience minimal volatility during economic cycles.

B. Investment strategies for reserve funds shall have as the primary objective the ability
to generate a dependable revenue stream to the appropriate reserve fund.

C. Investment strategies for special projects and capital projects funds will have as their
primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with adequate
investment liquidity.

D. The investment maturity of bond proceeds (excluding reserve and debt service funds)
shall generally be limited to the anticipated cash flow requirement or the "temporary
period,” as defined by Federal tax law. During the temporary period, bond proceeds
may be invested at an unrestricted yield. After the expiration of the temporary period,
bond proceeds subject to yield restriction shall be invested considering the anticipated
cash flow requirements of the funds and market conditions to achieve compliance with
the applicable regulations.

Strategy No. 5

The EDC generally intends to hold all of its securities until they mature and will accomplish
this by maintaining sufficient liquidity in its portfolio so that it does not need to sell a security
early. Should it become necessary to sell a security prior to maturity, where the sale
proceeds are less than the current book value, the prior written consent of the EDC
Executive Director, or the City Manager must be obtained. Securities may be sold prior to
maturity by the Director of Finance at or above their book value at any time, without the
consent of the City Manager.

Strategy No. 6

All demand deposits of the EDC will be concentrated with one central depository, so long
as, the FDIC insurance limits are not exceeded. The City’s depository procedure will
maximize the EDC's ability to pool cash for investment purposes, and provide more
manageable banking relationships. In addition, depositories not holding demand deposits
of the EDC may be eligible to bid on EDC investments.

Strategy No. 7

This policy shall further seek to maintain good depository bank relationships while
minimizing the cost of banking services. The City will seek to maintain a depository
contract which will be managed to a level that minimizes the cost of the banking
relationship to the EDC, while allowing the EDC to earn an appropriate return on idle
demand deposits.




VI.

133

Strategy No. 8

A single pooled fund group of EDC funds, as defined in this policy, may be utilized at the
discretion of the Investment Officer. However, eamnings from investments will be allocated
on a pro-rata cash basis to the individual funds and used in a manner that will best service
the interests of the EDC.

Strategy No. 9

Procedures shall be established and implemented in order to maximize investable cash
by decreasing the time between the actual collection and the deposit of receipts, and by
the controlling of disbursements.

FINANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE

A.

Members — There is hereby created a Finance Audit Committee consisting of the
Mayor, two members of the City Council and two citizens appointed_by the City
Council. The Mayor will be a permanent member of the Committee. The other four
members of the Committee will be appointed by the City Council to serve a two-year
term and shall not exceed two successive terms. The Mayor and the two members of
the City Council shall be voting members of the Committee. The Community
Representative members shall be non-voting members of the Committee.

Scope — The Finance Audit Committee shall meet at least once per calendar quarter
to determine general strategies and to monitor results. Included in its deliberations
will be such topics as: economic outlook, portfolio diversification, maturity structure,
potential risk to the EDC'’s funds, authorized brokers and dealers, and the target rate-
of--return on the investment portfolio.

Procedures — The Finance Audit Committee shall provide minutes of its meetings. Any
two members of the Finance Audit Committee may request a special meeting and a
majority of the voting members shall constitute a quorum. The Finance Audit
Committee shall abide by the Rules of Procedure and Policies as set forth in
Resolution 09-05-01-11, as amended, and the Charter of the City of Corinth.

RESPONSIBILITY AND STANDARD OF CARE

A.

The responsibility for the daily operation and management of the EDC’s investments
shall be outlined within this section.

1. Delegation of Authority - Management responsibility for the investment program is
hereby delegated to the Director of Finance, who shall be authorized to deposit,
withdraw, invest, transfer or manage the funds of the City and shall establish
written procedures for the operation of the investment program, consistent with this
policy. Such procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to other
persons responsible for investment transactions. All persons involved in
investment activities will be referred to in this policy as “Investment Officers.” No
persons may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the
terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Director of Finance.

2. The Director of Finance shall assume responsibility for all transactions undertaken
and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate
Investment Officials. The system of controls shall be designed to provide
reasonable assurance that ensures the assets of the City are protected from loss,
theft or misuse. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:



134

a. The cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and,

b. The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

3. The Director of Finance shall be designated as the primary Investment Officer for
the City and shall be responsible for investment decisions and activities under the
direction of the City Manager. The Director of Finance may delegate any phase
of the investment program to a secondary Investment Officer. Both the Director
of Finance and the designated secondary Investment Officer are responsible for
daily investment decisions and activities. However, ultimate responsibility for
investment decisions will rest with the Director of Finance.

B. Prudence - The standard of prudence to be applied by the Investment Officer shall be
the "prudent investor" rule, which states, "investments shall be made with judgment
and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person of prudence, discretion and
intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital and the
probable income to be derived.” In determining whether the Investment Officer has
exercised prudence with respect to an investment decision, the determination shall be
made taking into consideration the following:

1. The investment of all funds over which the Investment Officer had responsibility
rather than a consideration as to the prudence of a single investment; and

2. The investment decision was consistent with the written investment policy and
procedures of the EDC.

C. Due Diligence - The Director of Finance, designated secondary Investment Officer,
Mayor, City Council, City Manager, other Finance employees and the citizen
committee members acting in accordance with written policies and procedures and
exercising due diligence, shall not be held personally responsible for a specific
security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided that these deviations are
reported in a timely manner and that appropriate action is taken to control adverse
developments.

D. Ethical Standards and Conflicts of Interest

1. All EDC Investment Officers having a direct or indirect role in the investment of
EDC funds shall act as custodians of the public trust avoiding any transaction
which might involve a conflict of interest, the appearance of a conflict of interest,
or any activity which might otherwise discourage public confidence. Officers and
employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business
activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or
which could impair the ability to make impartial investment decisions.

2. An Investment Officer who has a personal business relationship with the
depository bank or with any entity seeking to sell an investment to the EDC shall
file a statement disclosing that personal business interest.

3. An Investment Officer has a personal business relationship with a business
organization if:



135

a. The Investment Officer or person related to the Investment Officer by the
second degree of affinity or consanguinity owns 10% or more of the voting
stock or shares of the business organization or owns $5,000 or more of the fair
market value of the business organization;

b. Funds received by the Investment Officer or person related to the investment
officer by the second degree of affinity or consanguinity from the business
organization exceed 10% of the Investment Officer’s gross income for the prior
year; or

c. The Investment Officer or person related to the Investment Officer by the
second degree of affinity or consanguinity has acquired from the business
organization during the prior year investments with a book value of $2,500 or
more for the personal account of the Investment Officer.

d. An Investment Officer who is related within the second degree of affinity or
consanguinity to an individual seeking to sell an investment to the EDC shall
file a statement disclosing that relationship. A statement required under this
subsection must be filed with the Texas Ethics Commission and the City
Council.

E. Training - The City shall provide periodic training in investments for the investment

personnel through courses and seminars offered by professional organizations and
associations in order to ensure the quality and capability of the EDC’s investment
personnel making investment decisions in compliance with Public Funds Investment
Act (PFIA). The Investment Officers and Finance Audit Committee members shall
attend at least one training session containing at least 10 hours of instruction relating
to the officer's responsibility under the PFIA within 12 months after assuming duties,
and thereafter shall attend at least 8 hours of additional investment training in
subsequent two-year periods which begin on the first day of the fiscal year and consist
of the two consecutive fiscal years after that date. The Government Finance Officers
Association of Texas, the Government Treasurers Organization of Texas, the Texas
Municipal League, or the North Central Texas Council of Governments are approved
as independent training sources by the City Council.

VIl.  AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

A.

B.

Generally - Safety of principal is the primary objective in investing public funds and
can be accomplished by limiting credit risk and interest rate risk. Credit risk is the risk
associated with the failure of a security issuer or backer to pay back principal and
interest on a timely basis. Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a portfolio will
decline due to an increase in the general level of interest rates. In order to provide for
safety of principal as the EDC’s primary objective, only certain investments are
authorized as acceptable investments for the EDC. The following list of authorized
investments for the EDC intentionally excludes some investments authorized by state
law. These restrictions are intended to limit possible risk and provide the maximum
measure of safety to EDC funds. In the event an authorized investment loses its
required minimum credit rating, all prudent measures will be taken to liquidate said
investment. Additionally, the EDC is not required to liquidate investments that were
authorized at the time of purchase.

Authorized and Acceptable Investments - The authorized list of investment
instruments is as follows:




136

1. Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, or any
obligation fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), excluding mortgage-backed securities.

2. Direct obligations of the State of Texas, or its agencies and instrumentalities,
other obligations, the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally
guaranteed or insured by, or backed by the full faith and credit of, the State of
Texas or the United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities,
excluding mortgage-related securities.

C. Certificates of Deposit — A certificate of deposit issued by a depository institution that
has its main office or branch office in this state, and is secured in accordance with the
specific collateralization requirements contained in section Xl, B of this policy. -In
addition, an investment in "bundled" or "shared" CDs made in accordance with the
following conditions is permitted:

1. The funds are invested through a broker that has its main office or a branch office
in this state selected from a list adopted by the City as required by Section
2256.025; or through a depository institution that has its main office or a branch
office in this state and that is selected by the City;

2. The selected broker or depository institution arranges for the deposit of the funds
in certificates of deposit in one or more federally insured depository institutions,
wherever located, for the account of the City.

3. The full amount of the principal and accrued interest of each of the CD is insured
by the United States or an instrumentality of the United States;

4. The City appoints the depository institution, a clearing broker-dealer registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission and operating pursuant to SEC
Rule 15c3-3, or an entity described in the Public Funds Collateral Act, Section
2257.041(d), as custodian for the City with respect to those CDs issued for the
City's account.

D. Eligible Local Government Investment Pools - AAA-rated public funds investment
pools, with a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less, individually approved by
formal Council resolution, which invest in instruments and follow practices allowed by
the current law as defined in Section 2256.016 of the Texas Government Code. The
pool must be continuously rated no lower than AAA or AAA-m or at an equivalent rating
by at least one nationally recognized rating service. A public funds investment pool
created to function as a money market mutual fund must mark to market daily and,
stabilize at a $1 net asset value.

E. Repurchase Agreements - Fully collateralized repurchase agreements having a
defined termination date, placed through a primary government securities dealer or a
financial institution doing business in the State of Texas, and fully secured by cash
and obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities. This
collateral must be pledged to the EDC and held in safekeeping with a third-party
custodian approved by the City. All collateral must be maintained at a market value of
no less than the principal amount of the outstanding funds disbursed. All transactions
shall be governed by signed Security Industry and Financial Markets Association
(SIFMA) Master Repurchase Agreement. Repurchase agreements must also be
collateralized in accordance with State law as described in Section XI of this policy.
Authorized under this section includes flexible repurchase agreements which may be




137

used for specific investment of bond proceeds but shall not include reverse purchase
agreements.

F. Bankers’ Acceptances, and Commercial Paper (LIMITED USE) - These investments
are authorized for the EDC to the extent that they are contained in the portfolios of
approved public funds investment pools or money market funds in which the EDC
invests.

G. AAA-rated SEC-Reqgulated 2a7 No-Load Money Market Mutual Funds - An SEC-
registered, no load money market mutual fund which has a dollar weighted average
stated maturity of 60 days or less whose assets consist exclusively of the assets
described in section VII.A and whose investment objectives includes the maintenance
of a stable net asset value of $1 for each share: furthermore, it provides the EDC with
a prospectus and other information required by the SEC Act of 1934 or the Investment
Advisor Act of 1940 and which provides the EDC with a prospectus and other
information required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 USC. Section 78a et.
Seq.) & the Investment Company Act of 1990 (15 USC Section 80a-1 et. Seq.).

H. Unauthorized Securities - State law specifically prohibits investment in the following
securities:

1. An obligation whose payment represents the coupon payments on the outstanding
principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed security and pays no
principal.

2. Anobligation whose payment represents the principal stream of cash flow from the
underlying mortgage-backed security and bears no interest.

3. Collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated final maturity date of greater
than 10 years.

4. Collateralized mortgage obligations, the interest rate of which is determined by an
index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index.

VIll.  DIVERSIFICATION

A. Generally - Diversification of investment instruments shall be utilized to avoid incurring
unreasonable risks resulting from over-concentration of investments in a specific
maturity, a specific issue, or a specific class of securities. With the exception of U.S.
Government securities (debt obligations issued by the U. S. Government, its agencies,
or instrumentalities) as authorized in this policy, and authorized local government
investment pools, no more than forty percent (40%) of the total investment portfolio
will be invested in any one security type or with a single financial institution.
Diversification of the portfolio considers diversification by maturity dates and
diversification by investment instrument.

B. Diversification by Maturities - The longer the maturity of investments, the greater their
price volatility. Therefore, it is the EDC’s policy to concentrate its investment portfolio
in shorter-term securities in order to limit principal risks caused by change in interest
rates. The EDC will attempt to match its investments with anticipated cash flow
requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow (including the anticipated cash
flow requirements of bond proceeds within the temporary period), the EDC will not
directly invest in securities maturing more than two (2) years from the date of purchase.
However, the above described obligations, certificates, or agreements may be




138

collateralized using longer date instruments. The EDC shall diversify the use of
investment instruments to avoid incurring unreasonable risks inherent in over-
investing in specific instruments, individual financial institutions or maturities. Maturity
scheduling shall be managed by the Investment Officer so that maturities of
investments shall be timed to coincide with projected cash flow needs.

The entire EDC portfolio, or single pooled fund group if utilized, shall maintain a
maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated maturity date, of less
than two hundred seventy (270) days. Investment maturities for debt service interest
and sinking funds and/or other types of reserve funds, whose use is never anticipated,
shall maintain a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated
maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days.

C. Diversification by Investment Instrument - Diversification by investment instrument
shall not exceed the following guidelines for each type of instrument:

Maximum %

of Portfolio
U.S. Treasury Obligations 100%
U.S. Government Agency Securities and Instrumentalities 100%
Authorized Local Government Investment Pool 75% 100%
Local Government Obligations 10%
Fully Insured Certificates of Deposit 75%
Fully Collateralized Repurchase Agreements 25%
SEC-Regulated No-Load Money Market Mutual Fund 100%
U.S. Treasury & Agency Callables 30%

SECURITY SWAPS

Security swaps may be considered as an investment option for the EDC. A swap out of
one instrument into another is acceptable to increase yield, realign for disbursement dates,
extend or shorten maturity dates and improve market sector diversification. Swaps may
be initiated by brokers/dealers who are on the City’s approved list. A horizon analysis is
required for each swap proving benefit to the EDC before the trade decision is made,
which will accompany the investment file for record keeping.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS

A. The Director of Finance will maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to provide
investment services to the City. In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved
broker/dealers authorized to provide investment services in the State of Texas. These
will include financial institutions that qualify under Securities & Exchange Commission
Rule 15-C3-1 (uniform net capital rule). No public deposit shall be made except in a
qualified public depository as established by state laws.

B. Allfinancial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified bidders for
investment transactions must supply the Director of Finance with the following, as
appropriate: audited financial statements, proof of Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority certification, trading resolution, proof of State registration, completed
broker/dealer questionnaire and certification of having read the EDC’s investment

policy.

C. The Finance Audit Committee shall be responsible for adopting the list of brokers and
dealers of government securities. Their selection shall be among only primary



139

government securities dealers that report directly to the New York Federal Reserve
Bank, unless a comprehensive credit and capitalization analysis reveals that other
firms are adequately financed to conduct public business. The Finance Audit
Committee shall base its evaluation of security dealers and financial institutions upon:

1. Financial conditions, strength and capability to fulfill commitments;
2. Overall reputation with other dealers or investors;

3. Regulatory status of the dealer;

4. Background and expertise of the individual representatives.

. Investment Officers shall only conduct business with securities dealers approved by
the Finance Audit Committee and will not purchase investments from any financial
organization until the organization’s registered principal has executed a written
instrument stating that he or she has thoroughly reviewed the EDC'’s investment policy
and acknowledges that reasonable procedures and controls have been implemented
to preclude imprudent investment activities arising out of transactions between the
organization and the EDC, except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on
an analysis of the makeup of the EDC'’s entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of
subjective investment standards.

. To guard against default possibilities under these conditions, and to assure
diversification of bidders, business with any one issuer, or investment broker, should
be limited to forty percent (40%) of the total portfolio at any point in time. In this way,
bankruptcy, receivership or legal action would not immobilize the EDC'’s ability to meet
payroll or other expenses.

All investments (governments or bank C.D.’s) will be solicited on a competitive basis
with at least three (3) institutions. The Finance Audit Committee can approve
exceptions on a case by case basis or on a general basis in the form of guidelines.
These guidelines shall take into consideration the investment type maturity date,
amount, and potential disruptiveness to the EDC's investment strategy. The
investment will be made with the broker/dealer offering the best yield/quality to the
EDC. The guotes may be accepted orally, in writing, electronically, or any combination
of these methods.

. An annual review of the financial condition and registrations of qualified financial
organizations will be conducted by the Director of Finance.

. A current audited financial statement is required to be on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the EDC invests.

If the City has contracted with a Registered Investment Advisor for the management
of its funds, the advisor shall be responsible for performing due diligence on and
maintaining a list of broker/dealers with which it shall transact business on behalf of
the EDC. The advisor shall determine selection criteria and shall annually present a
list of its authorized broker/dealers to the City for review and likewise shall execute the
aforementioned written instrument stating that the advisor has reviewed the EDC's
investment policy and has implemented reasonable procedures and controls in an
effort to preclude imprudent investment activities with the EDC. The advisor shall
obtain and document competitive bids and offers on all transactions and present these
to the City as part of its standard trade documentation.



XI.

XII.

XIIl.

XIV.

140

J. ltis the policy of the City that all security transactions entered into with the EDC shall
be conducted on a “Delivery-versus-Payment” basis through the Federal Reserve
System. By doing this, EDC funds are not released until the City has received, through
the Federal Reserve wire, the securities purchased. The City shall authorize the
release of funds only after receiving notification from the safekeeping bank that a
purchased security has been received in the safekeeping account of the EDC. The
notification may be oral, but shall be confirmed in writing.

SAFEKEEPING AND COLLATERALIZATION

A. Safekeeping - All securities owned by the EDC shall be held by a third-party
safekeeping agent selected by the EDC’s Investment Officer. Bank deposits will be
held in the EDC’s name in the bank’s trust department, in a Federal Reserve Bank
account in the EDC’s name, or third-party financial institutions doing business in the
state of Texas, in accordance with state law. Original safekeeping receipts shall be
obtained and held by the City and the EDC. The City and the EDC shall contract with
a bank or banks for the safekeeping of securities either owned by the EDC as part of
its investment portfolio or held as collateral to secure time deposits, if collateralized
time deposits are specifically authorized by the board.

B. Collateralized Deposits - Consistent with the requirements of State law, the EDC
requires all bank deposits to be federally insured. If the board and the City do agree
that collateralized accounts are acceptable in specific situations the provisions above
may be amended for EDC accounts.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Investment Officer shall establish a system of written internal controls, which shall be
reviewed annually by independent auditors. The controls shall be designed to prevent
loss of public funds due to fraud, error, misrepresentation, unanticipated market changes,
or imprudent actions. The internal controls are to be reviewed annually in conjunction with
an external independent audit. This review will provide assurance of compliance with
policies and procedures as specified by this policy. The City, in conjunction with its annual
financial audit, shall perform a compliance audit of management controls and adherence
to the EDC'’s established investment policy.

PERFORMANCE

The EDC's investment portfolio shall be designed to obtain a market rate-of-return on
investments consistent with risk constraints and cash flow requirements of the EDC. This
investment policy establishes "weighted average yield to maturity” as the standard
portfolio performance measurement.

REPORTING

A. Quarterly - The Director of Finance shall prepare and submit a signed quarterly
investment report to the Economic Development Board and the Finance Audit
Committee that summarizes current market conditions, economic developments, and
anticipated investment conditions. The report shall summarize investment strategies
employed in the most recent quarter and describe the portfolio in terms of investment
securities, maturities, risk characteristics, and shall explain the total investment return
for the quarter. The City shall also monitor the credit ratings on securities that require
minimum ratings. This may be accomplished through staff research, or with the



B.

141

assistance of broker-dealers, investment advisors, banks or safekeeping agents.

Annual Report - Within 180 days of the end of the fiscal year, the Director of Finance
shall present an annual report on the investment program and investment activity. This
report may be presented as a component of the fourth quarter report to the Economic
Development Board, City Manager and the City Council. The quarterly reports
prepared by the Director of Finance shall be formally reviewed at least annually by an
independent auditor, and the result of the review shall be reported to the City Council
by that auditor.

Methods - The quarterly and annual investment reports shall include a succinct
management summary that provides a clear picture of the status of the current
investment portfolio and transactions made over the past quarter. This management
summary will be prepared in a manner which will allow the EDC to ascertain whether
investment activities during the reporting period have conformed to the investment
policy. The report will be prepared in compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The report will include the following:

1. Alisting of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period. This list will
include the name of the fund or pooled group fund for which each individual
investment was acquired;

2. Unrealized gains or losses resulting from appreciation or depreciation by listing the
beginning and ending book and market value of securities for the period. Market
values shall be obtained from financial institutions or portfolio reporting services
independent from the broker/dealer from which the security was purchased;

3. Additions and changes to the market value during the period;

4. Fully accrued interest for the reporting period;

5. Average weighted yield to maturity of portfolio on entity investments as compared
to applicable benchmarks;

6. Listing of investments by maturity date;

7. The percentage of the total portfolio which each type of investment represents;
and

8. Statement of compliance of the EDC's investment portfolio with State Law and the
investment strategy and policy approved by the City Council.

9. Market yield benchmark comparison of the average 90-day U. S. Treasury Bill
auction yield during the reporting period.

10. The guidelines of retaining records for seven years as recommended in the Texas
State Library Municipal Records Manual should be followed. The Director of
Finance shall oversee the filing and/or storing of investment records.



XV.

142

INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT

The EDC'’s investment policy shall be reviewed by the Economic Development Board and
formally adopted and amended by resolution by the City Council. The City’s written
policies and procedures for investments are subject to review not less than annually to
stay current with changing laws, regulations and needs of the City. The City Council, not
less than annually, shall adopt a written instrument stating that it has reviewed the
investment policy and investment strategies and that the written instrument so adopted
shall record any changes made to either the policy or strategies.



143

Attachment A

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS
Economic Development Corporation
Investment Strategy Statement

Operating Funds

1.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Operating
Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments shall be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, by managing the weighted
average days to maturity for the Operating Fund'’s portfolio to less than 270 days and
restricting the maximum allowable maturity to two years, the price volatility of the
overall portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - Securities with active and efficient secondary markets are necessary in
the event of an unanticipated cash flow requirement. Historical market “spreads”
between the bid and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of
a percentage point will define an efficient secondary market.

Liquidity - The Operating Fund requires the greatest short-term liquidity of any of the
Fund types. Short-term investment pools and money market mutual funds will provide
daily liquidity and may be utilized as a competitive yield alternative to fixed maturity
investments.

Diversification - Investment maturities should be staggered throughout the budget
cycle to provide cash flow based on the anticipated operating needs of the EDC.
Market cycle risk will be reduced by diversifying the appropriate maturity structure out
through two years.

Yield - Attaining a competitive market yield for comparable security-types and portfolio
restrictions is the desired objective. The yield of an equally weighted, rolling three-
month treasury-bill portfolio will be the minimum yield objective.

Reserve Funds

1.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Debt Service
Reserve Funds. Bond resolution and loan documentation constraints and insurance
company restrictions may create specific considerations in addition to the investment

policy.

Safety of Principal - All investments shall be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, managing Debt Service
Reserve Fund maturities to not exceed the call provisions of the borrowing reduces
the investment’'s market risk if the EDC’s debt is redeemed and the Reserve Fund
liquidated. The fund shall maintain a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity,
based on the stated maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days. No
stated final investment maturity shall exceed the shorter of the final maturity of the
borrowing or two years. Annual mark-to-market requirements or specific maturity and
average life limitations within the borrowing’s documentation will influence the
attractiveness of market risk and reduce the opportunity for maturity extension.



3.

1.

2.

3.

4.

144

Marketability - Securities with less active and efficient secondary markets are
acceptable for Debt Service Reserve Funds.

Liquidity - Debt Service Reserve Funds have no anticipated expenditures. The Funds
are deposited to provide annual debt service payment protection to the City’s debt
holders. The funds are “returned” to the EDC at the final debt service payment. Market
conditions and arbitrage regulation compliance determine the advantage of security
diversification and liquidity. Generally, if investment rates exceed the cost of
borrowing, the EDC is best served by locking in investment maturities and reducing
liquidity. If the borrowing cost cannot be exceeded, then concurrent market conditions
will determine the attractiveness of locking in maturities or investing shorter and
anticipating future increased yields.

Diversification - Market conditions and the arbitrage regulations influence the
attractiveness of staggering the maturity of fixed rate investments for Debt Service
Reserve Funds. At no time shall the final debt service payment date of a bond issue,
if any, be exceeded in an attempt to bolster yield.

Yield - Achieving a positive spread to the applicable borrowing cost is the desired
objective. Debt Service Reserve Fund portfolio management shall at all times operate
within the limits of the investment policy’s risk constraints.

Bond Funds

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the Investment Policy is suitable for Bond Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments will be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, by managing Bond Funds
to not exceed the shorter of two years or the anticipated expenditure schedule and
maintaining a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated
maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days the market risk of the
overall portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - Securities with active and efficient secondary markets are necessary in
the event of an unanticipated cash flow requirement. Historical market “spreads”
between the bid and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of
a percentage point will define an efficient secondary market.

Liquidity - Bond Funds used for capital improvements programs have reasonably
predictable draw down schedules. Therefore investment maturities should generally
follow the anticipated cash flow requirements. Investment pools and money market
mutual funds will provide readily available funds generally equal to one month’s
anticipated cash flow needs, or a competitive yield alternative for short term fixed
maturity investments. A singular repurchase agreement may be utilized if
disbursements are allowed in the amount necessary to satisfy any expenditure
request. This investment structure is commonly referred to as a flexible repurchase
agreement.

Diversification - Market conditions and arbitrage regulations influence the
attractiveness of staggering the maturity of fixed rate investments for construction,
loan and bond proceeds. Generally, when investment rates exceed the applicable
cost of borrowing, the EDC is best served by locking in most investments. If the cost
of borrowing cannot be exceeded, then concurrent market conditions will determine
the attractiveness of diversifying maturities or investing in shorter and larger amounts.



145

At no time shall the anticipated expenditure schedule be exceeded in an attempt to
bolster yield.

Yield - Achieving a positive spread to the cost of borrowing is the desired objective,
within the limits of the investment policy’s risk constraints. The yield of an equally
weighted, rolling six-month treasury-bill portfolio will be the minimum yield objective
for non-borrowed funds.



146

Attachment B

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS
Investment Policy

[SAMPLE]
TEXAS PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT ACT
CERTIFICATION BY BUSINESS ORGANIZATION

This certification is executed on behalf of the City of Corinth, Texas (the "City") and
(the Business Organization), pursuant to the Public
Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code (the "Act”) in connection with
investment transactions conducted between the City and the Business Organization.

The undersigned Qualified Representative of the Business Organization hereby certifies on behalf
of the Business Organization that:

1. The undersigned is a Qualified Representative of the Business Organization offering to
enter an investment transaction with the Investor as such terms are used in the Public
Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code; and

2. The Qualified Representative of the Business Organization has received and reviewed the
investment policy furnished by the City; and

3. The Qualified Representative of the Business Organization has implemented reasonable
procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions conducted
between the Business Organization and the City that are not authorized by the City's
investment policy, except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on an analysis
of the makeup of the City's entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective
investment standards.

Qualified Representative of Business Organization

Firm:

Signature

Name:

Title:

Date:




147

CONSENT ITEM 5.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021

Title: Fire Control, Prevention & Emergency Services District Investment Policy
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director

Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: N/A

City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM

Consider and act on a resolution reviewing and approving the Investment Policy for funds for the Fire Control,
Prevention & Emergency Services District; and providing an effective date.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

In accordance with Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code, the city is required
to annually adopt a formal written Investment Policy for the investment of public funds. The policy establishes
investment parameters and guidelines for the investment program in order to achieve the goals of safety, liquidity,
diversification, rate-of-return, and public trust, and designates the authorized investment officer responsible for the
daily investment activity by the City.

As part of the annual process, staff reviews the policy and may recommend revisions to the existing policy, if
needed. Recommended revision to the Investment policy is listed below.

1. Creation of the Fire Control, Prevention & Emergency Services District Policy
2. Section VIII Diversification, (C) Diversification by Investment Instrument - recommend increasing the maximum
percent (%) of portfolio from 50% to 75% for the Authorized Local Government Investment Pool.

RECOMMENDATION

The Finance Audit Committee reviewed the Investment Policy on Thursday, December 17, 2020 and recommends
approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Fire District Investment Policy
Investment Policy




148

RESOLUTION NO._21-01-28-

A RESOLUTION REVIEWING AND ADOPTING THE INVESTMENT
POLICY FOR FUNDS FOR THE CORINTH FIRE CONTROL,
PREVENTION AND EMERGENCY SERVICESDISTRICT.

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2256.005€ of Chapter 2256 of the Texas
Government Code, the Board of Directors of the Corinth Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency
Services Digtrict have reviewed and approved the Investment Policy attached hereto as Exhibit A,
which contain proposed changes, for compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, TEX.
GOV’ T CODE ch. 2256, (“Chapter 2256"); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Investment Policy and proposed changes
for compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, TEX. GOV’ T CODE ch. 2256;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH HEREBY
RESOLVES:

SECTION 1. That the City Council has reviewed the attached Corinth Fire Control, Prevention
and Emergency Services District Investment Policy, which contain the investment strategies and
policies and hereby approves the Investment Policy.

SECTION 2. That the Director of Finance is hereby designated as the City’ s and the Corinth Fire
Control, Prevention and Emergency Services District’s primary investment officer and is hereby
authorized to perform the functions required of the primary investment officer under the
Investment Policy and Chapter 2256.

SECTION 3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in force when the provisions of this
resolution became effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms or provisons
contained in this resolution are hereby repeal ed to the extent of any such conflict only.

SECTION 4. That thisresolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED thisthe 28th day of January, 2021.

Bill Heidemann, Mayor

ATTEST:

LanaWylie, City Secretary

APPROVED ASTO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Patricia Adams, City Attorney



149

EXHIBIT A- INVESTMENT POLICY
Pages 1 through 20



150

CORINTH, TEXAS
CORINTH FIRE CONTROL, PREVENTION AND
EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICT
INVESTMENT POLICY

PREFACE

It is the policy of the City of Corinth (the “City”) and the Corinth Fire Control, Prevention and
Emergency Services District (the "DISTRICT") that after allowing for the anticipated cash flow
requirements and giving due consideration to the safety and risks of investments, all available
funds shall be invested in conformance with these legal and administrative guidelines to obtain a
market rate-of-return.

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management. An active
cash management and investment policy will be pursued to take advantage of investment interest
as a viable and material source of revenue for DISTRICT funds. The DISTRICT's portfolio shall
be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and shall be invested in
conformance with State and Federal Regulations, applicable Bond Resolution requirements, and
adopted investment policy. The DISTRICT will invest public funds in a manner which will provide
the maximum security and a market rate-of-return while meeting the daily cash flow demands of
the DISTRICT.

Pursuant to Subchapter E of Chapter 363 of the Local Government Code, the DISTRICT
designates the City of Corinth to invest it's funds in accordance with the provisions and
requirements of this policy and 8§ 363.206(c) of the Texas Local Gov't Code.



151

PURPOSE

The purpose of this investment policy (the “policy”) is to set forth specific investment policy
and strategy guidelines for the DISTRICT in order to achieve the goals of safety, liquidity,
rate-of-return, and public trust for all investment activities.

SCOPE

The investment policy shall govern the investment of all financial assets considered to be
part of the DISTRICT and includes the following separately invested funds or fund types:
Operating, Reserve, and Bond Funds, although the DISTRICT has only operating funds.
This policy does not include funds governed by approved trust agreements, or assets
administered for the benefit of the DISTRICT by outside agencies under retirement or
deferred compensation programs. The City shall and will maintain responsibility for these
funds to the extent required by: Federal and State law; the City Charter; and donor
stipulations.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

Funds of the DISTRICT shall be invested in accordance with all applicable Texas statutes,
this policy and any other approved, written administrative procedures. The five objectives
of the DISTRICT’s investment activities shall be as follows (in the order of priority):

A. Safety — Preservation and safety of Principal. Safety of principal invested is the
foremost objective in the investment decisions of the DISTRICT. Each investment
transaction shall seek to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The
risk of loss shall be controlled by investing only in authorized securities as defined in
this policy, by qualifying the financial institutions with which the DISTRICT will transact,
and by portfolio diversification. Safety is defined as the undiminished return of the
principal on the DISTRICT's investments

B. Liquidity -The investment portfolio shall be managed to maintain liquidity to ensure that
funds will be available to meet the DISTRICT's cash flow requirements and by
investing in securities with active secondary markets. Investments shall be structured
in such a manner as to provide liquidity necessary to pay obligations as they become
due. A security may be liquidated prior to its stated maturity to meet unanticipated
cash requirements or to otherwise favorably adjust the DISTRICT's portfolio.

C. Diversification - Investment maturities shall be staggered throughout the budget cycle
to provide cash flow based on the anticipated needs of the DISTRICT. Diversifying
the appropriate maturity structure will reduce market cycle risk.

D. Market Rate-of-Return (Yield) - The DISTRICT’s investment portfolio shall be
designed to optimize a market rate-of-return on investments consistent with risk
constraints and cash flow requirements of the portfolio. The investment portfolio shall
be managed in a manner which seeks to attain a market rate-of-return throughout
budgetary and economic cycles. The DISTRICT will not attempt to consistently attain
an unrealistic above market rate-of-return as this objective will subject the overall
portfolio to greater risk. Therefore, the DISTRICT's rate-of-return objective is
secondary to those of safety and liquidity. Rate-of-return (yield) is defined as the
annual income returned on an investment, expressed as a percentage.




152

E. Public Trust - The Investment Officer(s) shall avoid any transactions that might impair
public confidence in the DISTRICT's ability to govern effectively. The governing body
recognizes that in diversifying the portfolio, occasional measured losses due to market
volatility are inevitable, and must be considered within the context of the overall
portfolio’'s investment return, provided that adequate diversification has been
implemented. The prudence of the investment decision shall be measured in
accordance with the tests set forth in Section 2256.006(b) of the Act.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The City maintains a comprehensive and proactive cash management program which is
designed to monitor and control all DISTRICT funds to ensure maximum utilization and
yield a market rate-of-return. The basic and underlying strategy of this program is that all
of the DISTRICT's funds are earning interest. It is the responsibility and obligation of the
City to maintain a flexible approach and be prepared to modify the investment strategy as
market conditions dictate. The investment strategy described is predicated on conditions
as they now exist and are subject to change. The investment strategy emphasizes low
credit risk, diversification, and the management of maturities. The strategy also considers
the expertise and time constraints of the Investment Officers. The allowable investments
as defined in Section VII of this policy reflect the avoidance of credit risk. Diversification
refers to dividing investments among a variety of securities offering independent returns.
This strategy uses local government investment pools to achieve diversification. The
active management of maturities refers to structuring the maturity dates of the direct
investments so that, while funds are initially invested for a longer period of time, some
investments mature as cash needs require. The strategies for the DISTRICT’s investment
activities shall be as follows:

Strategy No. 1

Diversifying the DISTRICT's investment opportunities through the use of local government
investment pools and money market mutual funds as authorized by the City Council. An
investment pool is a professionally managed portfolio of shared assets created to invest
public funds jointly on behalf of the governmental entities that participate in the pool and
whose investment objectives in order of priority match those objectives of the DISTRICT.
Fund withdrawals are usually available from investment pools on a same-day basis,
meaning the pools have a high degree of liquidity. Because of the size and expertise of
their staff, investment pools are able to prudently invest in a variety of the investment types
allowed by state law. In this manner, investment pools achieve desired diversification. The
strategy of the DISTRICT calls for the use of investment pools as a primary source of
diversification and a supplemental source of liquidity. Funds that may be needed on a
short-term basis but are in excess of the amount maintained at the depository bank are
available for deposit in investment pools.

Strategy No. 2
Building a ladder of authorized securities with staggered maturities for all or part of the
longer-term investable funds. The benefits of this ladder approach include the following:




153

A. ltis straight-forward and easily understood;

B. It will assure the DISTRICT that it will capture a reasonable portion of the yield curve;
and,

C. It provides predictable cash flow with scheduled maturities and reinvestment
opportunities.

Strategy No. 3

Utilizing the services of a Professional Investment Advisor in order to maximize investment
earnings and realize market opportunities when they become available. Other
responsibilities of the Investment Advisor include, but are not limited to broker compliance,
security selection, competitive bidding, investment reporting, and security documentation.
The Investment Advisor must be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) under the Investment Advisor's Act of 1940 as well as with the Texas State
Securities Board and shall adhere to the spirit and philosophy of this policy and avoid
recommending or suggesting transactions outside the "Standard of Care" under this

policy.

Strategy No. 4
The DISTRICT will utilize a general investment strategy designed to address the unique
characteristics of specific fund-types (detailed strategies are presented in Attachment A):

A. Investment strategies for operating funds and pooled funds containing operating funds
have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with
adequate investment liquidity. The secondary objective is to create a portfolio which
will experience minimal volatility during economic cycles.

B. Investment strategies for reserve funds shall have as the primary objective the ability
to generate a dependable revenue stream to the appropriate reserve fund.

C. Investment strategies for special projects and capital projects funds will have as their
primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with adequate
investment liquidity.

D. The investment maturity of bond proceeds (excluding reserve and debt service funds)
shall generally be limited to the anticipated cash flow requirement or the "temporary
period,” as defined by Federal tax law. During the temporary period, bond proceeds
may be invested at an unrestricted yield. After the expiration of the temporary period,
bond proceeds subject to yield restriction shall be invested considering the anticipated
cash flow requirements of the funds and market conditions to achieve compliance with
the applicable regulations.

Strategy No. 5

The DISTRICT generally intends to hold all of its securities until they mature and will
accomplish this by maintaining sufficient liquidity in its portfolio so that it does not need to
sell a security early. Should it become necessary to sell a security prior to maturity, where
the sale proceeds are less than the current book value, the prior written consent of the
City Manager must be obtained. Securities may be sold prior to maturity by the Director of
Finance at or above their book value at any time, without the consent of the City Manager.




VI.

154

Strategy No. 6

All demand deposits of the DISTRICT will be concentrated with one central depository.
The City's depository procedure will maximize the DISTRICT's ability to pool cash for
investment purposes and provide more manageable banking relationships. In addition,
depositories not holding demand deposits of the DISTRICT may be eligible to bid on
DISTRICT investments.

Strategy No. 7

This policy shall further seek to maintain good depository bank relationships while
minimizing the cost of banking services. The City will seek to maintain a depository
contract which will be managed to a level that minimizes the cost of the banking
relationship to the DISTRICT, while allowing the DISTRICT to earn an appropriate return
on idle demand deposits.

Strategy No. 8

A single pooled fund group, as defined in this policy, may be utilized at the discretion of
the Investment Officer. However, earnings from investments will be allocated on a pro-
rata cash basis to the individual funds and used in a manner that will best service the
interests of the DISTRICT.

Strategy No. 9

Procedures shall be established and implemented in order to maximize investable cash
by decreasing the time between the actual collection and the deposit of receipts, and by
the controlling of disbursements.

FINANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE

A. Members - There is hereby created a Finance Audit Committee consisting of the
Mayor, two members of the City Council and two citizens appointed by the City
Council. The Mayor will be a permanent member of the Committee. The other four
members of the Committee will be appointed by the City Council to serve a two-year
term and shall not exceed two successive terms. The Mayor and the two members
of the City Council shall be voting members of the committee. The Community
Representative members shall be non-voting members of the Committee,

B. Scope - The Finance Audit Committee shall meet at least once per calendar quarter
to determine general strategies and to monitor results. Included in its deliberations
will be such topics as: economic outlook, portfolio diversification, maturity structure,
potential risk to the DISTRICT’s funds, authorized brokers and dealers, and the target
rate-of-return on the investment portfolio.

C. Procedures - The Finance Audit Committee shall provide minutes of its meetings. Any
two members of the Finance Audit Committee may request a special meeting, and a
majority of the voting members shall constitute a quorum. The Finance Audit
Committee shall abide by the Rules of Procedure and Policies as set forth in
Resolution 09-05-01-11, as amended, and the Charter of the City of Corinth.

RESPONSIBILITY AND STANDARD OF CARE

A. The responsibility for the daily operation and management of the DISTRICT's



B.

C.

155

investments shall be outlined within this section.

1. Delegation of Authority - Management responsibility for the investment program is
hereby delegated to the Director of Finance, who shall be authorized to deposit,
withdraw, invest, transfer or manage the funds of the DISTRICT and shall establish
written procedures for the operation of the investment program, consistent with this
policy. Such procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to other
persons responsible for investment transactions. All persons involved in
investment activities will be referred to in this policy as “Investment Officers.” No
persons may engage in investment transactions, except as provided under the
terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Director of Finance.

2. The Director of Finance shall assume responsibility for all transactions undertaken
and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate
Investment Officers. The system of controls shall be designed to provide
reasonable assurance that ensures the assets of the DISTRICT are protected from
loss, theft or misuse. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:

a. The cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and,

b. The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

3. The Director of Finance shall be designated as the primary Investment Officer for
the DISTRICT and shall be responsible for investment decisions and activities
under the direction of the City Manager. The Director of Finance may delegate any
phase of the investment program to a secondary Investment Officer. Both the
Director of Finance and the designated secondary Investment Officer are
responsible for daily investment decisions and activities. However, ultimate
responsibility for investment decisions will rest with the Director of Finance.

Prudence - The standard of prudence to be applied by the Investment Official shall be
the "prudent investor" rule, which states, "investments shall be made with judgment
and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person of prudence, discretion and
intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital and the
probable income to be derived.” In determining whether the Investment Officer has
exercised prudence with respect to an investment decision, the determination shall be
made taking into consideration the following:

1. The investment of all funds over which the Investment Officer had responsibility
rather than a consideration as to the prudence of a single investment; and

2. The investment decision was consistent with the written investment policy and
procedures of the DISTRICT.

Due Diligence - The Director of Finance, designated secondary Investment Officer,
Mayor, City Council, City Manager, other Finance employees and citizen committee
members acting in accordance with written policies and procedures and exercising
due diligence, shall not be held personally responsible for a specific security’s credit
risk or market price changes, provided that these deviations are reported in a timely



156

manner and that appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

D. Ethical Standards and Conflicts of Interest

1. Al DISTRICT Investment Officers having a direct or indirect role in the investment
of DISTRICT funds shall act as custodians of the public trust avoiding any
transaction which might involve a conflict of interest, the appearance of a conflict
of interest, or any activity which might otherwise discourage public confidence.
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from
personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the
investment program, or which could impair the ability to make impartial investment
decisions.

2. An Investment Officer who has a personal business relationship with the
depository bank or with any entity seeking to sell an investment to the DISTRICT
shall file a statement disclosing that personal business interest.

3. An Investment Officer has a personal business relationship with a business
organization if:

a. The Investment Officer or one related to the Investment Officer within the
second degree of affinity or consanguinity owns 10% or more of the voting
stock or shares of the business organization or owns $5,000 or more of the fair
market value of the business organization;

b. Funds received by the Investment Officer or one related to the Investment
Officer within the second degree of affinity or consanguinity from the business
organization exceed 10% of the Investment Official’s gross income for the prior
year; or

c. The Investment Officer or one related to the Investment Officer within the
second degree of affinity or consanguinity has acquired from the business
organization during the prior year investments with a book value of $2,500 or
more for the personal account of the Investment Officer.

d. An Investment Officer who is related within the second degree of affinity or
consanguinity to an individual seeking to sell an investment to the DISTRICT
shall file a statement disclosing that relationship. A statement required under
this subsection must be filed with the Texas Ethics Commission and the City
Council.

E. Training - The City shall provide periodic training in investments for the investment
personnel through courses and seminars offered by professional organizations and
associations in order to ensure the quality and capability of the DISTRICT'S
investment personnel making investment decisions in compliance with the Public
Funds Investment Act (PFIA). The Investment Officials and the Finance Audit
Committee members shall attend at least one training session containing at least 10
hours of instruction relating to the officer's responsibility under the PFIA within 12
months after assuming duties, and thereafter shall attend at least 8 hours of additional
investment training in subsequent two-year periods which begin on the first day of the
fiscal year and consist of the two consecutive fiscal years after that date. The



157

Government Finance Officers Association of Texas, the Government Treasurers
Organization of Texas, the Texas Municipal League, or the North Central Texas
Council of Governments are approved as independent training sources by the City
Council.

VIl.  AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

A. Generally - Safety of principal is the primary objective in investing public funds and
can be accomplished by limiting credit risk and interest rate risk. Credit risk is the risk
associated with the failure of a security issuer or backer to pay back principal and
interest on a timely basis. Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a portfolio will
decline due to an increase in the general level of interest rates. In order to provide for
safety of principal as the DISTRICT’s primary objective, only certain investments are
authorized as acceptable investments for the DISTRICT. The following list of
authorized investments for the DISTRICT intentionally excludes some investments
authorized by state law. These restrictions are intended to limit possible risk and
provide the maximum measure of safety to DISTRICT funds. In the event an
authorized investment loses its required minimum credit rating, all prudent measures
will be taken to liquidate said investment. Additionally, the DISTRICT is not required
to liquidate investments that were authorized at the time of purchase.

B. Authorized and Acceptable Investments - The authorized list of investment
instruments is as follows:

1. Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities or any
obligation fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), excluding mortgage-backed securities.

2. Direct obligations of the State of Texas, or its agencies and instrumentalities
Other obligations, the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally
guaranteed or insured by, or backed by the full faith and credit of, the State of
Texas or the United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities,
excluding mortgage-related securities.

C. Certificates of Deposit — A certificate of deposit issued by a depository institution that
has its main office or branch office in this state and is secured in accordance with the
specific collateralization requirements contained in section XI.B of this policy. In
addition, an investment in “bundled” or “shared” CDs made in accordance with the
following conditions is permitted:

1. The funds are invested through a broker that has its main office or a branch office
in this state selected from a list adopted by the City as required by Section
2256.025; or through a depository institution that has its main office or a branch
office in this state and that is selected by the City;

2. The selected broker or depository institution arranges for the deposit of the funds
in certificates of deposit in one or more federally insured depository institutions,
wherever located, for the account of the City.

3. The full amount of the principal and accrued interest of each of the CD is insured
by the United States or an instrumentality of the United States; and



158

4. The City appoints the depository institution, a clearing broker-dealer registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission and operating pursuant to SEC
Rule 15c3-3, or an entity described in the Public Funds Collateral Act, Section
2257.041(d), as custodian for the City with respect to those CDs issued for the
City's account.

. Eligible Local Government Investment Pools — AAA-rated public funds investment
pools, with a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less, individually approved by
formal Council resolution, which invest in instruments and follow practices allowed by
the current law as defined by Section 2256.016 of the Texas Government Code. The
pool must be continuously rated no lower than AAA or AAA-m or at an equivalent rating
by at least one nationally recognized rating service. A public funds investment pool
created to functions as a money market mutual fund must mark to market daily and,
stabilize at a $1 net asset value.

. Repurchase Agreements — Fully collateralized repurchase agreements having a
defined termination date, placed through a primary government securities dealer or a
financial institution doing business in the State of Texas, and fully secured by cash
and obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities. This
collateral must be pledged to the DISTRICT and held in safekeeping with a third-party
custodian approved by the City. All collateral must be maintained at a market value of
no less than the principal amount of the outstanding funds disbursed. All transactions
shall be governed by signed Security Industry and Financial Markets Association,
(SIFMA) Master Repurchase Agreement. Repurchase agreements must also be
collateralized in accordance with State law as described in Section XI of this policy.
Authorization under this section includes flexible repurchase agreements which may
be used for specific investment of bond proceeds but shall not include reverse
repurchase agreements.

Bankers’ Acceptances and Commercial Paper (LIMITED USE) — These investments
are authorized for the DISTRICT to the extent that they are contained in the portfolios
of approved public funds investment pools or money market funds in which the
DISTRICT invests.

. AAA-rated SEC-Requlated 2a7 No-Load Money Market Mutual Funds — An SEC-
registered, no load money market mutual fund which has a dollar weighted average
stated maturity of 60 days or less whose assets consist exclusively of the assets
described in section VII.A and whose investment objectives includes the maintenance
of a stable net asset value of $1 for each share: furthermore, it provides the DISTRICT
with a prospectus and other information required by the SEC act of 1934 or the
Investment Advisor Act of 1940 and which provides the DISTRICT with a prospectus
and other information required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 USC
Section 78a et. Seq.) of the Investment Company Act of 1990 (15 USC Section 80a-1
et. Seq.).

. Unauthorized Securities — State law specifically prohibits investment in the following
securities:

1. An obligation whose payment represents the coupon payments on the outstanding
principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed security and pays no
principal.



159

2. Anobligation whose payment represents the principal stream of cash flow from the
underlying mortgage-backed security and bears no interest.

3. Collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated final maturity date of greater
than 10 years.

4. Collateralized mortgage obligations, the interest rate of which is determined by an
index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index.

VIll.  DIVERSIFICATION

A. Generally - Diversification of investment instruments shall be utilized to avoid incurring
unreasonable risks resulting from over-concentration of investments in a specific
maturity, a specific issue, or a specific class of securities. With the exception of U.S.
Government securities (debt obligations issued by the U. S. Government, its agencies,
or instrumentalities) as authorized in this policy, and authorized local government
investment pools, no more than forty percent (40%) of the total investment portfolio
will be invested in any one security type or with a single financial institution.
Diversification of the portfolio considers diversification by maturity dates and
diversification by investment instrument.

B. Diversification by Maturities - The longer the maturity of investments, the greater their
price volatility. Therefore, it is the DISTRICT’s policy to concentrate its investment
portfolio in shorter-term securities in order to limit principal risks caused by change in
interest rates. The DISTRICT will attempt to match its investments with anticipated
cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow (including the
anticipated cash flow requirements of bond proceeds within the temporary period), the
DISTRICT will not directly invest in securities maturing more than two (2) years from
the date of purchase. However, the above described obligations, certificates, or
agreements may be collateralized using longer date instruments. The DISTRICT shall
diversify the use of investment instruments to avoid incurring unreasonable risks
inherent in over-investing in specific instruments, individual financial institutions or
maturities. Maturity scheduling shall be managed by the Investment Officer so that
maturities of investments shall be timed to coincide with projected cash flow needs.

The entire DISTRICT portfolio, or single pooled fund group if utilized, shall maintain a
maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated maturity date, of less
than two hundred seventy (270) days. Investment maturities for debt service interest
and sinking funds and/or other types of reserve funds, whose use is never anticipated,
shall maintain a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated
maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days.

C. Diversification by Investment Instrument - Diversification by investment instrument
shall not exceed the following guidelines for each type of instrument:

Maximum %

of Portfolio
U.S. Treasury Obligations 100%
U.S. Government Agency Securities and Instrumentalities 100%

Authorized Local Government Investment Pool 75%100%



160

Local Government Obligations 10%

Fully Collateralized Certificates of Deposit 75%

Fully Collateralized Repurchase Agreements 25%

SEC-Regulated No-Load Money Market Mutual Fund 100%

U.S. Treasury & Agency Callables 30%
SECURITY SWAPS

Security swaps may be considered as an investment option for the DISTRICT. A swap
out of one instrument into another is acceptable to increase yield, realign for disbursement
dates, extend or shorten maturity dates and improve market sector diversification. Swaps
may be initiated by brokers/dealers who are on the City’s approved list. A horizon analysis
is required for each swap proving benefit to the DISTRICT before the trade decision is
made, which will accompany the investment file for record keeping.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS.

A. The Director of Finance will maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to provide
investment services to the City. In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved
broker/dealers authorized to provide investment services in the State of Texas. These
will include financial institutions that qualify under Securities & Exchange Commission
Rule 15-C3-1 (uniform net capital rule). No public deposit shall be made except in a
qualified public depository as established by state laws.

B. Allfinancial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified bidders for
investment transactions must supply the Director of Finance with the following, as
appropriate: audited financial statements, proof of Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority certification, trading resolution, proof of State registration, completed
broker/dealer questionnaire and certification of having read the DISTRICT's
investment policy.

C. The Finance Audit Committee shall be responsible for adopting the list of brokers and
dealers of government securities. Their selection shall be among only primary
government securities dealers that report directly to the New York Federal Reserve
Bank, unless a comprehensive credit and capitalization analysis reveals that other
firms are adequately financed to conduct public business. The Finance Audit
Committee shall base its evaluation of security dealers and financial institutions upon:

1. Financial conditions, strength and capability to fulfill commitments;
2. Overall reputation with other dealers or investors;
3. Regulatory status of the dealer;
4. Background and expertise of the individual representatives.

D. Investment Officers shall only conduct business with securities dealers approved by
the Finance Audit Committee and will not purchase investments from any financial
organization until the organization’s registered principal has executed a written

instrument stating that he or she has thoroughly reviewed the DISTRICT’s investment
policy and acknowledges that reasonable procedures and controls have been



161

implemented to preclude imprudent investment activities arising out of transactions
between the organization and the DISTRICT, except to the extent that this
authorization is dependent on an analysis of the makeup of the DISTRICT’s entire
portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective investment standards.

. To guard against default possibilities under these conditions, and to assure
diversification of bidders, business with any one issuer, or investment broker, should
be limited to forty percent (40%) of the total portfolio at any point in time. In this way,
bankruptcy, receivership or legal action would not immobilize the DISTRICT’s ability
to meet payroll or other expenses.

All investment (governments or bank C.D.’s) will be solicited on a competitive basis
with at least three (3) institutions. The Finance Audit Committee can approve
exceptions on a case by case basis or on a general basis in the form of guidelines.
These guidelines shall take into consideration the investment type maturity date,
amount, and potential disruptiveness to the DISTRICT'’s investment strategy. The
investment will be made with the broker/dealer offering the best yield/quality to the
DISTRICT. The quotes may be accepted orally, in writing, electronically, or any
combination of these methods.

. An annual review of the financial condition and registration of qualified financial
organizations will be conducted by the Director of Finance.

. A current audited financial statement is required to be on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the DISTRICT invests.

If the City has contracted with a Registered Investment Advisor for the management
of its funds, the advisor shall be responsible for performing due diligence on and
maintaining a list of broker/dealers with which it shall transact business on behalf of
the DISTRICT. The advisor shall determine selection criteria and shall annually
present a list of its authorized broker/dealers to the CITY for review and likewise shall
execute the aforementioned written instrument stating that the advisor has reviewed
the DISTRICT's investment policy and has implemented reasonable procedures and
controls in an effort to preclude imprudent investment activities with the DISTRICT.
The advisor shall obtain and document competitive bids and offers on all transactions
and present these to the City as part of its standard trade documentation.

It is the policy of the City that all security transactions entered into with the DISTRICT
shall be conducted on a “Delivery-versus-Payment basis through the Federal Reserve
System. By doing this, DISTRICT funds are not released until the City has received,
through the Federal Reserve wire, the securities purchased. The City shall authorize
the release of funds only after receiving notification from the safekeeping bank that a
purchased security has been received in the safekeeping account of the DISTRICT.
The notification may be oral, but shall be confirmed in writing.

1. Financial conditions, strength and capability to fulfill commitments;

2. Overall reputation with other dealers or investors;
3. Regulatory status of the dealer;

4. Background and expertise of the individual representatives.



XI.

162

SAFEKEEPING AND COLLATERALIZATION

A. Safekeeping - All securities owned by the DISTRICT shall be held by a third-party

safekeeping agent selected by the City. The collateral for bank deposits will be held
in the City’s name in the bank’s trust department, in a Federal Reserve Bank account
in the City’s name, or third-party financial institutions doing business in the state of
Texas, in accordance with state law. Original safekeeping receipts shall be obtained
and held by the City. The City shall contract with a bank or banks for the safekeeping
of securities either owned by the City as part of its investment portfolio or held as
collateral to secure time deposits.

. Collateralization - Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral

Act, it is the policy of the City to require full collateralization of all City funds on deposit
with a depository bank. The market value of the investments securing the deposit of
funds shall be at least equal to 102% of the amount of the deposits of funds reduced
to the extent that the deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC). Securities pledged as collateral shall be held by an independent
third party with whom the City has a current custodial agreement. The agreement is
to specify the acceptable investment securities as collateral, including provisions
relating to possession of the collateral, the substitution or release of investment
securities, ownership of securities, and the method of valuation of securities. The
safekeeping agreement must clearly state that the safekeeping bank is instructed to
release purchased and collateral securities to the City in the event the City has
determined that the depository bank has failed to pay on any matured investments in
certificates of deposit, or has determined that the funds of the City are in jeopardy for
whatever reason, including involuntary closure or change of ownership. A clearly
marked evidence of ownership, e.g., safekeeping receipt, must be supplied to the City
and retained by the City.

1. The City may accept the following to insure or collateralize bank deposits:

a. Guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its
successor or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund or its successor;

b. United States Treasuries & Agencies
c. Other securities as approved by the Finance Audit Committee

2. For certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit, collateral shall be at
102% of market value. The market value of collateral will always equal or exceed
102% of the principal plus accrued interest of deposits at financial institutions.

3. Financial institutions with which the City invests or maintains other deposits shall
provide monthly, and as requested by the Investment Officer, a listing of the
collateral pledged to the City, marked to current market prices. The listing shall
include total pledged securities itemized by name, type, description, par value,
current market value, maturity date, and Moody's or Standard & Poor’s rating, if
applicable. The City and the financial institution shall jointly assume the
responsibility for ensuring that the collateral is sufficient.



XII.

XIIl.

XIV.

163

C. Collateralized Deposits - Consistent with the requirements of State law, the City
requires all bank deposits to be federally insured or collateralized with eligible
securities. Financial institutions serving as City depositories will be required to sign a
"Depository Agreement” with the City and the City’s safekeeping agent. The
collateralized deposit portion of the Agreement shall define the City’'s rights to the
collateral in the event of default, bankruptcy, or closing and shall establish a perfected
security interest in compliance with Federal and State regulations, including:

1. Agreement must be in writing;

2. Agreement has to be executed by the Depository and the City contemporaneously
with the acquisition of the asset;

3. Agreement must be approved by the Board of Directors or designated committee
of the Depository and a copy of the meeting minutes must be delivered to the City;
and

4. Agreement must be part of the Depository's "official record” continuously since its
execution.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Investment Officer shall establish a system of written internal controls, which shall be
reviewed annually by independent auditors. The controls shall be designed to prevent
loss of public funds due to fraud, error, misrepresentation, unanticipated market changes,
or imprudent actions. The internal controls are to be reviewed annually in conjunction with
an external independent audit. This review will provide assurance of compliance with
policies and procedures as specified by this policy. The City, in conjunction with its annual
financial audit, shall perform a compliance audit of management controls and adherence
to the DISTRICT's established investment policy.

PERFORMANCE

The DISTRICT's investment portfolio shall be designed to obtain a market rate-of-return
on investments consistent with risk constraints and cash flow requirements of the
DISTRICT. This investment policy establishes “weighted average yield to maturity” as the
standard portfolio performance measurement.

REPORTING

A. Quarterly - The Director of Finance shall prepare and submit a signed quarterly
investment report to the Corinth Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency Services
District Board and the Finance Audit Committee that summarizes current market
conditions, economic developments, and anticipated investment conditions. The
report shall summarize investment strategies employed in the most recent quarter and
describe the portfolio in terms of investment securities, maturities, risk characteristics,
and shall explain the total investment return for the quarter. The City shall also monitor
the credit ratings on securities that require minimum ratings. This may be
accomplished through staff research, or with the assistance of broker-dealers,
investment advisors, banks or safekeeping agents.



XV.

164

B. Annual Report - Within 180 days of the end of the fiscal year, the Director of Finance

shall present an annual report on the investment program and investment activity. This
report may be presented as a component of the fourth quarter report to the Corinth
Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency Services District Board, City Manager and
the City Council. The quarterly reports prepared by the Director of Finance shall be
formally reviewed at least annually by an independent auditor, and the result of the
review shall be reported to the City Council by that auditor.

. Methods - The quarterly and annual investment reports shall include a succinct

management summary that provides a clear picture of the status of the current
investment portfolio and transactions made over the past quarter. This management
summary will be prepared in a manner which will allow the DISTRICT to ascertain
whether investment activities during the reporting period have conformed to the
investment policy. The report will be prepared in compliance with generally accepted
accounting principles. The report will include the following:

1. Alisting of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period. This list will
include the name of the fund or pooled group fund for which each individual
investment was acquired;

2. Unrealized gains or losses resulting from appreciation or depreciation by listing the
beginning and ending book and market value of securities for the period. Market
values shall be obtained from financial institutions or portfolio reporting services
independent from the broker/dealer from which the security was purchased;

3. Additions and changes to the market value during the period;

4. Fully accrued interest for the reporting period;

5. Average weighted yield to maturity of portfolio on entity investments as compared
to applicable benchmarks;

6. Listing of investments by maturity date;

7. The percentage of the total portfolio which each type of investment represents;
and

8. Statement of compliance of the DISTRICT’s investment portfolio with State Law
and the investment strategy and policy approved by the City Council.

9. Market yield benchmark comparison of the average 90-day U. S. Treasury Bill
auction yield during the reporting period.

10. The guidelines of retaining records for seven years as recommended in the Texas
State Library Municipal Records Manual should be followed. The Director of
Finance shall oversee the filing and/or storing of investment records.

INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT

The DISTRICT’s investment policy shall be reviewed by the Corinth Fire Control,



165

Prevention and Emergency Services District and formally adopted and amended by
resolution by the City Council. The CITY’s written policies and procedures for investments
are subject to review not less than annually to stay current with changing laws, regulations
and needs of the CITY. The City Council, not less than annually, shall adopt a written
instrument stating that it has reviewed the investment policy and investment strategies
and that the written instrument so adopted shall record any changes made to either the
policy or strategies.



166

Attachment A

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS
Corinth Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency Services District
Investment Strategy Statement

Operating Funds

1.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Operating
Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments shall be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, by managing the weighted
average days to maturity for the Operating Fund'’s portfolio to less than 270 days and
restricting the maximum allowable maturity to two years, the price volatility of the
overall portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - Securities with active and efficient secondary markets are necessary in
the event of an unanticipated cash flow requirement. Historical market “spreads”
between the bid and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of
a percentage point will define an efficient secondary market.

Liquidity - The Operating Fund requires the greatest short-term liquidity of any of the
Fund types. Short-term investment pools and money market mutual funds will provide
daily liquidity and may be utilized as a competitive yield alternative to fixed maturity
investments.

Diversification - Investment maturities should be staggered throughout the budget
cycle to provide cash flow based on the anticipated operating needs of the DISTRICT.
Market cycle risk will be reduced by diversifying the appropriate maturity structure out
through two years.

Yield - Attaining a competitive market yield for comparable security-types and portfolio
restrictions is the desired objective. The yield of an equally weighted, rolling three-
month treasury-bill portfolio will be the minimum yield objective.

Reserve Funds

1.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Debt Service
Reserve Funds. Bond resolution and loan documentation constraints and insurance
company restrictions may create specific considerations in addition to the investment

policy.

Safety of Principal - All investments shall be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, managing Debt Service
Reserve Fund maturities to not exceed the call provisions of the borrowing reduces
the investment’s market risk if the DISTRICT debt is redeemed and the Reserve Fund
liquidated. The fund shall maintain a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity,
based on the stated maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days. No
stated final investment maturity shall exceed the shorter of the final maturity of the



167

borrowing or two years. Annual mark-to-market requirements or specific maturity and
average life limitations within the borrowing’s documentation will influence the
attractiveness of market risk and reduce the opportunity for maturity extension.

Marketability - Securities with less active and efficient secondary markets are
acceptable for Debt Service Reserve Funds.

Liquidity — Debt Service Reserve Funds have no anticipated expenditures. The Funds
are deposited to provide annual debt service payment protection to the DISTRICT'’s
debt holders. The funds are “returned” to the DISTRICT at the final debt service
payment. Market conditions and arbitrage regulation compliance determine the
advantage of security diversification and liquidity. Generally, if investment rates
exceed the cost of borrowing, the DISTRICT is best served by locking in investment
maturities and reducing liquidity. If the borrowing cost cannot be exceeded, then
concurrent market conditions will determine the attractiveness of locking in maturities
or investing shorter and anticipating future increased yields.

Diversification - Market conditions and the arbitrage regulations influence the
attractiveness of staggering the maturity of fixed rate investments for Debt Service
Reserve Funds. At no time shall the final debt service payment date of the bond issue
be exceeded in an attempt to bolster yield.

Yield - Achieving a positive spread to the applicable borrowing cost is the desired
objective. Debt Service Reserve Fund portfolio management shall at all times operate
within the limits of the investment policy’s risk constraints.

Bond Funds

1.

2.

3.

4.

Suitability - Any investment eligible in the investment policy is suitable for Bond Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments will be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will occur. However, by managing Bond Funds
to not exceed the shorter of two years or the anticipated expenditure schedule and
maintaining a maximum average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated
maturity date, of less than three hundred sixty-five (365) days the market risk of the
overall portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - Securities with active and efficient secondary markets are necessary in
the event of an unanticipated cash flow requirement. Historical market “spreads”
between the bid and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of
a percentage point will define an efficient secondary market.

Liquidity — Bond Funds used for capital improvements programs have reasonably
predictable draw down schedules. Therefore investment maturities should generally
follow the anticipated cash flow requirements. Investment pools and money market
mutual funds will provide readily available funds generally equal to one month’s
anticipated cash flow needs, or a competitive yield alternative for short term fixed
maturity investments. A singular repurchase agreement may be utilized if
disbursements are allowed in the amount necessary to satisfy any expenditure
request. This investment structure is commonly referred to as a flexible repurchase
agreement.



168

5. Diversification - Market conditions and arbitrage regulations influence the
attractiveness of staggering the maturity of fixed rate investments for construction,
loan and bond proceeds. Generally, when investment rates exceed the applicable
cost of borrowing, the DISTRICT is best served by locking in most investments. If the
cost of borrowing cannot be exceeded, then concurrent market conditions will
determine the attractiveness of diversifying maturities or investing in shorter and larger
amounts. At no time shall the anticipated expenditure schedule be exceeded in an
attempt to bolster yield.

6. Yield - Achieving a positive spread to the cost of borrowing is the desired objective,
within the limits of the investment policy’s risk constraints. The yield of an equally
weighted, rolling six-month treasury-bill portfolio will be the minimum yield objective
for non-borrowed funds.



169

Attachment B

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS
Investment Policy

[SAMPLE]
TEXAS PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT ACT
CERTIFICATION BY BUSINESS ORGANIZATION

This certification is executed on behalf of the CITY of Corinth, Texas (the "CITY") and
(the Business Organization), pursuant to the Public
Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code (the "Act”) in connection with
investment transactions conducted between the CITY and the Business Organization.

The undersigned Qualified Representative of the Business Organization hereby certifies on behalf
of the Business Organization that:

1. The undersigned is a Qualified Representative of the Business Organization offering to
enter an investment transaction with the Investor as such terms are used in the Public
Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code; and

2. The Qualified Representative of the Business Organization has received and reviewed the
investment policy furnished by the CITY; and

3. The Qualified Representative of the Business Organization has implemented reasonable
procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions conducted
between the Business Organization and the CITY that are not authorized by the CITY's
investment policy, except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on an analysis
of the makeup of the CITY's entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective
investment standards.

Qualified Representative of Business Organization

Firm:

Signature

Name:

Title:

Date:




170

CONSENT ITEM 6.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021
Title: Ambulance Purchase Agreement
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager Submitted By: Michael Ross, Fire Chief
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government

Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Authorize the acquisition of an ambulance to replace the existing reserve unit.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

This Item is to replace the 2010 Ambulance. It currently has over 91,000 miles. The replacement will be placed in
front line service and the older of the two ambulances (2014) will go into reserve status. The financing terms are set
for a 5-year payoff. The replacement was approved in the 2020-2021 Budget. The request is to move forward with
the order and purchase of the Ambulance. Attached is the quote and Financing contract.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the Item.

Attachments
Ambulance Quote

Ambulance Financing




171

Siddons Martin Emergency Group, LLC
3500 Shelby Lane

Denton, TX 76207

GDN P115891

TXDOT MVD No. A115890

December 31, 2020

Michael Ross, Chief
LAKE CITIES FIRE DEPARTMENT
3101 GARRISON RD
CORINTH, TX 76210

Proposal For: 2021 Road Rescue Ultramedic 2

Siddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLC is pleased to provide the following proposal to LAKE CITIES FIRE DEPARTMENT. Unit
will comply with all specifications attached and made a part of this proposal. Total price includes delivery FOB LAKE CITIES
FIRE DEPARTMENT and training on operation and use of the apparatus.

Description Amount

Qty. 1-0018B - Road Rescue Dodge Ram 5500 Type 1

(Unit Price - $305,309.00)

Delivery within 12-13 months of order date

QUOTE # - SMEG-0001305-2 Vehicle Price $305,309.00

0018B - UNIT TOTAL $305,309.00

SUB TOTAL $305,309.00

HGAC AM10-20(EMS) $1,000.00
TOTAL  $306,309.00

Price guaranteed until 2/5/2021

Additional: The delivery of this unit(s) is subject to chassis availability and signed work order confirmation by the Lake Cities
Fire Department and Siddons-Martin Emergency Group.

Taxes: Tax is not included in this proposal. In the event that the purchasing organization is not exempt from sales tax or any
other applicable taxes and/or the proposed apparatus does not qualify for exempt status, it is the duty of the purchasing
organization to pay any and all taxes due. Balance of sale price is due upon acceptance of the apparatus at the factory.

Late Fee: A late fee of .033% of the sale price will be charged per day for overdue payments beginning ten (10) days after
the payment is due for the first 30 days. The late fee increases to .044% per day until the payment is received. In the event a
prepayment is received after the due date, the discount will be reduced by the same percentages above increasing the cost
of the apparatus.

Proposal 2021 Road Rescue Page 1 of 2 December 31, 2020
Ultramedic 2



Cancellation: In the event this proposal is accepted and a purchase order is issued then cancelled or terminated %@2
Customer before completion, Siddons-Martin Emergency Group may charge a cancellation fee. The following charge
schedule based on costs incurred may be applied:

(A) 10% of the Purchase Price after order is accepted and entered by Manufacturer;

(B) 20% of the Purchase Price after completion of the approval drawings;

(C) 30% of the Purchase Price upon any material requisition.

The cancellation fee will increase accordingly as costs are incurred as the order progresses through engineering and into
manufacturing. Siddons-Martin Emergency Group endeavors to mitigate any such costs through the sale of such product to
another purchaser; however, the customer shall remain liable for the difference between the purchase price and, if
applicable, the sale price obtained by Siddons-Martin Emergency Group upon sale of the product to another purchaser, plus
any costs incurred by Siddons-Martin to conduct such sale.

Acceptance: In an effort to ensure the above stated terms and conditions are understood and adhered to, Siddons-Martin
Emergency Group, LLC requires an authorized individual from the purchasing organization sign and date this proposal and
include it with any purchase order. Upon signing of this proposal, the terms and conditions stated herein will be considered
binding and accepted by the Customer. The terms and acceptance of this proposal will be governed by the laws of the state
of Texas. No additional terms or conditions will be binding upon Siddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLC unless agreed to in
writing and signed by a duly authorized officer of Siddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLC.

Sincerely,

% Owvertsn

Randy Overton

l, , the authorized representative of LAKE CITIES FIRE DEPARTMENT, agree to purchase the
proposed and agree to the terms of this proposal and the specifications attached hereto.

Signature & Date

Proposal 2021 Road Rescue Page 2 of 2 December 31, 2020
Ultramedic 2



173

PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCE ACT CONTRACT

THIS Public Property Finance Act Contract No.9365 (hereafter referred to as the "Finance Contract") is dated as of February
10, 2021, by and between Government Capital Corporation, a Texas corporation (herein referred to as "GCC"), and the City of
Corinth, a political sub-division or agency of the State of Texas (hereinafter referred to as the "Issuer").

WITNESSETH: In furtherance of the providing by GCC of financing to the Issuer in connection with the Issuer's acquisition
from Siddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLC that is more fully described on EXHIBIT A attached hereto (the "Property"), and in
consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions hereinafter set forth, pursuant to the provisions of the Public Property Finance
Act, Chapter 271, Subchapter A, Texas Local Government Code, as amended (the "Act"), the parties agree as follows:

1. Term and Payments. The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees to pay to the order of GCC and GCC's successors
and assigns those principal and interest installment amounts in those sums set forth on EXHIBIT B attached hereto (the "Payments")
on or before those dates per installment that are more fully set forth on EXHIBIT B (the "Payment Dates"). It is acknowledged and
understood that GCC may assign its rights hereunder to a third party and that notice of said assignment shall be provided to the Issuer
and that the Issuer, thereafter, shall look to and consider said assignee as the party to whom all of the Issuer's duties hereunder are
owed. The obligation of the Issuer to make the Payments shall not be subject to set-off, counterclaim, or recoupment to the extent
permitted by law. The interest is calculated on the basis of a 30/360-day year on the unpaid principal amounts from the Schedule
Date of the EXHIBIT B.

2. Security, Levy of Taxes, Budgeting.

(a) During the term of this Finance Contract, the Issuer covenants that prior to adopting a budget for any
ensuing fiscal year it shall place in its proposed budget for such ensuing fiscal year an amount necessary to pay the Finance Contract
Payments for such ensuing fiscal year, and that the final budget for each fiscal year shall set aside and appropriate out of Ad Valorem
Taxes and other revenues and funds lawfully available therefore an amount sufficient to pay the Finance Contract Payments. The
Issuer hereby agrees to assess and collect, a continuing direct annual Ad Valorem Tax on all taxable property within the boundaries of
the Issuer, within the limitations prescribed by law, at a rate from year to year sufficient, together with such other revenues and funds
lawfully available to the Issuer for the payment of the Payments, to provide funds each year to pay the Payments, full allowance being
made for delinquencies and costs of collection. Such taxes and such revenues and funds in an amount sufficient to make the Payments
are pledged to GCC and GCC's successors and assigns for such purpose as the same shall become due and payable under this Finance
Contract.

(b) The Issuer waives all rights of set-off, recoupment, counterclaim and abatement against GCC and GCC's
successors and assigns with respect to the amounts due under this Finance Contract, and the Issuer's obligation to pay amounts due
under this Finance Contract is absolute and unconditional and not subject to set-off, recoupment, counterclaim or abatement for any
reason whatsoever.

3. Deposit into the Payment Fund.

(a) Upon this Finance Contract taking effect the Issuer shall establish a Payment Fund, which shall be maintained
by the Issuer as long as any Payments are unpaid. The Issuer hereby pledges the Payment Fund for the exclusive purpose of securing
the Payments and shall apply the funds therein to the payment of Payments as such payments come due.

(b) Each year in which Payments come due, the Issuer shall, not later than the day preceding any such due
date, deposit into the Payment Fund, from the Issuer’s Ad Valorem taxes or other lawfully available funds (within the limits prescribed
by law) an amount sufficient to make such payment. To the extent permitted by law, the Issuer hereby pledges its Ad Valorem tax
as security for this obligation. To the extent required by the Texas Constitution the Issuer agrees during each year of the term of this
Finance Contract to assess and collect annually a sufficient sum to pay the greater of (1) interest on the debt created by this Finance
Contract and a sinking fund of at least two percent of the principal amount of such debt, or (2) the payments required by Exhibit B
attached hereto.

(c) The Payment Fund shall be depleted at least once a year except for a carryover amount not to exceed one
twelfth (1/12) of the amount of the Payments expected to come due in the following year.
4. Taxes. The Issuer agrees to directly pay all taxes, insurance and other costs of every nature associated with its
ownership of the Property.
5. The Issuer's Covenants and Representations. The Issuer covenants and represents as follows:
(a) The Issuer will provide an opinion of its counsel to the effect that, it has full power and authority to enter

into this Finance Contract which has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by the Issuer and is a valid and binding obligation
enforceable in accordance with its terms, and all requirements for execution, delivery and performance of this Finance Contract have
been, or will be, complied with in a timely manner;

(b) All Payments hereunder for the current fiscal period have been duly authorized and will be paid when due;

(c) There are no pending or threatened lawsuits or administrative or other proceedings contesting the authority
for, authorization of performance of, or expenditure of funds pursuant to this Finance Contract;

(d) The information supplied and statements made by the Issuer in any financial statement or current budget
prior to or contemporaneously with this Finance Contract are true and correct;

(e) The Issuer has complied or will comply with all bidding/proposal laws applicable to this transaction and the
purchase of the Property.

f) No contract, rental agreement, lease-purchase agreement, payment agreement or contract for purchase

under the Act to which the Issuer has been a party at any time during the past ten (10) years has been terminated by the Issuer as a
result of insufficient funds being appropriated in any Fiscal Year. No event has occurred which would constitute an event of default
under any debt, revenue bond or obligation which the Issuer has issued during the past ten (10) years.

(g9) The Issuer will pay the Contract Payment Due by check, wire transfer, or ACH only.

GOVERNMENT CAPITAL




174

6. Use and Licenses. The Issuer shall pay and discharge all operating and other expenses of every nature associated
with its use of the Property. The Issuer shall obtain, at its expense, all registrations, permits and licenses, if any, required by law for
the installation and operation of the Property.

7. Maintenance. The Issuer agrees to be solely responsible for all maintenance and operating costs of every nature
associated with its ownership of the Property and the Issuer acknowledges that GCC or GCC's successors or assigns shall have no
responsibility for the payment of any such costs.

8. Damage to or Destruction of Property. The Issuer shall bear the entire risk of loss, damage, theft, or destruction
of the Property from any and every cause whatsoever, and no loss, damage, destruction, or other event shall release the Issuer from
the obligation to pay the full amount of the payments or from any other obligation under this Finance Contract.

9. No Warranty. EXCEPT FOR REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND SERVICE AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE
PROPERTY MADE OR ENTERED INTO BY THE MANUFACTURERS OR SUPPLIERS OF THE PROPERTY, IF ANY, ALL OF WHICH ARE HEREBY
ASSIGNED TO THE ISSUER, GCC HAS MADE AND MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND ASSUMES
NO OBLIGATION WITH RESPECT TO THE TITLE, MERCHANTABILITY, CONDITION, QUALITY OR FITNESS OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED
IN EXHIBIT A FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR THE CONFORMITY OF THE PROPERTY TO SPECIFICATION OR PURCHASE ORDER.
All such risks shall be borne by the Issuer without in any way excusing it from its obligations under this Finance Contract, and GCC
shall not be liable for any damages on account of such risks. All claims or actions on any warranty so assigned shall be made or
prosecuted by the Issuer, at its sole expense, upon prior written notice to GCC. GCC or its assigns may, but shall have no obligation
whatsoever to, participate in a claim on any warranty. Any recovery under such a warranty shall be made payable jointly to both
parties.

10. Evidence of Indebtedness and Security Agreement.

(a) An executed copy of this Finance Contract shall evidence the indebtedness of the Issuer as provided herein
and shall constitute a security agreement pursuant to applicable law, with GCC, its successors or assigns as the secured party. The
grants, lien, pledge and security interest of GCC, its successors or assigns created herein shall become effective immediately upon and
from the Delivery Date, and the same shall be continuously effective for so long as any Finance Contract Payments are outstanding.

(b) A fully executed copy of this Finance Contract and the proceedings authorizing same shall be kept at all
times and shall be filed and recorded as a security agreement among the permanent records of the Issuer. Such records shall be open
for inspection to any member of the general public and to any individual, firm, corporation, governmental entity or other person
proposing to do or doing business with, or having or asserting claims against the Issuer, at all times during regular business hours.

(c) If, in the opinion of counsel to the Issuer or to GCC, its successors or assigns, applicable law ever requires
filings additional to the filing pursuant to subsection (b) of this section in order to preserve and protect the priority of the grants,
assignments, lien, pledge and security interest of GCC, its successors or assigns created herein as to all Payments, then the Issuer
shall diligently and regularly make such filings to the extent required by law to accomplish such result.

11. Default and Remedies.
(a) Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Finance Contract is hereby declared to
be an Event of Default:
(1) the failure to make payment of the Payment when the same becomes due and payable; or
(2) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant agreement or obligation of the

Issuer, which default materially, adversely affects the rights of GCC or its successors or assigns, including, but not limited to, its
prospect or ability to be repaid in accordance with this Finance Contract, and the continuation thereof for a period of 20 days after
notice of such default is given by GCC or any successors or assigns of GCC to the Issuer.

(b) Remedies for Default.

(1) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then and in every case GCC or its successors or
assigns, or an authorized representative thereof, including, but not limited to, an attorney or trustee therefore, may proceed against
the Issuer for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of GCC or its successors or assigns under this Finance Contract, by
mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law, in any court of competent jurisdiction, for any relief permitted
by law, including the specific performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing that
may be unlawful or in violation of any right of GCC or its successors or assigns or any combination of such remedies; provided that
none of such parties shall have any right to declare the balance of the Finance Contract Payments to be immediately due and payable
as a remedy because of the occurrence of an Event of Default.

(2) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a waiver of any other
available remedy, and no delay or omission to exercise any right or power occurring upon any Event of Default shall impair any such
right or power or be construed to be a waiver thereof and all such rights and powers may be exercised as often as may be deemed
expedient.

(c) Remedies Not Exclusive.

(1) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy
or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or
under this Finance Contract or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other
provision of this Finance Contract, the right to accelerate the debt evidenced by this Finance Contract shall not be available as a remedy
because of the occurrence of an Event of Default.

12, Assignment. Without GCC's prior written consent, the Issuer will not either (a) assign, transfer, pledge,
hypothecate, grant any security interest in or otherwise dispose of this Finance Contract or the Property or any interest in this Finance
Contract or the Property; or (b) sublet or lend the Property or permit it to be used by anyone other than the Issuer or the Issuer's
employees and other authorized users. GCC may assign its rights, title and interest in and to this Finance Contract, and any other
documents executed with respect to this Finance Contract and/or grant or assign a security interest in this Finance Contract, in whole
or in part. Such successors and assigns of GCC shall have the right to further grant or assign a security interest in this Finance
Contract, as well as the rights to Payments hereunder, in whole or in part, to any third party. No assignment or reassignment of GCC's
rights, title or interest in this Finance Contract shall be effective with regard to the Issuer unless and until the Issuer shall have received
a copy of the document by which the assignment or reassignment is made, disclosing the name and address of such assignee. The
Issuer shall maintain written records of any assignments of the Finance Contract.



175

13. Personal Property. The Property is and shall at all times be and remain personal property, and will not be
considered a fixture to any real property.
14. GCC's Right to Perform for The Issuer. If the Issuer fails to make any payment or perform or comply with any

of its covenants or obligations hereunder, GCC or GCC's successors or assigns may, but shall not be required to, make such payment
or perform or comply with such covenants and obligations on behalf of the Issuer, and the amount of any such payment and the
expenses (including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred by GCC or GCC’s successors or assigns in performing or
complying with such covenants and obligations, as the case may be, together with interest thereon at the highest lawful rate under
the State of Texas law, shall be payable by the Issuer upon demand.

15. Interest on Default. If the Issuer fails to pay any Payment specified herein within twenty (20) days after the due
date thereof, the Issuer shall pay to GCC or any successor or assigns of GCC, interest on such delinquent payment at the highest rate
allowed by Texas law.

16. Notices. Any notices to be given or to be served upon any party hereto in connection with this Finance Contract
must be in writing and may be given by certified or registered mail, and shall be deemed to have been given and received forty-eight
(48) hours after mailing. Such notice shall be given to the parties at their respective addresses designated on the signature page of
this Finance Contract or at such other address as either party may hereafter designate.

17. Prepayment.

(a) The Issuer shall have the right, at its option, to prepay the Finance Contract in whole, on any payment date,
in accordance with the Early Redemption Value stated on Exhibit B of the Contract. Any additional principal payments will be applied
to reduce the early redemption values as shown in Exhibit B to this Finance Contract.

(b) As condition precedent to the Issuer’s right to make, and GCC or any successor or assigns of GCC's obligation
to accept, any such prepayment, GCC or any successor or assigns of GCC shall have actually received notice at least thirty (30) days
in advance of the Issuer’s intent to exercise its option to prepay.

18. Continuing Disclosure. Specifically and without limitation, the Issuer agrees to provide audited financial
statements, prepared by a certified public accountant not later than six (6) months after and as of the end of each fiscal year. Periodic
financial statements shall include a combined balance sheet as of the end of each such period, and a combined statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances, from the beginning of the then fiscal year to the end of such period. These reports must
be certified as correct by one of the Issuer's authorized agents. If the Issuer has subsidiaries, the financial statements required will
be provided on a consolidated and consolidation basis.

19. Tax Exemption.

(a) The Issuer certifies that it does not reasonably anticipate more than $10,000,000 of "tax-exempt
obligations", including this Finance Contract will be issued by it and any subordinate entities during the 2021 calendar year. Further,
the Issuer designates this Finance Contract as "qualified tax exempt obligations" under Section 265 (b) 3 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (the "Code") eligible for the exception contained in Section 265 (b) 3 (D) of the Code allowing for an exception
to the general rule of the Code which provides for a total disallowance of a deduction for interest expense allocable to the carrying of
tax exempt obligations.

(b) The Issuer hereby represents and covenants that the proceeds of this Finance Contract are needed at this
time to provide funds for the Issuer's purchase of the property for which this Finance Contract was executed and delivered, as specified
in this Finance Contract; that (i) final disbursement of the proceeds of this Finance Contract will occur within three years from the
Delivery Date, (ii) substantial binding obligations to expend at least five (5) percent of the net proceeds will be incurred within six
months after the Delivery Date and (iii) the acquisition of such property will proceed with due diligence to completion; and that, except
for the Escrow Agreement, if applicable, and the Payment Fund, no other funds or accounts have been or will be established or pledged
to the payment of this Finance Contract.

(c) The Issuer will not directly or indirectly take any action or omit to take any action, which action or omission
would cause the Finance Contract to constitute a "private activity bond" within the meaning of Section 141(a) of the Code.
(d) The Issuer will not take any action or fail to take any action with respect to the investment of the proceeds of this

Finance Contract or any other funds of the Issuer, including amounts received from the investment of any of the foregoing, that would
cause this Finance Contract to be an "arbitrage bond" within the meaning of such section 148 of the Code.

(e) There are no other obligations of the Issuer which are sold at substantially the same time as the Finance
Contract, sold pursuant to the same plan of financing with the Finance Contract and are reasonably expected to be paid from
substantially the same source of funds as the Finance Contract.

(f) The Issuer will not take any action, or as the case may be, knowingly omit to take any action within its
control that, if taken or omitted, as the case may be, would cause the Finance Contract to be treated as "federally guaranteed"
obligations for purposes of Section 149(b) of the Code.

(g9) The Issuer will take all necessary steps to comply with the requirement that certain amounts earned by the
Issuer on the investment of the "gross proceeds" of the Finance Contract (within the meaning of Section 148(f)(6)(B) of the Code), if
any, be rebated to the federal government. Specifically, the Issuer will (i) maintain records regarding the investment of the gross
proceeds of the Finance Contract as may be required to calculate and substantiate the amount earned on the investment of the gross
proceeds of the Finance Contract and retain such records for at least six years after the day on which the last outstanding Finance
Contract is discharged, (ii) account for all gross proceeds under a reasonable, consistently applied method of accounting, including any
specified method of accounting required by applicable regulations to be used for all or a portion of the gross proceeds, (iii) calculate,
at such times as are required by applicable regulations, the amount earned from the investment of the gross proceeds of the Finance
Contract and (iv) timely pay all amounts required to be rebated to the federal government. In addition, the Issuer will correct any
errors within a reasonable amount of time thereafter, including payment to the federal government of any delinquent amounts owed
to it, including interest thereon and penalty, if any, as may be necessary or appropriate to assure that interest on the Finance Contract
is not includable in the gross income for federal income tax purposes.

(h) The Issuer will timely file with the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States the information required
by Section 149(e) of the Code with respect to the Finance Contract on such form and in such place as the Secretary may prescribe.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Finance Contract, the Issuer's obligation under the covenants and provisions of this Section
19 shall survive the defeasance and discharge of this Finance Contract.



176

20. Miscellaneous.

(a) Time is of the essence. No covenant or obligations hereunder to be performed by the Issuer are waived,
except by the written consent of GCC or its successors or assigns. GCC's or its successors or assigns' rights hereunder are cumulative
and not alternative.

(b) This Finance Contract shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by the state of Texas laws.

(c) This Finance Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and shall not be modified,
waived, discharged, terminated, amended, altered or changed in any respect except by a written document signed by both GCC and
the Issuer.

(d) Any term or provision of this Finance Contract found to be prohibited by law or unenforceable shall not
affect the legality the remainder of this Finance Contract.

(e) Use of the neuter gender herein is for purposes of convenience only and shall be deemed to mean and
include the masculine or feminine gender whenever appropriate.

(f) The captions set forth herein are for convenience of reference only, and shall not define or limit any of the
terms or provisions hereof.

(g9) Issuer agrees to equitably adjust the payments payable under this Finance Contract if there is a

determination by the IRS that the interest payable pursuant to this Finance Contract (as incorporated within the schedule of payments)
is not excludable from income in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, such as to make GCC and its
assigns whole.

(h) Except as otherwise provided, this Finance Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
Parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns, where permitted by
this Finance Contract.

(i) THIS CONTRACT IS EVIDENCE OF A PRIVATELY PLACED BANK LOAN, IS NOT IN REGISTERED FORM, AND
MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED TO BEARER. TRANSFERS OF THIS CONTRACT ARE NOT REGISTERED ON BOOKS MAINTAINED FOR THAT
PURPOSE BY THE ISSUER.

[Signature page follows]



177

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Finance Contract as of the day of in the year 2021.

Government Capital Corporation

Authorized Signature
345 Miron Drive
Southlake, Texas 76092

The Issuer: City of Corinth

Bob Hart, City Manager
3300 Corinth Parkway
Corinth, Texas 76208

Witness Signature

Print Name

Print Title

Witness Signature

Print Name

Print Title




178

EXHIBIT A
Public Property Finance Act Contract N0.9365 (THE "FINANCE CONTRACT")
By And Between
Government Capital Corporation and the Issuer, City of Corinth
Dated as of February 10, 2021

QTY DESCRIPTION
Personal Property Property Cost: $306,309.00 Payback Period: Five (5) Annual Payments
Ambulance
One (1) Road Rescue Dodge Ram 5500 Type 1
- Unit #0018B

PROPERTY LOCATION:

Lake Cities Fire Department
3101 South Garrison Road
Corinth, Texas 76210



179

EXHIBIT B

>> SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS & EARLY REDEMPTION VALUE <<
Public Property Finance Act Contract N0.9365 ("THE FINANCE CONTRACT")
BY AND BETWEEN
Government Capital Corporation and the Issuer City of Corinth
Schedule dated as of February 10, 2021

PMT PMT DATE TOTAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL  EARLY REDEMPTION VALUE
NO. MO. DAY YR PAYMENT PAID PAID after pmt on this line

1 2/10/2022 $65,922.56 $7,642.41 $58,280.15 N/A

2 2/10/2023 $65,922.56 $6,188.32 $59,734.24 N/A

3 2/10/2024 $65,922.56 $4,697.95 $61,224.61 $128,463.21

4 2/10/2025 $65,922.56 $3,170.40 $62,752.16 $64,788.76

5 2/10/2026 $65,922.56 $1,604.72 $64,317.84 $0.00

Grand Totals $329,612.80 $23,303.80 $306,309.00

Interest Rate: 2.495%



180

INCUMBENCY CERTIFICATE
Public Property Finance Act Contract No.9365 (THE "FINANCE CONTRACT")
By And Between
Government Capital Corporation and the Issuer, City of Corinth
Dated as of February 10, 2021

I, Lana Wylie, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected or appointed and acting City Secretary, of the City of Corinth,
Issuer, a political subdivision or agency of the State of Texas, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Texas, that I
or my designee have custody of the records of such entity, and that, as of the date hereof, the individual(s) named below are the duly
elected or appointed officer(s) of such entity holding the office(s) set forth opposite their respective name(s). I further certify that (i)
the signature(s) set opposite their respective name(s) and title(s) are their true and authentic signature(s), and (ii) such officers have
the authority on behalf of such entity to enter into that certain Public Property Finance Act Contract No.9365, between City of Corinth
(the “Issuer”) and Government Capital Corporation (*GCC").

Name Title Signature
Bob Hart City Manager
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have duly executed this certificate hereto this day of , 2021.

By:
Lana Wylie, City Secretary




181

[to be retyped on letterhead of the Issuer counsel]

Government Capital Corporation
345 Miron Drive
Southlake, Texas 76092

RE: Public Property Finance Act Contract No0.9365

I have examined the Public Property Finance Act Contract No.9365 (the "Finance Contract") between the
City of Corinth (the "Issuer") and Government Capital Corporation ("GCC"). The Finance Contract provides
financing for the purchase by the City of Corinth of certain Property as identified in the Finance Contract
and provides that the Issuer shall finance the Property by making Payments as specified in the Public
Property Finance Act Contract No0.9365.

I have also examined other certificates and documents as I have deemed necessary and appropriate under
the circumstances.

Based upon the foregoing examination, I am of the opinion that:
1. The Issuer is a political subdivision or agency of the State of Texas with the requisite power
and authority to incur obligations, the interest on which is exempt from taxation by virtue of

Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;

2. The execution, delivery and performance by the Issuer of the Finance Contract have been
duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Issuer; and

3. The Finance Contract constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Issuer enforceable
in accordance with its terms.

The opinion expressed above is solely for the benefit of the Issuer, GCC and/or its subsequent successors
or assigns.

Sincerely,

Attorney at Law



182

RESOLUTION #

A RESOLUTION REGARDING A CONTRACT FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING AN "AMBULANCE".

WHEREAS, City of Corinth (the "Issuer") desires to enter into that certain Finance Contract No.9365, by and
between the Issuer and Government Capital Corporation ("GCC") for the purpose of financing an
“Ambulance”. The Issuer desires to designate this Finance Contract as a "qualified tax exempt obligation"
of the Issuer for the purposes of Section 265 (b) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF CORINTH:

Section 1. That the Issuer will enter into a Finance Contract with GCC for the purpose of financing
an “Ambulance”.

Section 2. That the Finance Contract dated as of February 10, 2021, by and between the City of
Corinth and GCC is designated by the Issuer as a "qualified tax exempt obligation" for the purposes of
Section 265 (b) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Section 3. That the Issuer will designate Bob Hart, City Manager, as an authorized signer of the
Finance Contract dated as of February 10, 2021, by and between the City of Corinth and GCC.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Board of the City of Corinth in a meeting held on the day of
, 2021.
Issuer: City of Corinth Witness Signature
Bill Heidemann, Mayor Lana Wylie, City Secretary

10



w-9
Form

(Rev. October 2018)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

» Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

183

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

following seven boxes.

|:| Individual/sole proprietor or D C Corporation

single-member LLC

Print or type.

|:| Other (see instructions) »

D S Corporation

|:| Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) »

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check Exemption from FATCA reporting
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the | 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to

certain entities, not individuals; see

instructions on page 3):
D Partnership D Trust/estate

Exempt payee code (if any)

code (if any)

(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.

See Specific Instructions on page 3.

Requester’s name and address (optional)

6 City, state, and ZIP code

7 List account number(s) here (optional)

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part |, later. For other - -
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a

TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and

Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

[ Social security number

or
| Employer identification number

Part i Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. 1 am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that | am

no longer subject to backup withholding; and
3. 1am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid,
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part Il later.

Slgn Signature of
Here U.S. person >

Date >

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

e Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

* Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
funds)

e Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)

e Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)

* Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

e Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
e Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tuition)

® Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

* Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident
alien), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding,
later.

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W=-9 (Rev. 10-2018)



Form 8038-G

» Under Internal Revenue Code section 149(e)
(Rev. September 2018)

» See separate instructions.

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds

Caution: If the issue price is under $100,000, use Form 8038-GC.
» Go to www.irs.gov/F8038G for instructions and the latest information.

184

OMB No. 1545-0720

Reporting Authority

If Amended Return, check here » []

1 lIssuer’s name

City of Cornith

2 |ssuer’s employer identification number (EIN)

75-1453222

3a Name of person (other than issuer) with whom the IRS may communicate about this return (see instructions)

Michael Ross, Fire Chief

3b Telephone number of other person shown on 3a

940-321-2141

4 Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite

3300 Corinth Parkway

5 Report number (For IRS Use Only)
1N

6 City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code

Corinth, Texas 76208

7 Date of issue

February 10, 2021

8 Name of issue

Finance Contract No. 9365

9 CUSIP number
None

10a Name and title of officer or other employee of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more information (see
instructions)

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance Director

10b Telephone number of officer or other
employee shown on 10a

940-321-2141

Type of Issue (enter the issue price). See the instructions and attach schedule.

11 Education . 11
12  Health and hospltal 12
13  Transportation 13
14  Public safety . 14 $306,309] 00
15  Environment (including sewage bonds) 15
16  Housing 16
17  Utilities . 17
18  Other. Describe > 18
19a If bonds are TANs or RANSs, check only box 19a » []

b If bonds are BANs, check only box 19b . » []
20 If bonds are in the form of a lease or installment sale check box >
Pa Description of Bonds. Complete for the entire issue for WhICh th|s form is belng filed.

(a) Final maturity date (b) Issue price ) ;Ei;egtrrii?miﬁ);on av(:ga\geelr?tgtticrjity (e) Yield
21 02/10/2026 $ 306,309.00 $ 306,309.00: 3.0492 years 2.495 %
Pa Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters’ discount)
22  Proceeds used for accrued interest . . 22 N/A
23  Issue price of entire issue (enter amount from line 21 column (b)) - . 23 $306,309| 00
24  Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters’ discount) 24 N/A
25 Proceeds used for credit enhancement 25 N/A
26 Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund 26 N/A
27  Proceeds used to refund prior tax-exempt bonds. Complete Part V . 27 N/A
28 Proceeds used to refund prior taxable bonds. Complete Part V 28 N/A
29 Total (add lines 24 through 28) . 29 N/A
Nonrefunding proceeds of the issue (subtract I|ne 29 from I|ne 23 and enter amount here) 30 $306,309| 00
Description of Refunded Bonds. Complete this part only for refunding bonds.

31  Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the tax-exempt bonds to be refunded . > N/A years
32  Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the taxable bonds to be refunded . 4 N/A years
33 Enter the last date on which the refunded tax-exempt bonds will be called (MM/DD/YYYY) . > N/A
34  Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds were issued » (MM/DD/YYYY)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions.

Cat. No. 63773S

Form 8038-G (Rev. 9-2018)



Form 8038-G (Rev. 9-2018)
Part Vi Miscellaneous

185

Page 2

35 Enter the amount of the state volume cap allocated to the issue under section 141(b)(5) . 35
36a Enter the amount of gross proceeds invested or to be invested in a guaranteed investment contract
(GIC). See instructions . 36a
b Enter the final maturity date of the GIC > (MM/DD/YYYY)
¢ Enter the name of the GIC provider
37 Pooled financings: Enter the amount of the proceeds of this issue that are to be used to make loans
to other governmental units . . 37
38a If this issue is a loan made from the proceeds of another tax exempt issue, check box > I:I and enter the following information:
b Enter the date of the master pool bond » (MM/DD/YYYY)
¢ Enter the EIN of the issuer of the master pool bond »
d Enter the name of the issuer of the master pool bond >
39 If the issuer has designated the issue under section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(Il) (small issuer exception), check box
40 If the issuer has elected to pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate, check box O
41a If the issuer has identified a hedge, check here » [] and enter the following |nformat|on
b Name of hedge provider »
¢ Type of hedge
d Term of hedge »
42 If the issuer has superintegrated the hedge, check box . . . ]
43 If the issuer has established written procedures to ensure that aII nonquallfled bonds of thls issue are remediated
according to the requirements under the Code and Regulations (see instructions), check box . ]
44  If the issuer has established written procedures to monitor the requirements of section 148, check box . ]
45a If some portion of the proceeds was used to reimburse expenditures, check here » [] and enter the amount
of reimbursement . . . | 2
b Enter the date the official |ntent was adopted > (MM/DD/YYYY)
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge
Signature and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. | further declare that | consent to the IRS’s disclosure of the issuer’s return information, as necessary to
process this return, to the person that | have authorized above.
and
Consent } } Bob Hart, City Manager
Signature of issuer’s authorized representative Date Type or print name and title
Pald Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer’s signature Date Check D it | PTIN
self-employed
Preparer — ,
Use Only Frrm’s name » Firm’s EIN >
Firm’s address » Phone no.

Form 8038-G (Rev. 9-2018)



186

WIRE TRANSFER FORM

*** FINANCIAL INSTITUTION INFORMATION ***

Bank's Name:

Bank's Address:

Bank's Phone#:

Bank's Fed Routing#:
(Please confirm with bank since it may be different from routing number on deposit slip)

Bank Account Name:

Bank Account #:

Ref (if needed):

Please note that while there will not be a charge for our outgoing wire, your Bank
may charge a fee for the incoming wire

I hereby authorize Government Capital Corporation to transfer any monies due via wire
transfer directly to our bank.

Signature:

Name:

Title:

Date:




187

BUSINESS ITEM 7.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021
Title: AWIA Risk-Resiliency Assessment
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Infrastructure Development
Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government
AGENDA ITEM

Consider authorizing the engagement of Kimley-Horn and Associates to prepare the Risk Assessment and
Emergency Response Plan on the water infrastructure and authorize the City Manager to sign the contract with
an amount not to exceed $56,000.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

On October 23, 2018, America's Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) was signed into law. AWIA Section 2013
requires community (drinking) water systems serving more than 3,300 people to develop or update risk assessments
and emergency response plans (ERPs). The law specifies the components that the risk assessments and ERPs must
address and establishes deadlines by which water systems must certify to EPA completion of the risk assessment
and ERP.

Risk and Resilience Assessment Requirements and Assistance Resources

Each community water system serving a population of greater than 3,300 persons shall assess its system's risks and
resilience. Such an assessment shall include:

1. the risk to the system from malevolent acts and natural hazards;

2. the resilience of the pipes and constructed conveyances, physical barriers, source water, water collection and
intake, pretreatment, treatment, storage and distribution facilities, electronic, computer, or other automated
systems (including the security of such systems) which are utilized by the system;

. the monitoring practices of the system;

. the financial infrastructure of the system;

. the use, storage, or handling of various chemicals by the system; and

. the operation and maintenance of the system.

AN D B~ W

Emergency Response Plan Requirements and Assistance Resource
No later than six months after certifying completion of its risk and resilience assessment, each system must prepare
an emergency response plan that incorporates the findings of the assessment. The plan shall include:

1. strategies and resources to improve the resilience of the system, including the physical security and
cybersecurity of the system;

2. plans and procedures that can be implemented, and identification of equipment that can be utilized in the
event of a malevolent act or natural hazard that threatens the ability of the community water system to deliver
safe drinking water;

3. actions, procedures, and equipment that can obviate or significantly lessen the impact of a malevolent act or
natural hazard on the public health and the safety and supply of drinking water provided to communities and
individuals, including the development of alternative source water options, relocation of water intakes and
construction of flood protection barriers; and

4. strategies that can be used to aid in the detection of malevolent acts or natural hazards that threaten the
security or resilience of the system.



188
The City of Corinth submitted for RFQs in October 2020, and the following submittals were received:

1. AARC Consultants, LLC.

2. Freese and Nichols, Inc.

3. IMEG Corp.

4. Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. was selected as the most qualified firm to perform the City of Corinth services.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends awarding the contract with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. and authorizing the City Manager
to execute all necessary documents.

Attachments
Contract AWIA Risk-Resiliency Assessment-ERP Kimley-Horn




189

STATE OF TEXAS 8
8 AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES
COUNTY OF DENTON 8

This agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the City of Corinth, Texas,
a home-rule municipal corporation (“City”) and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., a
corporation (“Consultant”), (each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”), acting by and
through their authorized representatives.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the services of the Consultant as an
independent contractor, and not as an employee, to provide the services described in
Exhibit “A” (the “Scope of Services” or “Services”) to assist the City with the following
project: AWIA RISK & RESILIENCY ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE
PLAN (the “Project”) on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant desires to render services for the City on the terms
and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, City published a request for Statement of Qualifications for the Project
and Consultant provided a response; and

WHEREAS, City determined Consultant to be the most qualified respondent and
entered into negotiations for Consultant to provide the Services set forth in this
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, City Council approved the award of this Agreement to Consultant in
accordance with the terms set forth herein;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the mutual
covenants set forth herein, and other valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt
of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

Article |
Incorporation of Recitals/Agreement Documents/Term

1.1 Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and
are incorporated herein.

1.2  Agreement. This Agreement shall be comprised of the following documents:
(1) this Agreement; (2) Exhibit “A”, “Scope of Services”; (3) Exhibit “B”, “Project
Schedule”; (4) Exhibit “C”, “Fee Schedule”; (5) City’'s Request for Statement of
Quialifications for AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan
(“City SOQ"), a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “D”

Page 1 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



190

hereto; and (6) Consultant’s response to City SOQ, a copy of which is attached hereto
and incorporated herein as Exhibit “E” hereto. In the event of a conflict between one or
more of the terms and provisions contained within the foregoing documents, in order to
resolve any such conflict, priority of interpretation shall be given in the order that those
documents are listed in this section.

1.3 Term. This Agreement shall commence on the last date of execution hereof
(“Effective Date”) and continue until completion of the Services, unless sooner terminated
as provided herein.

Article I
Scope of Service

2.1  The Consultant shall perform the Services in connection with the Project as
set forth in the Scope of Services. The Consultant, if a licensed engineer or registered
architect shall perform the Services: (i) with the prevailing professional skill and care
ordinarily provided by competent engineers or architects, as the case may be, practicing
in the same or similar locality and under the same or similar circumstances and
professional license but not limited to the exercise of reasonable, informed judgments
and prompt, timely action; and (ii) as expeditiously as is prudent considering the ordinary
professional skill and care of a competent engineer or architect, as the case may be. If
the Consultant is not a licensed engineer or registered architect, the Consultant shall
perform the Services: (i) with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by similar
consultants practicing in the same or similar locality and under the same circumstances
and applicable licenses or certifications; and (ii) as expeditiously as is prudent considering
the ordinary skill and care of similar competent consultants.

2.2 The City shall, prior to commencement of Services, provide the Consultant
with the information set forth in the Scope of Services, if any.

2.3  The Parties acknowledge and agree that any and all opinions provided by
the Consultant in connection with the Scope of Services represent the professional
judgment of the Consultant, in accordance with the standard of care applicable by law to
the Services performed hereunder.

2.4 All information, documents, records and reports developed as a result of
the Services provided under this Agreement shall be the property of the City (hereinafter
“Documents”). Any use by Consultant of the Documents developed hereunder, whether
for publication or for work with other clients, must receive prior written permission from
the City. During the term and all renewals of this Agreement, all such Documents
generated, compiled, collected or collated shall be maintained in the format required by
City. Further, all such Documents shall be returned to City upon termination of this
Agreement, and upon such termination shall be returned in the format required by City.

Page 2 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



191

Article Il
Schedule of Work — Project Completion

The Consultant agrees to complete the required Services and submit all work
required by the City in accordance with the Project Schedule, a copy of which is attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B”, and as outlined in the Scope of Services.
The Parties hereto agree and understand that time is of the essence and that failure to
timely perform obligations as required under this Agreement will result in damages to the
other Party. Times for performance may be extended as necessary for any delay caused
by any factor outside the reasonable control of a Party, by mutual agreement of the
Parties, provided that all required Services are completed by the deadlines set forth in the
2018 America’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA).

Article IV
Compensation and Method of Payment

4.1  Consultant will be compensated in accordance with the Fee Schedule, a
copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “C”.  Unless
otherwise provided herein, payment to the Consultant shall be monthly based on the
Consultant’s monthly progress report and detailed monthly itemized statement for
Services that shows the names of the Consultant’'s employees, agents, contractors
performing the Services, the time worked, the actual Services performed, the rates
charges for such service, reimbursable expenses, the total amount of fee earned to date,
percentage of work completed on the Project through the end of the then submitted billing
period, and the amount due and payable as of the current statement, in a form reasonably
acceptable to the City. Monthly statements shall include authorized non-salary expenses
with supporting itemized invoices and documentation. The City shall pay such approved
monthly statements within thirty (30) days after receipt and City verification of the Services
and expenses unless otherwise provided herein. The final payment of the compensation
shall be made after satisfactory completion of the Services following the City acceptance
of the study, report, recommendation or other work set forth in the Scope of Services.
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall require City to pay for any work that is
unsatisfactory as determined by City or which is not submitted in compliance with the
terms of this Agreement, nor shall failure to withhold payment pursuant to the provisions
of this section constitute a waiver of any right, at law or in equity, which City may have if
Consultant is in default, including the right to bring legal action for damages or for specific
performance of this Agreement. Waiver of any default under this Agreement shall not be
deemed a waiver of any subsequent default.

4.2  Unless otherwise provided in the Scope of Services, the Consultant shall
be responsible for all expenses related to the Services provided pursuant to this
Agreement including, but not limited to, travel, copying and facsimile charges, telephone,
internet and email charges. If additional services, trips or expenses are requested,
Consultant will not provide such additional services until authorized by City in writing to
proceed. The Scope of Services shall be strictly limited. City shall not be required to pay

Page 3 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



192

any amount in excess of the amount identified in the preceding paragraph unless City
shall have approved in writing in advance (prior to the performance of additional work)
the payment of additional amounts.

4.3  The hourly rates set forth in the Scope of Services, if any, shall remain in
effect during the term of this Agreement. Any changes to established hourly rates shall
require the prior written consent of the City.

4.4  Consultant shall keep accurate records of its Services and expenses
incurred in the performance of this Agreement and shall make the same available to City
for inspection and copying upon five (5) days’ notice thereof. These records shall be kept
by Consultant for two (2) years following the expiration of this Agreement.

Article V
Devotion of Time; Personnel; and Equipment

5.1 The Consultant shall devote such time as reasonably necessary for the
satisfactory performance of the Services under this Agreement. Should the City require
additional services not included under this Agreement, the Consultant shall make
reasonable effort to provide such additional services within the time schedule without
decreasing the effectiveness of the performance of services required under this
Agreement and shall be compensated for such additional services on a time and materials
basis, in accordance with Consultant’s standard hourly rate schedule, or as otherwise
agreed between the Parties. When Consultant is directed to revise or expand the Scope
of Services under this Section of the Agreement, Consultant shall provide City a written
proposal for the entire costs involved in performing such additional services. Prior to
Consultant undertaking any revised or expanded services as directed by City under this
Agreement, City must authorize in writing the nature and scope of such services and
accept the method and amount of compensation and the time involved in all phases of
the Project. Itis expressly understood and agreed by Consultant that any compensation
not specified in Article IV herein above may require Corinth City Council approval and is
subject to the current budget year limitations.

5.2 To the extent reasonably necessary for the Consultant to perform the
Services under this Agreement, the Consultant shall be authorized to engage the services
of any agents, assistants, persons, or corporations that the Consultant may deem proper
to aid or assist in the performance of the Services under this Agreement. The Consultant
shall provide written notice to and obtain written approval from the City prior to engaging
services not referenced in the Scope of Services. The cost of such personnel and
assistance shall be included as part of the total compensation to be paid Consultant
hereunder and shall not otherwise be reimbursed by the City unless otherwise provided
herein.

Page 4 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



193

5.3 The Consultant shall furnish the facilities, equipment and personnel
necessary to perform the Services required under this Agreement unless otherwise
provided herein.

5.4  The City may require that Consultant submit monthly progress reports and
attend monthly progress meetings scheduled by the City or more frequently as may be
required by the City from time to time based upon Project demands. Each progress report
shall detail the work accomplished and special problems or delays experienced on the
Project during the previous report period, and the planned work activities and special
problems or delays anticipated for the next report period.

Article VI
Miscellaneous

6.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement
between the Parties and supersedes any prior understandings written or oral agreements
between the Parties with respect to this subject matter.

6.2  Assignment. The Consultant may not assign this Agreement without the
prior written consent of City. In the event of an assignment by the Consultant to which the
City has consented, the assignee shall agree in writing with the City to personally assume,
perform, and be bound by all the covenants and obligations contained in this Agreement.

6.3  Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provisions regarding assignment,
this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the Parties to it and their
respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and
assigns.

6.4  Governing Law and Venue. The Agreement is entered into subject to the
Corinth City Charter and ordinances of City, as same may be amended from time to time,
and is subject to and is to be construed, governed and enforced under all applicable State
of Texas and federal laws. Consultant will make any and all reports required per federal,
state or local law including, but not limited to, proper reporting to the Internal Revenue
Service, as required in accordance with Consultant’s income. Situs of this Agreement is
agreed to be Denton County, Texas, for all purposes, including performance and
execution. The parties to this Agreement agree and covenant that this Agreement will be
enforceable in Corinth, Texas; and that if legal action is necessary to enforce this
Agreement, exclusive venue will lie in Denton County, Texas.

6.5 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written
agreement of the Parties.

6.6  Severability. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this
Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any
respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions,

Page5 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



194

and the Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
provision had never been contained in it.

6.7 Independent Contractor. It is understood and agreed by and between the
Parties that the Consultant, in satisfying the conditions of this Agreement, is acting
independently, and that the City assumes no responsibility or liabilities to any third party
in connection with these actions. All Services to be performed by Consultant pursuant to
this Agreement shall be in the capacity of an independent contractor, and not as an agent
or employee of the City. Consultant will have exclusive control of and the exclusive right
to control the details of the work performed hereunder, and shall be liable for the acts and
omissions of its officers, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors and engineers
and the doctrine of respondeat superior shall not apply as between City and Consultant,
its officers, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors and engineers, and nothing
herein shall be construed as creating a partnership or joint enterprise between City and
Consultant.

6.8 Right-of-Access. The Consultant shall not enter onto private property
without lawful right-of-access to perform the required surveys, or other necessary
investigations. The Consultant will take reasonable precautions to minimize damage to
the private and public property in the performance of such surveys and investigations.
Any right-of-access to public or private property shall be obtained in accordance with the
Scope of Services.

6.9  Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder may be
sent by first class mail, courier, or by confirmed telefax or facsimile to the address
specified below, or to such other Party or address as either Party may designate in writing,
and shall be deemed received three (3) days after delivery or on the day actually received
if sent by courier or otherwise hand delivered:

If intended for City:

Attn: Melissa Dolan
Address:

City of Corinth, Texas
3300 Corinth Parkway
Corinth, Texas 76208
Telephone: 940-498-7540

Email: Melissa.Dolan@cityofcorinth.com
If intended for Consultant:
Attn: M. Anthony Samatrripas, P.E.

Address:
13455 Noel Road

Page 6 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



195

Two Galleria Office Tower, Suite 700

Dallas, Texas 75240

Telephone: 972-770-1300

Fax: 972-239-3820

Email: Anthony.samarripas@kimley-horn.com

6.10 Insurance. Before commencing work, Consultant shall, at its own expense,
procure, pay for and shall maintain during the term of this Agreement insurance in
accordance with the requirements set forth in the City SOQ, Exhibit “D”, entitled
“Insurance Requirements”, and written by companies approved by the state of Texas and
acceptable to the City. Consultant shall furnish to the City certificates of insurance
executed by the insurer or its authorized agent stating coverages, limits, expiration dates
and compliance with all applicable required provisions. Certificates shall reference the
Project and be provided to the City.

6.11 Debarment and Suspension.

(@) In accordance with 2 CFR section 180.300, the principal of this Agreement
as described in 2 CFR section 180.995 being duly sworn or under penalty
of perjury under the laws of the United States, certifies that neither this
company nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in
this transaction by any federal department or agency, the State of Texas or
any of its departments or agencies.

(b) If during the Agreement Term the principal becomes debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from
participation, the principal shall immediately inform the City.

(c) For contracts that are financed by Federal or State grants, the principal
agrees that this section will be enforced on each of its subcontractors, and
will inform the City of any violations of this section by subcontractors to the
contract.

(d) The certification in this section is a material representation of fact relied
upon by the City in entering into this contract.

6.12 Indemnification. CONSULTANT DOES HEREBY COVENANT AND
CONTRACT TO WAIVE ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, RELEASE, DEFEND, INDEMNIFY,
AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY, ITS CITY COUNCIL, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES,
AND AGENTS, IN BOTH THEIR PUBLIC AND PRIVATE CAPACITIES, FROM AND
AGAINST ALL LIABILITY, CAUSES OF ACTION, CITATIONS, CLAIMS, COSTS,
DAMAGES, DEMANDS, EXPENSES, FINES, JUDGMENTS, LOSSES, PENALTIES
OR SUITS, WHICH IN ANY WAY ARISE OUT OF, RELATE TO, ARE CAUSED BY OR
RESULT FROM CONSULTANT'S PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR

Page 7 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



196

WHICH ARE CAUSED BY INTENTIONAL WRONGFUL ACTS OR NEGLIGENT ACTS
OR OMISSIONS OF CONSULTANT, ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, ANY OFFICERS,
AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES OF EITHER CONSULTANT OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS,
AND ANY OTHER THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM OR WHICH CONSULTANT IS
LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE (THE “INDEMNIFIED ITEMS”) THE NEGLIGENCE,
INTENTIONAL TORT, INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INFRINGEMENT, OR FAILURE
TO PAY A SUBCONTRACTOR OR SUPPLIER COMMITTED BY CONSULTANT, ITS
AGENT, ITS CONSULTANT UNDER CONTRACT, OR ANY OTHER ENTITY OVER
WHICH THE CONSULTANT EXERCISES CONTROL SUBJECT TO THE
LIMITATIONS IN TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE § 271.904 AND TEXAS CIVIL
PRACTICE AND REMEDIES CODE, § 130.002 (B).

BY WAY OF EXAMPLE, THE INDEMNIFIED ITEMS MAY INCLUDE PERSONAL
INJURY AND DEATH CLAIMS AND PROPERTY DAMAGE CLAIMS, INCLUDING
THOSE FOR LOSS OF USE OF PROPERTY.

INDEMNIFIED ITEMS SHALL INCLUDE ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS,
COURT COSTS, AND SETTLEMENT COSTS. INDEMNIFIED ITEMS SHALL ALSO
INCLUDE ANY EXPENSES, INCLUDING ATTORNEYS' FEES AND EXPENSES,
INCURRED BY AN INDEMNIFIED INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY IN ATTEMPTING TO
ENFORCE THIS INDEMNITY.

IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION, THE CITY SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO APPROVE
COUNSEL TO BE RETAINED BY CONSULTANT IN FULFILLING ITS OBLIGATION
TO DEFEND AND INDEMNIFY THE CITY. CONSULTANT SHALL RETAIN CITY’S
APPROVED COUNSEL FOR THE CITY WITHIN SEVEN (7) BUSINESS DAYS AFTER
RECEIVING WRITTEN NOTICE FROM THE CITY THAT IT IS INVOKING ITS RIGHT
TO INDEMNIFICATION UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. IF CONSULTANT DOES NOT
RETAIN COUNSEL FOR THE CITY WITHIN THE REQUIRED TIME, THEN THE CITY
SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO RETAIN COUNSEL AND THE CONSULTANT SHALL
PAY THESE ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND EXPENSES. THE CITY RETAINS THE RIGHT
TO PROVIDE AND PAY FOR ANY OR ALL COSTS OF DEFENDING INDEMNIFIED
ITEMS, BUT IT SHALL NOT BE REQUIRED TO DO SO.

THE CONSULTANT’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS SECTION SHALL NOT BE
LIMITED TO THE LIMITS OF COVERAGE OF INSURANCE MAINTAINED OR
REQUIRED TO BE MAINTAINED BY CONSULTANT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

THIS INDEMNIFICATION PROVISION SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION
OF THIS AGREEMENT.

6.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by the Parties hereto in
separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an
original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument.

Page 8 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



197

Each counterpart may consist of any number of copies hereof each signed by less than
all, but together signed by all of the Parties hereto.

6.14 Exhibits. The exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein and made a
part hereof for all purposes.

6.15 Consultant’s Liability. Acceptance of the Documents by the City shall not
constitute nor be deemed a release of the responsibility and liability of Consultant, its
employees, associates, agents or Consultants for the accuracy and competency of their
designs, working drawings, specifications or other documents and work; nor shall such
acceptance be deemed an assumption of responsibility by City for any defect in the
designs, working drawings, specifications or other documents and work; nor shall such
acceptance be deemed an assumption of responsibility by City for any defect in the
designs, working drawings, specifications or other documents and work prepared by said
Consultant, its employees, associates, agents or sub-Consultants.

6.16 Right to Inspect Records. Consultant agrees that City shall have access to
and the right to examine any directly pertinent books, documents, papers and records of
Consultant involving transactions relating to this Agreement. Consultant agrees that City
shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary Consultant facilities and
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in
compliance with the provisions of this section. City shall give Consultant reasonable
advance notice of intended audits. Consultant further agrees to include in subcontract(s),
if any, a provision that any subcontractor or engineer agrees that City shall have access
to and the right to examine any directly pertinent books, documents, papers and records
of such engineer or sub-contractor involving transactions to the subcontract, and further,
that City shall have access during normal working hours to all such engineer or sub-
contractor facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space, in order
to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of the paragraph. City shall give any
such engineer or sub-contractor reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

6.17 Default/Termination. If at any time during the term of this Agreement,
Consultant shall fail to commence the work in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement or fail to diligently provide Services in an efficient, timely and careful manner
and in strict accordance with the provisions of this Agreement or fail to use an adequate
number or quality of personnel to complete the work or fail to perform any of its obligations
under this Agreement in accordance with its terms, including without limitation the Scope
of Services and/or the Project Schedule, then City shall have the right, if Consultant shall
not cure any such default after ten (10) days written notice thereof, to terminate this
Agreement on the eleventh (11") day following the date of City’s written notice of default.
Any such act by City shall not be deemed a waiver of any other right or remedy of City.

6.18 Termination Without Cause. In addition to termination for default as set forth
in Section 6.17 of this Agreement, the City may terminate this Agreement at any time by

Page 9 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



198

City without cause by providing Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of such
termination.

6.19 Payment Obligations Upon Termination. Upon receipt of termination notice
under either Section 6.17 or Section 6.18, Consultant shall immediately terminate working
on, placing orders or entering into contracts for supplies, assistance, facilities or materials
in connection with this Agreement and shall proceed to promptly cancel all existing
contracts insofar as they are related to this Agreement. Upon termination, City shall pay
all money owed to Consultant based upon tasks satisfactorily completed as of the date of
notice of termination. If Consultant has not met one or more percentage benchmarks as
identified in Exhibit “B”, “Project Schedule”, Consultant shall submit an invoice
containing an itemized list of tasks performed with the associated hourly fee. In no event
shall individual fees or the cost of such itemized list exceed the Lump Sum payment for
the specific service provided by Consultant as listed in Exhibit “C”, “Fee Schedule”.
Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for any Services completed to the
reasonable satisfaction of the City in accordance with this Agreement prior to such
termination.

In addition to the foregoing, If after exercising any such remedy due to Consultant’s
nonperformance under this Agreement, the cost to City to complete the work to be
performed under this Agreement is in excess of that part of the Agreement sum which
has not theretofore been paid to Consultant hereunder, Consultant shall be liable for and
shall reimburse City for such excess. City's remedies for Consultant’s default or breach
under this Agreement shall include monetary damages as allowed by law, re-performance
of this Agreement at no extra charge to City, or equitable remedies, including without
limitation specific performance of this Agreement.

6.20 Confidential Information. Consultant hereby acknowledges and agrees that
its representatives may have access to or otherwise receive information during the
furtherance of its obligations in accordance with this Agreement, which is of a confidential,
non-public or proprietary nature. Consultant shall treat any such information received in
full confidence and will not disclose or appropriate such Confidential Information for its
own use or the use of any third party at any time during or subsequent to this Agreement.
As used herein, “Confidential Information” means all oral and written information
concerning City, its affiliates and subsidiaries, and all oral and written information
concerning City or its activities, that is of a non-public, proprietary or confidential nature
including, without limitation, information pertaining to customer lists, services, methods,
processes and operating procedures, together with all analyses, compilation, studies or
other documents, whether prepared by Consultant or others, which contain or otherwise
reflect such information. The term “Confidential Information” shall not include such
materials that are or become generally available to the public other than as a result of
disclosure of Consultant or are required to be disclosed by a governmental authority.

6.21 Conflict of Interest. Consultant covenants and agrees that Consultant and
its associates and employees will have no interest, and will acquire no interest, either

Page 10 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



199

direct or indirect, which will conflict in any manner with the performance of the Services
called for under this Agreement. All activities, investigations and other efforts made by
Consultant pursuant to this Agreement will be conducted by employees, associates or
subcontractors of Consultant.

6.22 No Third-Party Beneficiary. For purposes of this Agreement, including its
intended operation and effect, the parties (City and Consultant) specifically agree and
contract that: (1) the Agreement only affects matters/disputes between the parties to this
Agreement, and is in no way intended by the parties to benefit or otherwise affect any
third person or entity notwithstanding the fact that such third person or entity may be in
contractual relationship with City or Consultant or both; and (2) the terms of this
Agreement are not intended to release, either by contract or operation of law, any third
person or entity from obligations owing by them to either City or Consultant.

6.23 Prohibition regarding Israel. Pursuant to the requirements of Texas
Government Code Chapter 2270, Consultant verifies that it does not boycott Israel, and
it will not boycott Israel during the term of this Agreement.

(Signature Page to Follow)

Page 11 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



200

EXECUTED this day of , 2021.

CiTY OF CORINTH, TEXAS

By:
Bob Hart, City Manager
Attest:
By:
Lana Wylie, City Secretary
Approved As To Form:
By:
Patricia A. Adams, City Attorney
EXECUTED this day of , 2021.
CONSULTANT

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

By:

Name:

Title:

Page 12 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



201

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

CONSULTANT
STATE OF TEXAS )
)
COUNTY OF )
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of
; 2021, by ,
of Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., a corporation, on behalf
of such entity.
Notary Public, State of Texas
CITY
STATE OF TEXAS )
)
COUNTY OF DENTON )
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of

, 2021 by BOB HART, City Manager of the City of Corinth, a home
rule municipal corporation, on behalf of such corporation.

Notary Public, State of Texas

Page 13 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth - AWAI Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



202

EXHIBIT“A”
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Consultant shall conduct an assessment of the risks to and the resilience of the City of Corinth’s water
system for the preparation and implantation of an Emergency Response Plan that incorporates the findings
of the Assessment. The Assessment and Emergency Response Plan must comply with the requirements
of America’s Water Infrastructure Act of 2018, 42 U.S.C.A. 300i-2.

Project Understanding:

AWIA legislation requires that community water systems serving populations greater than 3,300 shall
assess the risks to, and resilience of, its water system and submit certification to the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). No later than six (6) months after certifying this Risk and
Resiliency Assessment, (“RRA"), each community water system serving populations greater than 3,300
shall conduct an Emergency Response Plan, (“‘ERP”), and send provide certification to the EPA. AWIA
compliance deadlines for the Client are as follows:

e Certify RRA prior to June 30, 2021; and
e Certify ERP within six (6) months of RRA certification, but no later than December 30, 2021.

At a minimum, the RRA must consider the following risks to, and resilience of, its system:

e Malevolent acts and natural hazards;

e Resilience of the pipes and constructed conveyances, physical barriers, source water, water
collection and intake, pretreatment, treatment, storage and distribution facilities, electronic,
computer, or other automated systems;

Monitoring practices of the system;

Financial infrastructure of the system;

Use, storage, or handling of various chemicals by the system; and

Operation and maintenance of the system.

The RRA may include an evaluation of capital and operational needs for risk and resilience management
for the system.

At a minimum, the ERP must consider the following:

e Strategies and resources to improve the resilience of the system, including the physical security
and cybersecurity of the system;

e Plans and procedures that can be implemented, and identification of equipment that can be utilized,
in the event of a malevolent act or natural hazard that threatens the ability of the community water
system to deliver safe drinking water; and

e Actions, procedures and equipment which can obviate or significantly lessen the impact of a
malevolent act or natural hazard on the public health and the safety and supply of drinking water
provided to communities and individuals, including the development of alternative source water
options, relocation of water intakes, and construction of flood protection barriers; and

e Strategies that can be used to aid in the detection of malevolent acts or natural hazards that
threaten the security or resilience of the system.



203

Community water systems shall to the extent possible, coordinate with local emergency planning
committees established under the Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act of 1986 when
preparing or revising an assessment or emergency response plan under the AWIA. Further, systems must
maintain a copy of the assessment and emergency response plan for five years after certifying the plan to
the EPA.

The Scope of Services includes the following basic services:

Task 1 - General Items and Meetings

A. Kick-off Meeting - Conduct kick-off meeting with the City to develop the goals, schedule, and
deliverables for the project.

B. Risk and Resilience Assessment Review Meeting - Conduct meeting with City to review draft
Risk and Resilience Assessment prior to submitting certification to EPA.

C. Emergency Response Plan Workshop Meeting — Conduct meeting with emergency response
planning stakeholders at the City to workshop City’'s Emergency Response Plan.

D. Emergency Response Plan Review Meeting — Conduct meeting with City to review draft
Emergency Response Plan prior to submitting certification to EPA.

Task 2 - Data Collection

The City will provide the Consultant the following information, if available (digital or hard copy) for applicable
water facilities:

A. Record drawings of existing City facilities: custody transfer, treatment, pumping, storage and
distribution facilities.

B. Construction plans for any proposed City water facilities.
C. Water demand figures: average daily demand (ADD), maximum daily demand (MDD).

D. Water purchase contracts.

E. Operation data including: daily pumping rates, well production rates, storage tank operating
levels, etc.

F. Quantitative information regarding billing practices.
G. Previously completed assessments, studies, reports or evaluations.
H. Previous and/or existing emergency response plan and associated planning documents.

Task 3 - Risk and Resilience Assessment

The Risk and Resilience Assessment will be conducted to fulfill the EPA’s requirements. The EPA’s Small
System Guidance and Template will be utilized. The following sub-tasks are required in order to complete
the RRA in accordance with AWIA requirements:

A. ldentify Water System Assets

B. Identify Water System Threats

C. Assign Consequence Outcomes



204

D. Identify Water System Vulnerabilities

E. Assess Water System Resilience

F. Prepare Risk and Resiliency Assessment Report

G. Provide Risk and Resiliency Assessment Certification to EPA

Task 4 - Emergency Response Plan

The Emergency Response Plan will be conducted to fulfill the EPA’s requirements. The EPA’'s Emergency
Response Plan Template will be utilized. The following sub-tasks will be conducted in order to complete
the ERP in accordance with AWIA requirements:

A. Utility Overview

B. Scope of Emergency Response Plan

O

. List of Applicable Standards and References

D. Summary of RRA Risks

m

. Identify Emergency Response Roles

T

. Identify Mutual Aid Organizations and Relationships
G. Prepare Emergency Response Plan Document

H. Provide Emergency Response Plan Certification



205

ExHIBIT“B”
PROJECT SCHEDULE

A. Risk and Resiliency Assessment — Due to the City by June 15, 2021 and due to the EPA by June
30, 2021.

B. Emergency Response Plan — Due to the City by December 7, 2021 and due to the EPA by
December 31, 2021.

No later than six months after certifying completion of its Risk and Resilience Assessment, each system
must prepare or revise, where necessary, an Emergency Response Plan that incorporates the findings of
the Assessment.

Responsibilities of City:
City shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services of Consultant:

A. Designate in writing a person to act as City’s representative with respect to the services to be
rendered under this Agreement. Such person shall have contract authority to transmit instructions,
receive information, interpret and define City’s policies and decisions with respect to Consultant’s
services.

B. Provide available information as to City’s requirements for the Project, including objectives and
constraints, performance requirements, and any budgetary limitations.

C. Assist Consultant by placing at Consultant’s disposal available information pertinent to the
Project including previous reports and any other data relative to the Project.

D. Arrange for access to and make all provisions for Consultant to enter upon public and private
property as required for Consultant to perform services under this Agreement.

E. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, proposals and other documents presented by
Consultant, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance counselor and other consultants as City deems
appropriate for such examination and render in writing decisions pertaining thereto within a
reasonable time so as not to delay the services of Consultant.

F. Furnish approvals and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the
Project and such approvals and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of the
Project.

G. Give prompt written notice to Consultant whenever City observes or otherwise becomes aware
of any development that affects the scope or timing of Consultant's services.



206

EXHIBIT“C”
FEE SCHEDULE

For Tasks 1 thru 4 included in Exhibit “A” (Scope of Services), the City agrees to pay the Consultant an
amount not to exceed the following fee schedule:

Basic Services

Task 1 — General ltems and Meetings: $7,500

Task 2 — Data Collection: $10,000

Task 3 — Risk and Resiliency Assessment: $18,500

Task 4 — Emergency Response Plan: $20,000

Total Basic Services Fee: $56,000

If the City requests the Consultant to provide additional services that are not included in the scope of
services as specified in Exhibit “A”, an equitable adjustment will be made through an amendment to this
Agreement with appropriate City approval.

For Tasks 1 thru 4, the City shall compensate the Consultant for the professional engineering services
included in this Exhibit on a lump sum basis. The lump sum fee includes labor costs and direct expenses
identified in this contract, as well as items such as in-house duplicating, printing, facsimile, local mileage,
telephone, postage, and computer expenses.

The Consultant shall be paid monthly based on statements submitted to the City for the work accomplished
during the preceding month. Monthly statements for lump sum services will be based upon a reasonable

estimation of percent complete for each task.

Additional services if requested will be negotiated at the time of request.



207
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR
AMERICA’S WATER INFRASTRUCTURE ACT (AWIA) RISK & RESILIENCY
ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

SOQ #1137
CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS

IMPORTANT DATES:

SOQ Issue Date: Thursday, October 22, 2020

SOQ Publication Dates: October 22, 2020 & October 29, 2020
Questions Deadline: Thursday, November 5, 2020 @ 10:00 AM CST
Submittal Due Date and Time: Thursday, November 12, 2020 @ 11:00 AM CST

Sealed proposals for the materials or services specified will be received by the City of Corinth until the date and time as
indicated above.

Proposals will be received electronically through Bonfire, the City’s e-procurement system at
https://cityofcorinth.bonfirehub.com.

Electronic submittals must include all required information and attachments; with required signatures. All
response documents must be uploaded and included with your submittal in order to be considered.

Bid Contact:

Cindy Troyer

Purchasing Agent

3300 Corinth Parkway, 2" Floor
Corinth, Texas 76208
purchasing@cityofcorinth.com
(940) 498-3286

Additional instructions for preparing a response are provided within. All forms in Appendix B must be completed, signed
and returned with the proposal.

Requests for additional information should be made no later than the questions deadline above and shall be
directed to https://cityofcorinth.bonfirehub.com, or to the Purchasing Agent at purchasing@cityofcorinth.com. All
reguests must be made in writing. Oral explanations will not be binding.

Any interpretations, corrections, clarifications, or changes to this Request for Statements of Qualifications or specifications
will be made by addenda. Addenda will be posted at https://cityofcorinth.bonfirehub.com It is the responsibility of the
respondent to monitor the Bonfire website for addenda. Respondents shall acknowledge receipt of all addenda by
submitting a signed copy with their proposal.

The City of Corinth reserves the right to reject any and all proposals and to waive defects in proposals. No officer or
employee of the City of Corinth shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this or any contract with the City of Corinth.
Minority and small business vendors are encouraged to submit a bid on any and all City of Corinth projects.

The City appreciates your time and effort in preparing a response. Please note that proposals must be received by the
due date and time shown above. Proposals received later than the date and time above will will not be considered. The
City does not accept oral, telephone, or faxed proposals. Proposals submitted orally, by phone, or fax will be
disqualified and will not be considered in the evaluation process. Proposals will be accepted only if submitted online
through Bonfire. The City will not be responsible for, or consider missing, lost, or late deliveries.




CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 208
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

1. INTRODUCTION

The City of Corinth is accepting Statements of Qualifications from qualified firms to provide engineering services to conduct
a risk and resiliency assessment and form an emergency response plan as described in this Request for Statements of
Qualifications (SOQ). The successful Respondent shall execute a contract with the City to furnish all equipment, materials,
supplies, labor, permits, insurance and licenses in accordance with the instructions, specifications, terms and conditions set
forth in this Request for Statements of Qualifications (SOQ). The successful Respondent will be considered the sole point
of contact with regard to contractual matters, including payment of any and all charges resulting from the contract.

The contract shall commence upon the issuance of a Notice to Proceed by the City and shall automatically expire upon
completion of the work and acceptance by the City.

2. SPECIFICATIONS/SCOPE OF SERVICES

The successful firm will conduct an assessment of the risks to and the resilience of Corinth’s water system and for the
preparation and implantation of an Emergency Response Plan that incorporates the findings of the Assessment. The
Assessment and Emergency Response Plan must comply with the requirements of America’s Water Infrastructure Act of
2018, 42 U.S.C.A. 300i-2.

2018 Water Infrastructure Act Requirements

Requirements for the 2018 America’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) are summarized below but can be found at the
following web address:

https://www.epa.gov/waterresilience/americas-water-infrastructure-act-risk-assessments-and-emergency-response-plans

Key Project Tasks

A. Risk and Resiliency Assessment — Due to the EPA by June 30, 2021:

Each community water system serving a population of greater than 3,300 persons shall assess the risks to, and
resilience of, its system. Assessment shall include:

1. The risk to the system from malevolent acts and natural hazards;

2. The resilience of the pipes and constructed conveyances, physical barriers, source water, water collection and
intake, pretreatment, treatment, storage and distribution facilities, electronic, computer, or other automated
systems (including the security of such systems) which are utilized by the system;

The monitoring practices of the system;

The financial infrastructure of the system;

The use, storage, or handling of various chemicals by the system; and

The operation and maintenance of the system.

ook w

The assessment may include an evaluation of capital and operational needs for risk and resilience management for
the system.

B. Emergency Response Plan — Due to the EPA by December 31, 2021

No later than six months after certifying completion of its risk and resilience assessment, each system must prepare
or revise, where necessary, an emergency response plan that incorporates the findings of the assessment. The plan
shall include:

1. Strategies and resources to improve the resilience of the system, including the physical security and cybersecurity
of the system;

2. Plans and procedures that can be implemented, and identification of equipment that can be utilized, in the event
of a malevolent act or natural hazard that threatens the ability of the community water system to deliver safe
drinking water;

3. Actions, procedures and equipment which can obviate or significantly lessen the impact of a malevolent act or
natural hazard on the public health and the safety and supply of drinking water provided to communities and

PAGE 2 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 209
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

individuals, including the development of alternative source water options, relocation of water intakes and
construction of flood protection barriers; and

4. Strategies that can be used to aid in the detection of malevolent acts or natural hazards that threaten the security
or resilience of the system.

Community water systems shall to the extent possible, coordinate with local emergency planning committees
established under the Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act of 1986 when preparing or revising an
assessment or emergency response plan under the AWIA. Further, systems must maintain a copy of the assessment
and emergency response plan for five years after certifying the plan to the EPA.

Respondent shall comply with all requirements herein. Exceptions or deviations from the specifications shall be noted
on the Submittal Exception Form.

3. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS AND INSTRUCTIONS

A. FORMAT AND REQUIREMENTS FOR TECHNICAL PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL (PRICE/COST RELATED
INFORMATION SHALL NOT BE INCLUDED IN THE SUBMITTAL)

The technical proposal shall contain the following information at a minimum to be considered responsive and shall
be in the following order:

1. VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE

Complete the electronic vendor questionnaire on the Bonfire portal at https://cityofcorinth.bonfirehub.com

The following information will be required to complete the questionnaire:
2. COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE RISK ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY
RESPONSE PLAN

3. PROJECT APPROACH

a) Describe the firm’s proposed project management approach to fulfill the scope of services as required
in this SOQ.
b) Describe the firm’s technical approach to complete the scope of services

4. PROJECT SCHEDULE
a) Provide a proposed project schedule.

5. PROJECT EXPERIENCE

a) Provide verifiable information, regarding three studies similar in size and scope and completed within
the last ten years in the State of Texas including:

Owner Name

Point of Contact

Contact telephone number
Contact email address

6. PROJECT TEAM

a) Provide an organization chart showing key members of the project team and sub-consultants; including
team member names.

PAGE 3 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 210
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

b) Provide resumes of key personnel, including sub-consultants. Include background experience, and
project responsibilities of each key member

7. DISCLOSURES

a) Respondents must disclose any pending litigation or lawsuits.

b) Provide copy of Form 1295 Certificate of Interested Parties. All respondents must file the form
electronically at https://lwww.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf info form1295.htm and submit a
signed copy of the form to the City with their proposal. (See sample in Appendix B)

c) All respondents must complete the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire and submit a signed copy with
their proposal. (Form provided on the Bonfire portal)

8. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ADDENDA, IF APPLICABLE
a) Acknowledge and sign all addenda, if applicable.
9. SUBMITTAL FORMS - APPENDIX B
a) Complete and sign all forms included in Appendix B.
10. SAMPLE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT — APPENDIX C
a) The successful Respondent will be required to execute a substantial copy of the City’s form contract

included as a sample in Appendix C to this SOQ.

Proposals may not be withdrawn or canceled for a period of (120) days following the date designated for the receipt
of proposals, and respondents so agree upon the submission of their proposal. Respondents are expected to
examine the instructions, specifications, terms and conditions prior to submitting their SOQ. Failure to do so will be
at the respondent’s risk. At the City’s request, Respondents may be selected for in-person presentations. All
proposals and related materials become the property of the City. The City reserves the right to reject any or all
proposals submitted.

4. EVALUATION PROCEDURES

Consultant Selection Process

In fairness to all firms, requests for interviews prior to the closing time and date will not be permitted. Interviews with
selected firms may or may not be requested by the City after the closing date.

The following is the anticipated SOQ review and consultant selection process:

1. City Staff will review SOQ responses and compile a shortlist of qualified firms for further evaluation. Only those
firms who are placed on the shortlist on the basis of the evaluation criteria will be considered. Cost-related or
price-related evaluation factors will not be used. Written notification will be provided to shortlisted firms and to
those not selected for the shortlist.

2. City Staff may or may not conduct interviews with the shortlisted firms. Selection may be made strictly from the
information provided in the SOQ response. However, the City reserves the right to conduct interviews and
request presentations from any Respondent. City Staff will contact each shortlisted firm to arrange a date and
time for the interviews, if applicable.

3. City Staff will select the highest ranked firm based upon final review of the SOQ responses, and the shortlist
interviews, if applicable.

4. City Staff will enter into negotiations with the highest ranked firm on the basis of the SOQ response, and
interview, if applicable.

PAGE 4 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 211
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

5. Negotiations will continue until terms, conditions, and a fair and reasonable price are agreed upon. If a
successful contract cannot be negotiated with the most qualified firm, the City shall formally end negotiations
with that provider, select the next highest ranked firm, and begin negotiations, and continue this process until
successful negotiations are completed. Once negotiations have ceased with a firm, reopening negotiations
with that firm is not allowed.

6. Upon completion of the approval process and approval of the contract terms and conditions by the City’s Legal
consultant, the contract will be signed by the successful Respondent and the City.

Evaluation Criteria

The City will review all SOQs for completeness based on the requirements in this SOQ. Those found to be
incomplete or fail to address the needs of the City will not be evaluated.

A selection committee will review the SOQs received in accordance with the requirements defined in the SOQ. The
objective of the selection committee will be to select the firm that is the most highly qualified to service the City’s
needs.

Proposals will be evaluated on, but not limited to, the following criteria and will be awarded points in each
category up to the maximum number of points listed:

FACTOR POINTS
Compliance with requirements of Risk Assessment & Emergency Response Plan 75
Respondent’s qualifications and experience 25
TOTAL 100

The City reserves the right to:

require additional technical and pricing information and;

have discussions with Respondents regarding all elements which comprise the Respondent’s proposal;
to accept all or part of any proposal;

to reject any or all proposals; and

to re-solicit for proposals.

PAGE 5 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 212
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

APPENDIX A

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS

PAGE 6 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 213

REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT

AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

GENERAL INFORMATION

1.

Confidentiality: All proposals, data, and information submitted to the City of Corinth are subject to public
release under the Texas Public Information Act (“Act”) unless exempt from release under the Act. If the proposal
contains trade secrets or confidential information, the Respondent must specifically list that portion as
confidential. Confidential information, as noted by the Respondent, will not be released unless ordered by a
court or the Attorney General pursuant to the Act.

Proposal Preparation Cost: All costs associated with the preparation of the proposal will be borne by the
respondent.

Withdrawal of Proposal: Proposals may be withdrawn prior to the closing time for SOQs, as long as the
request is submitted in writing by an authorized representative. Thereafter, all proposals shall remain open and
valid for a period of 120 days.

Authorized Signature: All proposal forms must be signed by persons who have the legal authority to bind the
respondent to the proposed services.

Conflicts: To the extent any portion of this section conflicts with the Standard Terms and Conditions, the
provisions of this section shall be controlling.

Insurance

A. 1t is highly recommended that respondents confer with their respective insurance carriers or brokers to
determine in advance of proposal submission the availability of insurance certificates and endorsements
as prescribed and provided herein. If a respondent fails to comply strictly with the insurance requirements,
that respondent may be disqualified from award of the contract. Upon contract award, all insurance
requirements shall become contractual obligations, which the successful respondent shall have a duty to
maintain throughout the course of this contract.

B. Respondent may, upon written request to the Purchasing Department, ask for clarification of any insurance
requirements at any time; however, Respondents are strongly advised to make such requests prior to
proposal opening, since the insurance requirements may not be modified or waived after proposal opening
unless a written exception has been submitted with the proposal.

C. Contractor shall not commence any work or deliver any material until he or she receives notification that
the contract has been accepted, approved, and signed by the City of Corinth.

D. The Contractor shall provide Certificates of Insurance with the coverages and endorsements required to
the City as verification of coverage prior to contract execution and within fourteen (14) calendar days after
written request from the City. Failure to provide the required Certificate of Insurance may subject the bid to
disqualification from consideration for award. The Contractor must also forward a Certificate of Insurance
to the City whenever a previously identified policy period has expired, or an extension option or hold over
period is exercised, as verification of continuing coverage.

PAGE 7 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 214

REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT

AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

7. Insurance Requirements

Vendors/Contractors shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries
to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work
hereunder by the vendor, his agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors. The cost of such insurance
shall be borne by the vendor. A certificate of insurance meeting all requirements and provisions shall be provided

to the City
expiration.

prior to any services being performed or rendered. Renewal certificates shall also be supplied upon

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. 1SO Form Number GL 00 01 (or similar form) covering Commercial General Liability. “Occurrence” form only,
“claims made” forms are unacceptable. Policy must include coverage for:

a.
b.
C.
d.

e.

Premises/Operations

Broad Form Contractual Liability
Products and Completed Operations
Personal Injury

Broad Form Property Damage

2. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of Texas, including Employers’
Liability Insurance.

3. Automobile Liability as required by the State of Texas, covering all owned, hired, or non-owned vehicles.
Automobile Liability is only required if vehicle(s) will be used under the contract.

4. Professional Liability, also known as Errors and Omissions Coverage. Professional Liability is only required
for Professional Services contracts.

B. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions: Any deductible or self-insured retention in excess of $10,000
must be declared to and approved by the City.

C. Other Insurance Provisions: The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain the following
provisions.

1. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverage:

a.

d.

The City, its officers, officials, employees, boards and commissions, and volunteers are to be added
as “Additional Insured’s” relative to liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the
vendor/contractor, products and completed operations of the vendor, premises owned, occupied or
used by the vendor/contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of
protection afforded to the City, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers.

The vendor/contractor insurance coverage shall be primary insurance in respects to the City, its officers,
officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its
officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be in excess of the vendor’s insurance and shall not
contribute with it.

Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to the
City, its officers, officials, employees, boards and commissions or volunteers.

The vendor/contractor insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom the claim is made
or suit is brought, except to the limits of the insured’s limit of liability.

PAGE 8 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 215

REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT

AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

2. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage: The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of

subrogation against the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers for losses arising from work
performed by the vendor for the City.

3. All Coverage: Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall

not be suspended, voided, canceled, or non-renewed by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except
after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given the City.

Acceptability of Insurers: The City prefers that insurance be placed with insurers with an A.M. Best's rating
of no less than A-VI, or better.

Verification of Coverage: Vendor/Contractor shall provide the City certificates of insurance indicating the
coverage required. The certificates are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage
on its behalf. Certificates of Insurance similar to the ACORD Form are acceptable. City will not accept
Memoranda of Insurance or Binders as proof of insurance. The City reserves the right to require complete,
certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time.

Insurance Waiver Request. Vendors/contractors requesting a waiver of the minimum limits of insurance
identified in section 7.1.B must submit the request in writing. Please note that commercial general liability
cannot be waived. Requests to waive other coverage requirements will be considered in the evaluation
process. The vendor/contractor must also complete, sign, and return the Release Agreement form to the
Purchasing Office prior to authorization to perform services for the City.

7.1 Professional Services Requirements

A.

Definition: Professional Services are defined as services performed by consultants or other professionals,
including but not limited to: Accountants, Attorneys, Architects, Engineers, Surveyors, Veterinarians, Real Estate
Appraisal, Optometry, Landscape Architects, Medical Doctors, and Materials Testing.

Minimum Limits of Insurance:

1. Commercial General Liability: $500,000 per occurrence / $2,000,000 in the aggregate for third party bodily
injury, personal injury, and property damage. Policy must include coverage listed in Section 7.A.1.

2. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation limits as required by the Labor
Code of the State of Texas and Statutory Employer’s Liability minimum limits of $100,000 each accident,
$300,000 Disease - Policy Limit, and $100,000 Disease — Each Employee.

3. Automobile Liability: $500,000 Combined Single Limit. Limits can only be reduced if approved by the City.
Automobile liability shall apply to all owned, hired, and non-owned autos. Automobile Liability is only required
if vehicle(s) will be used under the contract.

4. Professional Liability: Also known as Errors and Omissions: $500,000 per occurrence and in the
aggregate. “Claims made” policy is acceptable coverage which must be maintained during the course of
the project, and up to two (2) years after completion and acceptance of the project by the City.

PAGE 9 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 216
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The terms and conditions shall apply to all goods or services procured by the City and shall be incorporated into and be a part of any bids/proposals
submitted to the City of Corinth for the goods and/or services specified. No other terms and conditions shall apply unless approved in writing by the City

of Corinth,

1.

10.

11.

12.

Texas.

ADDENDA: Any interpretations, corrections or changes to the information or specifications will be made by addenda. Sole issuing authority
of addenda shall be vest in the City of Corinth Purchasing Agent. Addenda will be posted at https://cityofcorinth.bonfirehub.com. lItis the
responsibility of the Respondent to check the Bonfire website for addenda. Respondents shall acknowledge receipt of all addenda by
submitting a signed copy with their bid/proposal.

ADVERTISING: The successful Respondent shall not advertise or publish, without the City’s prior approval, the fact that the City has entered
into a contract, except to the extent necessary to comply with proper requests for information from an authorized representative of the Federal,
State, or local government.

ALTERING BID/PROPOSAL PRICING: Prices offered shall be submitted for units of quantity as specified in the bid/proposal document,
extended and totaled. In the case of a discrepancy in the extended price, the unit price shall govern and control. Any alteration, strike-through
or erasure made prior to bid/proposal opening shall be initialed by the signer of the bid/proposal, guaranteeing authenticity.

FOR BIDS ONLY: Prices offered cannot be altered or amended after the submission deadline. Bids may not be changed for the purpose of
correcting an error in bid price after bid opening.

ASSIGNMENT: The successful respondent shall not sell, assign, transfer or convey the awarded contract, in whole or in part, without the
prior written consent of the City.

AWARD: The City reserves the right to award by line item, section, or by entire bid/proposal; whichever is most advantageous to the City.
The City may also consider administration costs when awarding to multiple vendors.

The City may award bids/proposals to the lowest responsive responsible vendor(s), or to the vendor(s) who provides goods or services at the
best value to the City. If using the best value method, the selection criteria will be clearly identified in the bid/proposal document. The best
value method may take into consideration, in whole or in part, by way of illustration and not limitation, the following criteria:

The purchase price;

The reputation of the respondent and of the respondent’s goods or services;

The quality of the respondent’s goods or services;

The extent to which the goods or services meet the City’s needs;

The respondent’s past relationship with the City;

The total long-term cost to the City to acquire the respondent’s goods or services;
Any relevant criteria specifically listed herein.

GmMmMoUow»

BID/PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL: The City utilizes Bonfire to advertise and receive bids/proposals electronically.
Bids will be received in hard copy; or electronically through Bonfire as specified in the bid/proposal packet.

Electronic submittals must be submitted through the Bonfire portal at https://cityofcorinth.bonfirehub.com; and must include all required
information and attachments; with required signatures. All response documents must be uploaded and included with your submittal in order
to be considered.

Hard copy bids must include all required information and attachments; with required signatures; and must be submitted in a sealed envelope
or package to the office of the Purchasing Agent, 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas 76208.

BRAND NAME, CATALOG OR MANUFACTURER’'S REFERENCE: Any reference to brand name, catalog or manufacturer’s reference is
used to be descriptive, not restrictive, and is indicative of the type and quality the City desires to purchase. Bids/proposals on similar items
of like quality may be considered if the bid/proposal is noted and fully descriptive brochures are enclosed. If notation of substitution is not
made, it is assumed the respondent is proposing exact item specified. Successful respondent will not be allowed to make unauthorized
substitutions after award.

CHANGE ORDERS: No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise change, or affect the terms, conditions or specifications stated
in the resulting contract. The City of Corinth’s Purchasing Agent will make all change orders to the contract in writing as allowed by law.

COMMUNICATION: The successful respondent shall direct all contact with the City through the Contract Administrator identified in the
Contract. The Respondent will not directly respond to, make inquiries of, survey or solicit information from, or otherwise interact with any
departments, divisions, employees, or agents of the City unless specifically approved, or requested by the Contract Administrator.

COMPANIES ENGAGED IN BUSINESS WITH IRAN, SUDAN, OR FOREIGN TERRORIST ORGANIZATION: Pursuant to Texas
Government Code Chapter 2252, Subchapter F, Seller affirms that it is it not identified on a list created by the Texas Comptroller of Public
Accounts as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services to a foreign terrorist organization.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST: In compliance with Local Government Code §176.006, all vendors shall file a completed Conflict of Interest
Questionnaire with the City’s Purchasing Office.

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR: Under the contract, the City may appoint a contract administrator with designated responsibility to ensure
compliance with contract requirements, such as but not limited to, acceptance, inspection and delivery. If appointed, the administrator will
serve as liaison between the City and the successful contractor.

PAGE 10 OF SOQ #1137



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 217
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

CONTRACT ENFORCEMENT:

A. The City reserves the right to enforce the performance of any contract that results from an award of this bid/proposal packet. Enforcement
shall be in any manner prescribed by law or deemed to be in the best interest of the City in the event of breach or default of the contract.
Breach of contract authorizes the City to make an award to another respondent, purchase the service elsewhere and to charge the full
increase in cost and handling to the defaulting contractor. Additionally, the City will remove the defaulting contractor from the City's list
of approved vendors for a period of two years.

B. Respondents who submit proposals for this service agree that the City shall not be liable to prosecution for damages in the event that
the City declares the successful contractor in default.

C. Any notice provided by this bid/proposal packet (or required by law) to be given to the successful Respondent by the City shall be
conclusively deemed to have been given and received on the next day after such written notice has been deposited in the mail at the
City of Corinth, by Registered or Certified mail with sufficient postage affixed thereto, addressed to the successful Respondent at the
address provided in the bid/proposal; this shall not prevent the giving of actual notice in any other manner.

D. The successful Respondent and the City agree that both parties have all rights, duties and remedies available as stated in the Uniform
Commercial Code (UCC). In case of a conflict between the terms of this bid/proposal packet and the UCC, the bid/proposal packet will
control.

DELIVERY:

A. Delivery date is important to the City and may be required to be a part of each bid/proposal. The City considers delivery time to be that
period elapsing from the time the individual order is placed until that order is received by the City at the specified delivery location. The
delivery date indicates a guaranteed delivery to the City of Corinth. Failure of the respondent to meet guaranteed delivery dates or
service performance could affect future City orders.

B. The City may reject and refuse any delivery, which falls below the quality designated in the specifications. The cost of return and/or
replacement will be at the Respondent’s expense.

C. The City reserves the right to demand bond or penalty to guarantee delivery by the date indicated. If order is given and the Respondent
fails to furnish the materials by the guaranteed date, the City reserves the right to cancel the order without liability on its part. Pricing
shall include all charges for freight, F.O.B. inside to specified delivery location.

D. Whenever the Contractor encounters any difficulty which is delaying or threatens to delay timely performance (including actual or potential
labor disputes), the Contractor shall immediately give notice thereof in writing to the Purchasing Agent, stating all relevant information with
respect thereto. Such notice shall not in any way constitute a basis for an extension of the delivery or performance schedule or be construed
as a waiver by the City of any rights or remedies to which it is entitled by law or pursuant to provisions herein. Failure to give such notice,
however, may be grounds for denial of any request for an extension of the delivery or performance schedule because of such delivery.

ETHICS: The Respondent shall not offer or accept gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with any employee,
official, or agent of the City except in accordance with City Policy.

EXCEPTIONS/SUBSTITUTIONS: All proposals meeting the intent of this bid/proposal packet will be considered for award. Respondents
taking exception to the instructions, specifications, terms and conditions or offering substitutions, shall state these exceptions in the section
provided or by attachment as part of their bid/proposal. The absence of such a list shall indicate that the Respondent has not taken exceptions
and shall hold the Respondent responsible to perform in strict accordance with the instructions, specifications, terms and conditions of the
bid/proposal packet. The City of Corinth reserves the right to accept any and all or none of the exception(s)/substitution(s) deemed to be in
the best interest of the City.

FELONY CRIMINAL CONVICTIONS: The Respondent represents and warrants that neither the Respondent nor the Respondent’s
employees have been convicted of a felony criminal offense, or under investigation of such charge, or that, if such a conviction has occurred,
the Respondent has fully advised the City as to the facts and circumstances surrounding the conviction.

FORCE MAJEURE: Force majeure is defined as an act of God, war, strike, fire or explosion. Neither the successful Respondent nor the City
is liable for delays or failures of performance due to force majeure. Each party must inform the other in writing with proof of receipt within three
(3) business days of the occurrence of an event of force majeure.

INDEMNITY AGREEMENT: The Contractor hereby agrees to and shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its officers,
agents and employees from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, demands, causes of action, suits and liability of every
kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs and attorneys' fees, for injury to or death of any person, for loss of use or
revenue, or for damage to any property arising out of or in connection with the actual or alleged malfunction, design or workmanship
in the manufacture of equipment, the fulfillment of this Contract, or the breach of any express or implied warranties under this
Contract. Such indemnity shall apply where the claims, losses, damages, causes of action, suits or liability arise in part from (i) the
negligence of the Contractor, and/or their respective officers, agents and/or employees or (ii) the negligence of the Contractor, its
officers, agents and employees. Itis the expressed intention of the parties hereto, both Contractor and the City, that the indemnity
provided for in this paragraph is indemnity by Contractor to indemnify and protect the City from the consequence of (l) the
Contractor’'s own negligence where that negligence is the cause of the injury, death, or damage. Furthermore, the indemnity
provided for in this paragraph shall have no application to any claim, loss, damage, cause of action, suit and liability where in injury,
death or damage results from the negligence of the City. In the event any action or proceeding is brought against the City by reason
of any of the above, the Contractor agrees and covenants to defend the action or proceeding by counsel acceptable to the City.
The indemnity provided for herein shall survive the termination or expiration of this Contract.

PAGE 11 OF SOQ #1137



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

20.

30.

31.

32.

33.

CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 218
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

INVOICES: Each invoice shall be fully documented as to the Contractor's/vendor's name and address, receiving department’'s name and
address, labor, materials and equipment provided, if applicable, and must reference the City of Corinth purchase order number in order to be
processed. No payments shall be made on invoices not listing a purchase order number. Invoices shall be mailed directly to the City of
Corinth, Attention: Accounts Payable, 3300 Corinth Pkwy., Corinth, Texas, 76208.

LATE SUBMITTALS: The City will reject late bids/proposals. The City is not responsible for lateness or non-delivery of mail, carrier, etc. and
the date/time stamp in the Purchasing Office shall be the official time of receipt. The Respondent is responsible for ensuring that packets are
delivered to the Purchasing Office. Respondents may confirm receipt of packets by contacting Cindy Troyer, Purchasing Agent at 940-498-
3286.

MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR RESPONSIBILITY: A prospective vendor must affirmatively demonstrate responsibility. The City may request
representation and other information sufficient to determine respondent’s ability to meet the minimum standards including but not limited to:

Have adequate financial resources or the ability to obtain such resources.
Ability to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule.

Have a satisfactory record of performance.

Have a satisfactory record of integrity and ethics.

Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

moow»

NO BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL: Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, the successful Respondent agrees that acceptance of
these Terms & Conditions serves as written verification that Contractor: (i) either meets an exemption criteria under Section 2270.002; or it
does (1) does not boycott Israel, as defined by Texas Government Code Section 808.001; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of
the contract. This requirement does not apply to sole proprietorships, companies with fewer than ten employees; or contracts that are less
than $100,000.00.

NON-APPROPRIATION CLAUSE: If the governing body of the City fails to specifically appropriate sufficient funds to make the
payments due in any Fiscal Year under this Contract, an event of non-appropriation ("Event of Non-appropriation") will have occurred, the
terms of this Contract will not be renewed, and Contractor or City may terminate this Contract at the end of the then current Fiscal
Year, whereupon City will be obligated to pay those amounts then due subject to the provisions herein. Nothing in this Section or elsewhere in
this Contract will be deemed in any way to obligate the City or create a debt of City beyond its current Fiscal Year. CONTRACTOR HAS NO RIGHT
TO COMPEL CITY TO LEVY OR COLLECT TAXES TO MAKE ANY PAYMENTS REQUIRED HEREUNDER, OR TO EXPEND FUNDS
BEYOND THE AMOUNT PROVIDED FOR IN THE THEN CURRENT FISCAL YEAR OF CITY.

PATENTS/COPYRIGHTS: The successful Respondent agrees to protect the City from claims involving infringements of patents and/or
copyrights.

PAYMENT: Will be made upon receipt and acceptance by the City for item(s) and/or service(s) ordered and delivered after receipt of a valid
invoice, in accordance with the State of Texas Prompt Payment Act, Chapter 2251, Government Code.

PRICES HELD FIRM:

A. All prices quoted in the proposals will remain firm for a minimum of 90 days from the date of the proposal unless it is otherwise specified
by the City of Corinth.

B. If during the life of the contract, the successful Respondent's net prices to other customers for the items awarded herein are reduced
below the contracted price, it is understood and agreed that the benefits of such reduction shall be extended to the City.

PURCHASE ORDER: The City shall generate a purchase order(s) to the successful Respondent. The purchase order number must appear
on all itemized invoices.

QUANTITIES: Quantities indicated on the Bid/Proposal Form are estimates based upon the best available information. The City reserves
the right to increase or decrease quantities to meet its actual needs without any adjustments in bid/proposal price. Individual purchase orders
will be issued on an as-needed basis.

REFERENCES: The City requests each Respondent to supply, with its bid/proposal, a list of at least three (3) references where their firm
supplied like services within the last three to five years. It is preferred that the list identify municipalities that are customers of Respondent.
For each reference, include the name of firm, address, contact employee of firm, with telephone number and e-mail address, what services
are provided to this reference, and how long your firm has provided this service to the reference entity.

RELEASE OF INFORMATION AND PUBLIC INSPECTION: After sealed bids have been opened, bids are open for public viewing upon
request. If the bid contains trade secrets or confidential information, the Respondent must specifically list that portion as confidential. All other
parts of the bid are open for public viewing upon request.

For processes other than low bid or best value bid, only the names of respondents will be read aloud at the scheduled opening. Pricing
information will not be released until after award of the contract.

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION: In response to this bid/proposal packet, all required documentation must be provided.

SALES TAX: The City is exempt by law from payment of Texas Sales Tax and Federal Excise Tax. Our taxpayer identification number is 75-
1453222.

PAGE 12 OF SOQ #1137



34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 219
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

SEVERABILITY: If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word of these instructions, specifications, terms and
conditions, shall be held invalid, such holding shall not affect the remaining portions of these instructions, specifications, terms and conditions
and it is hereby declared that such remaining portions would have been included in these instructions, specifications, terms and conditions
as though the invalid portion had been omitted.

SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS: The apparent silence of specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a detailed
description concerning any point shall be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practices are to prevail. All interpretations of
the specifications shall be made based on this statement.

SUBCONTRACTORS: The Contractor shall be the sole source of contact for the Contract. The City will not subcontract any work under the
contract to any other firm and will not deal with any subcontractors. The Contractor is totally responsible for all actions and work
performed by its subcontractors. All terms, conditions and requirements of the Contract shall apply without qualification to any services
performed or goods provided by any subcontractor.

TAX/DEBT ARREARAGE: The City shall pay no money upon any claim, debt, demand, or account whatsoever, to any person, firm or
corporation, who is in arrears to the City for taxes or otherwise; and, the City shall be entitled to a counter-claim and offset against any such
debt, claim, demand, or account, in the amount of taxes or other debt in arrears, and no assignment or transfer of such debts are due, shall
affect the right, authority, and power of the City to offset the taxes or other debts against the same.

TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT: The City reserves the right to enforce the performance of the contract in any manner prescribed by law or
deemed to be in the best interest of the City in the event of breach or default of the contract. The City reserves the right to terminate the
contract in the manner set forth in the attached Contract.

As soon as practicable after receipt of notice of termination, the Company shall submit a statement showing in detail the pro-rated payment,
in a form satisfactory to the City, that reflects the appropriate charges. The City shall then pay the charges as required by law.

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT: The contract shall remain in effect until contract expires, delivery and acceptance of products and/or
performance of services ordered or terminated by either party with a ten (10) day written notice prior to any cancellation. The successful
Respondent must state therein the reasons for such cancellation. The City may, by written notice to the selected company, cancel this
contract immediately without liability to the selected company if it is determined by the City that gratuities or bribes in the form of entertainment,
gifts, or otherwise contrary to City Policy, were offered or given by the successful proposing party, or its agent or representative to any City
officer, employee or elected representative with respect to the performance of the contract.

TRAVEL AND DIRECT CHARGES: The City shall not compensate the Respondent for any travel costs incurred in delivery of services under
the contract.

VENUE: Respondent shall comply with all Federal and State laws and City Ordinances and Codes applicable to the Respondent’s operation
under this contract. The resulting specifications and the contract herefrom shall be fully governed by the laws of the State of Texas, and shall
be fully performable in Denton County, Texas, where venue for any proceeding arising hereunder will lie.

WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL: A proposal may be withdrawn any time prior to the official opening, as long as the request is received in
writing from an authorized representative.

PAGE 13 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 220
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

APPENDIX B

SUBMITTAL FORMS

PAGE 14 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 221
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

SUBMITTAL EXCEPTION FORM

THIS PAGE MUST BE SIGNED AND INCLUDED WITH YOUR PROPOSAL

Any exceptions to the SOQ (including the Instructions, Specifications/Scope of Services, Standard Terms and
Conditions, and Insurance Requirements) must be listed below. Additional pages may be attached. If there are no
exceptions, please sign where indicated at the bottom of this page.

There are no further exceptions to the Instructions, Specifications, and Standard Terms and Conditions. | understand that
the City may not accept additional exceptions after final submission of this proposal.

Signature Company Date

No exceptions are taken to this solicitation.

Signature Company Date

PAGE 15 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 222
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

FOR DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES ONLY

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) are encouraged to participate in the City of Corinth's bid process. The
Purchasing Department will provide additional clarification of specifications, assistance with Bid Proposal Forms, and further
explanation of bidding procedures to those DBEs who request it.

Representatives from DBE companies should identify themselves as such and submit a copy of the Certification.

The City recognizes the certifications of the State of Texas Procurement and Support Services HUB Program (TPASS). All
companies seeking information concerning DBE certification are urged to contact:

State of Texas HUB Program

Texas Procurement and Support Services
1711 San Jacinto

Austin, TX 78701

(512) 463-5872

If your company is already certified, attach a copy of your certification to this form and return with bid.

COMPANY NAME:

REPRESENTATIVE:

ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE, ZIP:

TELEPHONE NO. FAX NO .

Indicate all that apply:
Minority-Owned Business Enterprise
Women-Owned Business Enterprise
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise

PAGE 16 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 223
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

COPY OF SIGNED FORM MUST BE INCLUDED WITH YOUR PROPOSAL

Certificate of Interested Parties

In 2015, the Texas Legislature adopted House Bill 1295, which added Section 2252.908 of the Government Code.

Effective January 1, 2016 all contracts presented to City Council will require awarded vendors to electronically file Form
1295 “Certificate of Interested Parties” and submit a certificate of filing to the City, before the contract can be awarded.
“Contract” includes contract amendments, extensions, or renewals; as well as purchase orders. The form will be included
in every Bid, RFP, SOQ, and RFQ issued by the City and will be required to be completed as part of the solicitation
requirements.

Bidders/vendors must file the form electronically at https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf info form1295.htm
and submit a signed copy of the form to the City with their bid.

Bidders/vendors will need to create an account on the Texas Ethics Commission website. For assistance on how to register
and how to complete Form 1295, you may view the short “Logging In the First Time — Business User” and “How To Create
a Certificate” videos that are posted on the website noted above. In addition, there are several other links on the website
posted above that may be helpful in understanding and completing Form 1295.

The City is required to notify the Texas Ethics Commission, in an electronic format prescribed by the commission, of receipt
of those documents not later than the 30" day after the date the contract for which the form was filed binds all parties to the
contract.

Bidders must also complete the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (Form CIQ) included on the next page of this
solicitation.

PAGE 17 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 224
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

PAGE 18 OF SOQ #1137



10.

11.

12.

CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMERPP
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

CERTIFICATION FORM

In submitting this proposal, the respondent agrees and certifies to the following conditions:
The undersigned agrees that after the official opening this proposal becomes the property of the City of Corinth.

The undersigned affirms he has familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the work is to be performed; satisfied
himself of the conditions of delivery, handling and storage of equipment and all other matters that may be incidental to the work,
before submitting a proposal.

The undersigned agrees, if this proposal is accepted, to furnish any and all items/services upon which prices are offered, at the
price(s) and upon the terms and conditions contained in the Specifications. The period for acceptance of this Proposal will be 120
calendar days unless a different period is noted by the respondent.

The undersigned affirms that they are duly authorized to execute this contract, that this proposal has not been prepared in collusion
with any other Respondent, nor any employee of the City of Corinth, and that the contents of this bid have not been communicated
to any other respondent or to any employee of the City of Corinth prior to the official opening of this proposal.

The respondent certifies that no employee, representative, or agent of the firm offered or gave gratuities in any form (i.e. gifts,
entertainment, etc.) to any council Member, official, or employee of the city of Corinth in order to secure favorable treatment or
consideration in awarding, negotiating, amending or concluding a final agreement for this proposal. The respondent agrees that and
warrants that no employee, official, or member of the City Council is, or will be, peculiarly benefited, directly or indirectly, in this
proposal or any ensuing contract that may follow.

The respondent hereby certifies that he/she is not included on the U.S. Comptroller General's Consolidated List of Persons or Firms
currently debarred for violations of various contracts incorporating labor standards/provisions.

Respondent verifies that it does not Boycott Israel, and agrees that during the term of this Agreement (Contract as applicable) will
not Boycott Israel as that term is defined in Texas Government Code Section 808.001, as amended.

Respondent affirms, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2252, Subchapter F, that is it not identified on a list created by
the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services to a foreign
terrorist organization.

Respondent/Vendor hereby assigns to purchaser any and all claims for overcharges associated with this Contract which arise under
the antitrust laws of the United States, 15 USCA Section 1 et seqd., and which arise under the antitrust laws of the State of Texas,
Tex. Bus. & Com. Code, Section 15.01, et seq.

The undersigned affirms that he/she has read and understands the specifications, terms and conditions, all exhibits and attachments
contained in this proposal package.

The undersigned understands they are responsible for monitoring the City of Corinth’'s website at
https://www.cityofcorinth.com/Bids.aspx to ensure they have downloaded and signed all addenda required for submission with their
response.

The Contract is not valid until approved by Council, if applicable. When an award letter is issued, it becomes a part of this Contract.

If an addendum to this proposal is issued, acknowledge addendum by initialing beside the addendum number:
Add. No. 1 Add. No. 2 Add. No. 3 Add. No. 4 Add. No. 5

Company Name:
Principal Place of Business Address, City, State, Zip:

Principal Place of Business Phone Number: Fax Number:

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:

Signature Date
Printed Name Title
Email Address Phone

PAGE 19 OF SOQ #1137



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMERPE
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

APPENDIX C

SAMPLE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT

PAGE 20 OF SOQ #1137



227

STATE OF TEXAS

w W

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

COUNTY OF DENTON §

This agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the City of Corinth, Texas,
a home-rule municipal corporation (“City”) and ,a (“Consultant”)
(each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”), acting by and through their authorized
representatives.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the services of the Consultant as an independent
contractor, and not as an employee, to provide the services described in Exhibit “A” (the “Scope of
Services” or “Services”) to assist the City with the following project: AWIA RISK & RESILIENCY
ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN (the “Project”) on the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant desires to render services for the City on the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, City published a request for Statement of Qualifications for the Project and Consultant
provided a response; and

WHEREAS, City determined Consultant to be the most qualified respondent and entered into
negotiations for Consultant to provide the Services set forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, City Council approved the award of this Agreement to Consultant in accordance with
the terms set forth herein;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the mutual covenants set forth
herein, and other valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged,
the Parties agree as follows:

Article |
Incorporation of Recitals/Agreement Documents/Term

1.1 Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated
herein.

1.2 Agreement. This Agreement shall be comprised of the following documents: (1) this
Agreement; (2) Exhibit “A”, “Scope of Services”; (3) Exhibit “B”, “Project Schedule”; (4) Exhibit “C”,
“Fee Schedule”; (5) City’'s Request for Statement of Qualifications for AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment
and Emergency Response Plan (“City SOQ”), a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein
as Exhibit “D” hereto; and (6) Consultant’s response to City SOQ, a copy of which is attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit “E” hereto. In the event of a conflict between one or more of the terms and
provisions contained within the foregoing documents, in order to resolve any such conflict, priority of
interpretation shall be given in the order that those documents are listed in this section.

1.3 Term. This Agreement shall commence on the last date of execution hereof (“Effective
Date”) and continue until completion of the Services, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

Page 1 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



228

Article Il
Scope of Service

2.1 The Consultant shall perform the Services in connection with the Project as set forth in the
Scope of Services. The Consultant, if a licensed engineer or registered architect shall perform the Services:
(i) with the prevailing professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent engineers or architects,
as the case may be, practicing in the same or similar locality and under the same or similar circumstances
and professional license but not limited to the exercise of reasonable, informed judgments and prompt,
timely action; and (ii) as expeditiously as is prudent considering the ordinary professional skill and care of
a competent engineer or architect, as the case may be. If the Consultant is not a licensed engineer or
registered architect, the Consultant shall perform the Services: (i) with the professional skill and care
ordinarily provided by similar consultants practicing in the same or similar locality and under the same
circumstances and applicable licenses or certifications; and (ii) as expeditiously as is prudent considering
the ordinary skill and care of similar competent consultants.

2.2 The City shall, prior to commencement of Services, provide the Consultant with the
information set forth in the Scope of Services, if any.

2.3 The Parties acknowledge and agree that any and all opinions provided by
the Consultant in connection with the Scope of Services represent the professional
judgment of the Consultant, in accordance with the standard of care applicable by law to
the Services performed hereunder.

2.4 All information, documents, records and reports developed as a result of the Services
provided under this Agreement shall be the property of the City (hereinafter “Documents”). Any use by
Consultant of the Documents developed hereunder, whether for publication or for work with other clients,
must receive prior written permission from the City. During the term and all renewals of this Agreement, all
such Documents generated, compiled, collected or collated shall be maintained in the format required by
City. Further, all such Documents shall be returned to City upon termination of this Agreement, and upon
such termination shall be returned in the format required by City.

Article lll
Schedule of Work — Project Completion

The Consultant agrees to complete the required Services and submit all work required by the City
in accordance with the Project Schedule, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit “B”, and as outlined in the Scope of Services within consecutive calendar days,
exclusive of any review time by City, from the date of written Notice to Proceed from City to Consultant.
The Parties hereto agree and understand that time is of the essence and that failure to timely perform
obligations as required under this Agreement will result in damages to the other Party.

Article IV
Compensation and Method of Payment

4.1 Consultant will be compensated in accordance with the Fee Schedule, a copy of which is
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “C”. Unless otherwise provided herein, payment to
the Consultant shall be monthly based on the Consultant’s monthly progress report and detailed monthly
itemized statement for Services that shows the names of the Consultant’'s employees, agents, contractors
performing the Services, the time worked, the actual Services performed, the rates charges for such
service, reimbursable expenses, the total amount of fee earned to date, percentage of work completed on
the Project through the end of the then submitted billing period, and the amount due and payable as of the
current statement, in a form reasonably acceptable to the City. Monthly statements shall include authorized
non-salary expenses with supporting itemized invoices and documentation. The City shall pay such
approved monthly statements within thirty (30) days after receipt and City verification of the Services and
expenses unless otherwise provided herein. The final payment of the compensation shall be made after

Page 2 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



229

satisfactory completion of the Services following the City acceptance of the study, report, recommendation
or other work set forth in the Scope of Services. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall require City to
pay for any work that is unsatisfactory as determined by City or which is not submitted in compliance with
the terms of this Agreement, nor shall failure to withhold payment pursuant to the provisions of this section
constitute a waiver of any right, at law or in equity, which City may have if Consultant is in default, including
the right to bring legal action for damages or for specific performance of this Agreement. Waiver of any
default under this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default.

4.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Scope of Services, the Consultant shall be responsible
for all expenses related to the Services provided pursuant to this Agreement including, but not limited to,
travel, copying and facsimile charges, telephone, internet and email charges. If additional services, trips or
expenses are requested, Consultant will not provide such additional services until authorized by City in
writing to proceed. The Scope of Services shall be strictly limited. City shall not be required to pay any
amount in excess of the amount identified in the preceding paragraph unless City shall have approved in
writing in advance (prior to the performance of additional work) the payment of additional amounts.

4.3 The hourly rates set forth in the Scope of Services, if any, shall remain in effect during the
term of this Agreement. Any changes to established hourly rates shall require the prior written consent of
the City.

4.4 Consultant shall keep accurate records of its Services and expenses incurred in the
performance of this Agreement and shall make the same available to City for inspection and copying upon
five (5) days notice thereof. These records shall be kept by Consultant for two (2) years following the
expiration of this Agreement.

Article V
Devotion of Time; Personnel; and Equipment

5.1 The Consultant shall devote such time as reasonably necessary for the satisfactory
performance of the Services under this Agreement. Should the City require additional services not included
under this Agreement, the Consultant shall make reasonable effort to provide such additional services
within the time schedule without decreasing the effectiveness of the performance of services required under
this Agreement, and shall be compensated for such additional services on a time and materials basis, in
accordance with Consultant’s standard hourly rate schedule, or as otherwise agreed between the Parties.
When Consultant is directed to revise or expand the Scope of Services under this Section of the Agreement,
Consultant shall provide City a written proposal for the entire costs involved in performing such additional
services. Prior to Consultant undertaking any revised or expanded services as directed by City under this
Agreement, City must authorize in writing the nature and scope of such services and accept the method
and amount of compensation and the time involved in all phases of the Project. It is expressly understood
and agreed by Consultant that any compensation not specified in Article IV herein above may require
Corinth City Council approval and is subject to the current budget year limitations.

5.2 To the extent reasonably necessary for the Consultant to perform the Services under this
Agreement, the Consultant shall be authorized to engage the services of any agents, assistants, persons,
or corporations that the Consultant may deem proper to aid or assist in the performance of the Services
under this Agreement. The Consultant shall provide written notice to and obtain written approval from the
City prior to engaging services not referenced in the Scope of Services. The cost of such personnel and
assistance shall be included as part of the total compensation to be paid Consultant hereunder, and shall
not otherwise be reimbursed by the City unless otherwise provided herein.

5.3 The Consultant shall furnish the facilities, equipment and personnel necessary to perform
the Services required under this Agreement unless otherwise provided herein.

5.4 The City may require that Consultant submit monthly progress reports and attend monthly
progress meetings scheduled by the City or more frequently as may be required by the City from time to
time based upon Project demands. Each progress report shall detail the work accomplished and special

Page 3 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



230

problems or delays experienced on the Project during the previous report period, and the planned work
activities and special problems or delays anticipated for the next report period.

Article VI
Miscellaneous

6.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the
Parties and supersedes any prior understandings written or oral agreements between the Parties with
respect to this subject matter.

6.2 Assignment. The Consultant may not assign this Agreement without the prior written
consent of City. In the event of an assignment by the Consultant to which the City has consented, the
assignee shall agree in writing with the City to personally assume, perform, and be bound by all the
covenants and obligations contained in this Agreement.

6.3 Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provisions regarding assignment, this Agreement
shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the Parties to it and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns.

6.4 Governing Law and Venue. The Agreement is entered into subject to the Corinth City
Charter and ordinances of City, as same may be amended from time to time, and is subject to and is to be
construed, governed and enforced under all applicable State of Texas and federal laws. Consultant will
make any and all reports required per federal, state or local law including, but not limited to, proper reporting
to the Internal Revenue Service, as required in accordance with Consultant’s income. Situs of this
Agreement is agreed to be Denton County, Texas, for all purposes, including performance and execution.
The parties to this Agreement agree and covenant that this Agreement will be enforceable in Corinth, Texas;
and that if legal action is necessary to enforce this Agreement, exclusive venue will lie in Denton County,
Texas.

6.5 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement of the
Parties.

6.6 Severability. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement
shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions, and the Agreement shall be construed as if such
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained in it.

6.7 Independent Contractor. It is understood and agreed by and between the Parties that the
Consultant, in satisfying the conditions of this Agreement, is acting independently, and that the City
assumes no responsibility or liabilities to any third party in connection with these actions. All Services to be
performed by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the capacity of an independent contractor,
and not as an agent or employee of the City. Consultant will have exclusive control of and the exclusive
right to control the details of the work performed hereunder, and shall be liable for the acts and omissions
of its officers, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors and engineers and the doctrine of respondeat
superior shall not apply as between City and Consultant, its officers, agents, employees, contractors,
subcontractors and engineers, and nothing herein shall be construed as creating a partnership or joint
enterprise between City and Consultant.

6.8 Right-of-Access. The Consultant shall not enter onto private property without lawful right-
of-access to perform the required surveys, or other necessary investigations. The Consultant will take
reasonable precautions to minimize damage to the private and public property in the performance of such
surveys and investigations. Any right-of-access to public or private property shall be obtained in
accordance with the Scope of Services.

6.9 Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder may be sent by first
class mail, courier, or by confirmed telefax or facsimile to the address specified below, or to such other

Page 4 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



231

Party or address as either Party may designate in writing, and shall be deemed received three (3) days
after delivery or on the day actually received if sent by courier or otherwise hand delivered:

If intended for City:

Attn:

City of Corinth, Texas
3300 Corinth Parkway
Corinth, Texas 76208
Telephone:

Fax:

Email:

If intended for Consultant:

Attn:
Address:
Telephone:
Fax:

Email:

6.10 Insurance. Before commencing work, Consultant shall, at its own expense, procure, pay
for and shall maintain during the term of this Agreement insurance in accordance with the requirements set
forth in the City SOQ, Exhibit “D”, entitled “Insurance Requirements”, and written by companies approved
by the state of Texas and acceptable to the City. Consultant shall furnish to the City certificates of insurance
executed by the insurer or its authorized agent stating coverages, limits, expiration dates and compliance
with all applicable required provisions. Certificates shall reference the Project and be provided to the City.

6.11 Debarment and Suspension.

(a) In accordance with 2 CFR section 180.300, the principal of this Agreement as described in
2 CFR section 180.995 being duly sworn or under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
United States, certifies that neither this company nor its principals are presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency, the State of Texas or
any of its departments or agencies.

(b) If during the Agreement Term the principal becomes debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation, the principal shall
immediately inform the City.

(c) For contracts that are financed by Federal or State grants, the principal agrees that this
section will be enforced on each of its subcontractors, and will inform the City of any
violations of this section by subcontractors to the contract.

(d) The certification in this section is a material representation of fact relied upon by the City
in entering into this contract.

6.12 Indemnification. CONSULTANT DOES HEREBY COVENANT AND CONTRACT TO
WAIVE ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, RELEASE, DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY,
ITS CITY COUNCIL, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS, INBOTH THEIR PUBLIC AND PRIVATE
CAPACITIES, FROM AND AGAINST ALL LIABILITY, CAUSES OF ACTION, CITATIONS, CLAIMS,
COSTS, DAMAGES, DEMANDS, EXPENSES, FINES, JUDGMENTS, LOSSES, PENALTIES OR SUITS,
WHICH IN ANY WAY ARISE OUT OF, RELATE TO, ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULT FROM
CONSULTANT'S PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR WHICH ARE CAUSED BY

Page5 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan




232

INTENTIONAL WRONGFUL ACTS OR NEGLIGENT ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF CONSULTANT, ITS
SUBCONTRACTORS, ANY OFFICERS, AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES OF EITHER CONSULTANT ORITS
SUBCONTRACTORS, AND ANY OTHER THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM OR WHICH CONSULTANT IS
LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE (THE “INDEMNIFIED ITEMS”) THE NEGLIGENCE, INTENTIONAL TORT,
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INFRINGEMENT, OR FAILURE TO PAY A SUBCONTRACTOR OR
SUPPLIER COMMITTED BY CONSULTANT, ITS AGENT, ITS CONSULTANT UNDER CONTRACT, OR
ANY OTHER ENTITY OVER WHICH THE CONSULTANT EXERCISES CONTROL SUBJECT TO THE
LIMITATIONS IN TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE § 271.904 AND TEXAS CIVIL PRACTICE AND
REMEDIES CODE, § 130.002 (B).

BY WAY OF EXAMPLE, THE INDEMNIFIED ITEMS MAY INCLUDE PERSONAL INJURY AND
DEATH CLAIMS AND PROPERTY DAMAGE CLAIMS, INCLUDING THOSE FOR LOSS OF USE OF
PROPERTY.

INDEMNIFIED ITEMS SHALL INCLUDE ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS, COURT COSTS,
AND SETTLEMENT COSTS. INDEMNIFIED ITEMS SHALL ALSO INCLUDE ANY EXPENSES,
INCLUDING ATTORNEYS' FEES AND EXPENSES, INCURRED BY AN INDEMNIFIED INDIVIDUAL OR
ENTITY IN ATTEMPTING TO ENFORCE THIS INDEMNITY.

IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION, THE CITY SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO APPROVE COUNSEL TO
BE RETAINED BY CONSULTANT IN FULFILLING ITS OBLIGATION TO DEFEND AND INDEMNIFY
THE CITY. CONSULTANT SHALL RETAIN CITY'S APPROVED COUNSEL FOR THE CITY WITHIN
SEVEN (7) BUSINESS DAYS AFTER RECEIVING WRITTEN NOTICE FROM THE CITY THAT IT IS
INVOKING ITS RIGHT TO INDEMNIFICATION UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. IF CONSULTANT DOES
NOT RETAIN COUNSEL FOR THE CITY WITHIN THE REQUIRED TIME, THEN THE CITY SHALL HAVE
THE RIGHT TO RETAIN COUNSEL AND THE CONSULTANT SHALL PAY THESE ATTORNEYS' FEES
AND EXPENSES. THE CITY RETAINS THE RIGHT TO PROVIDE AND PAY FOR ANY OR ALL COSTS
OF DEFENDING INDEMNIFIED ITEMS, BUT IT SHALL NOT BE REQUIRED TO DO SO.

THE CONSULTANT'S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS SECTION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO
THE LIMITS OF COVERAGE OF INSURANCE MAINTAINED OR REQUIRED TO BE MAINTAINED BY
CONSULTANT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

THIS INDEMNIFICATION PROVISION SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THIS
AGREEMENT.

6.13  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by the Parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such counterparts
shall together constitute one and the same instrument. Each counterpart may consist of any number of
copies hereof each signed by less than all, but together signed by all of the Parties hereto.

6.14  Exhibits. The exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein and made a part hereof for
all purposes.

6.15  Consultant’s Liability. Acceptance of the Documents by the City shall not constitute nor be
deemed a release of the responsibility and liability of Consultant, its employees, associates, agents or
Consultants for the accuracy and competency of their designs, working drawings, specifications or other
documents and work; nor shall such acceptance be deemed an assumption of responsibility by City for any
defect in the designs, working drawings, specifications or other documents and work; nor shall such
acceptance be deemed an assumption of responsibility by City for any defect in the designs, working
drawings, specifications or other documents and work prepared by said Consultant, its employees,
associates, agents or sub-Consultants.

6.16  Right to Inspect Records. Consultant agrees that City shall have access to and the right to
examine any directly pertinent books, documents, papers and records of Consultant involving transactions

Page 6 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



233

relating to this Agreement. Consultant agrees that City shall have access during normal working hours to
all necessary Consultant facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to
conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section. City shall give Consultant reasonable
advance notice of intended audits. Consultant further agrees to include in subcontract(s), if any, a provision
that any subcontractor or engineer agrees that City shall have access to and the right to examine any
directly pertinent books, documents, papers and records of such engineer or sub-contractor involving
transactions to the subcontract, and further, that City shall have access during normal working hours to all
such engineer or sub-contractor facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space, in
order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of the paragraph. City shall give any such
engineer or sub-contractor reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

6.17  Default/Termination. If at any time during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall fail
to commence the work in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement or fail to diligently provide
Services in an efficient, timely and careful manner and in strict accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement or fail to use an adequate number or quality of personnel to complete the work or fail to perform
any of its obligations under this Agreement in accordance with its terms, including without limitation the
Scope of Services and/or the Project Schedule, then City shall have the right, if Consultant shall not cure
any such default after ten (10) days days written notice thereof, to terminate this Agreement on the eleventh
(11" day following the date of City’s written notice of default. Any such act by City shall not be deemed a
waiver of any other right or remedy of City.

6.18 Termination Without Cause. In addition to termination for default as set forth in Section 6.17
of this Agreement, the City may terminate this Agreement at any time by City without cause by providing
Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of such termination.

6.19 Payment Obligations Upon Termination. Upon receipt of termination notice under either
Section 6.18 or Section 6.19, Consultant shall immediately terminate working on, placing orders or entering
into contracts for supplies, assistance, facilities or materials in connection with this Agreement and shall
proceed to promptly cancel all existing contracts insofar as they are related to this Agreement. Upon
termination, City shall pay all money owed to Consultant based upon tasks satisfactorily completed as of
the date of notice of termination. If Consultant has not met one or more percentage benchmarks as
identified in Exhibit “B”, “Project Schedule”, Consultant shall submit an invoice containing an itemized
list of tasks performed with the associated hourly fee. In no event shall individual fees or the cost of such
itemized list exceed the Lump Sum payment for the specific service provided by Consultant as listed in
Exhibit “C”, “Fee Schedule”. Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for any Services completed to
the reasonable satisfaction of the City in accordance with this Agreement prior to such termination.

In addition to the foregoing, If after exercising any such remedy due to Consultant’s nonperformance under
this Agreement, the cost to City to complete the work to be performed under this Agreement is in excess of
that part of the Agreement sum which has not theretofore been paid to Consultant hereunder, Consultant
shall be liable for and shall reimburse City for such excess. City’'s remedies for Consultant’s default or
breach under this Agreement shall include monetary damages as allowed by law, re-performance of this
Agreement at no extra charge to City, or equitable remedies, including without limitation specific
performance of this Agreement.

6.20 Confidential Information. Consultant hereby acknowledges and agrees that its
representatives may have access to or otherwise receive information during the furtherance of its
obligations in accordance with this Agreement, which is of a confidential, non-public or proprietary nature.
Consultant shall treat any such information received in full confidence and will not disclose or appropriate
such Confidential Information for its own use or the use of any third party at any time during or subsequent
to this Agreement. As used herein, “Confidential Information” means all oral and written information
concerning City, its affiliates and subsidiaries, and all oral and written information concerning City or its
activities, that is of a non-public, proprietary or confidential nature including, without limitation, information
pertaining to customer lists, services, methods, processes and operating procedures, together with all
analyses, compilation, studies or other documents, whether prepared by Consultant or others, which
contain or otherwise reflect such information. The term “Confidential Information” shall not include such

Page 7 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



234

materials that are or become generally available to the public other than as a result of disclosure of
Consultant, or are required to be disclosed by a governmental authority.

6.21  Conflict of Interest. Consultant covenants and agrees that Consultant and its associates
and employees will have no interest, and will acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which will conflict
in any manner with the performance of the Services called for under this Agreement. All activities,
investigations and other efforts made by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement will be conducted by
employees, associates or subcontractors of Consultant.

6.22 No Third Party Beneficiary. For purposes of this Agreement, including its intended operation
and effect, the parties (City and Consultant) specifically agree and contract that: (1) the Agreement only
affects matters/disputes between the parties to this Agreement, and is in no way intended by the parties to
benefit or otherwise affect any third person or entity notwithstanding the fact that such third person or entity
may be in contractual relationship with City or Consultant or both; and (2) the terms of this Agreement are
not intended to release, either by contract or operation of law, any third person or entity from obligations
owing by them to either City or Consultant.

6.23  Prohibition regarding Israel. Pursuant to the requirements of Texas Government Code
Chapter 2270, Consultant verifies that it does not boycott Israel, and it will not boycott Israel during the term
of this Agreement.

(Signature Page to Follow)

Page 8 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



EXECUTED this day of , 2019.

CiTy OF CORINTH, TEXAS

235

By:
Bob Hart, City Manager
Attest:
By:
Lana Wylie, Acting City Secretary
Approved As To Form:
By:
Patricia A. Adams, City Attorney
EXECUTED this day of , 2018.
CONSULTANT
(NAME OF CONSULTANT)
By:
Name:
Title:
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
CONSULTANT
STATE OF TEXAS )
)
COUNTY OF )
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of , 20,
by , of , on

behalf of such entity.

Page 9 | Agreement for Consulting Services

City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



236

Notary Public, State of Texas

CITY
STATE OF TEXAS )
)
COUNTY OF DENTON )
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of , 20

by BOB HART, City Manager of the City of Corinth, a home rule municipal corporation, on behalf of such
corporation.

Notary Public, State of Texas

Page 10 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



237

EXHIBIT “A”
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Page 11 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



238

EXHIBIT“B”
PROJECT SCHEDULE

Page 12 | Agreement for Consulting Services
City of Corinth — AWIA Risk & Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan



239

EXHIBIT“C”
FEE SCHEDULE



240

EXxHIBIT “D”
CiTY REQUEST FOR STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR
AWIA RISK & RESILIENCY ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN



241

ExHIBIT “E”
CONSULTANT’S RESPONSE TO CITY SOQ



AWIA RISK AND RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

PROJECT SCHEDULE

Kimley-Horn is well equipped to meet the EPA required deadline of June 30, 2021. Below is a draft schedule. Our team
consists of AWIA-certified specialists currently using the AWIA process for many cities in Texas and other states. This allows
our team to be prepared and to quickly identify and mitigate schedule issues.

JAN FEB

2021 2021

MAR APR
2021 2021

JUN
2021

0CT
2021

242

@ MILESTONE

NOV  DEC
2021 2021

Project Initiation and Kickoff Meeting
Data Gathering and Gap Analysis

Threat-Asset Pair Workshop and
Site Visits

Baseline Risk and Data Analysis
RRA Draft Review Meeting
Final RRA Deliverable Submittal

ERP Outline Review and Plan
Development Meetings

ERP 80% Review
ERP Draft Review Meeting
Final ERP Deliverable Submittal

|_
|

¢

ABILITY TO BRING ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

The Kimley-Horn team will devote the staff identified in the organizational chart to support the City of Corinth. As a national
firm with more than 4,500 employees nationwide and over 900 employees in our Texas Region, Kimley-Horn also can call
upon additional staff to render assistance or expedite the schedule, if needed. We specifically have more than 100 water
professionals in Texas that can be available to serve as support staff on this project. We have more than enough resources to
carry out this project on your required schedule.

IWPN51019.2020



AWIA RISK AND RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
243

ORGANIZATION CHART

As project manager, Anthony Samarripas, P.E. will provide oversight of the team and serve as a single point-of-contact for
the City of Corinth. As demonstrated in the organization chart below and resumes of our key team members, Kimley-Horn
has assembled a team of highly qualified individuals with extensive previous experience on comparable projects. Personnel
on our team have a long track record of partnering together on RRA and ERP projects, and our team members have the right
technical expertise to serve Corinth efficiently in the disciplines anticipated.

PROJECT MANAGER

Kimley»Horn

ANTHONY
SAMARRIPAS, PE.

QUALITY CONTROL /RISK ASSESSMENT ADVISOR
Kimley»Horn

ASHLYN
MORGAN, PE.

SCADA /CYBERSECURITY

ASSET MANAGEMENT/RESILIENCY

ASSESSMENT AND AWIA COMPLIANCE
Kimley»Horn

RICK
;ZEEV;KE PE* HIDALGO, PE.
I CHRIS
IGO0, PE.*

*Holds the AWWA Ultility Risk and Resilience
Certification.

IWPN51019.2020



AWIA RISK AND RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
244

PROJECT TEAM RESUMES

ANTHONY SAMARRIPAS, P.E.
PROJECT MANAGER

Anthony has 19 years of experience in the engineering of water transmission, distribution, and
storage systems. Most of the services he provides are for municipal clients, water districts, and
other public-serving entities. His experience includes the design and rehabilitation of transmission
lines, pump stations, and storage tanks. Anthony’s responsibilities often include construction
contract administration of these kinds of water projects, so he has seen numerous facilities being
built and is proficient in several programs typically used in water transmission/distribution/storage
projects, including WaterCAD, SewerCAD, and ArcView for geographic information systems (GIS).
Because of this experience, he is thoroughly familiar with the specialized issues that arise during
construction. He has also served as a liaison between municipalities and project stakeholders

PROFESSIONAL during the public involvement stages of several projects, so he has a strong working knowledge
CREDENTIALS of how to involve and work with the public.
Bachelor of Science, RELEVANT EXPERIENCE
Civil Engineering,
Texas Tech University e City of Corinth Roadway, Water, and Wastewater Impact Fee, Corinth, TX
e City of Corinth Lake Sharon Ground Storage Tank Design, Corinth, TX
Professional Engineer e City of Folsom Emergency Response Plan, Folsom, CA

in Texas (No. 95876
( ) e City of Fate 2010 Water, Wastewater, and Roadway Impact Fee Reports, Fate, TX

Water Environment e Farmersville Comprehensive Plan and Water and Wastewater Impact Fee, Farmersville, TX

Federation, Member ¢ Town of Flower Mound Transportation Master Plan and Roadway, Water, and Wastewater Impact
Fee Update, Flower Mound, TX

e Town of Flower Mound Denton Creek Reuse Master Plan, Flower Mound, TX
¢ North Texas Municipal Water District (NTMWD) Basin Master Plan, Wylie, TX

e Town of Flower Mound Wastewater and Water System Master Plan, Transportation Master Plan,
and Impact Fee Update, Flower Mound, TX

e City of Red Oak Water/Wastewater Master Plan, Red Oak, TX

e City of Fate 2015 Water, Wastewater, Roadway Master Plan, Fate, TX

e City of Princeton Impact Fee, Princeton, TX

e Town of Lakewood Village Water Impact Fees, Lakewood Village, TX

e City of Garland Impact Fee, Garland, TX

e City of Red Oak Water and Sewer Survey, Red Oak, TX

Kaufman 20-Inch Water Line Assessment, Kaufman, TX

Wylie, Rockwall, Farmersville 36- and 48-Inch Water Line, Wylie, TX

Bedford Water Line Condition Assessment, Bedford, TX

Morriss Road 20-Inch Water Line, Flower Mound, TX

FM 1171 and Highway 377 36-Inch and 20-Inch Water Lines, Flower Mound, TX
Stacy Road Water Line 42-Inch to 24-Inch Relocations, Wylie, TX

¢ Wise County Water Supply District 2.9 MG Pump Station and Water Line, Decatur, TX

IWPN51019.2020



AWIA RISK AND RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
245

PROFESSIONAL
CREDENTIALS

Bachelor of Science,
Civil Engineering,
Texas A&M University

Professional Engineer
in Texas (No. 121682)

American Water
Works Association,
Member

IWPN51019.2020

ASHLYN MORGAN, PE.
QUALITY CONTROL/RISK ASSESSMENT ADVISOR

Ashlyn is a water resources project engineer with eight years of experience in design, planning,
and modeling. She has special expertise with hydraulic modeling and water resources master
planning. Her hydraulic modeling experience ranges from small-scale models that size service
lines and anticipate water pressure at individual sites, to development reviews that assess the
impacts of high-density developments on water and wastewater systems and citywide master
planning for both water and wastewater distribution systems. Ashlyn is proficient in modeling
software, including InfoSewer, InfoWater, and WaterCAD.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

e City of Corinth Master Plan Updates, Corinth, TX

e West Wise Special Utility District West Wise Water System Model, Lake Bridgeport, TX
Water and Wastewater Master Plan Updates, Flower Mound, TX

e Pavilion Park Water Hydraulic Analysis, Midland, TX

e Briarwood/Pioneer Water Hydraulic Analysis, Midland, TX

¢ Ennis Warehouse Water Model, Ennis, TX

¢ Red Oak Water Master Plan, Red Oak, TX

e Peoria New River Water Modeling, Peoria, AZ

e Fort Mojave Water Model, Fort Mojave, AZ

e | ower Heights District Turcotte Development, Dallas, TX

e San Jacinto River Authority GRP C-3 Conroe Water Transmission Line, Montgomery, TX
o Wildlife Parkway Water Line, Grand Prairie, TX

e High Road Water Line Replacement, Flower Mound, TX

e FM 2499/3040 Water Line Relocation, Flower Mound, TX

e DWU 2016 Water and Wastewater Replacements, Dallas, TX

e DWU 2014 Water and Wastewater Replacements, Dallas, TX

e DWU 2010 Water and Wastewater Replacements, Dallas, TX

e NTMWD Stacy Road Water Lines 42-Inch to 24-Inch Relocations, Wylie, TX
e Morriss Road 20-Inch Water Line, Flower Mound, TX

e University Hills Wastewater Basin Analysis, Dallas, TX



AWIA RISK AND RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
246

PROFESSIONAL
CREDENTIALS

Bachelor of Science,
Civil Engineering,
North Dakota State
University

Professional Engineer
in Texas (No. 133480)

IWPN51019.2020

DREW ZAESKE, P.E.
ASSET MANAGEMENT/RESILIENCY ASSESSMENT AND AWIA COMPLIANCE

Drew has completed the AWWA Utility Risk and Resilience Certificate Program. He has more than
five years of experience working with municipalities and water districts providing a wide range of
water and wastewater engineering services. His design experience includes system modeling,
master planning, ground and elevated storage tanks, transmission lines, distribution systems,
and metering stations. In addition to this planning and design experience, he has construction
experience in both contract administration and on-site inspection.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

e City of Corinth Master Plan Update, Corinth, TX

e Town of Flower Mound Water Master Plan Update, Flower Mound, TX
e Southport Logistics Park 4.6 MGD Pump Station, Wilmer, TX

e Groundwater Transmission Main Condition Assessment, Kilgore, TX

e Cypress Waters 1.5 MG Elevated Storage Tank, Pump Station Improvements, and Water
Transmission Lines, Dallas, TX

e Pintail 23 MGD Pump Station Capacity Improvements, Flower Mound, TX
e Casa View Pump Station Electrical Improvements, Dallas, TX

Stonehill Pump Station Improvements and 10 MG Ground Storage Tank Rehabilitation,
Flower Mound, TX

e | egacy West 4.5 MGD Lift Station, Plano, TX

e | egacy West 16-Inch/30-Inch Force Main, Plano, TX

Bakersfield Park Lift Station, Flower Mound, TX

e | ake Cities Municipal Utility Authority Hydraulic Analysis, Corinth, TX

e Virginia Parkway 7.0 MG Ground Storage Tank, McKinney, TX

¢ Wylie-Rockwall-Farmersville 48-Inch Pipeline Improvements, Phase 2, Wylie, TX
e NTMWD Setpoint Control Implementation Phase IV, Collin County, TX

e Morriss Road 30-Inch Water Line Phase 2, Flower Mound, TX



AWIA RISK AND RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
247

CHRIS 1GO, P.E.
ASSET MANAGEMENT/RESILIENCY ASSESSMENT AND AWIA COMPLIANCE

Chris is a professional engineer with more than nine years of experience providing a wide

range of water and wastewater design services. He has successfully produced multidisciplinary
projects involving water, sanitary sewer, site development, and paving and drainage. Chris has
experience in helping municipalities and utility authorities with CIPs, master planning, impact fees,
construction contract administration, and permitting issues. He has worked on and managed
projects from conception through planning, design, and construction.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE
PROFESSIONAL

CREDENTIALS ¢ Temple Risk and Resilience Assessment and Emergency Response Plan, Temple, TX
Bachelor of Science ¢ | CMUA Risk and Resilience Assessment and Emergency Response Plan, Lake Dallas, TX
Civil Engineering, , e Water and Sanitary Sewer Relocations for the Trinity River Vision, Fort Worth, TX

Veps Ve Uil eely ¢ North Tarrant Express (Segments 1, 3B, and 3A) Engineering, Design, and Project Management,

Fort Worth, TX
EAZ?ESLg;SLSSC'enCe’ e Summer Creek Drive and McPherson Boulevard Water Improvements, Fort Worth, TX
Wayland Baptist e 42/36-Inch Water Relocations for BNSF Rail Company Main No. 2 Relocation, Fort Worth, TX

University e North Tarrant Express Segment 4 IH-820/SH-121 36-Inch Water Line Relocations, Fort Worth, TX

. . e City of Fort Worth 48-Inch Water Line Relocations for FM-156, Fort Worth, TX
Professional Engineer

in Texas (No. 120045) e Panther Island Master Plan and Design Services for Tarrant Regional Water District (TRWD)/Trinity
- River Vision Authority (TRVA), Fort Worth, TX
American Water ¢ Design and Development Support for the Panther Island Master Plan, Fort Worth, TX

\&Vgﬁgéﬁr\ssociation, e TRWD Operations Compound Master Plan, Fort Worth, TX
e Norwood Drive Reconstruction, Fort Worth, TX

North American e TRWD Administration Building Grading Permit, Fort Worth, TX
Association

of Trenchless
Technology, Member e City of Denton Development Review Engineering Services, Denton, TX

¢ Trinity Uptown (Panther Island) Mass Grading and Development Services, Fort Worth, TX

e City of Denton Construction Standards, Denton, TX

e Denton Creek Water Reuse Report, Flower Mound, TX

e Stacy Road 42-Inch and 24-Inch Water Line Relocations, Allen, TX
e NTMWD Delivery Sites, Kaufman County, TX

¢ | ake Cities Municipal Utility Authority Lift Station No. 1 and Sanitary Sewer Interceptor,
Lake Dallas, TX

e City of Lubbock Lift Station No. 41 Replacement and Force Main, Lubbock, TX
e City of Melissa Impact Fee Update, Melissa, TX
¢ |-5 North Coast Highway Water and Sanitary Sewer Relocations, San Elijo, CA

IWPN51019.2020



AWIA RISK AND RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
248

PROFESSIONAL
CREDENTIALS

Bachelor of Science,
Electrical Engineering,
University of Texas at
BEIES

Professional Engineer
in Texas (No. 94663)

Water Environment
Association of Texas,
President

Water Environment
Federation, Member

IWPN51019.2020

Obignature ™
\ Autom_a_tion

Rick is President of Signature Automation and a licensed control systems engineer with over

30 years of experience in design, commissioning, and programming of both DCS and SCADA
systems for various water/wastewater utilities. Rick has managed large-scale projects for clients
throughout the U.S., with services ranging from SCADA master planning through design and

final commissioning for large service areas. He brings deep knowledge of current cybersecurity
standards to the team and has assisted utilities with assessing and modernizing their SCADA
compliance. He now serves as President of the Water Environment Association of Texas (WEAT)
and recently completed a six-year term as Co-Chair of the WEAT Safety and Security Committee,
focusing on cybersecurity for water/wastewater SCADA systems.

RICK HIDALGO, P.E.
SCADA/CYBERSECURITY

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

e San Antonio Water System (SAWS) America’s Water Infrastructure Act of 2018 Compliant Risk
Assessment and Emergency Response Plan, San Antonio, TX

e Austin Water SCADA Security Gap Analysis, Austin, TX

e City of Corpus Christi Wastewater Treatment Plants and Lift Stations SCADA Improvements
Master Plan, Corpus Christi, TX

e SAWS Broadband Access Points and Programmable Logic Controllers Replacement
Phase 2, San Antonio, TX

o SAWS Central Water Integration Project Owner’s Representative and SCADA Programming,
San Antonio, TX



AWIA RISK AND RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
249

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
REPRESENTATIVE LIST OF COMPLETED PROJECTS

The project matrix below highlights Kimley-Horn’s experience in performing similar scopes of work with respect to
vulnerability and risk-related assessments and emergency response plans.

ASSET/THREAT VULNERABILITY THREAT RISK  RISK/RESILIENCY
IDENTIFICATION  ANALYSIS  ANALYSIS ANALYSIS MANAGEMENT

POPULATION AWIA

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FL 2,717,000 ('} 6 é [} [
TRIANGLE CITIES, NC 2,079,000 é é [ [ [
SHELBY COUNTY, TN 927,000 é 6 [ é
CITY OF TAMPA, FL 393,000 é é [} [
CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FL 193,000 é é é é é
CITY OF PORTSMOUTH, VA 95,000 é é é é é
CITY OF ASHEVILLE, NC 92,000 é [} ¢ 6 [
CITY OF TEMPLE, TX 75000 @ 6 é é [} [
CITY OF ROWLETT, TX 66,000 é é

CITY OF OCALA, FL* 60,000 @ é é 6 [} [
TAMU (COLLEGE STATION, TX)* 53,000 @ é [ ¢ () 6
CITY OF SACHSE, TX* 26,000 @ é é é [} [
CITY OF SAGINAW, TX 24,000 @ é é é [} [
CITY OF SEBASTIAN, FL* 24,000 @ é é é [ [
CITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, MN* 20,000 @ é 6 é [ é
CITY OF BOERNE, TX* 20,000 @ é é 6 [} é
CITY OF GAINESVILLE, TX* 16000 @ é 6 é [} [
LCMUA (LAKE DALLAS, TX)* 16,000 @ é é é [} é
MARTIN COUNTY UTILITIES, FL* 16000 @ é 6 6 [} [
CITY OF ST. PETE BEACH, FL* 9,700 ¢ 6 é é [} é
CITY OF PRINCETON, TX* 12,000 @ é 6 é [} é
CITY OF DAYTON, TX* 8,000 'y é é ¢ [} [
CITY OF RED OAK, TX* 13000 @ é 6 é [} [

*Projects are in progress.

IWPN51019.2020



AWIA RISK AND RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
250

AWWA STANDARDS AND AWWA MANUALS

WE RECOMMEND ADDRESSING
SIMPLER, MORE STRAIGHT-

ANSI/AWWA

e S FORWARD ITEMS AND THEN
Standards - [N PROPERLY BUDGETING FOR

and Management

REMAINING ITEMS INTENDED
TO HELP MITIGATE RISK AND
MAKE YOUR DRINKING WATER
SYSTEM MORE RESILIENT FOR
YEARS TO COME.

ANSI/AWWA ANSI/AWWA

G440-17 Emergency J100-10 (R13)
Preparedness Risk and Resilience

Practices Management

M19
Emergency
Planning for AWWA églosows\mz

Water and Manuals Water Protection
Wastewater

Utilities

Operational Guide
to AWWA

Standard G300

SEVEN-STEP RAMCAP PROCESS

Asset Characterization What assets do | have and which are critical?

Threat Characterization What threats and hazards should | consider?

What happens to my assets if a threat or hazard happens? How

Consequence Analysis : S
9 y much money lost, how many lives lost, and how many injuries?

What are my vulnerabilities that would allow a threat or hazard

VuInerability Analysis to cause these consequences?

What is the likelihood that a terrorist, natural hazard, or
dependency/proximity hazard will strike my facility?

Threat Analysis

What is my risk and resilience?
Risk/Resilience Analysis Risk = Consequences x Vulnerability x Threat Likelihood
Resilience = Service Outage x Vulnerability x Threat Likelihood

What options do | have to reduce risks and increase resilience? How
Risk/Resilience Management much will each benefit in reduced risks and increased resilience?
How much will it cost? What is the benefit-cost ratio of my options?

IWPN51019.2020



AWIA RISK AND RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
251

CITY OF CORINTH STARTING POINT — GAP ANALYSIS

BENCHMARK REVIEW EXISTING COMPARE TO DEFINE THE ENGAGE REVIEW
CURRENT STATUS VULNERABILITY AWIA APPROACH STAKEHOLDERS POTENTIAL IMPACTS
ASSESSMENT AND ERP REQUIREMENTS TO UPDATE TO CIP PLANNING

RISK AND RESILIENCE MANAGEMENT PLAN

R=C*V*T Re=D*S*V*T

Re = RESILIENCE Re = RESILIENCE
Ability to withstand a threat event ($/year) Ability to withstand a threat event ($/year)
C = CONSEQUENCE D = DURATION
Worst reasonable outcome of the threat-asset pair ($) Time for which service will be denied in a threat event (days)
V = VULNERABILITY S = SERVICE DENIAL
Likelihood the threat occurrence will result in the consequence Amount of service denied/revenue loss ($/day)
T = THREAT LIKELIHOOD o V= VULNERABILITY |
Probability or frequency of the threats occurrence (one/year) Likelihood the threat occurrence will result in the consequence
T = THREAT LIKELIHOOD
Probability or frequency of the threats occurrence (one/year)

AWIA COMPLIANCE — APPROACH OVERVIEW

EXISTING DOCUMENT RISK AND RESILIENCY = EMERGENCY RESPONSE

KICKOFF MEETING

REVIEW ASSESSMENT PLAN
Project schedule Existing document review Threat asset pairing Response to and recovery
from threats and hazards
Role and responsibilities Gap analysis Estimate consequences
for disruption of service Incorporation of the National
Meeting notes Clarifications scenarios Incident Management

Systems (NIMS)
Evaluate existing

countermeasures |dentify mutual aid

Risk reduction workshop Internal and external
communication templates

Draft review, comment, and
final document Draft reviews, comment,
and final document

Training

IWPN51019.2020



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 2%

FORM 1295
lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2020-684000
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
Dallas, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 10/28/2020
being filed.
City of Corinth Date Acknowledged:

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

SOQ #1137
AWIA risk and resiliency assessment and emergency response plan

4 Nature of interest

Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary

McEntee, David Dallas, TX United States X

Lefton, Steve Dallas, TX United States X

Cook, Richard Dallas, TX United States X

Atz, John Dallas, TX United States X

5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. |:|

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is_Kevin Hoppers , and my date of birth is 03/12/1975
My address is 13455 Noel Road, Suite 700 ,_Dallas . 75240 |, USA
(street) (city) (state) (zip code) (country)

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed in Dallas County, State of | €Xas ,onthe 28 dayof October , 2020
(month) (year)

Signature of authorized agent of
(Declarant)

tracting business entity

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V1.1.3a6aaf7d



253

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE FORM CIQ

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session. OFFICE USE ONLY

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor who
has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and the
vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

Date Received

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not later
than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be
filed. See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An
offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

1] Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

2]

Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an updated
completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date on which
you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3] Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

N/A
Name of Officer

4] Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the
officer, as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A). Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer.
Complete subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described. Attach additional pages to this Form
CIQ as necessary.

N/A

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,
other than investment income, from the vendor?

|:| Yes No

B. Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the direction
of the local government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the
local governmental entity?

|:| Yes No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a corporation or
other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an
ownership interest of one percent or more.

N/A
6
Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts
as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).
7

November 11, 2020
Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Revised 11/30/2015



CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137 254
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMENT
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

SUBMITTAL EXCEPTION FORM

THIS PAGE MUST BE SIGNED AND INCLUDED WITH YOUR PROPOSAL

Any exceptions to the SOQ (including the Instructions, Specifications/Scope of Services, Standard Terms and
Conditions, and Insurance Requirements) must be listed below. Additional pages may be attached. If there are no
exceptions, please sign where indicated at the bottom of this page.

Kimley-Horn has read and reviewed the City of Corinth standard terms and conditions and draft agreement for

consulting services and presents the following exceptions.

Standard Terms and Conditions

18. FORCE MAJEURE: The force majeure is limited and inadequate to contemplate all the factors that can cause a

delay. Given the circumstances created by COVID-19, a more expansive force majeure is essential. Kimley-Horn

requests the following addition to the end of the first sentence in this section: “or any other event outside the reasonable

control of the delayed party.”

19. INDEMNITY AGREEMENT: We are concerned that as written, the indemnification is not compliant with Texas Local

Government Code Section 271.904 and would likely be found void and unenforceable. At the end of the last sentence in

this section, Kimley-Horn requests adding, “and is subject to the limitations in Texas Local Government Code Section
271.904 and Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code Section 130.002(B).”

Draft Agreement for Consulting Services

Article lll Schedule of Work — Project Completion: Kimley-Horn requests adding delay language to the end of this

article such as, “However, times for performance shall be extended as necessary, and neither party shall have liability or

be deemed in breach due to any delay caused by any factor outside the reasonable control of the delayed party.”

Article VI Miscellaneous 6.19 Payment Obligations Upon Termination: Kimley-Horn requests the first sentence in

this section be updated to read: “Upon receipt of termination notice under either Section 6.17 or Section 6.18..."

There are no further exceptions to the Instructions, Specifications, and Standard Terms and Conditions. | understand that
the City may not accept additional exceptions after final submission of this proposal.

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. November 11, 2020
Signature Company Date

No exceptions are taken to this solicitation.

Signature Company Date

PAGE 15 OF SOQ #1137



10.

11.

12.

CITY OF CORINTH SOQ #1137
REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWIA RISK & RESILIENCE ASSESSMEREP
AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

CERTIFICATION FORM

In submitting this proposal, the respondent agrees and certifies to the following conditions:
The undersigned agrees that after the official opening this proposal becomes the property of the City of Corinth.

The undersigned affirms he has familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the work is to be performed; satisfied
himself of the conditions of delivery, handling and storage of equipment and all other matters that may be incidental to the work,
before submitting a proposal.

The undersigned agrees, if this proposal is accepted, to furnish any and all items/services upon which prices are offered, at the
price(s) and upon the terms and conditions contained in the Specifications. The period for acceptance of this Proposal will be 120
calendar days unless a different period is noted by the respondent.

The undersigned affirms that they are duly authorized to execute this contract, that this proposal has not been prepared in collusion
with any other Respondent, nor any employee of the City of Corinth, and that the contents of this bid have not been communicated
to any other respondent or to any employee of the City of Corinth prior to the official opening of this proposal.

The respondent certifies that no employee, representative, or agent of the firm offered or gave gratuities in any form (i.e. gifts,
entertainment, etc.) to any council Member, official, or employee of the city of Corinth in order to secure favorable treatment or
consideration in awarding, negotiating, amending or concluding a final agreement for this proposal. The respondent agrees that and
warrants that no employee, official, or member of the City Council is, or will be, peculiarly benefited, directly or indirectly, in this
proposal or any ensuing contract that may follow.

The respondent hereby certifies that he/she is not included on the U.S. Comptroller General's Consolidated List of Persons or Firms
currently debarred for violations of various contracts incorporating labor standards/provisions.

Respondent verifies that it does not Boycott Israel, and agrees that during the term of this Agreement (Contract as applicable) will
not Boycott Israel as that term is defined in Texas Government Code Section 808.001, as amended.

Respondent affirms, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2252, Subchapter F, that is it not identified on a list created by
the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services to a foreign
terrorist organization.

Respondent/Vendor hereby assigns to purchaser any and all claims for overcharges associated with this Contract which arise under
the antitrust laws of the United States, 15 USCA Section 1 et seqd., and which arise under the antitrust laws of the State of Texas,
Tex. Bus. & Com. Code, Section 15.01, et seq.

The undersigned affirms that he/she has read and understands the specifications, terms and conditions, all exhibits and attachments
contained in this proposal package.

The undersigned understands they are responsible for monitoring the City of Corinth’'s website at
https://www.cityofcorinth.com/Bids.aspx to ensure they have downloaded and signed all addenda required for submission with their
response.

The Contract is not valid until approved by Council, if applicable. When an award letter is issued, it becomes a part of this Contract.

If an addendum to this proposal is issued, acknowledge addendum by initialing beside the addendum number:
Add. No. 1 Add. No. 2 Add. No. 3 Add. No. 4 Add. No. 5

Company Name: Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

Principal Place of Business Address, City, State, Zip: 13455 Noel Road, Two Galleria Office Tower, Suite 700, Dallas, TX 75240

Principal Place of Business Phone Number: 972.770.1300 Fax Number: 972.239.3820

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:

November 11, 2020

Signature Date

Kevin Hoppers, P.E., PTOE Vice President
Printed Name Title
kevin.hoppers@kimley-horn.com 972.770.1307
Email Address Phone

PAGE 19 OF SOQ #1137



256

BUSINESS ITEM 8.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021
Title: Consider and act upon the Alternative Compliance Application for tree preservation on
+.42 acres located at 3900 Serendipity Hills Court (AC20-0003)
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Beadle, Director Submitted By: Miguel Inclan, Planner
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development
Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government
AGENDA ITEM

Consider and act upon the Alternative Compliance Application for tree preservation on .42 acres located at 3900
Serendipity Hills Court, The Bluffs at Pinnell Pointe, Block B, Lot 1. (AC20-0003)

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

The Applicant is requesting approval of an Alternative Compliance Application (AC20-0003) for Tree Preservation
(required under Section 2.09.02) as presented in the attached worksheet and accompanying exhibits.

The site is presently vacant except for an existing lift station sitting on an easement within the parcel. The Applicant
is proposing to construct single family residence at the site.

The subdivision, The Bluffs at Pinnell Pointe, was platted in 2007. Until now, when a building permit for this
subdivision was requested through the Building Permits division, staff permitted the removal without replacement
of trees located within the footprint of the residential building, plus a five-foot area, and in areas designated for
driveways. There is an additional requirement for a grading plan to be submitted and reviewed by the City’s
Engineering staff as part of the building permit process.

Section 2.09.02 of the Unified Development Code states that the City shall approve the removal of trees located
within a building pad site, street right-of-way, utility easement, or driveway. However, any tree removed shall be
mitigated (replaced) at a 1:1 ratio.

If the ordinance was applied as written, the Applicant is responsible for the mitigation, either through replacement
trees or fee-in-lieu of, of all removed trees on the site. The Applicant submitted his application under this pretense
and was seeking a full exemption from the replacement or fee-in-lieu of requirements for all removed trees.

The breakdown of existing trees, trees to be removed, and trees to remain is below. For tree locations, see
attachments.

Species Siz.e (in. Protected Proposal LoFat.ed within F oo.tprint of
caliper inches) Building +5ft or driveway
Oak 12 Y Removal Yes
Oak 11 Y Removal Yes
Oak 10 Y Removal Yes
Oak 12 Y Removal Yes
Oak 18 Y Removal Yes
Oak 5 Y Removal Yes
Oak 9 Y Removal Yes
Oak 7 Y Removal Yes
Oak 10 Y Removal Yes




257

Oak 12 Y Removal Yes
Oak 6 Y Removal Yes
Elm 6 Y Removal Yes
Cedar 4 N Removal Yes
Elm 10 Y Remain No
Oak 5 N Remain No
Oak 6 Y Remain No
Oak 10 Y Remain No
Oak 7 Y Remain No
Total Protected Caliper Inches on Site 146
Total Protected Caliper Inches to be removed 113
Total Protected Caliper Inches to remain 33

Staff recognizes the unusual constraints placed upon this parcel, notably, the lift station and the utility and drainage
easements along the right-of-way. This leaves the applicant with a much smaller area to construct the home within
the building setback lines. As the City of Corinth has been discussing an update to the Tree Ordinance, staff
believes this particular case presents an opportunity to apply a concept contemplated for new single-family
residential construction on previously established (platted) lots.

This proposed concept is similar to the previous practice for this subdivision. Staff recommends that the trees
removed from the area within the building footprint of the home, plus a five-foot area, and the driveway, be exempt
from replacement. That totals 113 caliper inches removed without the need to replace them. This does not exempt
the Applicant from compliance with the Landscape Regulations of Section 2.09.01 of the UDC, which require the
planting of four new trees, separate from the replacement trees.

As to the remaining trees on site, the Applicant has considered building a pool in an area where two of the
remaining protected trees are located. Additionally, the grading plan required as part of the building permit may
dictate that some or all of the remaining trees be removed from the site, whether the pool is built or not. No land
disturbance of any type, including the removal of trees, will be permitted until the grading plan has been reviewed
and approved by City staff.

Staff is proposing that if any of the remaining trees are removed for any reason, the Applicant be required to
mitigate the removed trees at a 1:1 ratio, with the option to pay a fee-in-lieu of replacement for a percentage of
caliper inches required to be replaced, up to one hundred percent, if staff determines that there is insufficient space
to plant any or all of the replacement trees. Staff is additionally proposing a reduction of the established fee of one
hundred fifty (150) dollars per caliper inch to a fee of seventy (70) dollars per caliper inch.

Under this arrangement, if all thirty-three remaining caliper inches are removed, the applicant would be required to
pay a fee of two thousand three hundred ten (2,310) dollars.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the application for alternative compliance be approved, granting an exemption from
mitigating trees removed from within the footprint of the proposed home, plus a five-foot area, and the proposed
driveway; with the condition that should any remaining tree be removed for any reason, such trees be replaced at a
1:1 ratio or a fee-in-lieu of mitigation, at the discretion of the department director and for a fee of seventy (70)
dollars per caliper inch; and the condition that no land disturbance of any type shall occur until all necessary
reviews have been performed and permits issued.

Attachments
Alternative Compliance Application



258
Applicant Letter

Tree Survey
Site Plan




259

Application for Alternative Compliance
Tree Replacement and Fee-In-Lieu-of Replacement

Tree Survey/Tree Protection Plan

Number Caliper Inches
A. Tree Survey: Identify total number of “Protected Trees” located on site. A Protected Tree is ’é \ 7
defined as having a trunk caliper of six inches (6”) or more, measured 4’6” above natural f"’ , o
grade. Survey shall be prepared by a Registered Landscape Architect or Certified Arborist. = Ry AV
Trees excluded from the Protected Tree Definition are listed in UDC Section 2.09.02.B.3.b.
B. Tree Protection Plan: Calculate and graphically show the following:
a. Total Protected Trees to be removed from site =3
b. Total Protected Trees to be preserved on site
c. Total Protected Trees Required to be Replaced (Section 2.09.02B.3.) 2 |3
Subtotal: 5
d. Total Protected Trees required to be Replaced as listed above may be reduced (if .
determined to meet definition of “Heavily Tree Lot” as calculated in item C., below). O
—Less 50%
Total: | #5 13
C. Heavily Treed Lots: Graphically show and provide the calculations demonstrating that the Protected Tree

“Protected Tree” Canopy Coverage on the lot is 50% or more of the land area.*

Canopy Coverage

Acres/sa. ft. | Percent
1. Total Lot Area: oo 15
2. Total Area of “Protected Tree” Canopy Coverage: c
*Attach a separate exhibit (Tree Canopy Coverage) which is based on Tree Survey exhibit provided in A., above.
D. Alternative Compliance Request: City Council may approve requests to (1) plant replacement trees and/or (2) make

payment of a fee-in-lieu-of tree replacement.

Number

Caliper Inches

1. Request: To plant “Replacement Trees” on the same property or on another property
within City Limits. Note that proposed “Replacement Trees” shall be shown on a
Landscape Plan and be distinguished from other required landscaping material e.g., Shall
not include trees required per lot, in landscape buffers, etc., as required by other zoning
and subdivision regulations.

2. Request: Fee-in-Lieu-of Replacement of Protected Trees. ldentity the criteria
necessitating the request for payment of a fee in lieu of replacement fees. City Council
May Approve on for developments which meet one of the following Criteria per Section
2.09.02.K.2.

ol

Select one of the criteria listed below:

Caliper
Inches

Fee-in-Lieu-of
Amount*

a. Subdivision is heavily treed and the existing tree canopy would prohibit the
growth of the replacement trees

b. Required replacement tress were to be installed, the replacement trees would
be planted under the canopy of any existing trees.

c. Required replacement trees were to be installed, the economic viability of the

X\ property is compromised. (Ex. The value of mitigated trees exceeds the value

of the property.)

d. City has no available property for additional trees to be planted

Total:

*Reference City of Corinth Fee Schedule

Applicant:

\ A

Property Location: 00

Serend

Calculations and attached Exhibits were completed by
Reglstered Landscape Archltect or Certified Arborist. Name:
Name: Bndneny ¢

s\_i W»

Signature/Seal:

Applicants.docx

S: \Plannmg and Development\Planmng\Web5|te Files\Application Forms-Other\Tree Preservation- AJtefﬁatlve Comphance Appllcat[on TEMPLATE BLANK-For




A\ | /4

ol CITY OF CORINTH

TEXAS 3300 Corinth Parkway - Corinth, Texas 76208 - (940) 498-3206 - {940) 498-7576 fax - www.cityofcorinth.com

Alternative Compliance Checklist
Project Name: Click or tap here to enter text.
GENERAL INFORMATION

1) See Section 2.10.02 Alternative Compliance and related section off the Unified Development Code for more
information on the Alternative Compliance process.

2) A pre-application conference with City Staff is encouraged, but not required.

3) All required materials shall be submitted in both hard copy and electronic formats (Adobe PDF), unless
specifically instructed otherwise. All digital items shall be saved on a CD/DVD or flash drive. Each file shall be
labeled on the disc or drive as it appears on the checklist. Discs or drives must be clearly labeled with the project
name on the outside of the media.

APPLICATION CHECKLIST

Applicant

1) Application Information:

Completed and Signed Universal Application Form - One (1) paper copy and one (1) PDF |

An associated Site Plan Checklist with a site plan showing the requested alternative B/ |
compliance - One (1) paper copy and one (1) PDF

2) Statement explaining why alternative compliance is being sought and what specific alternative [j/
standards are being requested. - One (1) paper copy and one (1) PDF '

e [ E [ ]

3) Is the alternative standard, at a minimum, equivalent to the standards of the UDC and does it
meet the spirit and intent of UDC?

4) Landscaping Regulations: Alternative Compliance Standards (Section 2.09.01.F.) Check all of
the following which alternative compliance is being sought.

Location or Type of Required Landscape Materials

[

Is a request for alternative compliance being sought for the above category?

Does the request attempt to show compliance with the following?

Applicability: Alternatives to the location or type of required landscape
materials may be sought due to unusual topographic constraints, sight
restrictions, siting requirements, the preservation of existing standards
of native trees, or to maintain consistency of established front yard |
setbacks.

Provide the same amount of plant material: These alternatives may
vary the location of required landscape materials, but may not reduce |
the amount of required landscape area or the amount of landscape |
materials.

Development App f:e*ic# —‘a’xdbook Page 11 of 111 Date: 2019.12.26



A\ | /4

CO}{'I'ILTH CITY OF CORINTH

261

TeExas ’3‘390’CorLrEﬁﬂFﬂ’éi{'k‘w_a_y‘:wgg‘[jrjtb, Texas 76208 - (940) 498- 3206 - (940) 498-7576 fax - www.cityofcorinth.com

Required Landscaping Edges and Buffers

Is a request for alternative compliance being sought for the above category?

Life i H

Does the request attempt to show compliance with the following?

[ []

Applicability: Alternatives or minor changes to the required landscape
edges and buffers may be sought along a street frontage if immediately

adjacent properties on both sides (at side property lines) have a smaller |
or no landscape buffer strip, in order to maintain consistency between

existing parking lot and drive aisle alignments.

Equal amount required: If an alternative landscape edge or buffer |

exists, then an equal amount of landscaped area and trees shall be

provided elsewhere on the site as may be deemed appropriate by the |

City Council.

Landscaping for Nonresidential Areas Adjacent to Residential Areas

Is a request for alternative compliance being sought for the above category?

[] []

Does the request attempt to show compliance with the following?

L] []

Applicability: Partial or complete relief from the landscaping buffer
requirement within 2.09.01. A.6, if the applicable lot is smaller than two
(2) acres.

Adequate screening required: If an alternative buffer is granted,
adequate screening shall be provided to ensure an equivalent buffer
effect.

5) Tree Preservation: Alternative Compliance Standards (Section 2.09.02.K.)

Replacement Tree Locations

Is a request for alternative compliance being sought for the above category?

Does the request attempt to show compliance with the following?

Applicability: The City Council may approve replacement tree(s) being
planted either on the same property from which the tree was removed
or on other property within the City Limits providing the replacement
tree(s) will be adequately maintained on the new property. Trees may
be planted on City property.

Timing of compliance: Any such condition must be met within three (3)
months after the Protected Tree removal.

Fee in Lieu of Replacement Trees

Development Application Handbook Page 12 of 111
Alternative Compliance Checklist

Date: 2019.12.26



A\ | /4

COI{'I'ILTH CITY OF CORINTH

262

TEXAS 3300 Corinth Parkway - Corlnth Texas 76208 - (940) 498- 3206 - * (940) 498-7576 fax - www. cltyofcormth com

Is a request for alternative compliance being sought for the above category?

Does the request attempt to show compliance with the following?

Applicability: The City Council may approve payment of a fee in lieu of |
replacement trees. The fee shall be equal to the cost of the |

replacement trees and shall include the installation or planting cost.

The Applicant shall submit a written estimate from a nursery as

verification of the cost.

W E
]

Cases: The fee in lieu shall be available for only the following cases:

If the proposed subdivision is heavily treed and the existing

tree canopy would prohibit the growth of the replacement |

trees, or

If the required replacement trees were to be installed, then |

the replacement trees would need to be planted under the
canopy of any existing tree.

6) Vehicle Parking Regulations: Alternative Compliance Standards (Section 2.09.03.M.)

Is a request for alternative compliance being sought for the above category?

Does the request attempt to show compliance with the following?

An alternative parking ratio that differs from that specified within this Section
2.09.03., shall be based on a parking study conducted by a certified traffic
planner or traffic engineer.

7) Building Facade Material: Alternative Compliance Standards (Section 2.09.04.D.)

Alternative materials for nonresidential and multi-family buildings, the following
alternative materials or percentages may be approved:

Is a request for alternative compliance being sought for the above category?

Does the request attempt to show compliance with the following?

Any new material not specified in the definition of masonry |
construction that the City Council determines is equal or superior in |

appearance, safety and quality to masonry.

Any use of a veneer that simulates a masonry material and that the City
Council determines equal or superior in appearance, safety, and quality
to masonry.

A reduction of the required masonry percentage by a maximum of ten |
percent (10%) when a unique and attractive architectural design is

used.

Development Application Handbook Page 13 of 111
Alternative Compliance Checklist

Date: 2019.12.26



9CCT'610¢ -=3ed

1s1pPay) aouedwo) a/\neuégéw
TTT 40 ¢T 28ed joogpuey uonediddy uswdoansg

"1senbau ay1 Ausp 4o snoudde o3 uojsioap
B Ul 1SISSe p|nom 1eys [1puno) A1) Jo ‘uolssiwwo) Suluoz pue Sujuueld
‘Butuue|d jo 10181 2Yyr Ag paisenbeu sjeusiew ojdwes Jo/pue
uollewOjul |euollippe Aue spnjpul |jeys 22uspins siuediddy ayl

, $92UDPINS
| slyy papinoid juediddy syl seq -1sonbas soueldwiod aaleuIBlE 3yl JO
11oddns ul 9ouspins apiaoad 01 1uedijddy sy Jo Ajijiqisuodsal 9]0s 9y3 9q ||BYs 3

92uaping Suiuoddng

| 's3uIp|Ing [Bl1IU8pISal 9SNOYUMO]
| pue Ajwej-omy ‘Apwey 9[8uls Joy (,pieoguews, Jo ue|dalpJdeH,
| se 01 patisjal Ajuowwod os[e) 3ulpis pJeoqiaql 1UaWLd JO SN ay|

¢3uimo||o) ay1 yum oueldwod moys 03 1dwaiie 1sanbad ay3 seo(

'$309449 |ensia Aue 195440 01 papiaoid si Suideaspue| Biixe
41 ‘s8ulp|ing ojgeyiod Joj sjelsaiew Sulp|ing AJUOSEL-UOU JO 3sn ay|

éAio3a1e0 anoge ay) 4oy 1y3nos Suleq adueljdwod sAllrUID)|E J0) 1SoNnbal B 5|

3ulpIS p4eoquagid Juswa)

[] []

¢8uImoj|oJ ayy yum soueldwod moys 03 1dwaile 1sanbal a3yl saoq

B 3

éAio3s1e2 anoge sy3 4oy 1y3nos Sulaq soueldwod aaeUIS)E J0) 1Sanbal B S|

sjela1en Suipjing Aiuosen-uop

| ‘apedey} Jesd 4O 9pIS B UO S|elalew
| Aduosew pasinbau ayy Suioe|d jo nai ul 3ulp|ing 8yl Jo (s)apedey (3|qISIA
. 2Jow “9°1) JuoJ) Byl O] S|euslew Aiuosew paJinbal ayy jo Jusysueny

9y} ‘uojsuedxs 3ujodispun s3ulp|ing [BIIUSPISAIUOU SunSIXS 104

[] []

¢3uimo||o) ay3 yum soueldwos moys o3 1dwaiie 3sanbad ayy saoQ

0 B

¢Aio3a1e0 anoqge ay1 JoJ 1y3nos Sulaq souel|dwod aAj1BUIRY e 10} 1SaNnbal e S|

s|eli@1e|A AJUOSBIA| JO UOIIED0T DY3 Jajsued |

‘8uip|ing ay3 Jo Ja1oeuaeyd ay3 jo ued
| |ea3o1ul ue a4e Asyl papiaodd Buipjing |euiSiJO SU3 UO pasn s|eLId1RW
40 9sn ay1 ‘uoisuedxe 3ulodiepun s3ulp|ing [el3UIPISaJUOU SUIISIXD 04

$8uImoy|o4 ay3 yum soueljdwod moys 03 1dwaiie 1sanbal syl saoq

¢A103391e0 9n0Qge 9Y] 10J 1ySnos Suleq aoueljdwod aAljeUID)|E JO) 3sanbal B S|

s|eld@1elAl uipjing |euiSiQ

W02 YIUulI04OAD MMM - XB} §/G/-861 (076) - 907E-86% (016) - 80T9L SBX3L ‘Yiulo) - Aemyied yiuliod 0OEE

HINTMOO 40 ALIO

svxal

HINITHO0D

¥/ | \N



A\ | /¢

ll_ CITY OF CORINTH

8) Nonresidential Architectural Standards: Alternative Compliance Standards (Section 2.09.06.1.)

Nonresidential Design Elements

264

3300 Cgri(j_th Parkway - Corinth, Texas 76208 - (940) 498-3206 - (9{1(_)) 498-7576 ffa)}(: www:;itVJOfCO[Inth.com

Is a request for alternative compliance being sought for the above category?

Does the request attempt to show compliance with the following?

Alternatives to the nonresidential design elements are listed in Table
17 of the UDC.

Alternatives shall, in the determination of the City Council, produce a
similar or greater level of architectural design than the elements listed
in Table 17 of the UDC.

Nonresidential Building Articulation

Is a request for alternative compliance being sought for the above category?

Does the request attempt to show compliance with the following?

Alternative articulation standards which differ from the requirement |
found in 2.09.06. F may be approved. |

Alternative articulation standards shall, in the determination of the City
Council, produce a similar or greater level of articulation than the
requirement found in 2.09.06. F.

9) Lighting and Glare Regulations: Alternative Compliance Standards (Section 2.09.07.K.)

Is a request for alternative compliance being sought for the above category?

Which of the following eligible standards are being sought for alternative compliance?

Height of free-standing lighting fixtures;

Style or illumination intensity of lighting fixtures (only if such fixtures are located
at least three hundred feet (300’) away from a residential zoning district or use);

Maximum wattage of accent lighting; or

Gaseous/electrified building lighting design.

0ol oo

L]
£l

ool oo

]

Deve oomant Aoplication Handbook Pas

el50f111

[§]¢

Date: 2019.12.26



A\ | /4

ol CITY OF CORINTH

TEXAS 3300 Corinth Parkway - Corinth, Texas 76208 - (940) 498-3206 - (940) 498-7576 fax - www.cityofcorinth.com

265

Certification of Submitted Information

| hereby certify that the above stated information is included with the accompanying submission
materials.  Further, | have included any required conditions of an approved rezoning, planned
development (PD) zoning, special use permit, variance, or special exception or development agreement.

12/ 9 /2

’/))pllcants”S‘l‘g’rEture Date

A\ P =

)

Verification of Detailed Information

| hereby confirm that the above detailed information as required by the checklist is complete and accurate
to the best of my knowledge. | understand that proper City staff review of this application is dependent
upon the accuracy of the information provided and that any inaccurate or inadequate information
provided by me or my firm may delay the proper review of this application.

Design Engineer’s Sighature Date

Print Name & License Number

Firm & Registration Number

Development Application Handbook Page 16 of 111 Date: 2019.12.26
Alternative Compliance Checklist



266

Greetings Council members,

My name is Juan Quezada, | am reaching out to you in hopes of seek approval on an Alternative
Compliance exemption under Section 2.09.02 — Tree Preservation. | have recently purchased a new
residential lot within the Bluffs at Pinnell Pointe subdivision. | am hoping to make this my families future
home, but it seems have run into a few challenges.

After conducting a topographical tree survey, | have identified 20 trees on my property. After further
review | have confirmed 13 of these trees fall under my architectural building parameters and fall within
section 2.09.02. | have tried to the best of my abilities to work around these trees and the possibility of
replacing them, but | am limited due to the size and layout of my lot along with the easements located
on my property. Please see details below and attached supporting documents.

1. Foundation — Please see the attached Topographical survey, you will find most of the 13 trees
are in the center of the property and directly within the foundation specs of my build. There are
a total of 9 protected trees within this specified area.

2. Pool -1 will have a very small backyard which will consist of a pool being within the mid left rear
of the yard. This specified area has 2 protected trees (10”/6”) plus 1 tree under 5 caliper inches.

3. Driveway — My driveway will have only 1 protected tree (6”).

4. Right corner of home — There is a 12” tree in the rear corner of my foundation build. | am also
needing to remove this tree as it will impacted by grading of the lot. The elevation is very
low/steep in this area which will require a few feet of select fill and compaction. This will
ultimately kill the tree if left in its place. This may also be the case for the rear 10” ELM tree.

Relocation options:

I am planning to relocation/plant at least 5 trees in the front of my home. You can identify these on the
foundation and driveway PDF.

1. 35’ Setback/build line - Unfortunately due to the 35’ setback | do not have much room to plant
more trees without obstructing the front of my home or walkways. Since | am a corner lot this
would impact most of the lot.

2. Easements — In addition to the build line setback | also have two easements which take up a
good portion of my lot. | have an 18’ drainage and a large 30’ Lift station.

After the replacement of 5 trees this would leave me with a final count of 8 protected trees. | am asking
if | can get an exemption from replacement nor fee-in-lieu of replacement. The average tree per caliper
inch is 10” multiplied by the 8 remaining trees would leave me with a total cost of $12,000 or more. This
is an astronomical fee for me which would impede me from even being able to building my home.
COVID has had a major impact on all of us from a medical and financial standpoint and | honestly can
not afford such a large penalty. Please except my request for exemption as | in good faith | have tried my
best to save as many trees as possible.

Sincerely,

Juan Quezada



267

TSPS STANDARD LAND & TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
!

| "X" CUT IN

CONCRETE

"X"CUT IN I
CONCRETE ca

“X"CUTIN
C?NCRETE

1/2" IRF

<
X"CUTIN =
CONCRETE

{

U.S. ARMY CORPS\ .~
LOTA OFENGINEERS ™ —
DRAINAGE, ACCESS CONCRETE
&UTILITY ESMT. __ _ MONUMENT- _

TN\ AN el
LAKE LEWISVILLE—, /
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA _- &\...

APORTION OF TRACTF-523 ~ @
VOL. 375, PG. 207

/ /s LOT 1, BLOCK B
%4 4 CAB. X, PG. 730
P.RD.C.T.
/

S 42°04'25" W

MPANY FOLDERS\2020\BOUNDARY\3900 SERENDIPITY HILLS COURT - CORINTH\DRAWING\3000 SERENDIPITY HILLS CT -~ CORINTH.DWG

-7 ,52.91 & o
(N 42°50'08" E , RS
"/ 51.51) * o TN o8 ,“,"40/,1@ -
B S >
U.S. ARMY CORPS P -0 ;'e, PO
OF ENGINEERS 2 4 AR 0
CONCRETE P 7 v
MONUMENT . ~ 7 Wg =
~ v 0,
x g 53
7 7 603,° 05
- 7/ -4 kl/
/ 7 / ?? "
/ / d
{ / 7/ ~
/ /’
LEGEND ! / /
/ / LOT 2, BLOCK B / {
WATER METER CAB.X_PG.730 . /7 /7 7/
® STORM SEWER MANHOLE / P.RD.CT. ~ ~ [ "% GUT IN
B ELECTRIC BOX i 1 /‘CONCRE"E
/ y S, e
¢ COMMUNICATIONS RISER * AL bkl
c / /{r""")“m L I8 CONCRETE
fo) FOUND MONUMENT (AS NOTED) ¢ / /7 / N N
P MONUMENT NOT FOUND / / / / } 9, Y —
= CONCRETE MOUNUMENT FOUND , Y ,/’ / x> L ,/ / == -
TREETYPE
& CURVE TABLE
—525— — SLEVATION
s METALFENCE CURVE # | ARC LENGTH | RADIUS | DELTA ANGLE | CHORD BEARING | CHORD LENGTH
PROPERTY LINE c1 119.91°(119.20%)| 188.00° 36°32'33" N10°21"14°E 117.88"
oo EASEMENEEINE c2 40.85°(40.90") | 25.00' a3-37'08" N54°48'40"W 36.45"
BUILDING LINE c3 33.47°(33.38") | 512.00' 0344'43" N8015'a7"E 33.468"
cue CORRUGATED METAL PIPE c4 43.63 500.00" 5°00'00" N79°37'28"E 43.62
rCP REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE
NOTE:
0 RECORD BEARING AND DISTANCE Bearings, coordinates and distances are based LINE TABLE
PRDCT. PLAT RECORDS, DENTON COUNTY TEXAS on U.S. Slate Plane NAD 1883 Coordinates,
Texas North Central Zone (4202). LINE # BEARING DISTANCE
) ) i NO07°52'05"W 24.95'
STATE OF TEXAS This survey was prepared without the benefit (NO7'14'51"W) (25.00")
COUNTY OF DENTON e o N8145'28'E 2813
RS asements of recol are n wn. (NB2'45'09"E) (28.19")
| hereby certify thal this survey substantially compiles with the N SOB'0C'0S"E 36.77'
current Texas Society of Professional Surveyors Manual of Practice L3 (S0714’51"E) (36.75")
Requirements for a Category 1B, Condition 3, TSPS Standard Land a5 0'02.
Survey and was conducted on the ground in DECEMBER 2020 and —> L4 528:32,5 “w (}oﬁao')
is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. (S29°17°35"W)
LS N77°07'28"E 28.52
Original signed and in groen i
s rigi ig e n ;lamped in groen ink SCALE: 1= 20 P NOB'05'07"W 12.04
Bl ). ~—j. & b
Pithp tar {ranotoph, December 9, 2020 0 20 40 L7 N81'S3'12°E 12.00' |
ANTHONY RAY CROWLEY'R.P.L.S. NO. 6484 DATE
~ N e I . - 05 L L8 NB125"13"W 12.00°
PROJECT: 3300 S| SCT.
PROJECT AFE- ZiE i aibde s i PLAT SHOWING LOT 1, BLOCK B OF THE BLUFFS AT PINNELL POINTE, AN ADDITION TO | ANTHONY RAY CROWLEY R.P.L.S. NO. 6484
Z THE CITY OF CORINTH, DENTON COUNTY, TEXAS, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT | CROWLEY SURVEYING ’_
TRACT NO.: LOT 1, BLOCK B RECORDED IN CABINET X, PAGE 703 OF THE PLAT RECORDS OF DENTON COUNTY, | FRN:10194203 / CROWLEY
LOCATION: CORINTH, TX TEXAS; ALONG WITH CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. | 4521 FM 2181, #230-484 SURVEY'N G
DRAWN BY: LJG 2007-73968 AND BY RATIFICATION OF PLAT RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2007-74601, | CORINTH, TX. 76210 N
3 OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, DENTON COUNTY, TEXAS. (4689) 850-CPLS(2757)
REVISION: acrowley@crowleysurveying.com
PAGENO.: 1 OF 1 5 YSHVeyng-




268

W00 = .1 “37VDS

SPXa] ‘YIuli0D ‘14nod sjjiH Adipuaias 006
0202/90/01 210a g g | 107
Alluip4 bpbzand ay|
" sNoisiAzy 1 404 22UdpISAY WI0ISND Y uoisinipgns

woo ooqeAmpediqped
€v06-L9€-0tv6 ‘Hd
9979/ SVXAL YADNVS
HTOAID NLLSNV 1+6+
uosjoq 'V SHUYD

ugdIso ® duryjer uosjo



AutoCAD SHX Text
"drop"

AutoCAD SHX Text
inlet

AutoCAD SHX Text
posted: Septic

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lift Station


269

BUSINESS ITEM 9.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021

Title: Consider and act upon the Alternative Compliance Application for Tree Preservation on
+4.93 acres located at 5150 S I-35 E. (Enterprise AC20-0001)

Submitted For: Helen-Eve Beadle, Director Submitted By: Miguel Inclan, Planner

City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

Strategic Goals: Land Development
Infrastructure Development
Economic Development

AGENDA ITEM

Consider and act upon the Alternative Compliance Application for Tree Preservation on +4.93 acres located at
5150 S I-35 E. (Enterprise AC20-0001)

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

The Applicant is requesting approval of an Alternative Compliance Application (AC20-0001) for Tree Preservation
(required under Section 2.09.02) as presented in the attached worksheet and accompanying exhibits.

A Planned Development (Enterprise, ZAPD19-0002) rezoning (PD-54) was approved by City Council on February
6, 2020

Further, a Site Plan for Construction (Enterprise SPC20-0012) is currently under Administrative Review and is in
the final stages of design for the construction of a vehicle rental, sales, and service center.

This alternative compliance application is part of the Site Plan process and must be approved before the Site Plan
for Construction is approved.

Section 2.09.02 of the Unified Development Code states that the City shall approve the removal of trees located
within a building pad site, street right-of-way, utility easement, or driveway. However, any tree removed shall be
mitigated (replaced) at a 1:1 ratio.

The Applicant is seeking to remove five (5) trees, totaling ninety-one (91) caliper inches. Per the UDC, the
applicant shall mitigate (replace) the full ninety-one caliper inches. The Applicant is proposing to plant thirty-one
(31) trees, with a size of three (3) caliper inches each as per the UDC, for a total of ninety-three (93) caliper inches.

The attached landscape plan shows the location of the replacement trees, which are separate from new trees required
by the city’s landscaping regulations.

If at any time during the construction process, the removal of any additional existing tree is required, the Applicant
will replace said removed tree at a 1:1 ratio. However, no tree removal can proceed until the Site Plan for
Construction has been formally approved by city staff.

Because the Applicant does not seek any alternative standards, this application is solely a formality to ratify the
Applicant’s compliance with the established Tree Preservation Ordinance.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the application for alternative compliance be approved, providing for the replacement of any
tree removed at 1:1 ratio, as shown in the attached landscape plan, and that any further tree removal be mitigated in
accordance with the existing tree preservation regulations.



270

Attachments
Alternative Compliance Application
Landscape Plan




271

Application for Alternative Compliance
Tree Replacement and Fee-In-Lieu-of Replacement

Tree Survey/Tree Protection Plan

Number Caliper Inches
A. Tree Survey: Identify total number of “Protected Trees” located on site. A Protected Tree is
defined as having a trunk caliper of six inches (6”) or more, measured 4’6” above natural 5 91
grade. Survey shall be prepared by a Registered Landscape Architect or Certified Arborist.
Trees excluded from the Protected Tree Definition are listed in UDC Section 2.09.02.B.3.b.
B. Tree Protection Plan: Calculate and graphically show the following:
a. Total Protected Trees to be removed from site 5 91
b. Total Protected Trees to be preserved on site 0 0
Total Protected Trees Required to be Replaced (Section 2.09.02B.3.) 5 91
Subtotal: | 5 91
d. Total Protected Trees required to be Replaced as listed above may be reduced (if
determined to meet definition of “Heavily Tree Lot” as calculated in item C., below).
— Less 50%
Total: | 5 91

C. Heavily Treed Lots: Graphically show and provide the calculations demonstrating that the
“Protected Tree” Canopy Coverage on the lot is 50% or more of the land area.*

Protected Tree
Canopy Coverage

Acres/sq. ft.

Percent

1.

Total Lot Area:

2.

Total Area of “Protected Tree” Canopy Coverage:

*Attach a separate exhibit (Tree Canopy Coverage) which is based on Tree Survey exhibit provided in A., above.

D. Alternative Compliance Request: City Council may approve requests to (1) plant replacement trees and/or (2) make
payment of a fee-in-lieu-of tree replacement.

necessitating the request for payment of a fee in lieu of replacement fees. City Council
May Approve on for developments which meet one of the following Criteria per Section
2.09.02.K.2.

Number Caliper Inches
1. Request: To plant “Replacement Trees” on the same property or on another property 31 93
within City Limits. Note that proposed “Replacement Trees” shall be shown on a
Landscape Plan and be distinguished from other required landscaping material e.g., Shall |Mitigation treesin the parking lot
not include trees required per lot, in landscape buffers, etc., as required by other zoning Z;ikr:g; tl’:t";feﬁ'w as required
and subdivision regulations.
2. Request: Fee-in-Lieu-of Replacement of Protected Trees. Identity the criteria

Select one of the criteria listed below:

Caliper
Inches

Fee-in-Lieu-of
Amount*

a. Subdivision is heavily treed and the existing tree canopy would prohibit the
growth of the replacement trees

b. Required replacement tress were to be installed, the replacement trees would
be planted under the canopy of any existing trees.

c. Required replacement trees were to be installed, the economic viability of the
property is compromised. (Ex. The value of mitigated trees exceeds the value
of the property.)

d. City has no available property for additional trees to be planted

Total:

*Reference City of Corinth Fee Schedule

Applicant: Property Location:

Calculations and attached Exhibits were completed by
Registered Landscape Architect or Certified Arborist. Name:
Name: Kori Haug, Registered Landscape Architect 2246

Signature/Seal: ! / Z :

S:\Planning and Development\Planning\Website Files\Application Forms-Other\Tree Preservation-Alternative Gbmpliance Ap
Applicants.docx

catj nT

PLATE BLANK-For



Kori Haug
Typewritten Text
Kori Haug, Registered Landscape Architect 2246

Kori Haug
Kori Haug

ddubocq
Cross-Out


NN
RN | 272
EXISTING TREE LEGEND TREE PRESERVATION NOTES
AN BELLE
//\ . 1 EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN SHALL BE PROTECTED

I GURNG. CONSTAUCTION FROM TREE. STRUGTURE FIRMA
. DAMAGE ‘AND COMPACTION OF SOIL UNDER AN
9" ELECTRG EASEUENT
ST R JRVET TO REMAN RROUNG ORIP LINE (CANOPY) OF THEE
W55
ANV ROOT STAUCTURE IS DAWAGED DURING

J— HOACENT EXCAVATION- | CONSTRUCTION, NOTIFY

B, Ohines " NUTHORZED - REPRESENTATIVE
ol o0, 76310 <%, % WMEDIATELY. 17 15 RECOUMENDED THAT A LCENED 4245 North Central Expy
-ROCT. é> ARBORIST BE SECURED FOR THE TREATMENT OF ANY
< %'\5‘*7, TREE PROTECTION FENCING POSSIBLE TREE WOUNDS. Suite 501

% 70 REVAI DURNG CONSTRUCTION
— NS S | RerERTO o1 O KO DISTURBANCE OF THE SO GREATER THAN 4 Dallas, Texas 75205
EASEMENT ’8? & SHALL BE LOCATED CLOSER TO THE TREE TRUNK
2 7 s o, - Qe S 15 T DITANCE GF T op UNE 10 T 214.865.7192

5 R TREE THONK. A MINAOM OF 75% OF THE o LIE
) PN %/\ | gATE 0 20 AND ROOT ZONE SHALL BE PRESERVED AT NATURAL
o N 3 GRADE.

STATE_OF TEXAS - % L

W PG. 9

N <,
% WATER Exsouens >,
4

=
T
3
=z
o
3
%%
-
5%
52
o
5
:
’X

-

ANY FINE GRADING DONE WITHIN THE CRITICAL ROOT
ZONES OF THE PROTECTED TREES MUST BE DONE
WITH LIGHT MACHINERY SUCH AS A BOBCAT OR
LIGHT TRACTOR. NO EARTH MOVING EQUIPMENT
WITH TRACKS IS ALLOWED WITHIN THE CRITICAL
‘ ROOT ZONE OF THE TREES.

LOT 7A-R, BLOCK 1
PECAN CREEK SUBDIVISION
CAB. M, PG. 269 \
elENT
B\

25 DRAINAGE EASE
VoL 10, PG 26
PRBCT

NO MATERIALS INTENDED FOR USE IN CONSTRUCTION ssasaazaszasman
OR WASTE MATERIALS ACCUMULATED DUE TO
. EXCAVATION OR DEMOLITION SHALL BE PLACED

WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE DRIP LINE OF ANY TREE.

/! LAKE CITIES STATE BANK
/! AKA NORTHSTAR BANK OF TEXAS
INST. No. 1996-65678

NO EQUIPMENT MAY BE CLEANED OR TOXIC
SOLUTIONS, OR OTHER LIQUID CHEMICALS, SHALL BE
DEPOSITED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE DRIP LINE OF A
TREE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: PAINT, OIL,
SOLVENTS, ASPHALT, CONCRETE, MORTAR, PRIMERS,
ETC.

N

MLQNG, LINE

STATE OF TEXAS

NO SIGNS, WIRES OR OTHER ATTACHMENTS, OTHER
VOL. 348, PG. 60 THAN THOSE OF A PROTECTIVE NATURE, SHALL BE
VaL. 400, PG. 467 ATTACHED TO ANY TREE.

SURVEY LINE

/

PRROX. LOCATO!

ety e NO VEHICULAR / CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT TRAFFIC
08 PRI 1 ALLOWED W e EhATS 0F ToE
UATERE EASEN SRe Ce 0% Tacks
€ SaoEue]
c
¥

DOC. No. 2007-21098

BORING OF UTILITIES MAY BE PERMITTED UNDER
PROTECTED TREES IN CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES. THE
MINIMUM LENGTH OF THE BORE SHALL BE THE WIDTH
OF THE TREE'S CANOPY AND SHALL BE A MINIMUM

DEPTH OF FORTY-EIGHT (481 INCHES Enterpnse
IRRIGATION TRENCHING WHICH MUST B DONE WITHIN

THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE OF A TREE SHALL BE DUG -Cal
BY HAND AND ENTER THE AREA IN A RADIAL MANNER. Car Sakes’ Rent-a rand Truck
Rentals

3

. AL TREES TO BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE SHALL BE
FLAGGED BY THE CONTRACTOR WITH BRIGHT RED
VINYL TAPE (3" WIDTH) WRAPPED AROUND THE MAIN
TRUNK AT A HEIGHT OF FOUR (4") FEET ABOVE GRADE
FLAGGING ' SHALL BE APPROVED BY OWNER'S 5150 1-35 South
AUTHORIZED_ REPRESENTATIVE FRIOR TO ANY TREE .

REMOVAL. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT OWNER'S Corinth, Texas 76210
AUTHORIZED  REPRESENTATIVE WITH
NOTICE TO SCHEDULE ON-SITE MEETING.

/!

J

Wi

. ALL TREES TO REMAIN, AS NOTED ON DRAWINGS,
SHALL HAVE PROTECTIVE FENCING LOCATED AT THE
TREE'S DRIP LINE. THE PROTECTIVE FENCING MAY BE
COMPRISED OF SNOW FENCING, ORANGE VINYL
CONSTRUCTION FENCING, CHAIN LINK FENCE OR
OTHER SIMILAR FENCING WITH A FOUR (&) FOOT
APPROXIMATE HEIGHT. THE PROTECTIVE FENCING
SHALL BE LOCATED AS INDICATED ON THE TREE
PROTECTION DETAIL.

N aars

)

ey T

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN, TYP.

B

WHEN A LOW HANGING LIMB IS BROKEN DURING THE
COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
NOTIFY THE OWNER'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
IMMEDIATELY. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCE SHALL THE
CONTRACTOR PRUNE ANY PORTION OF THE DAMAGED
TREE WITHOUT THE PRIOR APPROVAL BY THE

KERBOW HILL'S LLC OWNER'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE. Project Number:
DAC. No. 2019- 38657

0.P.RD.C.

/ TREE PROTECTION FENCE
T T s
coTREON T
/R

IR

20093
09.21.2020
Drawn By:

LOT 1, BLOCK A RMT
TRI-STEEL ADDITION Checked By.
CAB. G, PG. 395 KAH
P.RD.C.T.

Issue Date:

\

20" ALLE
20° DRANAGE & UTILITY —

- A
20" BUILBINELINE

\;&

e TREE PROTECTION FENCE
TREE SURVEY FIELD DATA. “ EXISTING TREE /. N N N TO REMAIN DURING
[ Dia. T TO REMAIN, TYP. . TREE PROTECTION FENCE - - CONSTRUCTION, TYP sesssrsssssansa
[Ginches)] > __ TOREMAINDURING  — — NaT Vo 2oresaices | A REFERTO 010101
T 3 AMERCANELM  TOREMAN “ CONSTRUCTION, TYP. R, ] N
2 6 AMERCANELM  TOREMAN REFER TO 01/L1.01 | RN ovisions.
3 6 CHINABERRY  TO BE REMOVED NN Y 1 BRDCT. No: Date: Detail
4 16 AMERCANELM  TOREMAN \ City Comments
5 6 HACKBERRY  TOREMAN s \>s< EXISTING TREE 11.03.20 4
6 ) OAK TO REMAN - 20° GAS, ELECTRIC, & TO REMAIN, TYP, 120220 City Comments
7 24 COTIONWOOD  TOREMAN o [ TELEPHONE EASEMENT
8 9 HACKBERRY  TO BE REMOVED 6 VATCH FOR VATER ON ROKS ﬁ VOL. 10, PG. 26 01.08.21 City Comments
H 3 oAk TOBEREMOVED  PROTECTED P.RD.CT. A 011321 City Comments
10 2 OAK TOBE REMOVED ~ PROTECTED N ~ _ _ — - — o= | REFER TO PLAN FOR
I 2 oAk TOBE REMOVED  PROTECTED 3 TR — L ! EXISTING THEE TO REMAIN
2 7 HACKBERRY O BE REMOVED < == =
Sy i
13 ® OAK TO REMAIN =2 [N - |
T . R (o \
. LOT 2, BLOCK 1 LOT 4, BLOCK 1 LOT 5, BLOCK 1 SNOW FENCE, ORANGE VINYL
15 7 OAK TO REMAIN O orn ek et } PECAN GOREEK PECAN CREEK PECAN CREEK CONSTRUCTION FENCE, OR
1o M OAK TOREMAN SUBDIVISION | SUBDIVISION SUBDIVISION SUBDIVISION CHAINLINK FENCE sesesssasresesna
¥ 5 ackaeRer  Tomewan \ (UERvEIoN I GuEomEon TS o B .
1 16 OAK TOBE REMOVED  PROTECTED \ b RB.CT " R | RD. METAL T-POST PLACED NO Sheet Title:
19 9 OAK 0 REMAIN R i FURTHER THAN 8' APART
2 10 oAk TO REMAIN \ [ I v ! ]
R PN T0 REVAN z st nave o TREE
2 12 HACKBERRY  TOREMAN
2 8 PINE TOBE REMOVED ~ PROTECTED o PRESERVATION
% 2 PINE TOBE REMOVED  PROTECTED N
2 14 PECAN TO REMAN
B 1 oem 108t neNOvED PLAN
2 15 HACKBERRY  TOBE REMOVED
30 2 COTTONWOOD  TO BE REMOVED Sheet Number:
S 16 COTIONWOOD TOBE ReEMOVED | [ |
[Total Caliper Inches on Site EZ
|Total Caliper Inches Removed 196| TREE PROTECTIVE FENCING n
Total Mitigation Inches Required 107] NOT 70 SCALE N

|itigation Inches Provided 108




SN0 ELECTRIC EASEMENT ~ LAWN SOLID SOD el
< VOL. 10, PC. 26 BERMUDAGRASS WITH VR’
\PROCT TEMPORARY IRRIGATION UNTIL

10° WATER EASENENT

. 100% ESTABLISHNIENT, TvP. &
A, D,

A
é"%" %, 2 RV
Yo, . | e . 20
STATE_ OF TEXAS s q“\‘p . L TRACT
VOL. 348, PG. 9 0,\9 4y 0-3\ ABS
LAWN SOLID SOD ) &>
LOT 7A-R, BLOCK 1
PECAN CREEK_SUBDIVISION BERMUDAGRASS, TYP. A
c 9 N 3, |
25 DRANAGE EASEVENT 10" WATER EASEMENT e
VL. 10, PG, 28—\ VoL. 650, PG. 360
BRBCT BROCT.
; LAKE_CITEES STATE BANK .
/ AKA NORTHSTAR BANK OF TEXAS , 07 ELECTRIC FASEMENT |
INST. No. 199665678 / PRO.C:
.PR.D.C.T. 2 30 WATER & SEWER EASEMENT
VoL 10, PG, 26
PROCT.
) LAWN SOLID S0D
/ BERMUDAGRASS WITH
15 BuLoG ’ DS TEMPORARY IRRIGATION UNTIL
SETBACK, { y ~ 100% ESTABLISHMENT, TYP.
caB, W, 5L, 209N/ CHILDREN’S DS, % = ATE OF TEXAS
PRD.CT. No. 2016-102721 2@ VOL. 348, PG. 60
e 0 /OPRDCA. / g‘g VOL. 400, PG. 467

%
30" SANITARY SEWER &
ATERUNE EASEMENT
DoC. N 2007-6770
DOC. No. 2007-21098

/" ChB.E,
VALY
LAWN SOLID SOD 7

Y2

e

LAWN SOLID S0D
BERMUDAGRASS, TYP.

Tty

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN, TYP..T

LAWN SOLID SOD
BERMUDAGRASS, TYP.

KERBOW HILL'S LLC
DAC. No. 2019- 38657
OP.RD.CT.

LOT 1, BLOCK A
TRI-STEEL ADDITION
CAB. G, PG. 395
P.RD.C.T.

B UTLITY EASEMENT
CAB_ G, PG 385
PRD.CT.

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN, TYP.

rmisoisoo ] ] WocmmeD A (|
BERMUDAGRASS, TP, |~ = = === SLAND THEES DUE

LoT 1, BlocK 1 LOT 3, BLOCK 1 LOT 4, BL TO EASEMENT * 5, BLOCK 1
PECAN CREEK PECAN CREEK PECAN CREEK l PECAN CREEK 20 AL

\ SUBDIVISION | SUBDIVISION | SUBDIVISI | SUBDIVISION SUBDIVISION oo s 26
VoL. 10, PG. 26 VoL 10, PG. 2 L 10, PG. 26 | VoL 10, PG 26 Vv vy

\ P.RD.C.T. " RD.C.T. ! RO.C.T. P. |

\ I R .- v | !

TREE LEGEND

EXISTING TREE
MAIN

MITIGATION TREE
3" CAL., (36) TOTAL

PLANT LEGEND
SYMBOL  COMMON NAME

AB Dwarf Abelia ‘Rose Creek
cm Crepe Myrtle 'Natchez'
ow Desert Willow

aMm Guif Muhly

LE Lacebark Eim

Lo Live Oak

MFG Mexican Feathergrass
NRS Nellie R. Stevens Holly
sG Salvia Greggii

so Shumard Red Oak

TQ Texas Scarlet Quince

TS Texas Sags ‘Green Cloud'

REFER TO L2.02 FOR PLANT LIST

273

BELLE
FIRMA

4245 North Central Expy

Suite 501

Dallas, Texas 75205

214.865.7192

Enterprise

Car Sakes, Rent-a-Car and Truck
Rentals

5150 I-35 South
Corinth, Texas 76210

Project Number
Issue Date:
Drawn By:

Checked By.

20093
09.21.2020
RMT

KAH

sesssnesnerssaa

No:  Date
10320
12,0220
01.08.21
01321

Detail
City Comments
City Comments
City Comments

City Comments

sesssnesnerssaa

Sheet Title:

LANDSCAPE
PLAN

Sheet Number:

L2.01



LANDSCAPE NOTES

CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING AND
PROPOSED SITE ELEMENTS AND NOTIFY LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES. SURVEY DATA
OF EXISTING CONDITIONS WAS SUPPLIED BY OTHERS.

~

CONTRACTOR  SHALL LOCATE AU EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND NOTI

'ARGHITECT OF ANY CONFLICTS, CONTRACTOR SHALL
EXERCISE CAUTION WHEN WORKING IN THE VICINITY
OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM 2% SLOPE
AWAY FROM ALL STRUCTURES.

»

CONTRACTOR SHALL FINE GRADE AREAS TO ACHIEVE
FINAL CONTOURS AS INDICATED. LEAVE AREAS TO
RECEIVE TOPSOIL 3" BELOW FINAL FINISHED GRADE IN
PLANTING AREAS AND 1" BELOW FINAL FINISHED
GRADE IN LAWN AREAS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL CROWN ALL LANDSCAPE
ISLANDS TO 6 HEIGHT, TYPICAL AND UNIFORM
THROUGHOUT THE SITE.

°

CONTRACTOR  SHALL _ OBTAIN  LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S APPROVAL OF FINE GRADING, CROWNS,
AND BERMS PRIOR TO INSTALLING LANDSCAPE.
NOTIFY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT 72 HOURS IN
AADVANCE TO SCHEDULE A SITE VISIT.

ALL PLANTING BEDS AND LAWN AREAS SHALL BE
SEPARATED BY STEEL EDGING. NO STEEL EDGING
SHALL BE INSTALLED ADJACENT TO BUILDINGS,
WALKS, OR CURBS. CUT STEEL EDGING AT 45 DEGREE
/ANGLE WHERE IT INTERSECTS WALKS AND CURBS.

®

TOP OF MULCH SHALL BE 1/2" MINIMUM BELOW THE
TOP OF WALKS AND CURES.

©

ALL LAWN AREAS SHALL BE SOLD SOD
BERMUDAGRASS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE
DRAWINGS.

]

ALL REQUIRED LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE
PROVIDED WITH AN AUTOMATIC UNDERGROUND
IRRIGATION SYSTEM WITH RAIN AND FREEZE SENSORS
AND _EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (ET) WEATHER-BASED
CONTROLLERS AND SAID IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL
BE DESIGNED BY A QUALIFIED PROFESSIONAL AND
INSTALLED BY A LICENSED IRRIGATOR.

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE BID PROPOSAL LISTING
UNIT PRICES FOR ALL MATERIAL PROVIDED.

g

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING
ALL REQUIRED LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION PERMITS.

MAINTENANCE NOTES

1. THE OWNER, TENANT AND THEIR AGENT, IF ANY,
SHALL BE JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE MAINTENANCE OF ALL LANDSCAPE. 4. IF INSTALLATION OCCURS BETWEEN SEPTEMBER 1
AND MARCH 1, OVER-SEED BERMUDAGRASS SOD
2 ALL LANDSCAZE SHALL B MANTAINED IN A NEAT WITH WINTER RYEGRASS, AT A RATE OF FOUR (4)
D ORDERLY MANNER AT ALL TIMES. THI POUNDS PER ONE THOUSAND {1000) SQUARE FEET.
INCLUDE. MOWING,  EDGING,  PRUNING, FERTINZNG,
WATERING, WEEDING AND OTHER SUCH ACTIVITIES
COMMON TO LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE.
3. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF
TRASH, LITTER, WEEDS AND OTHER SUCH MATERIAL
OR PLANTS NOT PART OF THIS PLAN.
4. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A
HEALTHY AND GROWING CONDITION AS IS
APPROPRIATE FOR THE SEASON OF THE YEAR,
5. ALL PLANT MATERIAL WHICH DIES SHALL BE
REPLACED WITH PLANT MATERIAL OF EQUAL OR
BETTER VALUE,
6. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SEPARATE _BID
PROPOSAL FOR ONE YEAR'S MAINTENANCE TO BEGIN
AFTER FINAL ACCEPTANCE.
PLANT LIST
SYMBOL BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME ary. size
cm Lagerstroemia indica ‘Natchez' Crepe Myrtle ‘Natchez' 10 30gal.
ow Chilopsis linearis Desert Willow 9 30gal
LE Ulmus parvifolia “Sempervirens " Lacebark Elm 17 3" cal
o Quercus virginiana Live Oak 30 3" cal
s0 Quercus shumardii Shumard Red Oak 35 3" cal
SHRUBS/GROUNDCOVER
AB Abslia granfiora ‘Rose Creek" Dwarf Abolia ‘Rose Crook’ 166 5 gal
GM Mublenbergia capils Gulf Muhly 108 5 gal
MFG Nassoll tonuiss: Mexicon Feathrgrass 63 1gal
NRS llox spp. ‘Nellio R. Stovens Nelli R. Stevens Holly 38 15gal.
G Salvia groggii Salvia Guwn 185 5 gal
TQ o 2 51 5 gal
TS Leucophyllum frutescens ‘Green Cloud" 383 5 gal.

Cynoden dactylon

NOTE: ALL TREES SHALL HAVE STRAIGHT TRUNKS AND BE MATCHING WITHIN VARIETIES.

GENERAL LAWN NOTES

1.

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE OPERATIONS AND
AVAILABILITY OF EXISTING TOPSOIL WITH ON-SITE
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.

CONTRACTOR SHALL LEAVE LAWN AREAS 1" BELOW
FINAL  FINISHED ~GRADE PRIOR TO  TOPSOIL
INSTALLATION,

CONTRACTOR SHALL FINE GRADE AREAS TO ACHIEVE
FINAL CONTOURS AS INDICATED ON CIVIL PLANS.
ADJUST CONTOURS TO ACHIEVE POSITIVE DRAINAGE
AWAY FROM._BULDOINGS.  PROVIDE UNIFORM

AND AREAS WHERE WATER MAY STAND.

a

ALL LAWN AREAS SHALL BE FINE GRADED, IRRIGATION
TRENCHES COMPLETELY SETTLED AND FINISH GRADE
APPROVED BY THE OWNER'S CONSTRUCTION
MANAGER OR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO LAWN
INSTALLATION.

5.

CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL ROCKS /4"
\GER, DIRT CLOI

CONCRETE SPOLS, ‘ETC. PRIOR T FLAGING TOPSOL

AND LAWN INSTALLATION,

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE AN ADD ALTERNATE
PRICE 0 INSTALL (21 TWO INCHES OF IMPORTED

N ALL LAWN AREAS IN LIEU OF USING
EXISTNG TOPSOIL" ON.SITE. - IMPORTED  TOPSOIL
SHALL BE NATURAL, FRIABLE SOIL FROM THE REGION,
KNOWN AS BOTTOM LAND SOIL, FREE FROM LUMPS,
CLAY, TOXIC SUBSTANCES, ROOTS, DEBRIS,
VEGETATION, STONES, CONTAINING NO SALT AND
BLACK TO BROWN IN COLOR,

CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ALL LAWN AREAS
UNTIL FINAL ACCEPTANCE. THIS SHALL INCLUDE, BUT
NOT BE LIMITED TO: MOWING, WATERING, WEEDING,
CULTIVATING, CLEANING AND REPLACING DEAD OF

EAS TO KEEP PLANTS IN A VIGOROUS,
BEALTIY CONDITION,

CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ESTABLISHMENT OF
ACCEPTABLE TURF AREA AND SHALL PROVIDE
REPLACEMENT FROM LOCAL SUPPLY IF NECESSARY.

SOLID SOD NOTES

1

PLANT SOD BY HAND TO COVER INDICATED AREAS
COMPLETELY. ENSURE EDGES OF SOD ARE TOUCHING.
TOP DRESS JOINTS BY HAND WITH TOPSOIL TO FILL

ROLL GRASS AREAS TO ACHIEVE A SMOOTH, EVEN
SURFACE, FREE FROM UNNATURAL UNDULATIONS.

WATER SOD THOROUGHLY AS SOD OPERATION
PROGRESSES.

HYDROMULCH NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL SCARIFY, RIP AND LOOSEN ALL
AREAS 70 BE HYDROMULCHED TO A MINIMUM DEPTH
OF 4" TO TOPSOLL AND HYDROMULCH

NSTALLATION.

SITE IN ITS ORIGINAL UNOPENED CONTAINER
SHALL MEET STATE LAW REQUIREMENTS.

ITS  ORIGINAL CONTAINER
VANUFACTURED 5 ‘CONMWER" O EGUAL,

-

"TERRO-TACK ~ ONE', AS  MANUFACTURED
GROWERS, INC. OR EQUAL.

SQUARE FEET.

THOUSAND (1000) SQUARE FEET.

AS PART OF THIS CONTRACT.

°

PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

LANDSCAPE TABULATIONS
THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS

LANDSCAPE ALONG STREET RIGHT-OF- WAY
1. Minimum 20’ buffer along I-35.

2. Landscape per PD along Pecan Creek Drive.

3. One (1) shade tree, 3" cal. per thirty (30) linear feet.
4. Continuous headiight screen with shrubs or berm.

1-35: 551 L1
Reauired provded

20’ buf 20' b

18 tteos, 3" cal. T vone, 3 cal.
Headlight Screen hrubs, 36

Pecan Creek Drive: 445 L.f.
Landscaping provided per PD.

INTERIOR PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING

BERMUDAGRASS SEED SHALL BE EXTRA HULLED AND
TREATED LAWN TYPE, SHALL BE DELIVERED TO THE
AND

FIBER SHALL BE ONE HUNDRED PERCENT (100%)
WooD CELLULOSE FIBER. DELIVERED TO THE SITE IN

FIBER TACK SHALL BE DELIVERED TO THE SITE IN ITS
ORIGINAL UNOPENED CONTAINER AND SHALL BE

HYDROMULCH WITH BERMUDAGRASS SEED AT A RATE
OF TWO (2) POUNDS PER ONE THOUSAND (1000}

USE A 4'X8' BATTER BOARD AGAINST ALL BED AREAS.

IF_INSTALLATION OCCURS BETWEEN SEPTEMBER

MAY 1, ALL HYDROMULCH AREAS TO BE WINTER
RYEGRASS, AT A RATE OF FOUR (4] POUNDS PER ONE
ACTOR
SHALL BE REQUIRED TO RE-HYDROMULCH WITH
BERMUDAGRASS THE FOLLOWING GROWING SEASON

ALL LAWN AREAS TO BE HYDROMULCHED SHALL
HAVE ONE HUNDRED PERCENT (100%) COVERAGE

1. Ten (10) square feet of interior parking lot landscaping

for each parking space.

2. One (1) shade tree, 3" cal. minimum, or an ornament
tree for every ten (10) parking spaces or fraction thereof.

Total Parking Spaces: 223
Total Parking Lot Trees: 22

Required Provided

2,230 5.1, 8,126 5.1
(22) trees (28) trees

REMARKS

er grown, 12" ht., 4 spread, 4' branching ht., matching

36" occ.

container full, 20" spr
cov\lum'r full, 36" o.c.

solid sod, refer to Solid Sod Notes

PLANT LIST IS AN AID TO BIDDERS ONLY. SHALL VERIFY ALL
ALL HEIGHTS AND SPREADS ARE MINIMUMS. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL MEET OR EXCEED REMARKS AS INDICATED.

al

o rown, 35 tunk. o cress canes, 8 . & spread, matcing
r grown, 3-5 trunk, &' ht. min., 4' spread mi
2., 4" sproad, 4 branching . matching

BELLE
. FIRMA

4245 North Central Expy
Suite 501

Dallas, Texas 75205
214.865.7192 office

Enterprise
Car Sakes, Rent-a-Car and Truck
Rentals

5150 I-35 South
Corinth, Texas 76210

Project Number:
20093

Issue Date:
09.21.2020

Drawn By:
RMT

Checked By.

KAH

sesssnesnerssaa

Revisions
No:  Date: Detail
11.0320  City Comments
120220 City Comments
010821 City Comments
011321 City Comments

sesssnesnerssaa

Sheet Title:

LANDSCAPE
NOTES

Sheet Number:

L2.02



SECTION 32 9300 - LANDSCAPE
PART 1 - GENERAL
1.1 REFERENCED DOCUMENTS

Refer to Landscape Plans, notes, details, bidding requirements,
special provisions, and schedules for additional requirements.

1.2 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

A. Work included: Furnish all supervision, labor, materials, services,

i’ conju \andscapng
specifications and landscaping plans, including

1. Planting (trees, shrubs and grasses)

2. Bod preparation and fertilization

3. Notification of sources

4. Water and maintenance until final acceptance

5. Guarantee

1.3 REFERENCE STANDARDS

1.6 MAINTENANCE AND GUARANTEE

A. Maintenance:

Troes shubs and groundeover shall be gusrantoed for o

twelve (12) h period after final act Th
Contractor shal reploce.al"ead marerials as soon oe
weather permits and upon notification of the Owner. Plants,

including rees, which have paril died so tht shape, size

all be_considered

cublent 1o roplacamentIn Such cases, the apinion of the
Owner shall be final.

5. Plants used for replacement shall be of the same size
kind as those originally planted and shall be planted
as originally specified. Al work, including materials,

mplsts the work coversd laborand sipmant used in eplacements shalcary o
covered in  thes: tweive (121 month guarant 'y damage, including
e v o w60 e e s roach of masing

Teplacements shal be imimetiately repaired

A% the direction of the Owner, plants may be replaced
at the start of the next year's planting season. In such
cases, dead plants Shaive retoued rom the promises
immediately.

When plant replacements are made, plants, soil mix,
fertilizor and muich are to be utilized as_originally
specified and re-inspected for full compliance with the
contract requirements.  All replacements are to be
included under "Wark” of this section,

5.

o not measure from branch or root tip-to-tp.

Owner's Authorzed Ropresantative shal inspsct ail plant
erial with requirements genus, species, cultivar /
Varity sive and quaity.

Owner's Authorized Representative retains the right to
furtor nspect ol lant mateial pon vl 10 the ste and
duri tallation for size and condition of root balls and
oot systems, limbs, branching habit, msects. injuies and
latent defects.

ow Aut Representative
oreaiactons o defectwe mataral ot any time during the
process work. Remove rejected materisis immediataly from
The site and roplace with accepiable material a o adjtonal
cost to the Owner. Plants damaged in transit or at jab sita
shall be rejected. 22

1.8 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A, Preparation

Balled and Burlapped (B&B) Plants: Dig and prepare
shipment in a manner that will not damage roots, branches,
shape and future development.

exceed project specifications.

chased materials will meet an

Listed plant
plants
ot to the out

i heights are from tops of e
Pant soread rfers to nomin) ol outer width
er lea

Plants.

2. Container Grown Plants: Deliver plants in rigid container to
American Stendard for Nursery Stock published by Americon 2. The Owner sgrses tht for the quarants to bs sffective he hold ball shape and protect root mass.
Association of Nurserymen: April 14, 2014 Edition; by American water plants at least twice a during dry periods
Natonal Standards Inatiute, 1. (Z60.1) - piant matera 1 vt bods oncs 3 month ater thal scesptnce 8. Delivery:
B. American Joint Committee on Horticultural Nomenclature: 1942 3. The above guarantee shalnot apply where plats di after 1. Delver packsged materss in sesled conainers showing
Edition of Standardized Plant Names. s of injury from storms, hail, fracze, weight, analysis and
e Gaat, oty by Bamans, mochines of et metoris rom detoneration aurng dstvery and il sored
€. Texas Association of Nurserymen, Grades and Standards site.
Acceptance for all andscape work shall be given aftr final
D. Hortis Third, 1976 - Cornell University inspsction by the Owner provided the fob is n @ comple 2. Deliver only plant materials that can be planted in one
ged condition and there i o stand of grass n i unless adequat storage and watering Fabiies sre sty
1.4 NOTIFICATION OF SOURCES AND SUBMITTALS i et e, ine. Gomer” i sssurne onjob
aintonanes on the accsptod work
A. Samples: Provide representative quantities of sandy loam soil, 3. Protect root balls by heeling in with sawdust or other
et bod mix material, gravel, crushed stone, sesledgng and C. Ropirs; Any necassar rapsis under the Gusrantse must be approved moisture retaining material if not planted within 24
tree stakes. Samples shall be approver ner's Authorized made within ten (10} after_receiving notice, weather hours of delivery.
Raprosentative bafors use on the praject. pe.mmm e eventthe Landscape. Gontractor doss mot
make repais accordngly. the Owner, wihout futher notico to 4. protect plants curing gelivery to prevent damage 10 root
1.5 JOB CONDITIONS Cont rovide materials and men to make such repairs balls or_desiccation oop plonts moist o o
e expénae v he Landscape Comacia. times. Cover al mons sum o
A Goreral Cantractar to complte the following punch et o to 5. Notify Owner's Authorized Replesenlauve of delivery
Landscape  Contractor _initiating _any of landscape 1.7 QUALITY ASSURANCE Somduls 73 mours . adwancs b
nstaaton, General Contrator sl (oo panting bod =
o (3°) nchss below final fnsh grade of sidewalk, oives 'and A. General: Comply with applicable federal, state, county and local 6. Remove rejected plant material immediately from job site.
a5 shown e Ao e 20 rocano o regulations governing landscape materials and work.
sod shall be left one u ) mch below the final finish grade 7. To avoid damage or stress, do not lift, move, adjust to
sidewalks, drwes and o AT sonstracton debris 5haH ve B Personnet Employ only exorienced persornel who are famifar plumb, or otherwise manipulate plants by trunk or stems.
Vet pior o Lanisoaps Conteacter sogiing any v with the required wr o fll time supervison
ol Toraman aceatable o Londscops Mehie PART 2 - PRODUCTS
8. Storago of materals and equipment at the job site will be at the
tisk of the Landscape Contracto Owner cannot be held ©. Selestion of Plant Materi 2.1 PLANTS
responsible for theft or damage, Make contact with suppliers immediately upon obtaining
notice of contract acceptance to select and book materials. A Generak, Wellformed No. 1 grads of better sursery grown stock,

t balls to nominal tops of
of the plant,
will be individually approved by

the s Authorizod Roprasentative and his Gocieon 26 10
1. The Landscape Contractor shall be held responsible for 2. Substitutions: Do not make plant material substitutions. If their acceptabiity shall be inal
maintanance af il work rom the time of pianing unt i the spacificd landscape, materal is not obtainable, submit
accoptanco by tho Ouner. No ifeos, shrube, groundeover or oof of nar-avaisbilty o Landscaps Archiact, together B. Quantities: The drawings and specifications are complimentary. 2.3
rass will be accepted unless they show healthy growth and Tith proposal for use of squvalent matenl. | A the time Anything called for on one an ther is as binding as if
satisfactory foliage conditions. Bids bro. submitied, tha Goniractor is aseumed 1o have Shown and called for on both. The plant schedule 1 an #id o
located the materials necessary to complete the job as iters oy Confim o qunniiias on i
2. Malntenance shall Include watering of trees and plants, specified.
culivation, wesding sproying, edging, pruning of i C. - Quality and size; Plant materis shallconfor t0 the sizo given
in of grass, ceanng up and ol Siner Work necessary 3. Landscape Architect will provide a key identifying each tree e plan, and shall be healthy, symmetrical, well-shaped, full
o maintanance. location on site. ~Written verification will be required to hmncheﬂ el rootod. The pires avel be roe rom mpsions
document material selection, source and delivery schedules insects, disesses, infres to the bk o roots, broken branches,
A witten notcs rsquestng fna inspection and accaptance 1o site. Chjectionanle afiouaments, meeet <543 and arvac, and
shouid be subn e Over st lesst seven (7) day Do of specimen qualty.
prior to e rvsia nspction by the Owners 4. Measurements: Measure trees with branches and trunks or
e Romrasantate wil o Somplered prior o witien canes in their normal position. Do not prune to obtain . Approual Al plants wich are found unsuitable i growth, of re
acceptance. required sizes. Take calper messuremants six inchs sbove unhealthy, badly shaped or undersized condition will be
round for tres up o and ncluding 4° caler sizs, and Tejocted by the Ownar's Authorized REDvesemaiwe either before
B. Guarantee: Swelve inches above ground for larger sizes. Measure main after planting and shall be removed at the expense of the
Soay o1 i lank matora of height and. spread drmnsions, Landscape Contractor and replaced with acceptable plant as

TREE PLANTING DETAIL LEGEND

MANUFACTURER'S  GUIDELINES  FOR
SIZING. INSTALL NAIL STAKES WITH
HAMMER OR MALLET FIRMLY INTO
UNDISTURBED GROUND. DRIVE NAIL
STAKES FLUSH WITH "U" BRACKET
ADJACENT TO ROOTBALL (DO NOT
DISTURB ROOTBALL),

AND NOTES
A o Teces s cowome wry ¥ SACHLL USE et v o
o e ioscatie e Wi, SO, P00
BALL CENTER TREE IN HOLE & REST RING; ENSURE THAT ROOT FLARE \S
ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED NATIVE ExpostD. BELOW GROUND  STAKE
sol. 'SHOULD NOT BE VISIBLE.
C. ROOT BALL: REMOVE TOP J; BURLAP . TREE STAKES:
AND_ANY OTHER FOREIGN OBJECT; TREE SYAKE SOLUTIONS ~ 'SAFETY
AND AT LEAST TWO INCHES ABOVE jeff@treestakesolutions.com
'WHEN GIRDLING ROOTS ARE PRESENT & www.treestakesolutions.co
ROOT FLARE IS NOT APPARENT. OR APPROVED EQUAL. TREES SHALL BE
E. ROOTBALL ANCHOR RING: REFER TO NECESSARY; ABOVE GROUND STAKING
SHOULD BE IN THE CENTER OF THE THE CONTRACTOR TO OBTAIN A COPY
RING. MANUFACTURER'S
F. ROOT ANCHOR BY TREE STAKE INSTALLATON OF TREE STAKES.
SOLUTIONS. CTOR SHALL ADHERE TO

GUIDELINES, _ SPECIFICATIONS, _AND
OTHER REQUIREMENTS FOR TREE STAKE
INSTALLATION.

specified at no additional cost 1o the Owner.

. Troes shillbe heathy, fullbranched, welkshaped, and shall most

the minimum_trunk eter requirements.
schedule.  Balls shall be mm neat, siightly lapsred o
wrapped in burlag - loose in the ball or with a broken

oot ball o time ot laing il ve refcted. Balls shall be ton
(10") inches in diameter for each one (17) inch of trunk diameter,
nekired s 16"} menes Sbovs bat.(Nomenciatir Sonfrme 16

e customary nursery usage. For clarification, the term
“multi-trunk” defines a plant having three (3) or more trunks of
nearly equal diameter.)

F. Pruning: All pruning of trees and shrubs, as directed by the
Lendscape Architec pror to final accaptance: shall bo executed
by the Landscape Contractor at no additional cost to the Owr

SOIL PREPARATION MATERIALS.

A. Sandy Loam:

Friable, fetle, dar, loamy sol, fro of clay lumps, subsol,

xtraneous material and reasonably free of

eads and Toeign granace. Lom conmaing Daaatesor
Nutgrass shall be rjected.

Physical properties as follows:
a. Clay - between 7-27 percent
b, Silt - between 15-25 percent
c. Sand - less than 52 percent

Organic matter shall be 3%-10% of total dry weight.

1 reauested, Landscape Cantractor shall provide o cerified

sol anslyss conducted by an approved 3ol ‘tsting
Toborston, veriting. that sandy loam mests ihe.'sbov
requirements

Organic Matersl:_ Compost with @ mixture of 80% vegetative
matter and 20% animal waste. Ingredionts should be a mix of
course and fine textured material

€. Pramixed Seding Sl ax suppked by Vial Extn Rescures
Gladewater, Texas; Professional Bedding Soil as supplied by
Living Eart Technolooy: Daliss, Texss or “Acid Gro Muncipal Mix
as supplied by Soil Building Systems, Dallas, Texas or approved
caval

D. Sharp Sand: Sharp sand must be free of seeds, soil particles and
weeds.

. Mulh: Doutle Shrecded Hardwood Mulch, partily decomposed.
dark brown. Living Earth Technologies o approved e

F. Organic Fertilizer: Fertilaid, Sustane, or Green Sense or equal as
recommended for required_applications. _Fertilizer shall be
delivered to the site in original unopened containers, each
bearing the manufacturer's guaranteed statement of analysis.

Commercial Fertizer;  10-20:10 or simiar anaysis, Nirogen
source minimum 50% slow release organic Nitrogen
TSE5 0t Ry it a i 8% ‘st ana. S5 ron. e
micronutrients.

H. Peat: Commercial sphagnum peat moss or partially decomposed
shredded pine bark or other approved organic material

MISCELLANEOUS MATERIALS

A. Steel Edging: Al steel edging shall be 3/16" thick x 4" doep x
16" long with 6 stakes per section, painted black at the factory
as manufactured by The J.D. Russell Company and under its
trade name DURAEDGE Hoavy Duty Steel

B. Staking Material for Shade Trees: refer to details.

C. Gravel: Washed native pea gravel, graded 1 inch t0 1-1/2 inch.

.. Fiter Fabic: Mirafi Mirascape’ by Mirafi Constructon Products

lable at Lone Star Products, Inc., (469) 523.0444 o

approved equel

E. River Rock: 'Colorado’ or native river rock, 2" -

SHRUBS | GROUNDCOVER;
REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN
TOPDRESS MULCH PER
SPECIFICATIONS; 2" MINIMUM-
SETTLED THICKNESS

TOP OF MULCH 1/2°
MINIMUM BELOW TOP OF-
CONCRETE WALK / CURB
SCARIFY SIDES:
CONCRETE w:«u(W

PART 3 -

Decomposed Granite: Base material shall consist of a natural
material mix of granite aggregate not to exceed 1/8" diameter in
size and shall be composed of various stages of decomposed
earth base.

EXECUTION

3.1 BED PREPARATION & FERTILIZATION

A. Landscape Contractor to inspect all existing conditions and
report any deficiencies to the Owner.

Al planting areas shall be conditioned as follows:

1. Propar new planting beds by scraping away exiting grass
weeds as necessary. Till existing soil o a depth of six
55 e prior to placing compost and Tortizor.
fortilizer as per Manufacturer's recommendations.
6 s o Rompnat ans i k5 aepi of s [6°) imchen
of the topsoll. Apply organio fertilzer suh as Sustane or
Green y (20) pounds per one

Apply

rausond 3.000) squae Toor.

~

Al planting areas shall receive a two (2°) inch layer of
specified mulch.

Backfil for tree pits shall be as follows: Use existing top soil
on site {use imported topsoil as neoded) free from large
clumps, rocks, debris, caliche, subsails, etc., placed in nine
(") inch layers and watered in thoroughly.

o

Grass Areas:

Bloks of sod should be fsid jont to jont (staggered jints)
after fertiizing the ground first. Roll g
2 emooth, sven suriaca, Tha joints bevween i blocks of
sod should bo filed with tapsoil whore they are evidently
gaped open, then watered thoroughl

INSTALLATION
A Maintenance of plant materils shallbegin immediatly ter ach

plant is_delivered to_the and shall continue. unti ol
Comatrucion has boen saistactoriy ccomplshed.

Pant materiae shallbe doivored to he site ol after th beds

are prepared ar janting. All shipments of

nursery rtenas S b thorecany wolsclsd from the drying

uring transit. Al plants which cannot be planted at once,

aﬂer devery to the site, shall be el brotecied sgainst the

of diying by wind and Balls of carth of B & B plants

Shal be kept covered with sofl or other acoeptable materia. All

plants ramain the. property of the Contractor unti  final
acceptar

o

Position the trees and shrubs in their intended location as per
plan.

°

the Owner's Authorized Representative for inspection and
Sobroval of al posiioning of plank materas.

Excavate ol with vertel sdes and horizonkal bottem. Tree
ttlod, the crown of the plant shall

bear the sems raationship o the finih rade as it Gid o soi
surface i original laco of growth

F

Shrub and treo pits hall bo no less than twenty four (247)
inches wider than the lateral dimension of the carth ball and six
inches Goepar than it versea imension. Ramovs and haul
from site all rocks and stones over throe-quarter (%) inch
Gamata, “Prani shoud bs horouahy et btore femoving
containers.

°

Dig s wids, roush sided hols exactly the same depth a5 the
height of the ball, especially at the surface of the gror

Cen o e hele Shovsd e Tougn-and poaee, nover sk or
glazed.

z

Percolation Test: Fill the hole with water. If the water level does
not percolate within 24 hours, the tree needs to move to another
location or have drainage added. Install a PVC stand pipe per

FoRoc

2

z

°

3

e

tree planting dotail as approved by the Landscape Architect if the
percolation test fails.

Backfill only with 6 parts existing soil or sandy loam and 1
bed preparation. When the ho s dug i sold rock, topsol from

e area should not refully settle by watering
fo prevent air pockets. Remove the briap from the 1op % of he
ball, as well as all nylon, plastic string an ontainer trees
will uooaly bo root bound, if so follow standard nursery practice
of “root scoring

Do not wrap trees.
Do not over prune.

Mulch the top of the ball. Do not plant grass all the way 1o the
trunk of the tree. Leave the area above the top of the ball and
mulch with at least two (2°) inches of specified mulch.

1 plan beds amd s o bo mulched with o minimum setled
thickness of two (2') inches over the entire bed or

In the event that rock, or
or obstructions are encountered

Obstruction below _ground:
underground canstruction work

in any plant pit excavation work o bo dano under hs secton,
alternate locations Wher
Iocatons carot be changed, the abstructions shall b6 removed

a depth of not less than three (3') feet below grade and no
Toes than S (6% inches below 1. bottom of bal when pant 9
Braperly sst ot the required arade. The work of this section shal

o the such rack or underground
atnsetons mecuniord e coat'of tne Landscape
Contractor.

Trees and large shrubs shal b staked s sito conditions requie
Position stakes to secure trees against seasonal prevailing winds.
Pruning and Mulching:  Pruning shall be directed by th
Landscape Architect and shall be pi
st runing, Class |
pruning standards provided by the National Arborist Association.

1. Dead wood, suckers, broken and badly bruised branches
shall be removed. General tipping of the branches is not
permitted. Do not cut terminal branches.

2. Pruning shall be done with clean, sharp tools.

3 Immediately oftr lanting operations re complted. ol tee

shall be wit of organic material t
55 nahos i dopthe T it of th. organic maronal Tor
trees shall be the diameter of the plant pit.

Steel Curbing Installation:

1. Gurbing shall bs aigned as indicated on plans.  Stake out
limits of steel curbing and obtain Owners approval prior to
installation.

2. Al steel curbing shall be free of kinks and abrupt bends.

Top,of curbing shall be J maximum height above final
finished gra

4. Stakes are to be installed on the planting bed side of the
curbing, as opposed to the grass side.

5. Do not install stesl edging along sidewalks or curbs.

Cut steel edging at 45 degree angle where edging meets
sidewalks or curbs.

3.3 CLEANUP AND ACCEPTANCE

A

foanup: During the work. the premises shall be kept neat and
croeny it 2l tmes, Storage aress fo all materls shll be
organized 5o that they, 106, are neat and ordery. Al rash and
Goars sl e remaved from work progresses. Keep
paved areas clean by sweeping or hosing them at end of each
work day.

END OF SECTION

3/16" X 4" BLACK EDGING,
STAKES ON INSIDE; EDGING SHALL
BE 1/2" MAXIMUM HEIGHT

ABOVE FINISH GRADE

LAWN / FINISH GRADE

REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN
FOR SPACING NATIVE SOIL

TREE PLANTING DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

0]

SHRUB / GROUNDCOVER DETAIL

ROOTBALL,
DO NOT DISTURB.

NOT TO SCALE

0]

POCKET PLANTING
ED

NOT AL

Lowi

PREPARED SOIL MIX PER
SPECIFICATIONS; TILL 6" MINIMUM
OF PREPARED SOIL MIX INTO
6" DEPTH OF EXISTING SOIL

2% BELLE

FIRMA

4245 North Central Expy
Suite 501

Dallas, Texas 75205
214.865.7192

Enterprise
Car Sakes, Rent-a-Car and Truck
Rentals

5150 I-35 South
Corinth, Texas 76210

Project Number
20093

Issue Date:
09.21.2020

Drawn By:
RMT

Checked By.

KAH

sesssnesnerssaa

Revisions
No:  Date: Detail
11.0320  City Comments
120220 City Comments
010821 City Comments
011321 City Comments

Sheet Title:
LANDSCAPE
SPECIFICATIONS
AND DETAILS

Sheet Number:

L2.03



/ \ 276

IRRIGATION LEGEND SLEEVING NOTES

. RAINBIRD 1804 POP-UP LAWN HEAD 1. SLEEVES SHALL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED BY
. HUNTER MP ROTATOR NOZZLE

VEY 2. SLEEVE MATERIAL SHALL BE SCHEDULE 40 PIPE, SIZE
TEMPORARY IRRIGATION SUR O raneio s000 RoTARY FC AS INDICATED ON PLAN
4 UNTIL 100% ESTABLISHMENT b7 ARRSY 1549 \ @  runer s000 RoTARY P 3. CONTRACTOR SHALL LAY SLEEVES AND CONDUITS AT cersssazeszss=zas
/ 4/}) O 0 TWENTY-FOUR (24°) INCHES BELOW FINISH GRADE OF
% B, W rrAC 4245 North Central Expy
LS BEYOND EDGE OF ALL PAVEMENT. Suite 501
, 7 > > [®]  controuer, size as morcateo
, 28 el D, | \=NN©  WATER METER, SZE AS INDICATED Dallas, Texas 75205
2 DA WITHD.C.A., SIZE AS INDICATED 6. CONTRACTOR _SHALL FURNISH OWNER _AND 214.865.7192
7 5% % IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR WITH AN 'ASBUILT § "
25 %, — —  PVC SCHEDULE 40 SLEEVING DRAWING SHOWING ALL SLEEVE LOCATIONS.

| ATES

L B PUC CLASS 200 MAINLINE

‘50 %N " oTRA IRRIGATION NOTES
£) ABS

u " RN ﬁ‘
- STATE OF Texas ‘j:/ o 4

. 348, PG. PVC CLASS 200 LATERAL LINE
VOL. 400, PG. 403

VALVE Size 1. THE IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE

LOT 7A-R, BLOCK 1 2

PECAN CREEK SUBDIVISION
[ 9

M. PG,

STATE OF TEXAS RDW\\
DOC. No. 2014-87181 THE INTENT OF THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

N A Tl 1210 aoacne 2 ALL SPRINKLER EQUIPMENT NUMBERS REFERENCE THE fersetmasmasman
e LATE L STACING 12 ST S ARG ECUPENT CATALOS URLESS GIERWISE

INSTALL ALL EQUII IT ACCORDING TO INDICATED.

PMEN
LAKE CITIES STATE BANK MANUFACTURERS SPECIFICATIONS

AKA NORTHSTAR BANK OF TEXAS

TEN DAYS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION,
INST. No. 1996-65678

FRIGATION CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY  STATIC
WATER PRESSURE. IF STATIC PRESSURE 1S LESS THAN
NETAFIM TECHUNEATLOLS1210

(15" LATERAL SPACING, 13- EMITTER SPACIVG) 6 PSI. NOTEY THE LANDSGAPE ARCHITECT
187 LATERAL SPACING, 127 EMITTER SPAC WMEDIATELY. 50 NOT WORK UNTI NOTIFED TO 00
INSTALL ALL EQUIPMENT ACCORDING TO SO BY OWNER.

MANUFACTURERS SPECIFICATIONS

=z

TEMPORARY IRRIGATION

UNTIL 100% ESTABLISHMENT
) STATE

4. SLEEVES SHALL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED BY
GENERAL CONTRACTOR. _SLEEVE MATERIAL SHALL BE
NETAFIM DISC FILTER #DF100-060 SCHEDULE 40, SIZE AS INDICATED ON PLAN. REFER

TO SLEEVING NOTES.

FFINES CHILDREN'S
D@C.

A X . NETAFIM PRESSURE REGULATOR #PRV15025
aC. Mo, 2016102721 oL INSTALL ALL EQUIPMENT ACCORDING TO
/O.PRD. / vaL. 40 MANOFACTURERS SPECIFICATIONS. 5. ALL MAIN LINE AND LATERAL LINE PIPING IN PLANTING
et DR AND LAWN AREAS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM OF 12

AN

N INCHES OF COVER. ALL PIPING UNDER PAVING SHALL

STATE OF TEXAS RDW\

DOC. No. 201487177 N

HAVE A MINMUM OF 18 INCHES OF COVER
BUBBLER PIPING CHART CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY LOCAL FREEZE DEPTHS AND

ADJUST DEPTH OF COVER ACCORDINGLY. csasassassasmas
NUMBER OF BUBBLERS  SIZE OF PIPE

s

6. LAWN SPRAY HEADS SHALL BE RAINBIRD 1804

o % INSTALLED PER DETAIL SHOWN.
11-20 i
21-30 I 7. ROTOR HEADS SHALL BE RAINBIRD 5000 INSTALLED

3140 Bz PER DETAIL SHOWN. (WITH BULT-IN CHECK VALVE) E nterprlse

5. NOZZLES SHALL BE RAINBIRD PLASTIC, UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED. IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR SHALL

N SELECT THE PROPER ARC AND RADIUS FOR EACH Car Sakes, Rent-a-Car and Truck
~ NOZZLE TO ENSURE 100% AND PROPER COVERAGE OF
~ ALL LAWN AREAS AND PLANT MATERIAL. NO WATER Rentals

SHALL SPRAY ON BUILDING.

&

T &k,

9. AL NOZZLES IN PARKING LOT ISLANDS AND PLANTING
BEDS SHALL BE LOW ANGLE NOZZLES TO MINIMIZE
OVER SPRAY ON PAVEMENT SURFACES. 5150 |-35 South

10, ELECTRIC CONTROL VALVES SHALL BE RAINBIRD PEB ;
NSTALLED PER DETAL SHOWNY SZE OF VALVES AS Corinth, Texas 76210

SHOWN ON PLAN. VALVES SHALL BE INSTALLED IN
VALVE BOXES LARGE ENOUGH TO PERMIT MANUAL
OPERATION. REMOVAL OF SOLENOID AND / OR VALVE
COVER WITHOUT ANY EARTH EXCAVATION.

11. AL 24 VOLT VALVE WIRING TO BE UF 14 GAUGE
SINGLE CONDUCTOR. ALL WIRE SPLICES ARE TO BE
PERMANENT AND WATERPROOF.

12. AUTOMATIC CONTROLLER SHALL BE INSTALLED AT

A AND FREEZE SENSORS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH
EACH CONTROLLER.

13. THE DESIGN PRESSURE IS 65 PSI

14, ELECTRICAL SPLICES AT EACH VALVE AND saxsvasvanzammanw
CONTROLLER ONLY.

KERBOW 15. IRIGATION IN TEXAS 1S REGULATED BY: eroject Number
THETEXAS COMMISSION O ENVIRONMENTAL 20093
DAC. No. QUALITY (TCEQ) Issue Date:
09212020
S, 16, TCEQ'S WEBSITE IS WWW.TCEQ STATE TX.US S Jow
CAB. G, JIW
P.R.
crsesresreseana
No bat Dot
110320 Gty Comments
120020 Gty Comments
0821 City Comments
11321 Gty Comments
LOT 1, BLOCK 1 LOT 2, BLOCK 1 LOT 3, BLOCK 1 ngC:NEéggEKK‘ ngci‘NEé}?ggK‘
PECAN CREEK PECAN CREEK PECAN CREEK 20" ALLE
SUBDIVISION SUBDIVISION SUBDIVISION cesesssesese s
\ _SUBDIVISION__ ) SUBDWISON | SUBDMSION 1 e voan R o .. VoL IO

Sheet Title:

IRRIGATION
PLAN

Sheet Number:

L3.01




SECTION 32 8423 - UNDERGROUND IRRIGATION SLEEVES AND
UTILITY CONDUITS

PART 1 - GENERAL
1.1 DESCRIPTION

installton of, the irigation systam es Indicsted by the
wings. osts associated wih e nstlton.

mcmum oot Tor”Seming. and. nepoctons. o

Components. are-the. responsiiity of the. nstaller of (s

irigation system

B. Work includes but is not limited to:

Contractor has submitted the required information. No partial
submital shall be scoepted and submitals shall be nestly

ochure and logically organized:  Aft
bt has “hoan " apmmovect subsiitons il ot ‘be
alowod, axcopt by writian censant by tho Gwnor Authorized
Representative.

work. lIrrigation Contractor guarantees 100% coverage of all

mesting noted standards. No clamps or wires may be used.
areas to be irnigated. Ni

ples for heads and shrub risers to be nominal one-half inch
04") diameter by eight (8") inches long, where applicable.

1.6 TESTING
Polyethylene ripples six (6°) inches long shal be used on el
A. Perform testing required _with other trades, including pop-up spray he
cartwork, paving, pluming,  slctical,otc.. 1o avoid

A. Clean pipe and fitting thoroughly and lightly sand pipe
connections to remove residue from pipe. _Attach fittings to
tubing in an approved manner using 50-50 soft solid core
solder

3.5 POP-UP SPRAY HEADS

2. BELLE

A Provide underground irrigation sleeves as indicated on the .. Shop crawings include dimensions, slevation, construction unnecessary cutting, patching, and bori 2.7 MATERIALS - SEE IRRIGATION PLAN A Supoly popup spray hesds in sccordance with materiss ist Fl RH A
crawings. . Tenching ond bcki dotals, artangements, and capacity caupment. o3 wl 5 and Attach sprinkler to. lateral piping with
2. nstalation of automatic controlled s manutacturer's nstalstion recommenda B. Water Pressure: This irigation system has been designed to A, Sprinkler heads in lawn area as specified on plan. Somihoxble. poeyions miglo Mot s then vee. ()
1.2 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 5. Upon completon of mstatation. suppy a¢-buit drawings operate with a minimum - static. water pressure indicated on inches or more than sx (6°) nches long.
showing detalls of ‘construction. mcluding. Iocation of €. Operating and Maintenance Manuals: BrowingsThe Contracto Sl ake & presere resdng 8. PVC Pipe: Class 200, SDR 21
A. Section 32 8424 - Inigation System mainling piping, manual and automatic vaives, slectical ach wator et 5rr o beging consucion. - Cofi 3.6 VALVES srrszazaszaseas
Supply to valves, and specifcally the exact ocation of 1. Provide three (3) individually bound manals detaiing fndings 10 ow Aumonzed Represantaive m wrtng. I C. Copper Tubing (City Connection): Type ™
1.3 REFERENCED STANDARDS automatc valves. operatng and maintenance requrements fo e rigaton tatic prossurs varies ffom pressure stated on drawings, A. Supply valves in sccordance with materials list and sized Central Expy
syste not start work until nolmed to do so by Owner Au(horvzed D. 24V Wire: Size 14, Type UF accorqu to drawings. Install valves in a level position in 4245 North al
A. American Society for Testing and Materials: C. Al sleeves as shown on plans shall be furnished by General 2. Manuals shall be delivered to the Owner Authorized Representative. with manufacturer's specifications. See plan for Suite 501
ontractor.  Meter and power source shall be provided by Reprosentative no later than ten (10] days prior (0 E. Electric valves: Shal be all plastc construction as indicated pical instalaton of eloctic valve and valve box.
1. ASTM - D2441 Poly (Vinyl Chioride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe Generai Contractor. ompltn o e rgaion 1.7 COORDINATION on plans,
(s rpR) v " 3. Prowda desortions of il ingrald materils and systoms ! 37 WIRING Dallas, Texas 75205
2. ASTM DZAEE Poly (Vinyl Ch\arvﬂe] (PVC) Plastic Pipe 1.2 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE in sufficient delall to permit maintenance uelsonnel to A Coomma!e ms(aHa(lon with other trades, including savmwork F. Backflow Prevention Device: Refer to drawing requirements 214.865.7192
Fitting et Type, Sched understand, operate, and maintain the equipment and plumbing to avoid unnecessary cutting, patching and flow valve. Coordinate exact location with General A. Supply wire from the automatic sprinkler controls to the hd "
5. ASTAF D364 Sament Coments for Ply Vinyl Chiorde A. Refer to Inigation Plans for contrller, head, and valve 4. Provde e Toowing It sach manus: 2 boring. Contractor. values. ' No_condut will be requited for UF wie unless
Plastic Pipe and Fttings. locations. ndex_ shaet with Comucwvs name,  address, atherwise noted on the plan.  Wire shall be tucked under the
Talephans umber, and contact e, B. Coordinate to ensure tha electrical power source is in place. piing.
8. Section 32 8423 - Underground Iigation Sleaves and Utiity b, Duraton of guaranlss psnod el waranios snd PART 3 - EXECUTION
PART 2 - MATERIALS quarantoes Coordinate system installation with work specified in other A soparate wire i required from the control to each lectric
Maniacturer o ol aquipment sactions and coordinate with Landscape Contractor to ensure 3.1 INSTALLATION - GENERAL Valve, A common neutral wite s aiso fequired. from each
2.1 DEFINITIONS €. Section 32 9300 - Landscape . Exupmont bt proiding o alawing for och e plant material s uniformiy watered i accordance with intent Control 1o ‘oach of tho valugs served by each particular
I M.nu.ammm Shown on crawings. A. Staking allation is started, place a stake wher conrol,
A. Sleeve - A pipe within which another pipe is placed for o notes, _dotails, _biddin 2] Make and model number cach sprmk\er . o b Tocte, ' sccrianc ity Grawing,
carrying water or other utiltis to be installeq Teachroments spectt sroviions and schedutes ot odeonst 5) Name and acarese of oca s reprentative Staking by Owner . Authorized C. Bundie multiple wites and tape them together at ten (10°)
Tequirements. 3 Spare parts It in dot PART 2 - PRODUCTS Repmasintave befor presaing Wit work foot ierval.” nstal en (16°) inch expansion cols 1 ot
B. Wire Sleeves - A pi ry low voltage irrigation 5) Details operating and mam(anance instructions. zhnn one hundred (100') foot intervals. Make splices sasavaamazmaEmEE
itesTor aperation o e stctrc setonad vaes: 1.3 APPLICABLE STANDARDS or major squipm 2.1 GENERAL Excavations: Excavations are unclassified and include carth, waterpro
0086 fock, ombination thereof, in wi
2.2 GENERAL A. America Standard for Testing and Materils (ASTM)  Latest F. _Project Record Documents: A Manine, wanings are e pipng fom water souce o state.  Backfll tranches with material removed, provided that 3.8 AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER CONTROLS
edition. This of piping Is subject 10 surgss, the carth is suitable for compaction i s,
A. Palyvinyl Chloride Pipe (PVC) - Manufactured in accordance 1. Comply with Division | requirements. e o Hosed orion o sormkio yaram, “Srant Tnee o clods rock, debiis, etc. . Special backfil specifications, if A. Supply in accordance with Irigation Plan. Install according to
with standards noted herein: 1. D2241 Poly (Vinyl Chioride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe (SDR-PR) 2. Locate by wii iension, fouting of mainline g, considered a part of sprinkler main. furnished take preference over this general specification. manufacturer's recommendations.
2. 02064 ly iyl Chrce) (7VC) Fisti s Fiins, remote control valves, and auick coupling vaives.
1. Marking ard deniicaton - parmanenty marked it Thread, Schedul mainl single.” dime ot site 8. Lol Fiing: Laerl iong s ot portion of i from €. Backiil: Flood or hand-tamp to prevent after settling. Hand 3.9 TESTING
SDI ber, ASTM standard number, and the NSF D2455 Poly va\ Chlcnday (PVC) Plastic Pipe Fittings, features provided they run parallel to these elements. rating valve to sprinkler hea This portion of piping is rake trenches and adjoining area to leave grade in as good or
mmm Sonston Foundaton) s Schedule 40 Locats valves, Intermediate slectrical connections, g o Surges. bang o open oni e o1 Better canditon than before installation. A, Sprinkler Mains: Test sprinkler main only for a period of
2. Soe anufacturer to_mak 02467 Foly (i Chiride) (PVC) Plstc Pip Fitns. auick couplers by two dimensions from  permanent site sprinider syst v 1121 fourteen (131 hour udar mormal presere.
Sohent-vaded omts TherougHy coen 30 and iings Sacket Type, foaturs at approximately 70 degrees f0 each other 0. Pipng Loyout: Pipng lsyout s dagrammatc. Route piing leaks accur, replace joint or s and repeat
before applying solvent. 5. 12564 Solve m Cements for Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) 3. When dimensioning is complete, transpose work to bond 2.2 POLY VINYL CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC PIPE) around trees and shrubs in such
Plastic Pipe and Fittings o lamings. ‘Do not g witin bl of oty planiad oot or 8. Complete tests prior to backfiling. Sufficient backfil material
6. 03387 Flexibie Poby vimyl Chloride {PVC) st ipe 4. Submit three (3) copies of the comploted asbuil A. PVC pipe shall be manufactured in accordance with existing trees are present, trenches may be pleced n renches between fitings (o cnsure stbity
PART 3 - EXECUTION 7. 7255 Poly Vinw o (PVC) Sovent Weld P drawings, slong with a CD with PDF files of the same, to Commercil standards noted herein. Shal o adired on e 0 piovide o i clearance o of ine under pre Case, leave, fit
8 aking Comnted Joints with Poly e Ruhored eprssanatve prior ol four (4) et between the drp s o any tre The Couptngs open o visuslinspocuon fo rol ponod of 10
INSTALLATION Rt Chlorde (RC) i n Frings aceentance of the work. Mk drawings Record Prints 8. Marking and Idenification: PVC pipe shall be continuously Contador shall oty tne. Guner Aubarised Representativg
Shoming Samtcant Cranges® ot and sign drawinge. and permanently marked with the. following Information g o plomned Ghange n 1ench rouing flom hat 3,10 FINAL ADJUSTMENT
A. Coverage - Provide twenty-four inches (24°) minimum cover 1.4 MAINTENANCE AND GUARANTEE manufacures rame. pve i, e of ppe. end mterl shown on the drawings
over top of sleave from finish grade, G Quick Couplr Keys:  Provide three (9) coupler kevs with prodac standard umber, and the NSF (Natonsi A At nstalltion has been complete, mako fina sdustment Teavesseassaswaw
A. The Contractor shall guarantes materials and workmanship boiler crains attached using brass feduc Sentavion Fovmanion 3.2 PIPE INSTALLATION of sprinkler systom In preparation for Owner Authorized
8. Siovs Exarions - Extand slaove on foo 1) past e of for one (1) calendar year after fnal acceptance by Owner. Representative’s ial nspection.
pavement or concrete walls. Install 90 degree clbow on eac H. Controller Keys: Provide three (3) sets of keys to controller €. PVC Pipe Fittings: Shall be of the same material as the PVC A. Sprinkler Mains: Instal a four (4") inch wide minimum trench
Sleove end and add.addiional length of same sie pipe 10 B. Guarantes is limited to repair and replacement of dsfect enclosurels) pipe speciied and shall be compatible. with PVC. pipe with 3 minimum of eighteen (18°) inches of cover 8. Completely flush system to remove debris from lines .
xtend sbove sh grad by twane nches (127 Cap v materials. or  workmanship,  mcluting _repait of backil urmished. omitng notsi rom hands, on endof Tnos and utmeg on Enterprlse
ands using duct tap Settlament . Use of materials differing in qualty, size, or performance from 8. Lateral Piping: Install  four (4") inch wide minimum trench yotem.
incas spacfidshllonly b showed tpon wrten sopoval o 2.3 COPPER TUBING Goap onogh o sow Tor nstallton of sorinker heads: ond
3.2 BACKFILL . Provde mainenance of system, ncluing risingsnd o chitect. . The decision shall be Valves, but in no case, with ess than twelve (1271 of cover. G- rack sprintrs for propr opration and proper algrment for
eads 10 componsate Srowth, caning _and Compatatvg abilty of el or e 1o Setorm ety o A, Hard, steaight lengths of domestic manufacture only. Do ainection of thiow. © proper ol Car Sakes, Rent-a-Car and Truck
A. Compaction - Place hacknll ovel sleeves in 5\)( 15”] mch lifts. ad‘uslmsnl oi heads, and rawsmg and \owsrmg oi shmb heads purposes d general design consider copper tube of foreign extrusion or any so-called |mguhan C. Trenching: Remove lumber, rubbish, and large rocks from
Tamp firmly into place taking care not to damage sleeve. o compensate for shrub growth for one (1) year after possessed by item specified. tubing (thin wall). trenches. Provide firm, uniform bearing for entire length of D. Check each section of spray heads for operating pressure and Rentals
Complote. tatkin "and compacon, 1 provent ot Towré Completion of mtaletion e e fne 10 prevon upeven setoment Wodag o balance to other sections by use of flow acjustment on top of
settlement. Compact to 85% Standard Proctor. J. Bidders desiring to make a substitution for specified sprinklers 2.4 COPPER TUBE FITTINGS blocking of pipe shall not be pers move foreign each valve.
15 SUBMITTALS shal” S manfactuer's catsiog Shest shovwng il maor e it o msid of pibe bafors ekt and koop
B. Damage - Repair any damage fesulting from improper pecicaion of sty zpnkier oropasod a5 a substiute, A, Cast brass or wrought copper, sweat - solder type. Piping clsan by approved means during. and after laving of E. Check nozzling for proper coverage. Prevallng wind 5150 135 South
compaction including pavement repair and replacement. A. Procedure; Comply with Division | requirements. including discharge in GPM maximum allowable- operating Pive. conditions may ndicats et arch of angle of spray should be
pressure at spriner 255 WiRE Gihr than shown on drawings.  In this case, change nozzles .
END OF SECTION B. Product Data: The Contractor shall submit five (5) copies of 3.3 PVC PIPE AND FITTING ASSEMBLY to provide correct coverage and fuish data to Owner Corinth, Texas 76210
cquipment manufacturer's ‘cut sheets' and shop drawings for K. Approua of substiute sprnler shall ot rlve rigation A. Type UF with /64" thick waterproof insulation which is ‘Authorizod Representative with sach change.
Sppoval by Ouner Authorized. Represenatve. i 1o Contractor of his. responsibiity to- dems nal Oriariors Laboratory sobrovad Tor_Ghecs nderground A Solvent: s ony solvent ecommendad by manufscture to
SECTION 32 8424 - IRRIGATION SYSTEM installation, ' including, but not limited. 0. th netlod sprkler syou shll porats aceerding 1o mient of burial when used in 8 National Electic Cods Class Ii Cirout make Solvent-welded  joints. Thoroughly clean pipe and 3.1 SYSTEM DEMONSTRATION
srndr e piper convoler, valves, backon preventmn ariginally designed and specified system {30 volis AC or ess). Trings o1 s st and maiturs bofors aplying soltn
PART 1 - GENERAL doves, vave wite, ondut, fittings, and all other A. Instruct Owner's personnel in operation and maintenance of
ypes ot fixures proposed o be mitaled on he iob. " The Loi s the re y of the Inigation Contractor to B. Wire Comnsctors: Waterproof spice kit connectors. Type . PVC 10 mota connection Work maal comnctions . Uso Systom including adusting of sprinkler heads. Use oporation
11 scope bl mu e " manactros v, mods Gemonsirats s el stated Sprinkies systom ahal operate DBY by 3M o non-hardening pipe dope such a5 Pen ahd maintenance manual for basis of demonstration.
mber, squipma ruiscurr’s mtalsion according {0 intent of orginally designed and specified Tveadod PUC sdirs ins whieh ipe may e welded,
A. Provide complete sprinkler _installaion as _detailed_and Tetommondatione 1 sppreasio or 2och poposed e System 1 rigation Contactr noes any problems Iy o 2.6 SCHEDULE 80 PVC NIPPLES END OF SECTION
specified herein, includes. furnishing al abor, materia, tools, Spacing or potential coverage, i s his responsiilty to notify 3.4 COPPER TUBING AND FITTING ASSEMBLY
aquipment, and related ftems for the complete and. proper C. No work covered under this section may begin until the The Landscape Architect in writing, before procseding wit A. Composed of Standard Schedule 40 PVC Fittings and PVC

SPECIFIED SPRAY NOZZLE & BODY
FINISH GRADE FINISH GRADE
FINISH GRADE

SIDEWALK OR CURB. SIDEWALK OR CURB

112" X 6" POLY NIPPLE
QUICK COUPLER Project Number
18" COVER BETWEEN ROTARY HEAD 20093
PAVEMENT AND SLEEVE lssue Date: 09.21.2020
SCHEDULE 40 PVC, CLASS 200 PVC LATERAL LINE GRAVEL Drawn By: e
SIZE AS NOTED ON PLANS SWING JOINT JIW
SXSXTPVC SCHEDULE 40 LATERAL PIPING SWING JOINT Checked By. w

OUTLET TEE OR ELBOW MAINLINE PIPING

SLEEVE DETAIL POP-UP LAWN SPRAY ASSEMBLY ROTARY HEAD QUICK COUPLER ssxsssssners s
NOT TO SCALE NOT TO SCALE NOT TO SCALE NOT TO SCALE

Revisions

No:  Date: Detail

City Comments
City Comments
City Comments
City Comments

LAG BOLTS OR EXPANSION BOLTS AS REQUIRED 11.03.20
12.02.20
VALVE BOX AND LID 010821
WALL (EXTERIOR OR INTERIOR) FINISH GRADE -
CONTROLLER 01.13.21
VALVE BOX FLUSH WITH FINISH GRADE HARD WIRE 117 VOLT A.C. BEHIND

CONTROLLER IN FLUSH BOX

CONTROLLER AS SPECIFIED

KEYED LOCK OR PADLOCK

HARD WIRE 117 VOLT A.C. POWER TO

FLUSH OUTLET BEHIND CONTROLLER

STEEL MALE CONNECTOR

114" RIGID STEEL CONDUIT

‘STEEL SPLICE BOX WITH FRONT ACCESS PANEL

| RIGID STEEL CONDUIT (SAME SIZE AS
CONDUIT BELOW GRADE) CONDUIT SHALL BE PLUMB.

L STEEL COUPLING (AS REQUIRED)

PEA GRAVEL ADAPT INLET AND OUTLET

(AS REQUIRED)

PVC LINE PER SPECIFICATIONS
TO IRRIGATION SYSTEMS

REMOTE CONTROL VALVE WITH
24" LONG LOOP OF CONTROL WIRE
45 DEGREE ELL

Sheet Title:
IRRIGATION
SPECIFICATIONS
AND DETAILS

SCHEDULE 40 PVC FITTINGS

MAIN LINE GATE VALVE
FEBCO MODEL 850 DOUBLE
GHECK VALVE, LINE SIZE
WASHED ROCK (1/2" - 314" DIA.),
PER CITY REQUIREMENT

(FIELD VERIFY HEIGHT)

1SOMETRIC 2~ FINISH FLOOR
e eterLsweepEL ELEVATION MAIN FROM SOURCE PER
ELEVATION S RIGID STEEL GoNDUIT BELOW CITY REQUIREMENT
OROR GRADE Sheet Number:
REMOTE CONTROL VALVE WALL MOUNTED CONTROLLER BACKFLOW PREVENTER
NOT T0 SCALE NOT T0 SCALE NOT T0 SCALE .




278

BUSINESS ITEM 10.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021
Title: TOD Drainage Design Proposal
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary

City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

Strategic Goals: Land Development
Infrastructure Development
Economic Development

AGENDA ITEM

Consider authorizing the city manager to execute a contract with Jones | Carter for the detailed engineering design
of floodplain reclamation for the land encompassing the City’s Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) and Agora
District, in an amount not to exceed $150,000.00.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

With the proposed Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) and Agora District, there will be a need to provide
regional detention and floodplain reclamation to develop the property. This contract is to initialize that process and
provide a detailed design for a “regional” detention located downstream of Corinth Parkway and the TOD. With
the recent purchase of the Pinnell Tract just behind City Hall and the land area encompassing the parks just east
and downstream of the area, there is an opportunity to provide the necessary detention and floodplain mitigation to
be able to fill and develop the land area for the TOD. Additionally, there appears to be sufficient space to provide
necessary detention for all the land areas within the watershed upstream from Corinth Parkway in a fully Developed
condition. i.e. The existing detention basins located in the area can be eliminated and used for further development
within the TOD area.

The City has been using Jones | Carter for all things Lynchburg Creek for several years and their experience with
our proposed FEMA Flood Mitigation Grant provides us the necessary support to perform the tasks for that project
as well as this additional floodplain mitigation.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff Recommends approval of entering into a contract with Jones | Carter for this project in an amount not to
exceed $150,000.00 and authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents.

Attachments
Jones|Carter Proposal




279
2805 Dallas Parkway, Suite 600

Plano, Texas 75093
JONES|CARTER Tel: 972.488.3880

Fax: 972.488.3882
www.jonescarter.com

January 21, 2021

Mr. George S. Marshall, PE, CFM
City of Corinth

3300 Corinth Parkway

Corinth, Texas 76208

Re: Professional Engineering & Surveying Services
Design of Regional Drainage Improvements for
Transit Oriented Development District

Dear Mr. Marshall:

We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal for civil engineering and surveying services in connection
with regional drainage improvements for the Transit Oriented Development District to be located in the vicinity
of Interstate 35W and Corinth Parkway.

Project Understanding

The “Transit Oriented Development” (TOD) District consists of a +166-acre area in the vicinity of Interstate 35W
and Corinth Parkway that drains to Lynchburg Creek and Lynchburg Creek Tributary 3. The project intends to fill
and reclaim the portion of Tributary 3 between Walton Road and Corinth Parkway. A regional detention and
floodplain mitigation plan (mitigation plan) serving portions of the district generally east of Intestate 35E is
currently being prepared by Jones|Carter (JC) under separate contract.

Our understanding is the City would like JC to provide survey, design, and construction phase services for regional
drainage improvements along Lynchburg Creek Tributary 3 based on the preferred alternative selected by the City
from the mitigation plan. The preferred alternative generally includes construction of mitigation ponds in the
overbanks of Tributary 3 south of Corinth Parkway and filling of Tributary 3 and installation of reinforced concrete
box storm sewer between Corinth Parkway and Walton Road. The sizing of the ponds, the configuration of inflow
and outflow structures, and the referenced storm sewer are being documented in the mitigation plan and will be
the basis of the design.

Based on our understanding of the Client’s needs and the project area characteristics, we prepared the following
scope of services and fee proposal for your consideration.

Scope of Basic Services
JC will make a site visit and attend a kick-off meeting with the City covering the following topics:
e Project Communication — Establish the frequency and method of communication with City staff
e Project Milestones & Schedule
e Field surveys and property notification
e Project Deliverables

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



280

JONES|CARTER

Mr. George S. Marshall, PE, CFM
Page 2
January 21, 2021

Previous information provided by the City includes available record drawings. If additional information becomes
necessary during the analysis or design process, JC shall request the information from the City.

Topographic Survey

For the property north of Corinth Parkway: Visible above ground utilities will be located with the survey. We will
tie the storm structure draining to Tributary 3 on both sides of Walton Road, including flow line elevations, pipe
sizes and the roadside ditch. We will tie pavement on both sides of Corinth Parkway along subject tract. We will
locate the drainage structure on the east side of the railroad right-of-way, including the drainage channel. JC will
survey a 100-ft grid within the project boundary to identify existing grades on subject and adjacent properties,
locate all immediately adjacent improvements, and establish vertical/horizontal control. We will provide cross
sections of stream at approximately every 100°. Any culverts along the stream will be located. We will locate and
detail the culvert and headwall situated under Corinth Parkway, any rip rap and sidewalk will also be located.

For the two properties south of Corinth Parkway: Visible above ground utilities will be located with the survey. JC
will survey a 100-ft grid within the project boundary to identify existing grades on subject and adjacent properties,
locate all immediately adjacent improvements, and establish vertical/horizontal control. We will provide cross
sections of stream at approximately every 100’. We will locate and detail any outfall structures within the limits
of the survey.

This scope of work is based on the assumption that wooded areas of the properties will not be cleared prior to
survey.

Geotechnical Services
JC will authorize GEE Consultants, Inc. to perform a geotechnical exploration as detailed in their attached proposal
dated June 15, 2019. If additional geotechnical evaluation is required, this shall be handled by separate proposal.

Environmental Services

JC will authorize Stelly Environmental, LLC to perform an environmental assessment as detailed in their two
attached proposals dated January 6, 2021. The purpose of the environmental assessment to assess potential
jurisdictional waters, potential impacts to them, and prepare necessary permitting related to the proposed
project. Services will also include an endangered and threatened species review. If additional environmental
evaluation is required, this shall be handled by separate proposal.

Cultural Resources

Because this project is owned and funded by the City of Corinth, it is subject to the Antiquities Code of Texas, and
anticipated Nationwide Permitting through the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) will make it subject to
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. Therefore, JC will authorize Cox|McLAin Environmental
Consulting, based on their proposal dated January 6, 2021, to perform a desktop review of potential cultural
deposits, and to conduct necessary coordination with the USACE and Texas Historical Commission.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



281

JONES|CARTER

Mr. George S. Marshall, PE, CFM

Page 3

January 21, 2021

Construction Plans

JC will prepare a construction plan set for the preferred alternative from the mitigation plan. The plans will include
grading, plan & profile sheets, layouts, and detail sheets.

a.
b.

R S

General Design: Cover Sheet, Index, General Notes.
Demolition Plans: Prepare layout to delineate and quantify the limits of removal for any existing
structures in the project area.
Drainage Plans: Prepare plan and profile sheets of the proposed storm sewer trunk line north of
Corinth Parkway and for inflow and outflow structures for the proposed ponds south of Corinth
Parkway, drainage area map, cross sections, and standard details.
Erosion Control Plan: Prepare base map for the limits of the project along with standard details.
Utility adjustments including water and sanitary sewer, if required, are not included in this scope.
Traffic control plans, if required, are not included in this scope.
City staff shall review and, if necessary, meet with the Engineer at each submittal stage to discuss to
provide additional comments and direction as needed to proceed. Submittals shall include:

i. 30% schematic design to include plan and profile of items c. and d. above with topographic

information.

ii. 60% preliminary design and opinion of probable construction cost.

iii. 90% design and opinion of probable construction cost.

iv. Final design and opinion of probable construction cost.
Project Manual — JC will develop the project manual using North Central Texas Council of
Governments (NCTCOG) Public Works Construction Standards (5" Edition) for the technical
specifications. If other technical specifications are required above what is provided by NCTCOG, JC
will provide those specifications. JC will provide a bid from and will incorporate City provided
documents such as General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, Bond Forms, Agreement,
Instruction to Bidders, etc.).

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan

JC will prepare a storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP). This scope does not include submittal of the
SWPPP or associated notices of intent (NOls).

Bid Phase Services

JCshall provide final construction plans and bid documents to the City. It is our understanding the City’s purchasing
department will handle advertisement and posting of the project for bidding. JC shall:

a.
b.

Assist the City with a pre-bid meeting,

Assist the City with the preparation of addenda to the bid documents and provide answers to bidder
questions and interpreting of bid documents, and

Assist the City with the opening and tabulation of bids, and evaluation of bidder references for
selection.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



282

JONES|CARTER

Mr. George S. Marshall, PE, CFM
Page 4
January 21, 2021

Construction Staking

For the property north of Corinth Parkway: JC will provide stakes in the area of the stream to be filled for mass
grading. JC will provide stakes for the construction of a future storm sewer, approximately 1,200 linear feet. For
the two properties south of Corinth Parkway: JC will provide stakes for cutting out 2 future ponds. We will provide
stakes for the layout of 4 future inflow/outfall pipes. JC will provide stakes for grading of the north part of the
tract adjacent to the stream. This task also includes staking of 4 bore locations for the geotechnical evaluation.

Construction Phase Services
JC shall represent the City in the non-resident administration of the construction contract. Services do not involve
continuous or extensive on-stie inspection to check or verify means and methods, materials, or manage
construction efforts. As such, JC cannot provide certification of the completed project beyond the limited
observation described below. If Field Project Representation is desired, JC can provide those services on an as
additional hourly service. The proposed scope of work includes the following:
a. Assist the City with a pre-construction meeting,
b. Provide monthly site visits (4), including meeting on site with the City and contractor, and provide a
written status report for each visit.
c. Provide written responses to requests for information for clarifications.
d. Assist City staff in conducting the final walk-through for general conformance with the design concept
and compliance with the contract documents.
e. Prepare construction “record drawings” based upon markups and information provided by the City
inspector and the construction contractor.

Scope of Special Services

Easement Preparation

JC can prepare separate instrument easements that will include a metes and bounds description and exhibit for
any kind of easement required. The easement document will be signed and sealed by an RPLS. The fee listed below
is for easements on properties we have already surveyed. The fee for easements on properties we have not
surveyed will be higher depending on efforts required to locate the property corners. Researching and extracting
existing easements that would affect the new easements is also an additional cost.

Additional Services

Services not otherwise included in the scope of work, or not customarily furnished in accordance with generally
accepted engineering practice shall, be invoiced in accordance with the enclosed Schedule of Hourly Rates or
handled by separate proposal.

Reimbursable Expenses

These services and expenses typically include plots, color exhibit prints, deliveries, filing and review fees,
reproduction of plans for agency review and construction efforts, and other miscellaneous features; see attached
Schedule of Reimbursable Expenses.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



283

JONES|CARTER

Mr. George S. Marshall, PE, CFM
Page 5
January 21, 2021

Information to be Provided by Client
The following information shall be provided to JC by the City:

1. Franchise utility contact information for local representatives.
2. Provide Notice of Entry to all property owners along the route.

Proposed Fees
Basic services are based on Lump Sum fees. Special Services are as noted. Additional Services or Hourly Services
shall be performed based on the attached hourly rate schedule.

Basic Services

Topographic Survey $20,000 (Lump Sum)
Geotechnical Engineering S 8,288 (Estimate)
Environmental Services - Delineation S 3,640 (Hourly Estimate)
Environmental Services - Permitting, Endangered Species S 5,050 (Hourly Not to Exceed)
Cultural Resources S 1,946 (Lump Sum)
Construction Plans $57,000 (Lump Sum)
Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan S 3,500 (Lump Sum)

Bid Phase Services S 6,000 (Lump Sum)
Construction Staking $11,200 (Hourly Estimate)
Construction Phase Services $10,500 (Hourly Estimate)
Subtotal $127,124 (Estimate)

Special Services

Easement Preparation & Recordation S 1,000 (Per Easement)
Additional Services (if required) $10,000 (Hourly Estimate)
Reimbursable Expenses S 500 (Lump Sum)
Subtotal $11,500 (Estimate)
Contract Total $138,624 (Estimate)

Special Considerations
This proposal is based on the following special considerations:
1. This proposal shall be subject to the enclosed General Conditions of Agreement.
2. Attendance or presentations to city council or neighborhood organizations can be performed as an
additional service, if requested.
Structural design, including retaining walls, is not included.
Landscape architecture design is not included in the scope of services.
Utility adjustments including water and sanitary sewer, if required, are not included in this scope.
Traffic control plans, if required, are not included in this scope.

ouksWw

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



284

JONES|CARTER

Mr. George S. Marshall, PE, CFM
Page 6
January 21, 2021

7. This project will require a FEMA Letter of Map Revision following construction, preparation of which is
not included in the scope.

8. Any review or permit fees associated with the project shall be paid by the Client, or if paid by JC, shall be
considered as a reimbursable expense, and are not included in any fees proposed.

9. Hourly Services shall be provided in accordance with the enclosed Schedule of Hourly Rates.

10. Reimbursable expenses including outside services not performed by JC personnel shall be provided in
accordance with the enclosed Schedule of Reimbursable Expenses.

11. Fees do not include sales taxes that may be imposed.

12. The proposed fees shall be considered in their entirety for the scope of services. Should you wish to
contract with us for only a portion of the work, we reserve the right to negotiate individual scope items
on their own merits.

13. This proposal shall be valid for sixty days from this date and may be extended upon approval by this office.

We thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to working with you on this project.
An executed copy of this proposal will serve as our notice to proceed. Should you have any questions, please call.

Sincerely,

A C B

Adam C. Ray, PE, CFM tephen C. Reiter, PE, CFM
Project Manager Vice President

ACR/mls
V:\Opportunity Documents\OP101-1187-00 Corinth Village Drainage Design\PP-Proposal Corinth Village Regional Drainage Design v7.docx

Enclosures

APPROVED BY:

Signature

Name and Title (Printed)

Date

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



285

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT

JONES & CARTER, INC.

AUTHORIZATION FOR WORK TO PROCEED

Signing of this PROPOSAL/AGREEMENT for services shall be authorization
by the CLIENT for Jones & Carter, Inc. (J&C), to proceed with the work,
unless stated otherwise in the AGREEMENT.

STANDARD OF PRACTICE

Services performed by J&C under this AGREEMENT will be conducted in a
manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by
members of the engineering profession currently practicing in the same
locality under similar conditions. No other representation, expressed or
implied, and no warranty or guarantee is included or intended in this
AGREEMENT, or in any report, opinion, document, etc., prepared by J&C.

BILLING AND PAYMENT

The CLIENT, recognizing that timely payment is a material part of the
consideration of this AGREEMENT, shall pay J&C for services performed in
accordance with the rates and charges set forth herein. Invoices shall be
submitted by J&C on a monthly basis and the full amount shall be due and
payable to J&C upon receipt. If the CLIENT objects to all or any portion of
an invoice, the CLIENT shall notify J&C in writing within seven (7) calendar
days of the invoice date and pay that portion of the invoice not in dispute.

The CLIENT shall pay an additional charge of 0.75% of the invoiced amount
per month for any payment received by J&C more than thirty (30) days
from receipt of the invoice, excepting any portion of the invoiced amount in
dispute and resolved in favor of the CLIENT. Payment thereafter shall be
first applied to accrued interest and then to the principal unpaid amount.

OWNERSHIP/REUSE OF DOCUMENTS

All documents, including original drawings, opinions of probable
construction cost, specifications, field notes, and data provided or
furnished by J&C pursuant to this AGREEMENT are instruments of service in
respect to the Project and J&C shall retain ownership and property interest
therein whether or not the project is completed. The CLIENT may make
and retain copies for the use of the Project by the CLIENT and others;
however, such documents are not intended or suitable for reuse by the
CLIENT or others on extensions of the Project or on any other Project. Any
such reuse without written approval or adaptation by J&C for the specific
purpose intended shall be at the CLIENT'S sole risk and without liability to
J&C, and the CLIENT shall indemnify and hold harmless J&C from all claims,
damages, losses, and expenses including attorney's fees arising out of or
resulting therefrom.

COST ESTIMATES

Cost estimates prepared by the engineer represent his best judgment as a
design professional familiar with the construction industry. It is recognized,
however, that the engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials,
or equipment; over the contractor’s methods of determining bid prices; or
over competitive bidding or market conditions. Accordingly, the engineer
cannot and does not guarantee that bids will not vary from any cost
estimate prepared by him.

INSURANCE

J&C agrees to maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance to cover all of its
own personnel engaged in performing services for the CLIENT under this
AGREEMENT.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

J&C agrees to carry out and perform the services herein agreed to in a
professional and competent manner. The CLIENT agrees that J&C shall not
be liable for error, omission, or breach of warranty (either expressed or
implied) in the preparation of designs and drawings, preparation of surveys,
designation and selection of materials and equipment for the project, or the
performance of any other services in connection with any assignment for
which specific authorization is given by CLIENT under this agreement,
except to the extent that he fails to exercise the usual degree of care and
Jjudgment of an ordinarily prudent engineer in the same or similar
circumstances or conditions.

Version 13-08-22

In order for the CLIENT to obtain the benefit of a fee which includes a lesser
allowance for risk funding, the CLIENT agrees to limit J&C's liability arising
from J&C's professional acts, errors or omissions, such that the total
aggregate liability of J&C shall not exceed J&C's total fee for the services
rendered on this project.

INDEMNIFICATION

J&C agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold
the CLIENT harmless from any damage, liability, or cost (including
reasonable attorney's fees and costs of defense) to the extent caused by
J&C's negligent acts, errors, or omissions in the performance of
professional services under this AGREEMENT including anyone for whom
J&Cis legally liable.

The CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and
hold J&C harmless from any damage, liability, or cost (including reasonable
attorneys' fees and costs of defense) to the extent caused by the CLIENT'S
negligent acts, errors, or omissions and those of his or her contractors,
subcontractors or consultants, or anyone for whom the CLIENT is legally
liable, and arising from the Project that is the subject of this AGREEMENT.

J&C is not obligated to indemnify the CLIENT in any manner whatsoever for
the CLIENT'S own negligence.

CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES

The CLIENT shall not be liable to J&C and J&C shall not be liable to the
CLIENT for any consequential damages incurred by either due to the fault of
the other, regardless of the nature of this fault, or whether it was
committed by the CLIENT or J&C employees, agents, or subcontractors.
Consequential Damages include, but are not limited to, loss of use and loss
of profit.

TERMINATION

This AGREEMENT may be terminated with or without cause at any time
prior to completion of J&C's services either by the CLIENT or by J&C, upon
seven (7) days written notice to the other at the address of record.
Termination shall release each party from all obligation of this AGREEMENT
except compensation payable to J&C for services rendered prior to
Termination. Compensation payable at termination shall include payment
for services rendered and costs incurred up to the termination date in
accordance with J&C's currently effective hourly rate schedule and direct
expense reimbursement policy.

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

CLIENT and J&C each binds himself, and his partners, successors, executors,
administrators, and assigns to the other party of this AGREEMENT and to
partners, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns of such other
party in respect to all covenants of this AGREEMENT. Neither CLIENT nor
J&C shall assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in this AGREEMENT, without
written consent of the other. Nothing contained herein shall be construed
as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than the CLIENT
and J&C.

SEVERABILITY

Any provision or part of the AGREEMENT held to be void or unenforceable
under any law or regulation shall be deemed stricken and all remaining
provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon the CLIENT and J&C,
who agree that the AGREEMENT shall be reformed to replace such stricken
provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes
as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The amount of an excise, VAT, gross receipts, or sales tax that may be
imposed shall be added to the compensation as stated in the proposal.

CONTROLLING LAW
This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.



JONES|CARTER

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY RATES
Effective January 2019 - Subject to Annual Revision in January 2020

ENGINEERING PERSONNEL

DESIGNERS/DRAFTING PERSONNEL

286

Design Engineer | $100
Design Engineer Il $120
Professional Engineer | $140
Professional Engineer Il $160
Professional Engineer Ill $185
Professional Engineer IV $215
Professional Engineer V $230
Practice Leader $250
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING PERSONNEL

Electrical Design Engineer | $110
Electrical Design Engineer | $130
Electrical Professional Engineer | $155
Electrical Professional Engineer I $170
Electrical Professional Engineer Ill $190
Electrical Professional Engineer IV $225
Electrical Professional Engineer V $240
CONSTRUCTION PERSONNEL (Includes Mileage)

Project Representative | S 60
Project Representative |l S 85
Project Representative llI $105
Project Representative | — Treatment Facilities $ 85
Project Representative Il — Treatment Facilities $110
Project Representative Il — Treatment Facilities $135
Construction Manager | $100
Construction Manager Il $120
Construction Manager || $140
Construction Manager IV $160
Construction Manager V $185
SOFTWARE ENGINEER

Software Engineer | $120
Software Engineer || $185
Software Engineer Ill $230
PLANNING PERSONNEL

Planner | $ 90
Planner Il $120
Planner il $150

CAD Operator | S 55
CAD Operator Il S 75
CAD Operator Il S 95
Designer | S 95
Designer Il $115
Designer IlI $135
GIS Operator | S 80
GIS Operator Il $105
GIS Operator IlI $140
SURVEYING PERSONNEL

1-Person Field Crew $125
2-Person Field Crew $170
3-Person Field Crew $205
4-Person Field Crew $235
Scanner Equipment $100
Survey Technician | S 65
Survey Technician I S 80
Survey Technician IlI $100
Project Surveyor | S 75
Project Surveyor Il S 85
Project Surveyor IlI $100
Project Surveyor IV $115
Chief of Survey Crews $100
Registered Professional Land Surveyor $160
Survey Manager $185
OFFICE PERSONNEL

Engineer’s Assistant | $ 60
Engineer’s Assistant Il $ 75
Engineer’s Assistant 1l $ 85
Admin | $ 55
Admin Il S 75
Admin llI $100
Assistant Controller/ Chief Accountant $110
Corporate/Project Acct. | $ 75
Corporate/Project Acct. Il $ 90

JC2019 Standard revised 11/29/18



287

JONES|ICARTER

SCHEDULE OF REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
Effective January 2019
Subject to Annual Revision in January 2020

1. Reproduction performed in office
Size Black & White Color

8% x 11 (single-sided) $0.05/page S .50/page
8% x 11 (double-sided) $0.15/page S 1.00/page
8% x 14 $0.15/page S .75/page
11x17 $0.20/page S 1.00/page
Large Document Prints/Plots Black & White Color
Bond $0.20/sq ft S 1.00/sq ft
Photographic Bond $4.00/sq ft S 5.00/sq ft
Mylar (4 mil) $2.00/sq ft N/A

Aerial Backgrounds

All sizes $5.00/sheet (plus above sq. ft. cost)
2. Transportation (mileage): Standard IRS mileage rate in effect
3. Subcontracts and all other outside expenses and fees: Cost, plus 10% service charge
4. Surveying Expenses

a. Crew Rates: Includes time charged portal to portal and the first 120 miles of
transportation and standard survey equipment

b. Special Rental Equipment: Cost, plus 10%

c. Stakes: Cost, plus 10% service charge when an excessive number of wooden stakes or
any special stakes are required

d. Iron Rods and Pipes: Cost, plus 10%

e. All-Terrain Vehicle (ATV): $150/day

f. Overnight Stays: $190/night

g. Overtime Rates: Jobs requiring work on weekends or holidays billed at 1.5 times the
standard rate

h. Sales Tax: To be paid on boundary-related services.

i. Deliveries, abstracting services, outside reproduction costs, and other reimbursable
expenses charged at cost, plus 10%

Final 2019
Standard

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



288

(G| * GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING

E |« ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING GEE CO"SUItantS, InC,

E * CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING

10046 Monroe Drive ° Dallas, Texas 75229 ° (214) 352-5433 ° Fax (214) 352-6972

EXHIBIT “A”

January 7, 2021
Rev. January 15, 2020

City of Corinth, Texas

c/o Mr. Adam C. Ray, P.E., CFM
Hydrology & Hydraulics

Jones | Carter Engineering

2805 Dallas Parkway, Suite 600
Plano, TX 75093

Email: aray@jonescarter.com

Office: (972) 488-3880
Fax: (972) 488-3882
Direct: (972) 265-7186
Cell: (281) 265-7186

RE:  Proposal No. 1210101(Rev.)
Geotechnical Investigation
City of Corinth Regional Drainage Project
Northwest and Southeast of Corinth Parkway
North of Denton Katy Trail
City of Corinth, Texas

Dear Mr. Ray:

In accordance with your January 5 and January 14, 2021 email requests, we are pleased to submit
the following cost estimate for geotechnical engineering services for the above referenced project.

The scope of the current requested investigation is to provide limited geotechnical investigation at
the above referenced location in Corinth, Texas. It is our understanding the subject site consists of
three (3) different properties owned by the City of Corinth, all located northwest and southeast of



289
City of Corinth c/o Jones | Carter Engineering January 15,2021 (Rev.)

Corinth Parkway, just north of Denton Katy Trail. We understand no clearing operations of existing
trees will be performed prior to our investigation.

Drainage improvements to the first property, located between Corinth Parkway and Walton Road
(between Denton Katy Trail and 3305 Corinth Parkway), will consist of filling in an existing
intermittent stream tributary to the Elk Fork Trinity River. The filled in intermittent stream will be
replaced with a reinforced concrete box (RCB) to help convey existing area runoff. The exact path
of the planned RCB is yet to be determined. We understand the planned RCB located northwest of
Corinth Parkway will be around fifteen (15) feet deep. The size of the RCB is yet to be determined.
Excavated materials from the two (2) southeast properties will likely be utilized to re-grade the
overall surface of the northwest property. On completion of grading and drainage improvements to
the northwest property, this property is currently anticipated to be further developed with new streets,
parking, and buildings in the future.

The first of the two (2) City owned properties southeast of Corinth Parkway is located between
Denton Katy Trail and includes Corinth City Hall. Two (2) adjacent properties to the first Corinth
City Hall occupied property consist of a commercial strip center property that fronts Corinth
Parkway as well as the west end of the Autumn Oaks of Corinth property. The second City owned
property southeast of Corinth Parkway is located between Denton Katy Trail and the south side of
Autumn Oaks of Corinth. We understand the intent is to clear the existing intermittent stream
overbanks located in these two (2) properties and re-grade such to increase flood storage. In addition,
a total of two (2) new ponds will be constructed in the overbanks of the existing stream located
within the two (2) properties southeast of Corinth Parkway.

The two (2) new ponds are planned to utilize wet bottoms (retained water/storm water ponds). The
planned ponds (south pond and north pond) may require a clay liner if the native underlying alluvial
in-situ materials are too permeable. The pond planned along the south side of the existing stream
(south pond) will be excavated to as much as 20 feet below existing grades. The pond to be located
on the north side of the current stream (north pond)will be excavated to as much as 16 feet below
existing grades.

Side slopes for ponds are anticipated to be no steeper than 4H:1V above normal pool elevation. We
understand 3H:1V side slopes will be utilized below normal pool elevation in the ponds. The normal
pool water depths will be six (6) feet.

Future use of the two (2) properties located southeast of Corinth Parkway are anticipated to only
have a park like use. The design of structures for detention inflow and outflow have not yet been

determined.

The specific test boring locations requested include the following:

GEE Consultants, Inc. Proposal No. 1210101(Rev.)
Page 2



290
City of Corinth c/o Jones | Carter Engineering January 15, 2021 (Rev.)

Test Boring Locations

Property Identification and Test Boring Locations Test Boring
Proposed Structure(s) Depths

Property Northwest of
Corinth Parkway, Filled in
Stream and 15' Deep B-1 and B-2 25 Feet
Reinforced Concrete Box
(RCB)

1st Property Southeast of
Corinth Parkway
(Containing Corinth City B-3 and B4 25, 30 Feet
Hall), Existing Stream Banks
Re-graded, West Portion of
20' Deep South Wet Pond

Due to heavy existing tree cover and clearing operations planned subsequent to our investigation,
the second property southeast of Corinth Parkway will not be accessed at the time of our current
investigation. Additional future test boring locations can be advanced within the second property
southeast of Corinth Parkway (bounded by City Hall property and Autumn Oaks of Corinth). The
existing stream banks will be re-graded in the second property southeast of Corinth Parkway. In
addition the east portions of twenty (20) feet deep South Wet Pond are located the second property
southeast of Corinth Parkwayas well as the planned sixteen (16) feet deep North Wet Pond.

Per your current request, four (4) test intermittent sampling borings will be advanced at the locations
described above (and per plans provided), within the near surface subgrade soils. The test borings
will be advance to a minimum depth of twenty-five (25) to thirty (30) feet below the existing grade
or five (5) feet into rock, whichever occurs first. Intermittent underlying subgrade soil samples will
be obtained assuming the use of a truck mounted drilling rig (no ATV mounted rig). We assume that
the City of Corinth along with Texas 811 will assist in locating existing utility lines, as built
drawings, and invert depths, as required. We also assumed access availability to the proposed test
boring locations per our January 11, 2021 email addressed to Mr. Adam Ram (copy attached).

The purpose of the test boring is to perform subgrade soil classification tests, determine the
feasability of unlined wet ponds or the necessity and properties of proposed clay liners as well as
provide recommendations for allowable bearing pressures, at rest and active fluid pressure exerted
by backfill material for the reinforced box culvert (RCB) and pond detention inflow and outflow
structures. No slope stability of existing or proposed structures was requested or will be provided.

GEE Consultants, Inc. Proposal No. 1210101(Rev.)
Page 3



City of Corinth ¢/o Jones | Carter Engineering

201

January 15,2021 (Rev.)

Our proposal is based on the assumption that an All-Terrain Vehicle (ATV) rig will not be required
to gain access to and test boring at the requested locations.

Based on your request and prior experience with the types of soils encountered in the general area,
using our current Geotechnical Schedule of Fees, we estimate that the following drilling, laboratory
tests and report costs will be required:

Boring, Testing and Report Preparation

Hours Project Geotechnical Engineer for Project Set Up, Site Inspection,

6 and Scheduling of Drilling @ $135.00/Hr . ........... ... ... ..... $810.00
2 Vebhicle Trip Charges to Corinth @ $55.00 ....................... $110.00
12 Hours of Staff Engineer Time to Log Test Boring Data over Assumed One
(1) Day of Truck Mounted Drilling Operations (Daytime)
Estimate12 Hours Staff Engineer Time @ $125.00/Hr .............. $1,500.00
1 Logger Vehicle Trip Charge (Test Borings, Daytime)
Full- Day Trip Charge (Over 4-hours)@ $ 63.00/Each. ............. $63.00
Linear Feet of Intermittent Sample Test Boring (Daytime)
B0 @SUT50/FL. v voe oot $1,400.00
1 Mobilization of Standard Truck Mounted Drilling Rig $400.00
(Daytime) @ $400.00each ........ ..., :
Staff Engineer Hours to Assign Lab Tests
2 Two (2) Hours @ $125.00/HE . -+ oo vrveee e $250.00
24  Moisture Content Tests @ $12.00/Test .. ....... ..., $288.00
12 Atterberg Limits Tests @ $66.00/Test. .............cciivinnn... $792.00
6 Percent Passing a No. 200 U.S. Sieve Tests @ $40.00/Test .......... $240.00
3 Falling Head Permeability Tests @ $225.00/Test .................. $675.00
10 Hours for Project Geotechnical Engineer Analysis and Report $1.350.00
Preparation @ $135.00/Hr . ... ... . o
Hour of Principal Engineer Analysis and Report Preparation @
2 §205.00/HE . .+ oe e $410.00
GEE Consultants, Inc. Proposal No. 1210101(Rev.)

Page 4



292
City of Corinth c/o Jones | Carter Engineering January 15,2021 (Rev.)

Estimated Total of Boring, Lab Testing and Report ................ $8,288.00

An engineering report will be prepared by a team consisting of a qualified geotechnical engineer and
a registered professional engineer. The report will include the following findings and
recommendations:

1. Plan of Borings and Logs of Borings, Referenced to Existing Ground Elevation (Provided by

Others)

Results of Laboratory Testing

Site Observations and Comments

Recommendations for Pond Inflow/OQutflow Structures as well as Junction Box and Storm

Drain Line Foundations Including Allowable Bearing Pressure and Necessity for Utilization

of Flexible Base Beneath Such

5. At Rest and Active Fluid Pressure Exerted by Backfill Material for Box Culverts and Pond
Inflow/Outflow Structures

6.  Criteria for Placement and Processing of Trench Fill Materials

7.  Preliminary Recommendations for Wet Pond Liners (If Required)

el

This proposal is based on the assumption that the site is accessible to truck mounted drilling
equipment. We will take all reasonable precautions to minimize damage to adjacent and subject site
property. However, it should be understood that during the normal course of our work some damage
may occur, the correction of which is not included in our proposal.

Soil sampling in cohesive soils will be performed with thin wall Shelby tubes in general accordance
with ASTM D1587. Granular or hard soils/rock will be sampled with a split spoon sampler in
general accordance with ASTM D1586. Soil samples will be extruded and sealed at the site and
transported to our laboratory for testing.

Groundwater levels in each boring will be measured at the completion of each boring and at the end
of the working day.

Alaboratory testing program will be assigned by a geotechnical engineer to meet the particular needs
of the project after visually examining soil samples collected. Using periodically calibrated
equipment, our experienced laboratory technicians will perform the anticipated tests listed above.

These services will be performed in accordance with our standard fee schedule. Based on
information presently available and our experience the estimated cost of this investigation including
four (4) test borings will be $8,288.00. This cost includes a meeting to discuss our findings (if
desired) at the completion of our investigation. Supplemental meetings and/or recommendations not
included in the original anticipated scope of work may be assessed using our standard rate.

We anticipate this investigation will take approximately four (4) to five (5) weeks for completion,
weather permitting. Limited verbal recommendations will be provided to you on completion of field
drilling operations.

We understand we have been selected for this project and therefore, when providing this estimate,
we are not in violation of laws governing procurement of professional engineering services with
public entities.

If this proposal is acceptable to you, please sign the enclosed copy, along with the Agreement for
Geotechnical Engineering Services and return it to us at your earliest convenience.

GEE Consultants, Inc. Proposal No. 1210101(Rev.)
Page 5



293
City of Corinth c/o Jones | Carter Engineering January 15,2021 (Rev.)

Thank you for the opportunity to be of service to you. Should you have any comments and/or
questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. We are looking forward to working with you.

Very truly yours,
GEE Consultants, Inc.
{\.}/ //’ / F) M
Aviel xu For Qb d &

Ramchandra Baral, M.S.C.E., E.I.T. Richard W. Gee, P.E.
Project Manger President
RB:RWG/ax
Attachment

Accepted By:

Date:
GEE Consultants, Inc. Proposal No. 1210101(Rev.)

Page 6



294

AGREEMENT FOR GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between

City of Corinth, Texas
¢/o Mr. Adam C. Ray, P.E., CFM
Hydrology & Hydraulics

Jones | Carter Engineering Office: (972) 488-3880
2805 Dallas Parkway, Suite 600 Fax: (972) 488-3882
Plano, TX 75093 Direct: (972) 265-7186
Email: aray@jonescarter.com Cell: (281) 265-7186

and GEE CONSULTANTS, INC., a Texas corporation, hereinafter called GEE, who agree
as follows:

1. DECLARATIONS. CLIENT desires to engage GEE to provide Geotechnical Engineering
services in connection with CLIENT's project ("THE PROJECT") described
as follows:

Geotechnical Investigation

City of Corinth Regional Drainage Project
Northwest and Southeast of Corinth Parkway
North of Denton Katy Trail

City of Corinth, Texas

GEE has provided a proposal and/or fee schedule to CLIENT for Geotechnical
Engineering services, which fee schedule is acceptable to CLIENT.

2. SCOPE OF WORK. GEE shall provide Geotechnical Engineering services for THE
PROJECT in accordance with the accompanying proposal "scope of services" made
a part hereof as Exhibit "A" and the "terms and conditions" set forth on the
back of and made a part of this Agreement.

EXECUTED THIS day of , 2021,
CLIENT:
By:
Title:
GEE CONSi;%AN INC
r/aé/ZI
VA/Z(){//M {
Tltle. President

TO BE COMPLETED BY CLIENT:
FOR PAYMENT OF SERVICES:
Firm:

Address:

Zip Code: Phone No.
Attention: Title:
Invoice to the Account of:

FOR APPROVAL OF INVOICE(S) :
If the invoice is to be mailed for approval to someone other than the account
charged, please indicate where to mail the invoice in the space below.

Firm:

Address:

Zip Code: Phone No.
Attention: Title:




TERMS AND CONDITIONS TO 295
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CONSULTING GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER (GEE) AND THE CLIENT

MISCELLANEQUS INFORMATION

The CLIENT and/or his architect and/or his engineer shall provide
GEE with all information concerning the site which is the subject matter of
this contract specifically including but not limited to geotechnical information
testing reports, site plan, utility easements and locations and building
locations and other such information which would be of benefit to the GEE
in preparing and/or completing its work. GEE shall have the right to rely upon
the accuracy of the information provided in performing its service.

RIGHT OF ENTRY

The client will provide for right of entry of GEE and all necessary
equipment, in order to complete the work.

While GEE will take all reasonable precautions to minimize any
damage to the property, it is understood by the CLIENT that in the normal
course of work some damage may occur, the correction of which is not part
of this Agreement.

UTILITIES

In the prosecution of his work, GEE will take all reasonable
precautions to avoid damage or injury to subterranean structures or utilities.

The CLIENT agrees to hold GEE harmless for any damages to
subterranean structures which are not called to GEE’s attention and correctly
shown on the plans furnished which Indemnity Agreement shall specifically
protect GEE.

SAMPLES

GEE will retain all soil and rock samples for thirty (30) days.
Further storage or transfer of samples can be made at owner expense upon
written request.

INVOICES

GEE will submit invoices to CLIENT monthly and a final bill upon
completion of services. Payment is due upon presentation of invoice and is
past due thirty (30) days from invoice date. The CLIENT agrees to pay a
finance charge of one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) per month, or the
maximum rate allowed by law, on past due accounts, whichever is less.
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

All reports, boring logs, field notes, laboratory test data,
calculations, estimates, and other documents prepared by GEE, as instruments
of service, shall remain the property of GEE. It is specifically understood and
agreed that all reports, boring logs, field data, field notes and laboratory test
data, calculations, estimates, and other documents were prepared ata specific
time and under a specific set of criteria for use by the CLIENT named herein.
Accordingly, such reports and other information noted shall notbe transferred
by the CLIENT to-any third party nor shall any representation be made by the
CLIENT to such a third party regarding their ability to rely upon any of the
reports or other information noted without the express written consent of
GEE.

The CLIENT agrees that all reports.and other work furnished to the
CLIENT or his agents, which are not paid for, will be returned upon demand
and will not be used by the client for any purpose whatsoever.

GEE will retain all pertinent records relating to the services
performed for a period of five (5) years following submission of the report,
during which period the records will be made available to the CLIENT at all
reasonable times.

DISPUTES

In the event that a dispute should arise relating to the performance
of the services to be provided under this Agreement, and should that dispute
result in litigation, it is agreed that the prevailing party shall be entitled to
recover all reasonable costs incurred in the defense of the claim, including
staff time, court costs, attorneys' fees, and other claim-related expenses.
STANDARD OF CARE

Service performed by the GEE under this Agreement will be
conducted in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily
exercised by members of the profession currently practicing under similar
conditions. No warranty, express or implied, is made.

The CLIENT recognizes that subsurface conditions may vary from
those encountered at the location where borings, surveys, or explorations are
made by GEE and that the data, interpretations and recommendations of GEE
are based solely on the information available to him. GEE’s responsibility

shall be to develop data, interpretations and recommendations in a
reasonably prudent manner exercising the care and skill noted in the
preceding paragraph. GEE shall not be responsible for the interpretation
or use by others of the information developed.
INSURANCE

GEE agrees to indemnify and save the CLIENT harmless from
and against any loss, damage, or liability arising from any negligent acts
by GEE, his agents, staff, and consultants employed by him. GEE shall
not be responsible for any loss, damage or liability beyond the amounts,
limits, and conditions of GEE’s insurance. GEE shall not be responsible
for any loss, damage, or liability arising from any acts by the CLIENT, his
agents, staff, and other consultants employed by him.
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project
to both the CLIENT and GEE, the risks have been allocated such that
the CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit-the
liability of GEE, and its individual owners, officers, employees and
consultants, hereafter referred to as “GEE” to the CLIENT for any
and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature whatsoever or
claims expenses from any cause or causes, including attorney’s fee and
costs and expert-witness fees and costs, so that the total aggregate
liability of GEE to the CLIENT shall not exceeded $25,000, or GEE’s
total fee for services rendered on this Project, whichever is greater. It
is intended that this limitation apply to any and all liability or cause
of action however alleged or arising, unless otherwise prohibited by
law.

In'the event the CLIENT does not agree to limit GEE’s liability
to this sum, and if client requests a modification in the limitation of
liability sum in writing prior to the acceptance of this' Agreement, GEE
agrees to negotiate a greater amount of liability in exchange for an
increase in scope and fee appropriate to the project and liability risks
involved.

TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon seven
(7) days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party
to perform in accordance with the terms hereof. Such termination shall not
be effective if that substantial failure has been remedied before expiration
of the period specified in the written notice. In the event of termination,
GEE shall be paid for services performed to the termination notice date
plus reasonable termination expenses.

In the event of termination, or suspension for more than three
(3) months, prior to completion of all reports contemplated by this
Agreement, GEE may complete such analyses and records as are
necessary to complete their files and may also complete a report on the
services performed to the date of notice of termination or suspension. The
expenses of termination or suspension shall include all direct costs of
GEE in completing such analyses, records, and reports.

ASSIGNS

Neither the CLIENT nor GEE may delegate, assign, sublet or
transfer his duties, data generated by this investigation, or interest in this
Agreement without the written consent of the other party.

Signature of CLIENT responsible for payment of work performed by
GEE CONSULTANTS, INC. (GEE)

Client:

Signature:

Date:




296

STELLY ENVIRONMENTAL, LLC

January 6, 2021
Proposal No. 1-4

Jones & Carter

2805 Dallas Parkway, Suite 600
Plano, Texas 75093

ATTN: Mr. Adam C. Ray, P.E.

ROUTINE WETLAND DELINEATION
PROPOSED MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT
FROM WALTON ROAD TO SOUTH OF CORINTH PKWY.
CORINTH, TEXAS

Mr. Ray:

Submitted here is our proposal to perform a "Routine Wetland Delineation" for the
above referenced project. This proposal is based on a guidance document for Clean
Water Act Jurisdiction Following the U.S. Supreme Court’s Decision in Rapanos v.
United States & Carabell v. United States that was prepared by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and United States Army Corps of Engineers
(USACE) on June 5, 2007, and Federal Register/Volume 85, No. 77, dated April 21,
2020 concerning The Navigable Waters Protection Rule: Definition of “Waters of the
United States - Final Rule, our review of the site, and your request for proposal on
January 5, 2021.

Site Description

The subject property is an irregular-shaped tract of vacant land that encompasses
approximately 15.5 acres on the north and south sides of Corinth Parkway. The
property is located from south of Walton Road to south of Corinth Parkway, within the
City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. Stelly previous delineated approximately 10.5
acres on the north side of Corinth Parkway (Stelly Project No. 1220, dated May 13,
2020) and identified approximately 690 linear feet of ephemeral stream channel. The
stream is an unnamed tributary to Lake Lewisville. Surrounding properties consist of
commercial and retail businesses, City of Corinth municipal buildings, schools, and
vacant land.

Scope of Services

Stelly Environmental, LLC (Stelly) will conduct the Routine Wetland Delineation in
accordance with the USACE Wetlands Delineation Manual (January 1987). The
procedures are as follows.

Routine Wetland Delineation:  Stelly will perform a Routine Wetland
Delineation to identify USACE jurisdictional waters that may be present at the
subject property for purposes of permitting under Section 404 of the Clean
Water Act (1972). During the delineation field work, pin flags will be placed at
the wetland/stream and upland boundaries.  Subsequent to the on-site
delineation, the pin flags can be surveyed and used for project design purposes.

309 N. ADELAIDE STREET, SUITE A s TERRELL, TEXAS 75160 s office [469]-474-7890 o mosILE [214] 734 8013



297
Jones & Carter

Proposal No. 1-4

January 6, 2021

Page 2 of 4

Prepare Delineation Report: Upon completion of the delineation, Stelly will
prepare a written report that provides the findings, conclusions, and
recommendations of the delineation.

Submit Delineation Report and AJD: At the request of the Jones & Carter,
Stelly will complete an Approved Jurisdictional Determination (AJD) form and
required spreadsheets and then submit the delineation report and forms to the
Corps of Engineers Fort Worth District for concurrence. Stelly will also work
with the Corps of Engineers during the AJD review process. An additional site
visit with the Corps of Engineers may be required.

Report Timeframe

The work should be completed within approximately four weeks of authorization, providing
Stelly receives timely access to the project site and good weather. Obtaining verification from
the Corps of Engineers could take an additional 45 — 60 days.

Proposed Budget

Based on the proposed scope of services, we anticipate a budget of $3,600.00 and $3,700.00 to
complete the Wetland Delineation and ADJ review process. The maximum budget of
$3,700.00 will not be exceeded without prior authorization.

Unless prior arrangements are agreed to in writing, payment for services is due upon receipt of
the invoice. Payment not received within 30 calendar days will be charged interest at a rate of
1.0% per month.

Authorization
We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal and look forward to working with you on

the project. Authorization to proceed may be indicated by signing and returning a copy of this
proposal to our office, via email or mail. If any questions arise, do not hesitate to call.
Sincerely,
STELLY ENVIRONMENTAL, LLC

oWy

David L. Stelly

Environmental Scientist Authorized by
Printed Name
Date

DLS/dls

copies submitted: (1) Via Email Only



298

Jones & Carter
Proposal No. 1-4
January 6, 2021
Page 3 of 4

COST ESTIMATE
ROUTINE WETLAND DELINEATION
PROPOSED MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT
FROM WALTON ROAD TO SOUTH OF CORINTH PKWY.
CORINTH, TEXAS

Field Services

8 Hours, Travel Time and On-Site Delineation Field Work
— Environmental Scientist $ 640.00
Subtotal, Field Services $ 640.00

Engineering Analysis and Report
15 Hours, Research, and Delineation Report Preparation —

Environmental Scientist $1,200.00
12 Hours, ADJ Form and Aquatic Resource Spreadsheet
Preparation, Report Verification Submittal, Additional 960.00
Site Visit, and Project Coordination - Environmental
Scientist
10 Hours, Drafting and Secretarial Support 500.00
Aerial Photographs 200.00
Miscellaneous Field and Office Equipment 120.00
Photographic Documentation 20.00
Subtotal, Engineering $3,000.00
TOTAL ESTIMATED AMOUNT $3,640.00

Based on the above work, the total cost for our services is estimated to be $3,640.00. Stelly
Environmental, LLC reserves the right to vary quantities and types of services, as the project
requires.



299

@STELLY ENVIRONMENTAL, LI

January 6, 2021
Proposal No. 1-5

Jones & Carter

2805 Dallas Parkway, Suite 600
Plano, Texas 75093

ATTN: Mr. Adam C. Ray, P.E.

NATIONWIDE PERMIT APPLICATON PREPARATION
PROPOSED MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT
FROM WALTON RD. TO SOUTH OF CORINTH PKWY.
CORINTH, TEXAS

Mr. Ray:

Submitted here is our proposal to perform work associated with the above proposed
project that will be constructed within junisdictional waters of the United States at the
above referenced property. Stelly previously performed a Routine Wetland Delineation
(Stelly Project No. 1220) on a portion of the proposed project site to identify potential
waters of the United States and found approximately 690 linear feet of ephemeral
stream channel across the property between Walton Road and Corinth Parkway. The
work within this proposal 1s a requirement for obtaining a Nationwide Permit No. 39
(Commercial and Institutional Developments) from the United States Army Corps of
Engineers (USACE) for the proposed project.

The work will include the preparation of an Endangered Species review, Section 401

Water Quality Certification, and a Nationwide Pennit No. 39 application for the site. In

addition, Stelly Environmental, LLC will work with state and federal regulatory

agencies during the penmitting process. This proposal assumes that the project will be

eligible for a Nationwide Permit for proposed impacts to waters of the United States
OTUS) at the project site.

Site Description

The subject property is an irregularly-shaped tract of vacant land that encompasses
approximately 15.5 acres. The property is located from Walton Road to south of
Coninth Parkway, within the City of Connth, Denton County, Texas. Swrrounding
propcnlics dconsist of City of Connth municipal buildings, commercial properties, and
vacant land.

Scope of Services

Stelly Environmental, LLC (Stelly) will prepare a Mitigation Proposal with Altemnative
Analysis based on the development needs of the project and acceptable mitigation
measures. The procedures are as follows:

Prepare Mitigation Proposal with Alternatives Analysis: Stelly will provide a
draft copy of the Mitigation Proposal to Jones & Carter for review.

Submit the Mitigation Proposal with Altematives Analysis: Upon approval of
the draft Mitigation Proposal, a final copy of the proposal will be submitted to
the USACE Fort Worth District.

309 N. ADELAIDE ST., SUITE A ¢ TERRELL. TEXAS 75169 « ofsice [469] 474-7890 « moans [2)4] 734 8013



300

Jones & Carter
Proposal No. 1-5
January 6 2021
Page 2 of 3

Nationwide Permit No. 39 Application Preparation: Stelly will prepare a
Nationwide Permit No. 39 application for the proposed municipal

development. Upon approval by Jones & Carter, the application will be
submitted to the USACE Fort Worth District for review:.

Endangered Species Review: Stelly will conduct an endangered and threatened
species review for the project. Copies of the review will be submitted to Jones
& Carter for acceptance prior to submittal to USACE. If site conditions warrant
further investigation, an endangered or threatened species survey may be
necessary for the project.

Section 401 Water Quality Certification: Stelly will prepare the Water Quality
Certification and submit the certification to Jones & Carter for approval. Upon

approval, the certification will be submitted to the USACE Fort Worth District.

Proposed Budget

Based on the proposed scope of services, we anticipate a budget of $4,950.00 to $5,050.00 to
complete the above work. The maximum budget of $5,050.00 will not be exceeded without
prior authonization.

Unless prior arrangements are agreed to in writing, payment for services is due upon receipt of
the invoice. Payment not received within 30 calendar days will be charged interest at a rate of
1.0% per month.

Authorization

We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal and look forward to working with you
on the project. Authorization to proceed may be indicated by signing and returning a copy of
thus proposal to our office, via email or mail. If any questions arise, do not hesitate to call.

Sincerely,
STELLY ENVIRONMENTAL, LLC

Vsl A

David L. Stelly

Environmental Scientist Authonized by
Printed Name
Date

DLS/dls

copies submitted: (1) Via Email Only



301

Jones & Carter
Proposal No. 1-5
January 6 2021
Page 3 of 3

COST ESTIMATE
NATIONWIDE PERMIT APPLICATON PREPARATION
PROPOSED MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT
FROM WALTON RD. TO SOUTH OF CORINTH PKWY.
CORINTH, TEXAS

Environmental Analysis and Reports
24 Hours, Mitigation Proposal with Alternative Analysis

Preparation - Environmental Scientist $1,920.00

20 Hours, Permit Application and Water Quality
Certification Preparation — Environmental Scientist 1,600.00

2 Hours, Endangered Species Review — Environmental

Scientist 160.00
10 Hours, Drafting and Secretarial Support 500.00
10 Hours, Project Coordination and Meetings 800.00
Subtotal, Analysis and Reports $4,980.00
TOTAL ESTIMATED AMOUNT $4,980.00

Based on the above work, the total cost for our services is estimated to be between $4,950.00
and $5,050.00. Stelly Environmental, LLC reserves the night to vary quantities and types of
services as the project requires. The upper limit budget will not, however, be exceeded without
prior written authorization.



302

COX | McLAIN

Environmental Consulting

6 January 2021

Mr. David Stelly

Stelly Environmental, LLC
309 N. Adelaide St., Suite A
Terrell, Texas 75160

Re: CMEC Proposal for Archeological Services for the Proposed Detention/Floodplain Improvements
along Lynchburg Creek Tributary 3, Corinth, Denton County, Texas

Dear Mr. Stelly:

Cox|McLain Environmental Consulting, Inc. (CMEC) is pleased to submit this proposal to provide
archeological services for the above-referenced project. It is understood that the project entails the
construction of municipal buildings between Walton Road and Corinth Parkway and stormwater
management south of Corinth Parkway along approximately 1,386 feet along Lynchburg Creek
Tributary 3. The area north of Corinth Parkway will be filled and leveled for construction of municipal
buildings while below the Parkway improvements will be made for preventing detention and flooding
through clearing the heavily wooded stream banks and constructing ponds away from potential
jurisdictional areas of the stream diverting water through diversion/discharge structures and use of
riprap where necessary. Approximately 10 acres of City-owned land will be involved.

CMEC understands that the project is owned and funded by the City of Corinth which makes it subject
to the Antiquities Code of Texas. Likewise, it is subject to Section 106 of the National Historic
Preservation Act (NHPA) due to the potential for a Nationwide Permit from the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers (USACE). Coordination with the USACE and Texas Historical Commission (THC) will be
conducted at the same time.

Scope of Work—Desktop Review and THC/USACE Letter Submittal

Based on the data as we understand it, CMEC proposes that a desktop review be conducted, and that
a results letter be prepared for submittal to the THC/USACE for review. This letter will detail key
aspects of the project that support the probability of intact cultural deposits being considered low.

CMEC cultural resources personnel will conduct searches of the Texas Archeological and Historic Sites
Atlas, maintained by the THC and Texas Archeological Research Laboratory to identify previously
documented archeological sites, cemeteries, historical markers, properties and districts listed on the
National Register of Historic Places (NRHP), and State Antiquities Landmarks (SALs). Results of the
search will be integrated with soil information, topographic maps, aerial photographs, and other
pertinent data in a formal consultation letter to the THC and USACE on behalf of the City of Corinth.

Assuming THC and USACE acceptance and concurrence of the results letter from the desktop review,
the project will be allowed to proceed without any additional archeological investigations. The cost of
this service described above would be conducted for a fee of $1,946, to be billed on a lump-sum basis.
This fee is valid for 90 days.

600 E. John Carpenter Freeway, Suite 380, Irving, TX 75062 469-647-4688



303

3 COX | McLAIN
7 Environmental Consulting

Assumptions and Exclusions

e THC and USACE coordination will be conducted at the same time

e Stelly Environmental will provide shapefiles of the project for use in the letter report maps.

e Exclusions: archeological survey (pedestrian or mechanical trenching), archeological monitoring,
testing, or data recovery; ecological services; right-of-entry coordination; human environment studies;
Section 4(f) services; historic resources reconnaissance or intensive study, NRHP nominations, or
HABS/HAER documentation; human remains evaluation, coordination, removal, or reinterment; or
artifact processing, detailed analysis, or curation. All excluded services could be provided under
separate scope/budget.

CMEC greatly appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal. Please feel free to contact me at
469-647-4866 or missig@coxmclain.com if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

\'7/7’:,' L aat /:)44.

Melissa M. Green, RPA
Senior Archeologist / Principal Investigator
Cox|McLain Environmental Consulting, Inc.

600 E. John Carpenter Freeway, Suite 380, Irving, TX 75062 469-647-4688


mailto:missig@coxmclain.com

Stelly Envirnmental, LLC - Lynchburg Creek Tributary 3 Coordination Letter

Cox|McLain Environmental Consulting, Inc.

304

LABOR
Sr. Env. Env. Env. Prof. Il | Env. Prof. | Env. Env. Env. Admin Totals
Scientist Scientist Staff Il Staff I/ Tech Il
Sr. GIS GIS Analyst] Tech Editor
Description Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours
Task 1 Desktop Review & THC/USACE Letter 12 6 2 2 22
Task 2 Project Management 0
Task 3 Permit Application Preparation (assume none; 106 only) 0
Task 4 Pre-field Preparation 0
Task 5 Field Investigations 0
Task 6 Interim and Draft Report Preparation/Editing, QC 0
Task 7 Agency Review and Comment Response 0
Task 8 Final Report Production/Distribution/Curation 0
Total Labor Hours 0 12 0 0 6 0 2 2 22
Rate $125.00 $110.00 $95.00 $80.00 $70.00 $60.00 $55.00 $48.00
SUBTOTAL Labor Cost $0 $1,320 $0 $0 $420 $0 $110 $96 $1,946
EXPENSES
Unit Quantity Rate Total
Backhoe + operator Day 0 $ 1,500.00 $0
Mileage (Allowable IRS Rate) Miles 0 $ 0.580 $0
Hotel Day 0 $ 94.00 $0
Per Diem Day 0 $ 55.00 $0
Vehicle Rental and Fuel Day 0 $ 90.00 $0
Airfare R/T 0 $ 400.00 $0
Overnight Delivery Letter 0 $ 15.00 $0
Field Supplies (At cost) Misc 0 $ 100.00 $0
GPS Camera Use Day 0 $ 25.00 $0
Film Process and Development 36 Exp. 0 $ 20.00 $0
Color Reproduction - Plates Page 0 $ 1.00 $0
Copies - B&W Page 0 $ 0.10 $0
CAS Curation - records only Inch 0 $  250.00 $0
Texas Site Forms Each 0 $ 96.00 $0
TOTAL Non-labor Expenses $0

Notes/Assumptions: Coordination letter for THC & USACE

CMEC Fee Estimate

TOTAL COSTS - CMEC $1,946

1/6/2021




305

BUSINESS ITEM 11.
City Council Special Session

Meeting Date: 01/28/2021
Title: Oncor Electric Construction Easement
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary

City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

Strategic Goals: Land Development
Infrastructure Development
Economic Development

AGENDA ITEM

Consider approval of granting Oncor Electric an underground utility easement within the Lake Sharon Pump Station
site for the purpose of providing underground electric service to Lake Sharon Phase 3 and authorizing the City
Manager to sign any necessary documents.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

During the Construction of Lake Sharon Phase 3, the developer needs to obtain electric service for the subdivision.
Oncor Electric Delivery is the only provider for that specific area. The closest connection point for Oncor is at the
City’s Pump Station site on Lake Sharon Drive. During construction of Lake Sharon Drive Oncor proceeded to
install aerial/overhead power poles along the north side of Lake Sharon Drive. The permit to construct aerial had
been denied a year before, and a project manager from Oncor forgot to obtain a permit. There are already overhead
power poles on the south side of the road, but they are for Denton Municipal Electric and can not be used for the
subdivision’s purpose. After the installation of the poles, City staff coordinated with Oncor and provided
information that requires the developer for the subdivision to provide underground power service to the subdivision.
Oncor will not install their underground facilities within the right-of-way as they are concerned that the city will
require them to relocate at some future date for a roadway widening project. City Staff reached an agreement that
Oncor could utilize the land within the pump station site to provide underground power to the subdivision and that
the City would grant an underground utility easement.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of granting Oncor Electric an underground utility easement within the Lake Sharon
Pump Station site for the purpose of providing underground electric service to Lake Sharon Phase 3 and authorizing
the City Manager to sign any necessary documents.

Attachments

Oncor Easement




306

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU
MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM
ANY INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE
IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY
NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER.

UNDERGROUND UTILITY EASEMENT AGREEMENT

STATE OF TEXAS §
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF DENTON §

That the City of Corinth, a Texas home rule municipality, with a mailing
address of 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas 76208, hereinafter called "Grantor",
for and in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable
consideration to Grantor, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
paid by Oncor Electric Delivery Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, with a mailing address of 1616 Woodall Rodgers Freeway, Dallas, Texas
75202-1234, hereinafter referred to as "Grantee", has granted, sold and conveyed and by
these presents does grant, sell and convey unto Grantee, its successors and assigns, an
easement for the purpose of constructing, installing and maintaining underground electric
supply and communications lines, (the “Easement Purpose”), consisting of a variable
number of wires and cables, surface mounted equipment, conduits, manholes, vaults,
transformers switches, protection, sectionalizing devices and all necessary or desirable
appurtenances, as further described herein, (the “Facilities”), over, under, across, and
upon the Grantor’s land, described by metes and bounds in Exhibit A, attached hereto
and incorporated as if set forth fully herein, (the “Easement Property”), with the right of
ingress and egress upon Grantor’s Right-of-Way along Lake Sharon Drive, (“Grantor’s
Right-of-Way”), as depicted in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated as if set forth
fully herein.

Grantor and Grantee recognize that the metes and bounds of the Easement
Property are as described in Exhibit A.

Grantor, for the consideration paid by Grantee, hereby grants, sells, and conveys
to Grantee an easement over, on and across the Easement Property together with the
right of ingress and egress upon Grantor’s Right-of-Way for the purpose of constructing,
installing and maintaining underground electric supply and communications lines with
the right to construct, maintain, operate, repair, remove, replace, reconstruct, abandon,
and change the size and capacity of Facilities; the right to relocate Facilities in the same
relative direction of other Facilities; the right to relocate Facilities in the same relative
position to any adjacent road if and as such is widened in the future; the right to lease
wire space for the purpose of permitting others to string or lay wire or cable along
Facilities; the right to prevent excavation within the Easement Property; the right to
prevent construction of, within the Easement Property, of any and all buildings,

UUEA — City of Corinth/Oncor



307

structures or other obstructions which, in the judgment of Grantee and/or Grantor, may
endanger or interfere with the efficiency, safety, and/or convenient operation of Facilities
and their appurtenances; and the right to remove trees or shrubbery within, but not limited
to, said Easement Property, to the extent in the sole judgment of Grantee, as may be
necessary to prevent possible interference with the operation of Facilities or to remove
possible hazard thereto, in accordance with Grantor’'s Code of Ordinances and policies,
as well as in accordance with applicable state law. Grantee’s right of ingress and egress
upon the Grantor's Right-of-Way is only for the purpose of Grantee reaching the
Easement Property for the Easement Purpose.

Grantor shall not make any changes in the grade, elevation or contour of the
Easement Property that are inconsistent with this Easement. Grantor shall not impound
water within the Easement Property. It is expressly provided that Grantor reserves unto
itself, its successors and assigns, all other rights in and to the Easement Property and
Grantor’s Right-of-Way which do not unreasonably interfere with or prevent the use of
this Easement herein granted and conveyed to Grantee.

Permitted Exceptions. The Easement Property is subject to all easements, rights-of-
way, and prescriptive rights; all presently recorded restrictions, reservations, covenants,
conditions, oil and gas leases, mineral severance, and other instruments, other than
liens and conveyances, that affect the Easement Property; rights of adjoining owners in
any walls and fences situated on a common boundary; any discrepancies, conflicts, or
shortages in area or boundary lines; and any existing encroachments or overlapping of
improvements (collectively, “Permitted Exceptions”).

Insurance. Grantee shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, commercial general
liability insurance insuring against claims on account of lost life, bodily injury or property
damage that may arise from, or be occasioned by the condition, use or occupancy of
the Easement Property of Grantor’s Right-of-Way by Grantee or its employees, agents,
guests, occupants and/or other permittees (collectively, the “Grantee Permittees”), or
caused by the Grantee Permittees. Grantee shall obtain an insurance policy according
to the provisions hereof from a reputable insurance company or companies qualified to
do business in the State of Texas and that is rated by Best’s Insurance Reports not less
than “A”; and each such policy of insurance shall have limits for loss of life or bodily
injury in amounts not less than $2,000,000.00 for each occurrence and shall name
Grantor as additional insured. Grantee, upon request from Grantor, shall promptly
furnish to Grantor one or more certificates of insurance evidencing the existence of the
insurance required above.

Restoration of Easement Property. Grantee shall clean up and remove all trash and
debris caused by Grantee’s construction, installation and/or maintenance of the
Facilities. After all such activities, Grantee, at its sole cost and expense, shall return
the surface of the Easement Property to its pre-installation condition as is reasonably
practicable, excluding trees, buildings, structures, or other improvements of any nature
whatsoever, and shrubs that were removed as a result of such work, if changed by use
of the rights granted by this Easement.

UUEA — City of Corinth/Oncor



308

Indemnification of Grantor. Grantee agrees to save and hold Grantor free and harmless
from and against any and all claims, demands or causes of action of whatever nature,
asserted by others which are solely by or arise in any manner out of negligent acts or
omissions of Grantee and/or Grantee’s Permittees in the use and occupancy of the
Easement Property and Grantor’s Right-of-Way by Grantee Permittees.

Binding Effect. This Agreement shall run with the land and binds and inures to the
benefit of the parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

Choice of Law. This Agreement will be construed under the laws of the state of Texas,
without regard to choice-of-law rules of any jurisdiction. Venue is in Denton County, the
county in which the Easement Property is located.

Retained Rights. The grant made hereunder is not a conveyance of the Easement
Property nor of any interest in the oil, gas, and other minerals in, on, or under the land
subject to the Easement herein granted, but is a grant solely of the Easement as above
described.

Termination. The easement rights and privileges herein granted shall be for so long as
Grantee or its assigns shall utilize the Easement Property for the purposes intended.
The easement rights and privileges granted hereunder shall terminate automatically
when or at such time as the Easement is abandoned in writing by Grantee. Upon
abandonment or termination of the Easement, Grantee agrees to record a release of
the Easement in the Real Property Records of Denton County, Texas within forty-five
(45) days following request therefor, and Grantee shall, at Grantee’s sole cost and
expense, remove all Facilities within a reasonable amount of time, not to exceed ninety
(90) days, after such termination, in accordance with applicable regulations.

Notices. Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing. Any
notice required by this Agreement will be deemed to be delivered (whether actually
received or not) when deposited with the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid,
certified mail, return receipt requested, and addressed to the intended recipient at the
address provided in this Agreement. Notice may also be given by regular mail, personal
delivery, courier delivery, facsimile transmission, or other commercially reasonable
means and will be effective when actually received. Any address for notice may be
changed by written notice delivered as provided herein.

Equitable Rights of Enforcement. The Easement may be enforced by restraining
orders and injunctions (temporary or permanent) prohibiting interference and
commanding compliance. Restraining orders and injunctions will be obtainable on proof
of the existence of interference or threatened interference, without the necessity of proof
of inadequacy of legal remedies or irreparable harm, and will be obtainable only by the
parties to or those benefited by this Agreement; provided, however, that the act of
obtaining an injunction or restraining order will not be deemed to be an election of
remedies or a waiver of any other rights or remedies available at law or in equity.

UUEA — City of Corinth/Oncor



309

No Waiver. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be deemed to imply or constitute a
further waiver thereof or of any other provisions set forth herein.

Attorneys’ Fees. If any Party retains an attorney to enforce this Agreement, the party
prevailing in litigation is entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and court and
other costs.

Legal Construction. If any provision in this Agreement is for any reason unenforceable,
to the extent the unenforceability does not destroy the basis of the bargain among the
parties, the unenforceability will not affect any other provision hereof, and this
Agreement will be construed as if the unenforceable provision had never been a part of
this Agreement. Whenever context requires, the singular will include the plural and
neuter include the masculine or feminine gender, and vice versa. Article and section
headings in this Agreement are for reference only and are not intended to restrict or
define the text of any section. This Agreement will not be construed more or less
favorably between the parties by reason of authorship or origin of language.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement and any exhibits constitute the entire agreement
of the parties concerning the grant of the Easement by Grantor to Grantee. There are
no representations, agreements, warranties, or promises that are not expressly set forth
in this Agreement and any exhibits.

EXECUTED this day of , 2021.

GRANTOR:
City of Corinth,
a Texas home rule municipality

By: Date: _, 2021
Bob Hart
City Manager

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF DENTON §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Bob Hart,
City Manager of City of Corinth, a Texas home rule municipality, known to me to be
the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to
me that he/she executed for the purposes and consideration therein expressed, in the
capacity therein stated and that he/she is authorized to do so.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this day of A.D.
2021.

Notary Public in and for the
State of Texas

UUEA — City of Corinth/Oncor



310

GRANTEE:
Oncor Electric Delivery Company, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By: Date: _, 2021
Name:
Title:
STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTYOF §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared

, of Oncor Electric

Delivery Company, LLC, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to

the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed for the purposes

and consideration therein expressed, in the capacity therein stated and that he/she is
authorized to do so.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this___day of A.D.
2021.

Notary Public in and for the
State of Texas

UUEA — City of Corinth/Oncor



311

BEARING BASIS:

THE EAST LINE OF LOT 35, BLOCK F OF LAKE
SHARON ESTATES ADDITION PH. Il, PER PLAT
RECORDED IN CAB. V, PG. 587, PRD.C.T..

R = 1840.00"

A= 11°1810"

L=382771
CH = 382.09'

CB=S82°325T"E

10" WIDE ELECT. EASEMENT
VOL. 4978, PG. 2020

§
=

A =10°46'34"
PO'NT O,F :_i =362.05

CH = 361.52
BEGINNING CB =S 82°39'06" E

.4

1.8963 ACRES s
CITY OF CORINTH
VOL. 4199, PG. 1247

SCALE: 1" = 100’

LA
KE' SHARON DRIVE

R= 1915.00’\

77

1/2" IRON ROD W/
YELLOW "MCCULLAH"
CAP FOUND (CM)

L

CITY OF CORINTH

POINT OF
COMMENCING

LOT 35

1/2" IRON ROD
FOUND (CM)
CM = CONTROLLING MONUMENT
TANGENT BEARING LENGTH

T N 18700'20" W 15.85

T2 S 0174827 W 95.04"

13 S 8811'33" E 4.26'

T4 S 01°48'27" W 20.00°

T5 N 8811'33" W 20.00°

16 N 01°48'27" E 20.00'

17 S 88M1'33" E 0.74

T8 N 014827" E 82.70°

DANIEL M. WARD

sesssen o
3

.........

INST. NO. 2006—99164, D.RD.C.T.

LOT 26 LOT 27

Lot 25 BLOCK F

LAKE SHARON ESTATES ADDITION PH. Il
CAB. V, PAGE 587, P.R.D.C.T.

B.B.B. & C.R.R., CO. SURVEY
/ ABSTRACT NO. 190

EXHIBIT "A”
ONCOR ELECTRIC DELIVERY CO.
EASEMENT
IN THE CITY OF CORINTH
DENTON COUNTY, TEXAS

CORNERSTONE SURVEYING, INC
200 WEST MARSHALL
P.O BOX 699, PALMER. TEXAS 75152

TEL. (972) 845-2505 ~ FAX. (972) 845-2455
FIRM NO. 100215-00

PAGE 2 OF 2




312

“EXHIBIT A”

Lying and situated in the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, the B.B.B. & C.R.R. Co.
Survey, Abstract No. 190, and being a part of that certain tract of land called 1.963 acresina
Warranty Deed to the City of Corinth, recorded in Volume 4199, Page 1247, Deed Records of
Denton County, Texas (D.R.D.C.T), and a part of Lot 35, Block F of Lake Sharon Estates
Phase Il, an addition to the City of Corinth, according to the map or plat thereof recorded in
Cabinet V, Page 857, Plat Records of Denton County, Texas as described in a Special
Warranty Deed recorded in Instrument No. 2006-99164, D.R.D.C.T, and being more
particularly described as follows:

COMMENCING at a 1/2" iron rod with a yellow “McCullah Surveying” cap found at an interior
corner in the east line of the above mentioned Lot 35, a distance of 233.36 feet, S 18° 00" 20”
E from the south right of way line of Lake Sharon Drive, and being N 51° 07" 29" W, a distance
of 246.22 feet along said east line from a 1/2" iron rod found; Thence N 18° 00" 20° W, along
said east line, a distance of 206.10 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE N 18° 00’ 20" W, along said east line, a distance of 15.95 feet to the beginning of a
non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of 1940.00 feet, a central angle of 11° 18’ 10",
and a chord that bears S 82° 32’ 57” E, a distance of 382.09 feet;

THENCE in a southeasterly direction, departing said east line,along said curve, an arc
distance of 382.71 feet;

THENCE S 01° 48’ 27" W, departing said easement line, a distance of 95.04 feet;

THENCE S 88° 11’ 33" E, a distance of 4.27 feet;

THENCE S 01° 48’ 27" W, a distance of 20.00 feet;

THENCE N 88° 11’ 33" W, a distance of 20.00 feet;

THENCE N 01° 48 27" E, a distance of 20.00 feet;

THENCE S 88° 11’ 33" E, a distance of 0.74 feet;

THENCE N 01° 48 27" E, a distance of 82.70 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to
the left having a radius of 1925.00 feet, a central angle of 10° 46" 34", and a chord that bears

N 82° 39’ 068" W, a distance of 361.52 feet;

THENCE in a northwesterly direction, along said curve, an arc distance of 362.05 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 7,318.77 square feet of land more or less.

Page 1 of 2

WR# 3422751 CITY OF CORINTH, LAKE SHARON DRIVE, CORINTH, TEXAS, DENTON COUNTY. R.D. 1/21/2021.




	Agenda
	AI 2211 Policy Governance
	       ATT_Policy Governance Overview
	       ATT_Sample Governance Policies
	AI 2180 Credit Card Fee Ordinance
	AI 2182 Director of Finance, Communication & Strategic Services
	       ATT_Presentation
	AI 2121 Communication Strategic Plan
	       ATT_Presentation
	AI 2141 Director of Finance, Communication & Strategic Services
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Social Media Policy
	AI 2172 Corinth Investment Policy
	       ATT_Corinth Investment Policy
	       ATT_Resolution - Corinth Investment Policy
	AI 2174 CCD Investment Policy
	       ATT_Resolution - CCD Investment Policy
	       ATT_Investment Policy
	AI 2177 EDC Investment Policy
	       ATT_Resolution - EDC Investment Policy
	       ATT_Investment Policy
	AI 2179 Fire Control, Prevention & Emergency Services District Investment Policy
	       ATT_Resolution - Fire District Investment Policy
	       ATT_Investment Policy
	AI 2210 Ambulance Purchase Agreement
	       ATT_Ambulance Quote
	       ATT_Ambulance Financing
	AI 2209 AWIA Risk-Resiliency Assessment
	       ATT_Contract AWIA Risk-Resiliency Assessment-ERP Kimley-Horn
	Article III
	Schedule of Work – Project Completion
	Article VI
	Miscellaneous
	City of Corinth, Texas


	AI 2212 Consider and act upon the Alternative Compliance Application for tree preservation on ±.42 acres located at 3900 Serendipity Hills Court (AC20-0003)
	       ATT_Alternative Compliance Application
	       ATT_Applicant Letter
	       ATT_Tree Survey
	       ATT_Site Plan
	AI 2213 Consider and act upon the Alternative Compliance Application for Tree Preservation on ±4.93 acres located at 5150 S I-35 E. (Enterprise AC20-0001)
	       ATT_Alternative Compliance Application
	       ATT_Landscape Plan
	AI 2215 TOD Drainage Design Proposal
	       ATT_Jones_Carter Proposal
	AI 2220 Oncor Electric Construction Easement
	       ATT_Oncor Easement 

